
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Page 1 of 2 


CITY OF BENSON 
CITY COUNCIL 


MARCH 28, 2016 – 7:00 P.M.  
REGULAR MEETING              


 
A REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF BENSON, ARIZONA  


WILL BE HELD ON MARCH 28, 2016 AT 7:00 P.M.,  
AT BENSON CITY HALL,  


120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA       
 
                                                                               _________________________________ 
                                                                                      Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 
 


A G E N D A 
 
The Council may discuss, direct, consider and take possible action as indicated below pertaining to the following: 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  The Call to Order will consist of the Mayor calling the Council to order.  The Mayor or his 
designee shall then lead those present in the Pledge of Allegiance before introducing the invocation speaker, who will 
offer the invocation. 
 
ROLL CALL:  The City Clerk shall call the roll of the members, and the names of those present shall be entered in 
the minutes. 


 
EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  The Mayor shall use this time to present employment awards to those City 
employees or to present recognition awards for specific acts regarding public service, if any.   
 
PROCLAMATION:   A proclamation of the Mayor and Council declaring the month of April as “Fair Housing 
Month.”  
 
PUBLIC HEARING:   None   
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Communications and comments from the citizens regarding the City of Benson or other 
matters properly addressed to the City Council shall be heard by the Council.  Such remarks shall be addressed to the 
Council as a whole and shall be limited to five (5) minutes unless this time is adjusted in the discretion of the Mayor or 
Council.  ** 


 
CITY MANAGER REPORT:  The City Manager will announce meetings and events taking place regarding matters 
involving or related to the City of Benson. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 


1. Discussion and possible action on the Consent Agenda:  ***      
1a. Minutes of the January 31, 2015 Worksession  * 
1b. Minutes of the February 8, 2016 Regular Meeting  * 
1c. Minutes of the February 22, 2016 Regular Meeting  * 
1d. Invoices processed for the period from February 17, 2016 through March 4, 2016  * 
1e. Invoices processed for the period from March 5, 2016 through March 20, 2016  * 
 


2. Presentation of Certified Audit Report for the City of Benson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 – Dustin 
DeSpain, Finance Director  * 
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3. Presentation by the Arizona Game and Fish Department with discussion and possible action regarding 


Resolution 7-2016 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, Arizona, approving the Safe Harbor 
Agreement for Topminnows and Pupfish in Arizona between the Arizona Game and Fish Department and the 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the City of Benson – Joe DelVecchio, Director of Golf  * 
 


4. Discussion and possible action regarding a Trust Assurance Agreement to Construct Subdivision Improvements 
with Whetstone Partners, L.L.P., an Arizona Limited Liability Partnership for Cottonwood Highlands, Lots 1-
85, inclusive and Common Areas A,B6 through B9, inclusive and C1 through C3, inclusive – Brad Hamilton, 
P.E., City Engineer/Public Works Director  * 
 


5. Discussion and possible action regarding Resolution 10-2016 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, 
Arizona, authorizing the Release of Assurances for the Subdivision known as Cottonwood Highlands, Lots 1 
through 85, inclusive and Common Areas A, B6 through B9, inclusive and C1 through C3, inclusive  – Brad 
Hamilton, P.E., City Engineer/Public Works Director  * 
 


6. Update on the Railroad Quiet Zones for the Patagonia Street, San Pedro Street and Ocotillo Street crossings – 
Councilmember Konrad 
 


7. Review of City Finance with emphasis on February financial results and the City’s financial position on 
February 29, 2016 – Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director  * 
 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  Written Department Reports will be provided to Councilmembers as part of the 
Council packet monthly, discussion and direction to Staff, if any, may ensue. 


 
ADJOURNMENT 
  
POSTED this 24th day of March, 2016 
 
Material related to the City Council meeting is available for public review the day before and the day of the meeting, 
during office hours, at the City Clerk’s Office located at 120 W. 6th Street, Benson, Arizona, 520-586-2245 x 2011. 
 
All facilities are handicapped accessible.  If you have a special accessibility need, please contact Vicki L. Vivian, City 
Clerk, at (520) 586-2245 or TDD: (520) 586-3624, no later than eight (8) hours before the scheduled meeting time.   
 
Any invocation that may be offered before the start of regular Council business shall be the voluntary offering of a 
private citizen, for the benefit of the Council and the citizens present.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation 
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Council, and the Council does not endorse the religious 
beliefs or views of this, or any other speaker. 
 
Executive Sessions - Upon a vote of the majority of the City Council, the council may enter into Executive Sessions 
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statues §38-431.03 (A)(3) to obtain legal advice on matters listed on the Agenda. 
 


* Denotes an Exhibit in addition to the Council Communication 
 


** Call to the Public 
 
Arizona Revised Statutes §38-431.01(H) provides that “A public body may make an open call to the public during a 
public meeting, subject to reasonable time, place and manner restrictions to allow individuals to address the public 
body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the public body.  At the conclusion of an open call to the public, individual 
members of the public body may respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the public body, may ask 
staff to review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the public body 
shall not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly 
noticed for discussion and legal action.”  As such, a Call to the Public, if on the agenda, is provided as a courtesy. 
 
In order to speak during the Call to the Public, please complete the Call to the Public form requesting to do so. 
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*** Consent Agenda 
 


The Consent Agenda will be the first item under New Business and shall list separately distinct items requiring action 
by the City Council that are generally routine items not requiring Council discussion.  A single motion will approve all 
items on the Consent Agenda, including any resolutions or ordinances, or claims/invoices that are of a routine nature.  
A Councilmember may remove any issue from the Consent Agenda, and that issue will be discussed and voted upon 
separately, immediately following the Consent Agenda under its proper regular category of New Business. 
 
NOTICE TO PARENTS:  Parents and legal guardians have the right (with certain exceptions) to consent before the 
City of Benson makes a video or voice recording of a minor child. A.R.S. §1-602(A)(9). Regular and Special Meetings 
of the Mayor and Council for the City of Benson are recorded, and that recording is usually posted on the City’s 
website.  If you permit your child to participate in a Regular or Special Meeting of the Mayor and Council for the City 
of Benson, a recording will be made.  If your child is seated in the audience your child may be recorded, but you may 
request that your child be seated in a designated area to avoid recording.  Please submit your request to the City Clerk. 





		A G E N D A






CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
DATE: March 28, 2016 
 
TO:  William Stephens, City Manager 
     
FROM: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director 
 
cc:  Benson City Council Members 
 
SUBJECT: Finance/Transit Department Monthly Report for February, 2016 
               
   
Current Department Projects: 


 Continually working on reporting compliance with the new HealthCare Reforms 
 Working on Risk Pool Insurance Safety Training 
 Preparing Preliminary Audit Documents for Auditing Firm.   
 We are working on changes to our tax code regarding rental tax, business licensing and fees. We 


plan to bring this change to Council. . 
 We have been working on our Transit Grant Budget and Filing. 
 We are finishing ADOT Transit Audit compliance list 
 We had an ADOT Alcohol and Drug Abuse Audit for Transit/ Awaiting items we need to work on.   
 Starting Transit Grant Application for upcoming Fiscal Year. 
 We continue in our Joint efforts with City Clerk’s office to monitor and provide Human Resource 


support.  
  Ordered 2 New Buses 
 Working on Budget Projections for 2016-2017 


 
Upcoming: 


 Audit on Financials for Budget year 2014-2015 starting February 16, 2016 
 Monitoring Airport Tie Down agreements and fee collections 
 Coordinating Human Resource activities with Vicki, as we have no HR Coordinator 
 Completing Training and Audit adjustments for Transit Compliance 
 Volunteer Fire Department Retirement Funds 
 Working on Financial Projections with DA/CMP  


 
Finance Department Statistics for January, 2016 
 


 Utility payments processed              2257 
 Other payments processed    408                 
 Payroll checks issued     181 
 Accounts Payable checks issued    198 
 New Business License Applications taken      7 
 Customers enrolled on Xpress Bill Pay   817 
 Customers signed up for Online Statements  314 
 Fixed Route Bus #7003 Rides    388 
 Fixed Route Bus #7005 Rides    146 
 Dial–A-Ride Bus #7004 Rides                                 537 
 Back-up Bus       #7001 Rides      19                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  







CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
 
DATE:  3/10/16  
  
TO:   Bill Stephens, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Keith Spangler, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  February 2016 Department Head Report 
 


 
Operations 
During the month of February, Benson Fire Department responded to 66 calls.  The 
average number of Firefighters responding to the calls for the month was 6.  The lowest 
number was 1 and the highest number was 10. The average response time from page 
to on scene was 16 minutes.  The average time from page to en route was 2 minutes 
and the average time from en route to on scene was 3 minutes.  The break down of 
calls is listed below. 
 
Type      Number 
Structure Fire         0                 
Vehicle Fire        4                                      
Brush Fire         5                                                 
EMS       44                                           
Rescue        0        
Haz-Mat        2                                            
Service Calls        0                                             
Good Intent Calls      10 
False Alarms        0 
Miscellaneous Calls       1 
 
Benson Fire Department had no Mutual Aide calls. 
 
Meetings and Trainings 
 
Business/Training meetings were held on 2/10/16 and 2/17/16. 
 
Vehicle Maintenance 
 
Engine 711 in now in service.  Engine 71 went in for warranty work on the motor. 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
Attended the Cochise County Emergency Medical Services Council and Cochise 
County Fire Association meetings in Willcox. 







 







CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
 
DATE: March 3, 2016 
 
To: William Stephens, City Manager  
 
FROM: Kelli Jeter, Sr. Library Assistant   
 
SUBJECT: End of the month report for February 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
The adult lecture series resumed this past month. They are being very well attended 
and we are getting positive feedback from participants. The schedule for February was: 
 


February 9 - Baxter Black local cowboy poet 
 
February 16 - Eric Kaldahl from the Amerind Foundation 
 
February 23 - Penny Jewwett who presented on furniture restoration 
 


These lectures will continue into May. 
 
 
Franchesca Hinecker attend the Summer Reading Program class held in Sierra Vista on 
February 25th.  This was sponsored by Arizona State Library.  She returned with lots of 
great ideas for this year’s program.    
 
 







Feb-16 Feb-15 YTD-2016 YTD-2015


Total Circulation 6,067 5,838 41,862 46,139  monthly circulation of material
Patrons 5,744 4,792 38,468 36,066  patrons entering the library


New Registration 62 59 383 551  new patron cards


Total Registration 8,210 7,731 8,210 7,731  total # of patrons in database


Programs 17 16 57 51 #of programs provided by library
Pr. Attend 187 266 834 919 total attendance for programs


Ref. Questions 724 737 4,624 4,525 ref questions answered by staff


Volunteers 2 1 13 9  new volunteers this month
Volunteer hours 24 13.75 122 261.9  total of monthly volunteer hours


Book Count
Titles added 47 124 887 1,117  new titles added to database
Titles deleted 20 148 1,092 2,094  titles removed from collection


Collection Total 33,945 33,742 33,945 33,742  total material in database


Overdues:
Titles overdue 350 513 3,604 4,100  number of overdue items
Contacts 93 97 962 957  number of patrons contacted
Titles returned 313 288 1,821 2,846  # of overdue items returned


Internet Users 1,057 1,119  # of people signed up for p.c.'s


February-16
Statistical Report


Benson Public Library







CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
DATE: March 9, 2016  
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  
 
FROM: Ann P. Roberts, City Prosecutor 
CC:  Bill Stephens, City Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Prosecutorial Statistics for February, 2016 
 
Statistics for prosecutorial activity in the Benson Magistrate/Justice of the Peace, Precinct No. III: 
 
TRIALS: 
 Child Abuse       00    
 Criminal Traffic Trials:       01 
 General Crime Trials:      02 
 Drug Related Trials:      00 
 Domestic Violence Trials:      00 
 D.U.I. Jury Trials:       00 
 Animal Control/Game and Fish Trials/Registrar of Contractors:  00 
 Total Trials        03 
        
PRETRIAL CONFERENCES: 
 
 Criminal Traffic Pretrial Conference Hearings:   71 
 General Crime Pretrial Conference Hearings:    26 
 Drug Related Pretrial Conference Hearings:    17 
 Domestic Violence Pretrial Conference Hearings:  10 
 D.U.I. Pretrial Conference Hearings:     05 
 Animal Control/Game and Fish Pretrial Conference Hearings: 02 
 Total Pretrials                  131 
  
HEARINGS: 
 
 Restitution/OSC and Sentencing Hearings:   00 
 Probation Revocation Hearings:     00 
 Bond Forfeiture Hearings:     00 
 Rule Eleven (Incompetency) Hearings:     00 
 DUI Status/Suppression/Evidentiary Hearing/Status  00 
 Change of Plea Hearing      00 
 Vicious Dog Hearing      00   
 Planning and Zoning Violations/Health Code Hearings  00 
 Total Hearings       00 
 
 Total Case Matters Closed this Month    60 
  
 PROSECUTORIAL TIME SPENT IN COURT  17.00 HRS 
 PROSECUTORIAL TIME SPENT OUTSIDE OF COURT* 74.00 HRS 
 
*TIME SPENT DEALING WITH DEFENSE COUNCIL, VICTIMS, DEFENDANTS AND ON OTHER 
MATTERS SUCH AS ISSUING WARRANTS, CASE PREPARATION, LEGAL RESEARCH AND REVIEW OF 
PENDING CRIMINAL CHARGES. 
 
 







CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
DATE:   March 18, 2016   
 
TO:   William Stephens, City Manager    
 
FROM:  Bob Nilson, Tourism Supervisor    
 
SUBJECT: Tourism Report for February 2016   
 
• Our Visitor count for February 2016 was 1,095 as compared to 1,637 in February of 
2015, down 542 from last year.  
 
• Again Greyhound ticket sales are the same in February with 20 ticket transactions. 
More people have been purchasing Greyhound ticket on line. We are spending more 
time dealing with Greyhound problems that we are not being compensated for. 
 
• We met with Andy Perez of Union Pacific Foundation on Monday March 14th where he 
presented a check for $7,500 to Mayor King for the construction of a rest area Ramada 
on the corner of Pomerene Road and highway 86. We sent a press release to the San 
Pedro News Sun. They said they will do a story on the presentation. 
 
• Stronghold Sign Company has our three map signs complete. They are being stored in 
a con-ex container at the city yard. We will need to decide where to install the signs. 
 
• We are still working on our “G” Scale model railroad layout at the Visitor Center that 
was provided by last year’s Union Pacific Foundation grant. We will hopefully have it 
completed by May of this year. 
 
• Below are our Visitor Counts for February of 2016 
 


Visitor Center Headcount 


Comparisons February, 2016 
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Visitor Center Phone calls 
Comparisons by Graph February, 2016 


 


 
 


Visitor Center Information Requests 
Comparisons by Graph February, 2016 
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Discussion:  
 
This Trust Assurance Agreement for the subdivision known as Cottonwood Highlands is with the new owners, 
Whetstone Partners, L.L.P. so that they can proceed with improvements to complete the subdivision.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
  
Approval of the Trust Assurance Agreement to Construct Subdivision Improvements with Whetstone Partners, 
L.L.P., an Arizona Limited Liability Partnership for Cottonwood Highlands, Lots 1-85, inclusive and Common 
Areas A, B6 through B9, inclusive and C1 through C3, inclusive  
 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 4  
                                               
From: Bradley J. Hamilton, P.E. Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
           
 
 
 


 


Subject:  
 
Discussion and possible action regarding a Trust Assurance Agreement to Construct Subdivision 
Improvements with Whetstone Partners, L.L.P., an Arizona Limited Liability Partnership for Cottonwood 
Highlands, Lots 1-85, inclusive and Common Areas A, B6 through B9, inclusive and C1 through C3, inclusive  


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting           March 28, 2016 
 







 
 TRUST ASSURANCE AGREEMENT  
 FOR COMPLETION OF SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS 
 
 


THIS TRUST ASSURANCE AGREEMENT FOR COMPLETION OF 
SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS (this “Agreement”) is entered into and dated for 
reference purposes as of March 23, 2016, between, Pioneer Title Agency, Inc., an 
Arizona corporation, as Trustee under Trust No. 70900369, (herein referred to as 
“Trustee”), Whetstone Partners, LLP, an Arizona Limited Liability Partnership as 
Beneficiary of Trust No. 70900369, (hereinafter referred to as “Beneficiary”) and the 
CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA, (herein referred to as the “City of Benson”). 


 RECITALS 


A. Trustee is owner of a certain parcel of real property (the “Property”) located in the 
City of Benson, Arizona, and described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto.  The property is 
the subject of a subdivision plat identified as: Cottonwood Highlands, recorded in the 
Office of the Cochise County Recorder, State of Arizona, in Book 15 of Maps and Plats, 
Page 25 hereinafter referred to as the “Subdivision”; and  


B. Beneficiary has established Trust No. 70900369 for the purpose of developing a 
subdivision of the City of Benson and has conveyed legal title to the Property to Trustee. 


C. The parties hereto wish to establish specific terms, conditions and guidelines for 
compliance with the provision of A.R.S. § 11-806.01 and the City of Benson Subdivision 
Regulations. 


 AGREEMENT 


In consideration of the City of Benson approving a final plat for the Property 
which is the subject matter of this Agreement, and in order to comply with A.R.S. § 11-
806.01, the parties mutually agree that: 


1. Property. The Property which is the subject matter of this Agreement is described 
in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 


2. Assurances. This Agreement is submitted as a means of assuring the completion of 
the subdivision improvements required by A.R.S. § 11-806.01,City of Benson 
Subdivision Regulations, all Plans and Specifications approved and on file with the City 
of Benson, and any special conditions, if applicable, on Exhibit “B” attached hereto and 
made a part hereof.  These subdivision improvements include but are not limited to, 
streets, alleys, sidewalks, curbs and gutters, sanitary sewer systems, water supply, lot 







staking and monuments, traffic and street signs, and drainage and flood control 
improvements, if applicable. 


3. Existing Utilities.  Any relocation or modification of existing utilities or public 
improvements necessary to construct the improvements shall be done at no expense to the 
City.  Subdivider’s performance of this requirement shall be considered in determining 
whether to release assurances under Sections 12 and 13 hereinafter. 


4. Conveyances and Transfers of Title.  Trustee shall not transfer title to, 
consummate contracts for sale of Property, lease, or in any way convey, in whole or in 
part, any of the Property without obtaining prior written approval from the City of 
Benson, except as authorized in this Agreement.  A Release of Assurances and 
authorization to convey the Property shall be given by the City of Benson upon 
satisfactory completion, or partial completion, as applicable, in accordance with the City 
of Benson Subdivision Ordinances and the Annexation Development Agreement between 
the City of Benson dated November 3, 1993 (the “Development Agreement”). 


5. Bulk Sales.  Notwithstanding Section 4, Trustee may sell or convey all of the 
Property described in Section 1 in one (1) transaction or more bulk transactions,  
provided that such successor, prior to the conveyance, shall have either been assigned and 
assumed all of Beneficiaries rights and obligations under this Agreement or entered into 
an appropriate agreement with the City of Benson to assure completion of the 
improvements, and the City of Benson has approved, in writing, the transfer. 


6. Conveyance Out of Trust for the Purpose of Encumbrance: Condition on Other 
Interests.  Notwithstanding Section 4, Trustee may convey the Property to Beneficiary for 
the limited purposes of encumbering the Property or allowing any obligations secured by 
the Trust, other than those which are the subject of this Agreement with the City of 
Benson, to be subordinated to loans for the purpose of constructing on-site or off-sight 
improvements for the benefit of the Property or to create a security interest in the 
Property for loans for the purchase of the Property or the construction of such on-site or 
off-site improvements.  In such event, the Property shall immediately thereafter be 
reconveyed to Trustee.  This Agreement shall be deemed to be a condition on and 
restriction on the rights and interests of any third party whose interest in the Property 
arises after the date of this Agreement, however such interest is created, the same as if 
such party were included as a signatory of this Agreement. 


7. Substitution of Assurances.  Subdivider (“the Subdivider”) or Beneficiary may 
offer substitute assurances at any time during the term of this Agreement in accordance 
with the provisions of the City of Benson Subdivision Regulations.  The Assurance shall 
be in a form and amount acceptable to the City of Benson, and shall to the extent 
applicable, partially or wholly replace the Assurances in this Agreement. 







8.   Start of Construction.  The required Improvements shall be completed by the 
Subdivider within five (5) years from the date of this Agreement.  This date for 
completion of improvements may be extended by separate agreement of the parties where 
Subdivider or Beneficiary is prevented from completing the improvements by act of God, 
strike or similar event or circumstances beyond its control, or at the description of the 
City o Benson.  


9. Diligence. Subdivider shall diligently pursue completion of the Improvements.  
Subdivider’s failure to do substantial work on the Improvements for a period of thirty 
(30) consecutive calendar days shall be presumptive evidence that Subdivider is failing to 
diligently pursue construction of the Improvements.   


10. Completion of Improvements.  The required improvements shall be completed by 
the Subdivider within two (2) years from the date of this Agreement.  The Improvements 
shall not be considered completed unless and until they have been constructed in 
accordance with all applicable plans, City, State, and Federal regulations, and inspected 
by City for compliance with said plans and regulations.  Further, all utility Improvements 
shall not be considered completed unless and until the City has received all necessary 
approvals for operation of the utility systems from the appropriate State and/or Federal 
regulatory agencies, if applicable.   


11. Inspection and Approval of Improvements.  The City of Benson shall provide for 
inspection of the improvements to ensure satisfactory completion. Until the 
improvements have been satisfactorily completed, the rights-of-way in which the 
improvements are located have been dedicated or conveyed to the City, and the City, by 
formal action, has accepted said dedication or conveyance of the improvements and 
rights-of-way in which they are located, the City of Benson will not release the Property 
subject to this Agreement.  Once satisfactorily completed, the Property shall be released 
as provided in Sections 14 and 15 below. 


12. Warranty.  Subdivider warrants that the improvements will be free from defects 
for a period of one (1) year from the date City accepts the maintenance of the last 
improvement completed by the Subdivider. 


13. Payment of Applicable Property Taxes.  The City of Benson shall not release, in 
whole or in part, any of the Property described in paragraph 1 until all Property and taxes 
and assessments due and owing on the subject Property have been paid in full. 


14. Partial Release of Assurances.  The City of Benson, upon receipt of a written 
request from Beneficiary, shall give the Trustee a Release of Assurances for all or a 
portion of the lots created by the subdivision plat described in paragraph 1, provided that 
all of the improvements required in connection with such lots have been satisfactorily 
completed and accepted, and provided further that the lots released and improvements 







associated with such lots can function independently on a permanent basis in the event 
the remaining portion of the subdivision is never developed. 


15. Release of Assurances.  Upon completion of all improvements required under this 
Agreement, the City of Benson shall release the Assurances in this Agreement, and this 
Agreement shall be deemed cancelled. 


16. Failure to Complete Improvements.  Trustee and Beneficiary hereby agree that in 
the event the required improvements are not completed within the time period provided 
by paragraph 7, the City of Benson may replat that portion of the Property described in 
paragraph 1 for which a release of assurances has not been given.  The purpose of the 
new plat will be to abandon the portion of the subdivision not completed, and return that 
portion of the Property to approximately the same boundary configurations of record as 
existed before the subdivision plat was recorded.  Prior to the initiating any action to 
replat, the City of Benson shall provide Trustee and Beneficiary with thirty (30) days 
written notice of the intent to replat. 


 The City of Benson, by this Agreement, is expressly authorized to replat 
this Property after the required notice has been provided.  All expenses by the City of 
Benson, including legal costs if applicable, in executing a replat shall be paid for by 
Beneficiary, and shall, if unpaid, become a lien on the Property. 


17. Effect on Trust Agreement.  Trustee and Beneficiary agree that any provision of 
Trust No. 70900369 that is incompatible or inconsistent with this Agreement shall be null 
and void and not enforceable.  The Trust shall not be revoked prior to a full Release of 
Assurances without prior written consent of the City of Benson.  Nor shall any 
amendment which would alter this Assurance Agreement be effective until the City of 
Benson has approved such amendment. 


18. Purpose of Agreement.  The purpose and intent of this Agreement is to prohibit 
the sale of individual subdivision lots to the public prior to the completion of the 
subdivision improvements that are associated with such lots.  The sale or conveyance of 
such lots without the necessary improvements is harmful to the public and places 
excessive burdens on the City of Benson.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement 
shall be construed and interpreted as broadly as necessary to accomplish this purpose. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 
dates shown following their respective names below. 


ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
 
 


  







Date 
_____________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
By : 
City of Benson Attorney 
 
Date 
_____________________________ 
“City of Benson” 
 
 
CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
 
By _______________________________ 
  


City of Benson City Manager 
 
Date ______________________________ 
 
 
 
“TRUSTEE” 
 
_________________________________ 
R. Keith Newlon, as Trust Officer of Pioneer Title Agency, Inc., an Arizona corporation , 
as Trustee under Trust No. 70900369 only and not in its capacity 
 
 
Date ______________________________ 
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STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF COCHISE ) 
 
 On this the _____ day of  March, 2016 before me, the undersigned officer, 
personally appeared R. Keith Newlon, who acknowledged himself to be the Trust Officer 
of Pioneer Title Agency, Inc., an Arizona corporation, and that he as such officer being 
authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained 
by signing the name of the corporation by himself as such officer. 
 
 In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal. 
 
         
 ____________________________ 
 Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: ______________________ 
 
 
 
 OWNER/BENEFICIARY 
 
 
Whetstone Partners, LLP an Arizona Limited Liability Partnership 
by Kino V, LLC, an Arizona Limited Liability Company, as Manager 


 


  
   
Ernest L. Graves, Manager  
 
State of   [Arizona] } 
 } ss. 
County of  [Cochise] } 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 23rd day of March, 2016, by Ernest 
L. Graves, as Manager of Kino V, LLC, an Arizona Limited Liability Company, as Manager of 
Whetstone Partners, LLP, an Arizona Limited Liability Partnership. 
 
   
My commission expires: NOTARY PUBLIC 
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We, the undersigned Trustee and Beneficiary of Trust No. 70900369, have executed the 
attached Assurance Agreement for the subdivision to be known as Cottonwood 
Highlands, and we hereby authorize the City of Benson, or its designated representative, 
to complete the recording information required in paragraph 1 of the Assurance 
Agreement. 
 
 Dated this 23rd day of March, 2016 
 
 
Trustee: 
Pioneer Title Agency, Inc., an Arizona corporation , as Trustee under Trust No. 
70900369 only and not in its capacity 
 
_________________________________ 
R. Keith Newlon, as Trust Officer 
        
 
 
Owner/Beneficiary 
Whetstone Partners, LLP an Arizona Limited Liability Partnership 
by Kino V, LLC, an Arizona Limited Liability Company, as Manager 


 


  
   
Ernest L. Graves, Manager  
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 EXHIBIT “A” 
 
Lots 1 through 85, inclusive and Common Areas A, B-6 through B-9, inclusive  and C-1 through 
C-3, inclusive, COTTONWOOD HIGHLANDS, according to Book 15 of Maps, page 25, records of 
Cochise County, Arizona; 
 
EXCEPT all reservations contained in Document recorded in Document No. 8712-31763, records 
of Cochise County, Arizona. 
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 EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 
In addition to all subdivision requirements as set forth in the City of Benson Subdivision 
Regulations, Subdivider shall also be required to assure completion of the following 
subdivision improvements: 
 


1. Completion of all streets, to include paving, all required curbs, sidewalks, 
drive aprons, handicap ramps and survey monuments as shown on the 
approved preliminary plat, final plat and improvement plans. 


 
2. Drainage improvements, including but not limited to, detention basins, 


drainage channels, outlet streets and erosion control required by the 
approved Drainage Report, and as shown on the approved preliminary plat, 
improvement plans and grading plans. 


 
3.   A public water system acceptable to the City of Benson Public Works 


Department. 
 
4. A public sanitary sewer system acceptable to the City of Benson Public 


Works Department. 
 
5. A fire prevention system acceptable to the City of Benson Fire Department. 


 
6. All utility trenches and civil appurtenances satisfactory to the City Engineer 


and participating utility companies and in conformance with all applicable 
State and Federal regulations. 


 
7. Installation of all required street signage. 


 
8. Required off-site improvements to as shown on the approved preliminary 


plat, improvement plans and grading plans. 
 


9. Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) permits be secured.  
 





		NB 4 - CC - New Trust Assurance Agreement - Cottonwood Highlands

		NB 4 - Exhibit - New Trust Assurance Agreement - Cottonwood Highlands






                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
This resolution releases the assurances for the subdivision known as Cottonwood Highlands being held in the 
current Trust Assurance Agreement.  The new Trust Assurance Agreement to Construct Subdivision 
Improvements in the previous item reflects the new ownership of Whetstone Partners, L.L.P. and continues to 
hold these unreleased lots in the new trust.   
 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation:  
 
Approval of Resolution 10-2016  
 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 5 
                                               
From: Bradley J. Hamilton, P.E. Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
           
 
 
 


 


Subject:  
 
Discussion and possible action regarding Resolution 10-2016 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, 
Arizona, authorizing the Release of Assurances for the Subdivision known as Cottonwood Highlands, Lots 1 
through 85, inclusive and Common Areas A, B6 through B9, inclusive and C1 through C3, inclusive   
 
 
 
 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting           March 28, 2016 
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RESOLUTION 10-2016 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BENSON, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE RELEASE OF ASSURANCES FOR 
THE SUBDIVISION KNOWN AS COTTONWOOD HIGHLANDS LOTS 1 
THROUGH 85, INCLUSIVE AND COMMON AREAS A, B6 THROUGH B9, 
INCLUSIVE AND C1 THROUGH C3, INCLUSIVE 
 
 WHEREAS, the subdivision known as Cottonwood Highlands, located within the 
City of Benson, has been recorded in the Office of the Cochise County Recorder at Book 
15 of Maps and Plats, pages 25, 25A, 25B, 25C, 25D, 25E and 25F (hereinafter 
"Subdivision"); and  
 
 WHEREAS, due to the transfer of title of the Subdivision from the previous 
owner to Whetstone Partners, L.L.P., an Arizona Limited Liability Partnership 
("Owner"), a  new trust assurance agreement under Trust No. 70900369 between Owner, 
City and Pioneer Title Agency, Inc., which provides assurances required by       
A.R.S.§9-463.01 for the completion of Subdivision improvements, has been executed and 
approved by City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to release the previous third party trust that had 
provided assurances of subdivision improvements under Trust No.00953841 as no longer 
necessary or useful. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City 
of Benson, Arizona, that the third party trust under Trust No. 00953841 that provided 
assurances of subdivision improvements for Cottonwood Highlands, Lots 1 through 170, 
inclusive and Common Areas A, B1 through B9, inclusive and C1 through C3, inclusive 
is hereby released and the City Manager is authorized to execute all necessary documents 
to effect this release. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BENSON, ARIZONA, this 28th day of March, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                        ____________________________________ 
                                                                                  TONEY D. KING, SR., Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
             
                                                            
______________________________  ______________________________                          
VICKI L. VIVIAN, CMC, City Clerk  MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD 
       By GARY J. COHEN 
           City’s Attorney 







   
  


  revised 6/9/09 


  at the request of the City of Benson 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


CITY OF BENSON 
BENSON, ARIZONA 


 
FULL RELEASE OF SUBDIVISION ASSURANCES 


 
Subdivision Name:          
 
Lot Numbers:            
 
Block Number:             
 
Trustee:            
 
Trust Number:            
 
Agreement Date:    Recorded at DKT      PG   
 
 
Whereas, as referenced above, the City of Benson and Trustee have entered into an Agreement which 
provides that Trustee shall not transfer, lease, sell or convey the property contained in the Subdivision 
without first obtaining the written approval of the City of Benson; and 
 
Whereas, the Agreement was made pursuant to A.R.S. Section 9-463.01 and Chapter 14 of the City of 
Benson Code in order to provide for improvements to be made upon the real property subject to the 
Subdivision plat; and 
 
Whereas, such improvements have been completed in accordance with the City of Benson specifications 
for the lots listed above; 
 
It is certified hereby, that Trustee has the Approval of the City of Benson to Transfer, lease, sell, or 
convey the above referenced lots in the Subdivision. 


 
CERTIFICATION OF COMPLETION: 
 
 
             
Brad Hamilton, P.E.       Date  Martin Roush    Date 
City of Benson Public Works Director   City Manager 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
   ) ss. 
Cochise County  ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged and executed before me t


When recorded, mail to: 
CITY OF BENSON  
Attn:  City Clerk 
120 W. 6th Street 
Benson, AZ 85602 


 
 
 
 
 CAPTION HEADING: ___Cottonwood Highlands____ 
       Full Release of Trust Assurance  
 
         
 
 
 
 
 


DO NOT REMOVE 
 


THIS IS PART OF THE OFFICIAL DOCUMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


(THIS FORM IS FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY) 







     


  revised 6/9/09 


CITY OF BENSON 
BENSON, ARIZONA 


 
FULL RELEASE OF SUBDIVISION ASSURANCES 


 
Subdivision Name: COTTONWOOD HIGHLANDS_______________________________           _  
     
Lot Numbers:  LOTS 1- 170, INCLUSIVE AND COMMON AREAS A, B1 THROUGH B9, INCLUSIVE AND  
          __C1 THROUGH C3, INCLUSIVE                      
 
Block Number: BLOCKS 1 AND 2      ____         ________  
 
Trustee: _____PIONEER TITLE COMPANY____________________________________           _____ 
 
Trust Number: _______00953841__ _______Agreement Date:__________03-09-2005___             ___ 
 
Maps & Plats Book: __15___ Pages: 25, 25A, 25B, 25C, 25D, 25E, 25F     Fee Number:_050308440__ 
 
Whereas, as referenced above, the City of Benson and Trustee have entered into an Agreement which provides 
that Trustee shall not transfer, lease, sell or convey the property contained in the Subdivision without first obtaining 
the written approval of the City of Benson; and 
 
Whereas, a new trust assurance agreement under Trust No. 70900369 has been approved and executed by the 
parties that completely replaces Trust No. 00953841. 
 
It is certified hereby, that Trustee has the Approval of the City of Benson to Transfer or convey the above 
references lot in the Subdivision to Trust No. 70900369 for the purpose of effecting a new assurance agreement. 


 
CERTIFICATION OF COMPLETION: 
 
 
___________________________________   ___________________________________      
Brad Hamilton, P.E.            Date   William D. Stephens        Date 
City of Benson Public Works Director     City Manager   
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
   ) ss. 
Cochise County  ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged and executed before me this _____ day of __________, 20______, by 


_____________________________ who acknowledged to be the ________________________________ and by 


_____________________________ who acknowledged to be the ________________________________ that as 


such officers, being authorized so to do, signed the name of the City as such officers. 
 
 
___________________________________   My Commission Expires: ______________  
Notary Public 
 
                          
        ___________________________________ 
                    Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________________   ___________________________________ 
Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk     MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD 
        By GARY J. COHEN 
            City’s Attorney 





		NB 5 - CC - Full Release - Cottonwood Highlands

		NB 5 - Exhibit 1 - Resolution - Full Release - Cottonwood Highlands

		NB 5 - Exhibit 2 - Full Release - Cottonwood Highlands






                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
This item is on at the request of Councilmember Konrad.   
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Information only 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 6   
                                               
From: William D. Stephens, City Manager  
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Update on the Railroad Quiet Zones for the Patagonia Street, San Pedro Street and Ocotillo Street crossings 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                     March 28, 2016 
 








                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
Staff will present the attached power point slide shows to summarize the results of City operations and the 
City’s financial position at February 29, 2016.  
 
January 31, 2016 Financials included for your reference.  
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Information only 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                       Agenda Item # 7  
                                               
From: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director 
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Review of City Finances with emphasis on February financial results, and the City’s financial position at  
February 29, 2016.   
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•Unrestricted Cash sits at $1.7M 
•Bond Proceeds are $1.07M Cash 


•Revenues did exceed our Expenditures 
by $51K for the month 
•$610K for the Fiscal Year 
•$456K was fund balance for 2015 YTD 


Fund 
Balances 







•Monthly Revenues: $919K 
• Fiscal Year: $6.9M  
• $1M increase from YTD through FEB. 2015 


Revenues 


•Monthly Personnel: $364K 
• An increase of $19K compared to FEB. 2015 Personnel 


•Other Expenditures were $494K for the month 
• An increase of $253K compared to FEB.  2015 Other Costs 







•Monthly Revenues:$485K 
• Fiscal Year: $3.6M 
• An increase $476K from 2015 


Revenues 


•Monthly Personnel:  $234K  
•An increase of $12K from FEB. 2015 
•Other Expenses: $298K 
•An Increase of $232K from FEB. 2015 


Expenditures 


• Revenues did not exceed Expenditures by 
$47K for the month 


• $163K YTD Fund Balance an increase from 
Fiscal YTD through FEB. 2015 (28K) of $135K 


Fund Balance 







•Monthly Revenues: $102K  YTD Revenues: $561K 
•Fund Balance YTD: $211K Gas 


•Monthly Revenues: $48K  YTD Revenues: $446K 
•Fund Balance YTD: $60K Water 


•Monthly Revenues: $60K  YTD Revenues: $462K 
•Fund Balance YTD: $122K Wastewater 


•Monthly Revenues: $50K  YTD Revenues: $397K 
•Fund Balance YTD: $54K  Sanitation 
•Operations Fund Balance $3K for Feb, $117K YTD  
•2015-$15K FEB  &  59K YTD 
•Food & Bev Fund Balance  $12K for FEB 2015, $1K YTD 
• 2015-$196 FEB, $28K YTD  


Golf Course 































CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
 
DATE: March 28, 2016 
 
TO:  William Stephens, City Manager 
   
FROM: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director 
 
cc:  Benson City Council Members 
 
SUBJECT: City Financial Results for the month of February, 2016 
               
Cash 
 Our unrestricted cash balance this month is $1.7M. As a comparison, our 


unrestricted cash position in February of 2015 was $1.2M. 
 


Citywide Results for All Funds 
 Revenues from all sources were $919K for the month, compared with $818K for 


February  2015. Year to Date we show an increase in our overall revenues of 
$1M. This is mainly attributed to the new sales tax increase and retail sales 
statewide. 


 Personnel costs were $364K. Year to Date our personnel costs city wide have 
increased $6K.  


 Other operating expenditures were $494K for the month. Year to Date we are 
showing an increase in our expenditures over last year by $381K.  


 Capital expenditures year to date are $571K, an increase of $466K compared 
with the prior year.   


 The City Wide Net Position was $51K during the month. Year to Date we have 
a $610K net position compared to a net position of $456K in the prior year.  


General Fund 
 General Fund revenues were $485K, an increase of $76K compared to the 


prior February.  Noteworthy increases and decreases YTD include the following: 
o City Sales Tax is up $469K 
o Police Revenue is down $23K  
o State Sales Tax is up $10K 
o State Revenue Sharing is down $2K 


 Direct operating expenditures were $298K for February.   Compared to 
February 2015 expenditures are up $232K.  


 Personnel costs were $234K, an increase of $12K compared to February 2015.  
Year to Date, personnel costs are down $37K.  


 The General Fund Balance was $47K during the month, an decrease of $168K 
compared to February 2015. Year to Date, the General Fund balance is $162K. 


 
  
. 







 
Transit Fund 
 The Transit Fund was $1K during the month, and $56K YTD. 
 The Budgeted Contribution from the General Fund for this fiscal year is $55K. 


 
Streets Fund 
 The Streets Fund Balance was $8K during the month, and is $35K year to date. 
 Gasoline Tax or HURF monies are up $9K compared to last year.  


 
Enterprise Funds 
 The Natural Gas Fund net position was $23K for the month.  
 The Water Fund net position was $1K for the month.    
 The Wastewater Fund net position was $16K for the month.   
 The Sanitation Fund balance was $326 for the month.  
 The Airport Fund balance was $2K for the month. 
 The Golf Course Fund balance was $15K for the month.   


 
 Summary 


 
The strategies implemented during the budget process are working for the City. We are 
seeing the City’s cash balance rebound. We are seeing revenue from both the State 
and City improve, as consumers gain more confidence.  The 1% sales tax increase has 
been very beneficial to the City and continues to meet expectations.    The City 
management is watching our costs very closely, as we begin to restore services, in 
order to insure our reserves build for fiscal year.   
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Description 2016 2015 Difference 2016 2015 Difference


Revenues
Property Tax 7,111 9,141 (2,030) 153,904 174,591 (20,687)
City Sales Tax 327,591 255,689 71,902 2,229,940 1,760,798 469,142
Bed Tax 7,657 7,455 202 45,490 40,532 4,958
State Sales Tax 46,394 45,535 859 313,954 304,035 9,919
Franchise Tax 28,111 9,632 18,479 98,646 88,061 10,585
Auto Lieu Tax 8,452 18,214 (9,762) 135,364 137,427 (2,063)
Business Licenses 200 250 (50) 8,116 6,300 1,816
State Revenue Sharing 51,220 51,449 (229) 409,761 411,995 (2,234)
Property Rentals 465 525 (60) 33,206 32,330 876
Community Development Fees 2,118 1,353 765 38,688 13,549 25,139
Police Revenue 319 19,300 (18,981) 53,638 76,774 (23,136)
Animal Control Revenue 1,908 1,407 502 20,761 16,851 3,911
Fire Revenue 536 (13,366) 13,902 543 3,861 (3,318)
Library Revenue 136 809 (673) 5,025 4,581 444
Parks Revenue 740 844 (104) 5,305 7,392 (2,087)
Miscellaneous 1,761 495 1,266 12,478 9,828 2,650


Total Revenues 484,719 408,731 75,988 3,564,819 3,088,905 475,914
Expenditures


Administration 208,544 27,224 181,320 432,643 310,170 122,473
City Council 1,736 2,383 (647) 21,466 20,835 631
Building 8,687 9,069 (382) 80,736 76,939 3,797
Police 129,567 129,517 50 1,192,470 1,123,083 69,387
Fire 32,273 27,736 4,537 270,391 268,446 1,945
Magistrate 2,271 2,469 (198) 33,836 25,311 8,525
Library 15,843 14,788 1,055 131,115 121,208 9,907
Parks 21,243 13,913 7,330 141,524 141,735 (211)
Finance 13,933 10,062 3,871 133,548 98,640 34,908
Recreation 7,273 5,458 1,815 76,569 58,619 17,950
Community Enrichment 628 1,726 (1,098) 30,402 34,200 (3,798)
Tourism 9,753 10,242 (489) 88,907 84,229 4,678
City Attorney 42,383 15,014 27,369 149,462 123,020 26,442
City Clerk 9,510 9,277 233 81,038 78,111 2,927
Planning & Zoning 11,978 4,826 7,152 58,459 40,322 18,137
Public Works 16,473 3,969 12,504 66,194 42,373 23,821
Debt Service 0 0 0 413,135 414,098 (963)
    Total Expenditures 532,092 287,673 244,419 3,401,895 3,061,339 340,556


Net Position (47,373) 121,058 (168,431) 162,924 27,566 135,358


February 2016 compared to February 2015


Month of February


General Fund


Fiscal Year To Date
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Unrestricted Cash - All Funds 1,675,422.59


Month of February Fiscal Year to Date through February Percent of 2015-16


Description 2016 2015 Difference 2016 2015 Difference Budget Used Budget


Revenues from all Sources 918,628 817,816 100,811 6,935,699 5,929,436 1,006,263 37% 18,866,234
Expenditures from all Funds:


    Personnel 364,286 345,074 19,212 2,952,887 2,946,639 6,248 57% 5,135,571


    Other Expenditures 493,675 241,145 252,530 2,388,703 2,007,443 381,260 38% 6,235,783


    Bond/Debt Payments 0 0 0 413,135 414,098 (963) 62% 669,355


    Capital Expenditures 10,160 20,025 (9,865) 571,419 105,718 465,701 8% 6,825,525


        Total Expenditures 868,121 606,244 261,877 6,326,144 5,473,898 852,246 34% 18,866,234
Net Position 50,506 211,572 (161,066) 609,555 455,538 154,017 0


General Fund
Revenues


Revenues (see Gen. Fund Report for details) 484,719 408,731 75,988 3,564,819 3,088,905 475,914 48% 7,437,903


Expenditures
Personnel 234,074 221,772 12,302 1,895,185 1,932,310 (37,125) 57% 3,300,178
Other Costs 298,018 65,901 232,117 1,093,575 714,931 378,644 59% 1,838,770
Contributions to Other Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0% 529,600
Contingency Reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0% 1,100,000
Debt Service 0 0 0 413,135 414,098 (963) 62% 669,355
    Total Expenditures 532,092 287,673 244,419 3,401,895 3,061,339 340,556 46% 7,437,903


Fund Balance (47,373) 121,058 (168,431) 162,924 27,566 135,358 0


Revenues
Fares 521 488 33 4,363 5,081 (718) 55% 8,000
Grant Revenue 14,999 10,848 4,151 92,049 80,537 11,512 22% 416,155
Greyhound Revenue 254 109 145 2,248 1,286 962 45% 5,000
Contribution From General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 54,966
    Total Revenues 15,774 11,445 4,329 98,660 86,904 10,794 20% 484,121


Expenditures
Personnel 8,001 6,419 1,582 69,147 65,320 3,827 52% 133,610
Other Costs 6,471 1,931 4,540 85,397 38,601 46,796 128% 66,886
Capital Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0% 283,625
    Total Expenditures 14,473 8,351 6,123 154,544 103,921 50,623 32% 484,121


Fund Balance 1,301 3,094 (1,794) (55,884) (17,017) (39,829) 0


City of Benson Comparative Financial Summary - February 2016 to 2015


Transit Fund


67% of the fiscal year has elapsed







Month of February Fiscal Year to Date through February Percent of 2015-16


Description 2016 2015 Difference 2016 2015 Difference Budget Used Budget


Revenues


Construction Sales Tax 11,071 9,146 1,925 71,325 47,218 24,107 14% 500,000
Grant Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!


Hanger Financing 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
Series 2010 Bond Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 284,600
    Total Revenues 11,071 9,146 1,925 71,325 47,218 24,107 9% 784,600


Expenditures
Walmart Payment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 250,000
Utility Rate Studies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 15,000
County Dump Trucks 0 12,250 (12,250) 0 12,250 (12,250) #DIV/0! 0
Park Master Plan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 30,000
UAS Infrastructure Development 0 0 0 0 7,732 (7,732) 0% 50,000
City Hall Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 20,000
Airport Hangers 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
Pavement Management 0 0 0 0 34,676 (34,676) 0% 200,000
ATV Gator 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 10,000
Update Lions Park Master Plan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 9,600
Park, Trails Open Spaces Master Plan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 15,000
Street Signage Replacement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Projects 0 0 0 0 6,885 (6,885) 185,000
    Total Expenditures 0 12,250 (12,250) 0 61,543 (61,543) 0% 784,600


Fund Balance 11,071 (3,104) 14,175 71,325 (14,325) 85,650 0


Revenues
Gasoline Tax 30,924 29,756 1,168 239,510 230,848 8,662 65% 370,990
Lottery 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0
Series 2010 Bond 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0
    Total Revenues 30,924 29,756 1,168 239,510 230,848 8,662 65% 370,990


Expenditures
Personnel 10,691 12,656 (1,965) 89,284 103,967 (14,683) 51% 176,076
Other Costs 12,079 12,249 (170) 115,186 112,050 3,136 59% 194,914
Pavement Project 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0
    Total Expenditures 22,770 24,905 (2,135) 204,470 216,017 (11,547) 55% 370,990


Fund Balance 8,154 4,851 3,303 35,040 14,831 20,209 0


Revenues
    Total Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0


    Total Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0


Fund Balance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Capital Projects Fund


Streets Fund


Impact Fee Fund







Month of February Fiscal Year to Date through February Percent of 2015-16


Description 2016 2015 Difference 2016 2015 Difference Budget Used Budget


    Total Revenues 24,581 0 24,581 652,554 5,820 646,734 12% 5,400,000
    Total Expenditures 610 3,000 (2,390) 528,445 10,751 517,694 10% 5,400,000


Fund Balance 23,971 (3,000) 26,971 124,110 (4,931) 129,041 0


Revenues
Contribution from State Fund 0 0 0 5,125 6,423 (1,298) 85% 6,000
Contribution from Fire, Inc. 114 243 (129) 1,224 1,523 (299) 102% 1,200
Contribution from General Fund 0 0 0 0 539 (539) 0% 23,800
Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 5,000
    Total Revenues 114 243 (129) 6,349 8,485 (2,136) 18% 36,000


Expenditures
Pension Payments 2,800 4,400 (1,600) 21,400 15,400 6,000 59% 36,000
    Total Expenditures 2,800 4,400 (1,600) 21,400 15,400 6,000 59% 36,000


Fund Balance (2,686) (4,157) 1,471 (15,051) (6,915) (8,136) 0


Revenues
Gas Revenues 102,457 113,083 (10,626) 561,135 589,219 (28,084) 62% 909,500
Series 2010 Bond Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 130,000
    Total Revenues 102,457 113,083 (10,626) 561,135 589,219 (28,084) 54% 1,039,500


Expenditures
Personnel 19,742 16,441 3,301 180,708 167,669 13,039 51% 354,533
Gas Purchased 53,500 47,684 5,816 107,696 143,114 (35,418) 27% 400,000
Other 6,473 3,867 2,606 61,312 72,874 (11,562) 40% 154,967
Capital Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 130,000
    Total Expenditures 79,716 67,992 11,724 349,716 383,657 (33,942) 34% 1,039,500


Net Position 22,741 45,091 (22,350) 211,419 205,562 5,857 0


Revenues
Revenues 48,333 48,826 (493) 446,065 466,464 (20,399) 59% 752,000
Series 2010 Bond Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 25,000
    Total Revenues 48,333 48,826 (493) 446,065 466,464 (20,399) 57% 777,000


Expenditures
Personnel 30,740 29,101 1,639 252,532 235,491 17,041 71% 353,988
Other 16,407 11,833 4,574 133,184 116,712 16,472 39% 343,012
Capital Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 80,000
    Total Expenditures 47,147 40,934 6,213 385,716 352,203 33,513 50% 777,000


Net Position 1,185 7,892 (6,707) 60,349 114,261 (53,912) 0


Grants Fund


Fire Pension Fund


Enterprise Funds
Natural Gas Fund


Water Fund







Month of February Fiscal Year to Date through February Percent of 2015-16


Description 2016 2015 Difference 2016 2015 Difference Budget Used Budget


Revenues
Revenues 59,743 59,119 624 462,071 489,242 (27,171) 63% 737,000
Whetstone Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 12,000
Series 2010 Bond 0 0 0 0 0 0 90,000
    Total Revenues 59,743 59,119 624 462,071 489,242 (27,171) 55% 839,000


Expenditures
Personnel 23,902 18,616 5,286 181,116 166,567 14,549 55% 330,024
Other 19,533 16,616 2,917 158,878 140,655 18,223 38% 418,976
Capital Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 90,000
Whetstone Fees 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
    Total Expenditures 43,436 35,232 8,204 339,994 307,222 32,772 41% 839,000


Net Position 16,307 23,887 (7,580) 122,077 182,020 (59,943) 0


    Total Revenues 50,207 52,947 (2,740) 396,557 421,100 (24,543) 62% 635,000


Expenditures
Personnel 1,952 1,891 61 16,254 15,351 903 63% 25,599
Other 48,581 48,695 (114) 326,143 335,263 (9,120) 54% 609,401


    Total Expenditures 50,533 50,586 (53) 342,397 350,614 (8,217) 54% 635,000


Net Position (326) 2,361 (2,687) 54,160 70,486 (16,326) 0


Revenues
Business Revenue 3,981 0 3,981 5,977 1,532 4,445 30% 20,000
Insurance Recoveries 0 0 0 0 0
Contribution from General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 100,800
    Total Revenues 3,981 0 3,981 5,977 1,532 4,445 5% 120,800


    Total Expenditures 2,474 1,304 1,170 48,872 30,812 18,060 40% 120,800


Net Position 1,507 (1,304) 2,811 (42,895) (29,280) (13,615) 0


Wastewater Fund


Sanitation Fund


Airport Fund







Month of February Fiscal Year to Date through February Percent of 2015-16


Description 2016 2015 Difference 2016 2015 Difference Budget Used Budget


Revenues
Golf Operations 53,505 53,401 104 262,136 332,039 (69,903) 48% 543,366
Food & Beverage 33,219 31,119 2,100 168,542 161,660 6,882 55% 306,500
Contribution from General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 91,454
AGS Donations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
    Total Revenues 86,724 84,520 2,204 430,677 493,699 (63,022) 46% 941,320


Expenditures
Golf Operations


Personnel 11,986 8,718 3,268 93,262 54,098 39,164 57% 164,584
Other Costs 6,273 6,512 (239) 54,375 67,836 (13,461) 41% 132,146
   Total Golf Operations 18,259 15,230 3,029 147,638 121,934 25,704 50% 296,730


Maintenance .
Personnel 11,090 14,647 (3,557) 85,525 123,864 (38,339) 59% 145,617
Other Costs 11,900 3,651 8,249 102,784 111,446 (8,662) 65% 157,312
   Total Maintenance 22,990 18,298 4,692 188,309 235,310 (47,001) 62% 302,929


Food & Beverage


Personnel 12,106 14,813 (2,707) 89,875 82,002 7,873 59% 151,362
Other Costs 9,164 16,502 (7,338) 79,900 107,749 (27,849) 60% 132,999
   Total Food & Beverage 21,271 31,315 (10,044) 169,775 189,751 (19,976) 60% 284,361


Capital Projects 9,550 4,775 4,775 42,974 33,424 9,550 75% 57,300
    Total Expenditures 72,070 69,617 2,452 548,696 580,419 (31,724) 58% 941,320


Net Position 14,654 14,903 (248) (118,018) (86,720) (31,298) 0


    Total Revenues 351,445 358,495 (7,050) 2,302,481 2,461,256 (158,775) 53% 4,352,620


    Expenditures


Personnel 111,521 104,227 7,232 899,271 845,042 54,229 59% 1,525,707


Other 174,306 156,664 17,704 1,073,145 1,126,461 (53,316) 43% 2,469,613


Capital Projects 9,550 4,775 4,775 42,974 33,424 9,550 12% 357,300


Total Expenditures 295,377 265,665 29,711 2,015,390 2,004,927 10,463 46% 4,352,620


Net Position 56,068 92,830 (36,761) 287,091 456,329 (169,238) 0


San Pedro Golf Course


Totals for all Enterprise Funds











•Unrestricted Cash sits at $1.6M 
•Bond Proceeds are $1.07M Cash 


•Revenues did exceed our Expenditures 
by $322K for the month 
•$645K for the Fiscal Year 
•$240K was fund balance for 2015 YTD 


Fund 
Balances 







•Monthly Revenues: $947K 
• Fiscal Year: $6.0M  
• $905K increase from YTD through JAN. 2015 


Revenues 


•Monthly Personnel: $364K 
• An increase of $37K compared to JAN. 2015 Personnel 


•Other Expenditures were $254K for the month 
• An increase of $590 compared to JAN.  2015 Other Costs 







•Monthly Revenues:$511K 
• Fiscal Year: $3.0M 
• An increase $400K from 2015 


Revenues 


•Monthly Personnel:  $234K  
•An increase of $22K from JAN. 2015 
•Other Expenses: $88K 
•An Increase of $337 from JAN. 2015 


Expenditures 


• Revenues did exceed Expenditures by $189K 
for the month 


• $297k YTD Fund Balance an increase from 
Fiscal YTD through JAN. 2015 (94K) of $390K 


Fund Balance 







•Monthly Revenues: $147K  YTD Revenues: $459K 
•Fund Balance YTD: $189K Gas 


•Monthly Revenues: $55K  YTD Revenues: $398K 
•Fund Balance YTD: $59K Water 


•Monthly Revenues: $58K  YTD Revenues: $402K 
•Fund Balance YTD: $106K Wastewater 


•Monthly Revenues: $50K  YTD Revenues: $402K 
•Fund Balance YTD: $106K  Sanitation 
•Operations Fund Balance $5K for JAN, $119K YTD  
•2015-$15K Jan  &  73K YTD 
•Food & Bev Fund Balance  $4 for Jan 2015, $13K YTD 
• 2015-$3K JAN, $27K YTD  


Golf Course 































CITY OF BENSON 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 


 
 
DATE: March 28, 2016 
 
TO:  William Stephens, City Manager 
   
FROM: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director 
 
cc:  Benson City Council Members 
 
SUBJECT: City Financial Results for the month of January, 2016 
               
Cash 
 Our unrestricted cash balance this month is $1.6M. As a comparison, our 


unrestricted cash position in January of 2015 was $931K. 
 


Citywide Results for All Funds 
 Revenues from all sources were $947K for the month, compared with $948K for 


January  2015. Year to Date we show an increase in our overall revenues of 
$905K. This is mainly attributed to the new sales tax increase and retail sales 
statewide. 


 Personnel costs were $364K. Year to Date our personnel costs city wide have 
increased $37K.  


 Other operating expenditures were $254K for the month. Year to Date we are 
showing an increase in our expenditures over last year by $590.  


 Capital expenditures year to date are $561K, an increase of $476K compared 
with the prior year.   


 The City Wide Net Position was $321K during the month. Year to Date we have 
a $645K net position compared to a net position of $240K in the prior year.  


General Fund 
 General Fund revenues were $511K, an increase of $29K compared to the 


prior January.  Noteworthy increases and decreases YTD include the following: 
o City Sales Tax is up $397K 
o Police Revenue is down $4K  
o State Sales Tax is up $9K 
o State Revenue Sharing is down $2K 


 Direct operating expenditures were $88K for January.   Compared to January 
2015 expenditures are up $337.  


 Personnel costs were $234K, an increase of $22K compared to January 2015.  
Year to Date, personnel costs are down $38K.  


 The General Fund Balance was $189K during the month, an increase of $7K 
compared to January 2015. Year to Date, the General Fund balance is $297K. 


 
  
. 







 
Transit Fund 
 The Transit Fund was $27K during the month, and $57K YTD. 
 The Budgeted Contribution from the General Fund for this fiscal year is $55K. 


 
Streets Fund 
 The Streets Fund Balance was $3K during the month, and is $27K year to date. 
 Gasoline Tax or HURF monies are up $913 compared to last year.  


 
Enterprise Funds 
 The Natural Gas Fund net position was $120K for the month.  
 The Water Fund net position was $11K for the month.    
 The Wastewater Fund net position was $9K for the month.   
 The Sanitation Fund balance was $2K for the month.  
 The Airport Fund balance was $2K for the month. 
 The Golf Course Fund balance was $9K for the month.   


 
 Summary 


 
The strategies implemented during the budget process are working for the City. We are 
seeing the City’s cash balance rebound. We are seeing revenue from both the State 
and City improve, as consumers gain more confidence.  The 1% sales tax increase has 
been very beneficial to the City and continues to meet expectations.    The City 
management is watching our costs very closely, as we begin to restore services, in 
order to insure our reserves build for fiscal year.   
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Description 2016 2015 Difference 2016 2015 Difference


Revenues
Property Tax 17,084 119,161 (102,077) 146,793 165,450 (18,657)
City Sales Tax 332,232 225,183 107,049 1,902,349 1,505,109 397,240
Bed Tax 6,171 5,799 372 37,833 33,077 4,756
State Sales Tax 39,801 38,778 1,023 267,560 258,500 9,060
Franchise Tax 9,558 14,838 (5,280) 70,535 78,429 (7,894)
Auto Lieu Tax 30,354 9,771 20,583 126,912 119,212 7,700
Business Licenses 475 550 (75) 7,916 6,050 1,866
State Revenue Sharing 51,220 51,449 (229) 358,541 360,495 (1,954)
Property Rentals 9,009 9,113 (104) 32,741 31,805 936
Community Development Fees 2,709 2,359 350 36,570 12,196 24,374
Police Revenue 8,369 1,101 7,268 53,319 57,475 (4,155)
Animal Control Revenue 2,119 1,879 240 18,853 15,444 3,409
Fire Revenue 0 0 0 7 17,227 (17,220)
Library Revenue 901 540 361 4,889 3,771 1,118
Parks Revenue 508 312 196 4,565 6,548 (1,983)
Miscellaneous 911 980 (68) 10,716 9,374 1,343


Total Revenues 511,422 481,812 29,610 3,080,100 2,680,161 399,938
Expenditures


Administration 47,980 34,663 13,317 224,099 282,947 (58,848)
City Council 1,740 1,929 (189) 19,730 18,452 1,278
Building 12,111 12,057 54 72,049 67,870 4,179
Police 145,584 130,982 14,602 1,062,904 993,567 69,337
Fire 24,225 23,335 890 238,118 240,709 (2,591)
Magistrate 2,271 11,269 (8,998) 31,565 22,842 8,723
Library 11,335 12,509 (1,174) 115,272 106,420 8,852
Parks 15,029 13,470 1,559 120,281 127,822 (7,541)
Finance 13,691 9,298 4,393 119,615 88,578 31,037
Recreation 8,465 4,538 3,927 69,296 53,161 16,135
Community Enrichment 680 1,868 (1,188) 29,775 32,474 (2,699)
Tourism 8,394 11,817 (3,423) 79,154 73,987 5,167
City Attorney 11,261 14,140 (2,879) 107,079 108,006 (927)
City Clerk 9,443 9,245 198 71,528 68,834 2,694
Planning & Zoning 5,048 3,735 1,313 5,048 35,496 (30,448)
Public Works 4,737 4,195 542 4,737 38,406 (33,669)
Debt Service 0 0 0 413,135 414,098 (963)
    Total Expenditures 321,993 299,050 22,943 2,783,385 2,773,669 9,716


Net Position 189,429 182,762 6,666 296,715 (93,508) 390,222


January 2016 compared to January 2015


Month of January


General Fund


Fiscal Year To Date
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Unrestricted Cash - All Funds 1,561,661.89


Month of January Fiscal Year to Date through January Percent of 2015-16


Description 2016 2015 Difference 2016 2015 Difference Budget Used Budget


Revenues from all Sources 947,118 948,014 (896) 6,017,071 5,111,609 905,462 32% 18,866,234
Expenditures from all Funds:


    Personnel 364,286 327,654 36,632 2,602,401 2,601,565 836 51% 5,135,571


    Other Expenditures 254,486 253,896 590 1,794,811 1,770,698 24,113 29% 6,235,783


    Bond/Debt Payments 0 487 (487) 413,135 414,098 (963) 62% 669,355


    Capital Expenditures 6,775 57 6,718 561,259 85,693 475,566 8% 6,825,525


        Total Expenditures 625,548 582,094 43,454 5,371,606 4,872,054 499,552 28% 18,866,234
Net Position 321,570 365,920 (44,350) 645,466 239,555 405,911 0


General Fund
Revenues


Revenues (see Gen. Fund Report for details) 511,422 481,812 29,610 3,080,100 2,680,161 399,938 41% 7,437,903


Expenditures
Personnel 234,074 211,467 22,607 1,672,347 1,710,538 (38,191) 51% 3,300,178
Other Costs 87,919 87,582 337 697,903 649,033 48,870 38% 1,838,770
Contributions to Other Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0% 529,600
Contingency Reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0% 1,100,000
Debt Service 0 0 0 413,135 414,098 (963) 62% 669,355
    Total Expenditures 321,993 299,050 22,944 2,783,385 2,773,669 9,716 37% 7,437,903


Fund Balance 189,429 182,762 6,665 296,715 (93,508) 390,222 0


Revenues
Fares 507 549 (42) 3,842 4,593 (751) 48% 8,000
Grant Revenue 10,273 12,627 (2,354) 77,051 69,689 7,362 19% 416,155
Greyhound Revenue 201 160 41 1,994 1,177 817 40% 5,000
Contribution From General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 54,966
    Total Revenues 10,981 13,336 (2,355) 82,887 75,459 6,611 17% 484,121


Expenditures
Personnel 8,001 6,733 1,268 61,197 58,901 2,296 46% 133,610
Other Costs 29,718 6,194 23,524 78,875 36,670 42,205 118% 66,886
Capital Costs 0 0 0 0 0 0% 283,625
    Total Expenditures 37,719 12,927 24,792 140,071 95,571 44,500 29% 484,121


Fund Balance (26,738) 409 (27,147) (57,185) (20,112) (37,890) 0


City of Benson Comparative Financial Summary - January 2016 to 2015


Transit Fund


59% of the fiscal year has elapsed







Month of January Fiscal Year to Date through January Percent of 2015-16


Description 2016 2015 Difference 2016 2015 Difference Budget Used Budget


Revenues


Construction Sales Tax 4,164 16,682 (12,518) 60,254 38,072 22,182 12% 500,000
Grant Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!


Hanger Financing 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
Series 2010 Bond Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 284,600
    Total Revenues 4,164 16,682 (12,518) 60,254 38,072 22,182 8% 784,600


Expenditures
Walmart Payment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 250,000
Utility Rate Studies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 15,000
County Dump Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
Park Master Plan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 30,000
UAS Infrastructure Development 0 487 (487) 0 7,732 (7,732) 0% 50,000
City Hall Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 20,000
Airport Hangers 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
Pavement Management 0 0 0 0 34,676 (34,676) 0% 200,000
ATV Gator 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 10,000
Update Lions Park Master Plan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 9,600
Park, Trails Open Spaces Master Plan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 15,000
Street Signage Replacement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Projects 0 0 0 0 6,885 (6,885) 185,000
    Total Expenditures 0 487 (487) 0 49,293 (49,293) 0% 784,600


Fund Balance 4,164 16,195 (12,031) 60,254 (11,221) 71,475 0


Revenues
Gasoline Tax 29,349 28,436 913 208,586 201,092 7,494 56% 370,990
Lottery 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0
Series 2010 Bond 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0
    Total Revenues 29,349 28,436 913 208,586 201,092 7,494 56% 370,990


Expenditures
Personnel 10,691 12,053 (1,362) 78,529 91,311 (12,782) 45% 176,076
Other Costs 15,170 17,748 (2,578) 103,171 99,800 3,371 53% 194,914
Pavement Project 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0
    Total Expenditures 25,860 29,800 (3,941) 181,701 191,111 (9,410) 49% 370,990


Fund Balance 3,489 (1,364) 4,854 26,886 9,981 16,905 0


Revenues
    Total Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0


    Total Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0


Fund Balance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Impact Fee Fund


Capital Projects Fund


Streets Fund







Month of January Fiscal Year to Date through January Percent of 2015-16


Description 2016 2015 Difference 2016 2015 Difference Budget Used Budget


    Total Revenues 6,928 2,040 4,888 627,973 5,820 622,153 12% 5,400,000
    Total Expenditures 2,000 57 1,943 527,835 7,751 520,084 10% 5,400,000


Fund Balance 4,928 1,983 2,945 100,138 (1,931) 102,069 0


Revenues
Contribution from State Fund 0 0 0 5,125 6,423 (1,298) 85% 6,000
Contribution from Fire, Inc. 292 1,122 (830) 1,111 1,819 (708) 93% 1,200
Contribution from General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 23,800
Interest Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 5,000
    Total Revenues 292 1,122 (830) 6,236 8,242 (2,006) 17% 36,000


Expenditures
Pension Payments 2,800 2,200 600 18,600 15,400 3,200 52% 36,000
    Total Expenditures 2,800 2,200 600 18,600 15,400 3,200 52% 36,000


Fund Balance (2,508) (1,078) (1,430) (12,364) (7,158) (5,206) 0


Revenues
Gas Revenues 146,584 162,091 (15,507) 458,678 476,136 (17,458) 50% 909,500
Series 2010 Bond Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 130,000
    Total Revenues 146,584 162,091 (15,507) 458,678 476,136 (17,458) 44% 1,039,500


Expenditures
Personnel 19,742 19,956 (214) 160,972 151,228 9,744 45% 354,533
Gas Purchased 0 0 0 54,196 95,430 (41,234) 14% 400,000
Other 6,527 14,542 (8,015) 54,832 69,006 (14,174) 35% 154,967
Capital Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 130,000
    Total Expenditures 26,269 34,498 (8,229) 270,000 315,664 (45,664) 26% 1,039,500


Net Position 120,314 127,593 (7,279) 188,678 160,472 28,206 0


Revenues
Revenues 55,252 58,698 (3,446) 397,732 417,638 (19,906) 53% 752,000
Series 2010 Bond Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 25,000
    Total Revenues 55,252 58,698 (3,446) 397,732 417,638 (19,906) 51% 777,000


Expenditures
Personnel 30,740 26,565 4,175 221,231 206,390 14,841 62% 353,988
Other 13,735 18,131 (4,396) 117,337 104,879 12,458 34% 343,012
Capital Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 80,000
    Total Expenditures 44,475 44,696 (221) 338,569 311,269 27,300 44% 777,000


Net Position 10,777 14,002 (3,225) 59,163 106,369 (47,206) 0


Natural Gas Fund


Water Fund


Grants Fund


Fire Pension Fund


Enterprise Funds







Month of January Fiscal Year to Date through January Percent of 2015-16


Description 2016 2015 Difference 2016 2015 Difference Budget Used Budget


Revenues
Revenues 57,510 58,927 (1,417) 402,328 430,123 (27,795) 55% 737,000
Whetstone Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 12,000
Series 2010 Bond 0 0 0 0 0 0 90,000
    Total Revenues 57,510 58,927 (1,417) 402,328 430,123 (27,795) 48% 839,000


Expenditures
Personnel 23,902 18,218 5,684 158,792 147,951 10,841 48% 330,024
Other 24,982 25,482 (500) 137,766 124,039 13,727 33% 418,976
Capital Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 90,000
Whetstone Fees 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0
    Total Expenditures 48,884 43,700 5,184 296,558 271,990 24,568 35% 839,000


Net Position 8,626 15,227 (6,601) 105,770 158,133 (52,363) 0


    Total Revenues 50,036 52,228 (2,192) 346,350 368,154 (21,804) 55% 635,000


Expenditures
Personnel 1,952 1,687 265 14,290 13,460 830 56% 25,599
Other 46,181 48,178 (1,997) 277,574 286,568 (8,994) 46% 609,401


    Total Expenditures 48,133 49,865 (1,732) 291,864 300,028 (8,164) 46% 635,000


Net Position 1,903 2,363 (460) 54,486 68,126 (13,640) 0


Revenues
Business Revenue 1,446 0 1,446 1,996 1,532 464 10% 20,000
Insurance Recoveries 0 0 0 0 0
Contribution from General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 100,800
    Total Revenues 1,446 0 1,446 1,996 1,532 464 2% 120,800


    Total Expenditures 3,081 4,486 (1,405) 46,397 29,507 16,890 38% 120,800


Net Position (1,636) (4,486) 2,850 (44,402) (27,975) (16,427) 0


Wastewater Fund


Sanitation Fund


Airport Fund







Month of January Fiscal Year to Date through January Percent of 2015-16


Description 2016 2015 Difference 2016 2015 Difference Budget Used Budget


Revenues
Golf Operations 46,300 53,400 (7,100) 208,631 278,639 (70,008) 38% 543,366
Food & Beverage 26,855 19,242 7,613 135,323 130,541 4,782 44% 306,500
Contribution from General Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 91,454
AGS Donations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
    Total Revenues 73,155 72,642 513 343,953 409,180 (65,227) 37% 941,320


Expenditures
Golf Operations


Personnel 11,986 8,538 3,448 80,980 45,380 35,600 49% 164,584
Other Costs 7,298 8,726 (1,428) 48,398 61,324 (12,926) 37% 132,146
   Total Golf Operations 19,284 17,264 2,020 129,378 106,704 22,674 44% 296,730


Maintenance


Personnel 11,090 13,012 (1,922) 75,118 109,217 (34,099) 52% 145,617
Other Costs 6,173 7,628 (1,455) 90,200 107,795 (17,595) 57% 157,312
   Total Maintenance 17,263 20,640 (3,377) 165,318 217,012 (51,694) 55% 302,929


Food & Beverage


Personnel 12,106 9,425 2,681 78,944 67,189 11,755 52% 151,362
Other Costs 10,903 12,999 (2,096) 69,561 91,247 (21,686) 52% 132,999
   Total Food & Beverage 23,010 22,424 586 148,504 158,436 (9,932) 52% 284,361


Capital Projects 4,775 0 4,775 33,424 28,649 4,775 58% 57,300
    Total Expenditures 64,332 60,328 4,004 476,625 510,801 (34,176) 51% 941,320


Net Position 8,823 12,314 (3,491) (132,672) (101,621) (31,051) 0


    Total Revenues 383,982 404,586 (20,604) 1,951,036 2,102,763 (151,727) 45% 4,352,620


    Expenditures


Personnel 111,521 97,401 13,854 790,328 740,815 49,513 52% 1,525,707


Other 118,879 140,172 (21,027) 896,261 969,795 (73,534) 36% 2,469,613


Capital Projects 4,775 0 4,775 33,424 28,649 4,775 9% 357,300


Total Expenditures 235,175 237,573 (2,398) 1,720,013 1,739,259 (19,246) 40% 4,352,620


Net Position 148,808 167,013 (18,205) 231,023 363,504 (132,481) 0


Totals for all Enterprise Funds


San Pedro Golf Course
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WHEREAS The Civil Rights Act of 1968 (The Fair Housing Act) and the 
Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988 ensure full and fair access to housing 
opportunity; and 


WHEREAS, April 2016 marks the 48th Anniversary of the signing of the 
Fair Housing Act; and 


: 	WHEREAS, shelter is a basic human need and when shelter is 
denied, the quality of human life is greatly diminished, and 


WHEREAS, people must not be denied equal access to and enjoyment of 
I 	housing because of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability or 


: 	familial status; and 


' 	 WHEREAS, The City of Benson recognizes and values the efforts of those 
who seek to reduce barriers to full andfair housing opportunity; and 


WHEREAS April is designated nationally as Fair Housing Month 


NOW, THEREFORE, I, Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor of the City of 
Benson, Arizona, do herebyproclaim the month ofApril as 


FAIR HOUSING MONTH 


in the City of Benson and encourage all citizens to workfor equal housing 
opportunity in our own community. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be 


' 	affixed the official seal of the City of Benson, Arizona on this 28th day of 
March 2016 


r 


TONE  D. KING, SR., Mciuor 	
j 


ELA 	 _44 








City of Benson 


APR I L  20 16  
S u n M o n  T u e W e d  T hu  F r i  S a t  


     1 2 


3 4 5 6 7 8 9 


10 11 12 13 14 15 16 


17 18 19 20 21 22 23 


24 25 26 27 28 29 30 


FOR MORE INFORMATION VISIT WWW.BENSONAZ.GOV  


Planning & Zoning 
Meeting 7:00 p.m. 
CANCELLED 


Public Hearing  
7:00 p.m. 
City Council Meeting  
7:00 p.m. 


Library Advisory 
Board 4:00 p.m. 
 
Planning & Zoning 
Public Hearing  
7:00 p.m. 


Community Watershed 
Alliance 6:00 p.m. 


Benson Economic 
Development  
Committee 6:00 p.m. 


City Council Meeting 
7:00 p.m. 







Meetings 


 


Events 


 


 


Wednesday, April 6, 2016 – Benson Economic Development Committee, 6:00 p.m., 
City Hall 
 


Monday, April 11, 2016 – City Council Public Hearing, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 
 


Monday, April 11, 2016 – City Council Meeting, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 
 


Tuesday, April 12, 2016 – Library Advisory Board, 4:00 p.m., City Library 
 


Tuesday, April 12, 2016 – Planning & Zoning Commission Public Hearing, 7:00 p.m., 
City Hall 
 


Wednesday, April 20, 2016 – Community Watershed Alliance, 6:00 p.m., City Hall 
 


Monday, April 25, 2016 – City Council Meeting, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 
 


 
For Events happening in Benson go to www.cityofbenson.com “What to do Today” 



http://www.cityofbenson.com/



		City Manager Report 2

		City Manager Report 1






                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
Attached are the minutes of the January 31, 2015 Worksession.       
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1a 
                                               
From: Vicki Vivian, CMC, City Clerk                   
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Minutes of the January 31, 2015 Worksession        
 
 
 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                                        March 28, 2016 
 







Page 1 of 22 


THE WORKSESSION 


OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF BENSON, ARIZONA 


HELD JANUARY 31, 2015 AT 9:00 A.M. 


AT THE BENSON COMMUNITY CENTER, 


705 W. UNION STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA         


 


CALL TO ORDER:    


    


Mayor King called the meeting to order at 9:15 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 


ROLL CALL:   


 


Present were: Mayor Toney D. King, Sr., Vice Mayor Lori McGoffin, Councilmembers Pat Boyle (arriving 
at 9:17 a.m.), Jeff Cook, Joe Konrad, David Lambert.  Absent was:  Councilmember Peter Wangsness. 
 
Staff present were:  City Manager William Stephens, Director of Golf Joe DelVecchio, Public Works 
Director Brad Hamilton, Finance Director Megan Moreno, Chief of Police Paul Moncada, Tourism 
Supervisor Bob Nilson, Recreation Coordinator Laura Parkin, Library Director Peggy Scott, Fire Chief 
Keith Spangler, City Magistrate Bruce Staggs and City Clerk Vicki Vivian.  
 
City Manager William Stephens welcomed everyone to the worksession and stated there would be some 
guest speakers addressing the future development in Benson.  Mr. Stephens then stated the Council would 
be holding budget meetings in the coming months, adding this meeting will assist with Council input for 
those upcoming budget meetings.    
 


NEW BUSINESS: 


 


1. Presentation by Dennis Krahn and Michael Reinbold of El Dorado Holdings regarding the 


development of Whetstone Ranch     


 
Dennis Krahn and Michael Reinbold of El Dorado addressed the Council regarding their proposed 
development; the Villages at Vigneto.  Mr. Reinbold told the Council that El Dorado started on this project 
about 18 months ago and spent a good part of that time determining what to do with the property and 
during that time, they learned a lot about the community.  Mr. Reinbold expressed how beautiful this area is 
and that they are excited about the property and their project.  Mr. Reinbold then spoke about looking to see 
what Benson was similar to in order to determine a vision and how they found Benson to be similar to the 
Tuscany, Italy region and that the project would be Tuscany-themed.  Mr. Reinbold stated the property El 
Dorado purchased was 12,000 acres and was on both the east and west sides of Highway 90.  He then 
spoke about wanting a more open-spaced community that would have both conventional and resort-type 
homes with a smaller scale village center that people would want to spend the day at with restaurants, 
entertainment and retail, noting the project would be modeled slightly after the Villages in Florida.  Mr. 
Reinbold said they envisioned incorporating golf courses and vineyards into the property and that they want 
to bring in other people and businesses.  He then spoke about the number of golf carts operated in Florida at 
the Villages, noting there are 50,000 golf carts and the development has super highways for the carts to be 
driven on, adding people drive carts more than they drive their cars in the community.  Mr. Reinbold then 
stated El Dorado would like to be development ready by the end of the year and that one of the items 
important to them is a CFD (Community Facilities District) which is a form of a financing structure that 
allows new development to pay its own way.  Mr. Reinbold spoke about CFDs being an important tool in 
their basket of development tools, the success in using CFDs in other projects and said CFDs have not been 
used to their full potential in Arizona compared to other states, and that to compete on a national basis, 
developers need to utilize all the tools that are available to use.  Mr. Krahn then spoke saying bonds are 
issued and secured by the developer and anything that is sold in terms of bond markets and municipal 
bonds are the responsibility of the developer and the property owners and the City has no obligation.  Mr. 
Reinbold agreed that the obligation lies with the developer.   
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Councilmember Cook asked about building codes with Mr. Reinbold saying as part of the CMP 
(Community Master Plan), El Dorado will address building codes.  Mr. Reinbold then said the national 
building codes are national building codes, but the City’s subdivision standards contain a lot of different 
things and how El Dorado approaches those will be part of the process of submitting the CMP.   
 
Vice Mayor McGoffin asked about when El Dorado would start construction and how fast it would go with 
Mr. Reinbold saying they would like to construction ready at the end of the year, then it would take a year 
to complete master improvements, such as the infrastructure, the golf course and many other facilities and 6 
months after that, home construction would start, adding that would be about mid-2017.    
 
Mr. Stephens asked about the 20 lots in The Canyons Phase 1 and Phase 2, 3 and 4, which is part of the 
property El Dorado purchased.  Mr. Reinbold said the lots are currently going through engineering and 
those may come online next summer.  Mr. Reinbold then said they are also looking at what can be done to 
improve the development, such as landscaping.  Mr. Krahn then noted The Canyons is part of the property 
that will be developed and will have access to the Villages at Vigneto amenities, but the development will 
look different than the Tuscany theme.   
 
Councilmember Boyle asked about water features in the development with Mr. Reinbold saying lakes and 
other water features will be based on reused water and irrigation will be using recycled water.  Mr. Krahn 
agreed and stated they will be looking at these and make sure the best choices are made.  Mr. Stephens 
asked about the treatment plan with Mr. Reinbold stating the treatment plant will expand from 250,000 
gallons to 5.5 million gallons and the expansion will be based on the phases of development.   
 
Councilmember Boyle asked what type of golf course would be in the development with Mr. Reinbold 
stating it would be an 18-hole course in the resort area.  Mr. Krahn stated the Villages in Florida have a 
60,000 home buildout with 621 holes of golf, which is staggering.  Mr. Krahn then stated the Villages in 
Florida have a lot of golfers, but that is not their intention, adding they want a lot of open space and they 
know where the areas of open space are, according to the permits.  Mr. Krahn then stated there are some 
open space areas they can’t touch and some they can to put in pathways and make minor changes, adding 
there is about 1,600 acres of property that has to be preserved.      
 
Mr. Reinbold then continued speaking about the design of the project.  Vice Mayor McGoffin asked if the 
resort would be developed first to attract people or if the resort would be built later with Mr. Reinbold 
stating there are 2 types of resort areas; 1 in the early stages of the development and 1 later as the project 
progresses, adding they want a nice quality resort, which is something missing in this area.  
  
Councilmember Lambert asked if houses would be built on the west side of Highway 90 and about the 
water features with Mr. Reinbold confirming there would be some houses built west of Highway 90 and 
then spoke about water features.  Mr. Reinbold said they are looking at what the lakes can be used for, the 
aesthetics, using recycled water, and irrigation for the golf course, noting their goal is to make the 
development as appealing as possible.  Councilmember Lambert then asked about the project fitting into 
the City’s General Development Plan (GDP) with Mr. Reinbold stating the project fits well into the current 
General Development Plan and they are working and watching for any changes to the GDP.  
Councilmember Lambert then asked about the probability of the project moving forward with Mr. Reinbold 
stating the fundamental differences between El Dorado and other investors is that El Dorado purchased the 
land to develop, adding they are a very conservative group who generally develops their own land.  Mr. 
Reinbold then spoke about El Dorado’s development in the city of Maricopa, stating there was an emerging 
market when they started, noting Maricopa’s population increased from 5,000 to 50,000 in a 6-7 year 
period.  Mr. Reinbold then stated El Dorado knows and understands marketing and the development 
process.  Mr. Reinbold then noted they can’t control the market, but a development with a diversified 
community and an age-targeted market group stays steady.  Mr. Reinbold then stated they think the 
proposed development has the potential of 2,000 homes a year over 20 years.   
 
Councilmember Boyle asked about the housing costs with Mr. Reinbold stating the homes will be from 
$150,000 and up, adding they are still exploring the project, but they believe the opportunity exists for 
homes in the $500,000 range also.  Mr. Reinbold then referred to the Villages in Florida stating the homes 
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there range from $160,000 to over $1 million, with an average cost of $250,000.  Mr. Reinbold then stated 
the proposed development is not a retirement community but will be an age-targeted lifestyle, for people 
who intend to be active and not put a drain on parts of the local environment.  Mr. Reinbold then continued 
stating the age they will market to is about 55 and will be corporate people who desire to have a second 
home maybe 10 years before they retire and could be both part-time and full-time residents.   
 
Councilmember Cook asked about the need for land for schools if the targeted age was 55 with Mr. 
Reinbold stating there will also be conventional housing for families, adding it will also depend on the 
demand for different types of homes within the project.  Mr. Reinbold stated he can’t predict the demand 
and they would want to create the flexibility to follow the market.  Councilmember Cook then expressed 
concern over the new state law regarding construction sales tax being paid where materials are bought 
instead of where the construction takes place with Mr. Reinbold stating El Dorado will use local supplies 
whenever they can, whether it be materials, labor or something else.       
 
Mayor King asked about open space and parks with Mr. Reinbold stating 1,600 acres of the property has 
been designated by the Army Corps of Engineers to be open space. 
 
Mr. Reinbold then thanked the Council for the opportunity to present the project and stated they would be 
meeting with Council in the upcoming future.  
 


2. Presentation by Mark Reader, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc., on Community Facilities Districts  


 
City Manager William Stephens addressed Council stating the proposed project might have generated some 
thoughts on how infrastructure for such developments is funded, adding the next speaker is investment 
banker and bond underwriter Mark Reader from Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc.  Mr. Reader distributed 
handouts to the Council (which will be retained with the Council packet) and then addressed Council.  Mr. 
Reader stated Finance Director Megan Moreno contacted him about the possibility of a CFD (Community 
Facilities District) for the proposed development in Benson.  Mr. Reader then stated real estate 
development is a risky and very complicated business.  Mr. Reader then started explaining CFDs, which are 
created by a city or town within a defined area, noting the CFD will only affect the residents of the district 
and will not impact people who live outside the district.  Mr. Reader said when a CFD is formed; it would 
become a living breathing political subdivision of the City of Benson and would probably exist in 
perpetuity.  Mr. Reader then spoke about 2 different types of bonds; general obligation (GO) bonds and 
special assessment bonds.  Mr. Reader said GO bonds are issued by a district and are paid for by property 
taxes, such as school bonds, adding CFDs have the authority to issue general obligation bonds to pay for 
public infrastructure, roads, open space, parks, streets, parkways, landscaping, drainage, public utilities, 
civic buildings, police and fire stations, parks and recreation facilities other than stadiums, open space areas 
for assembly or entertainment use, lighting systems and regional public infrastructure, adding the eligible 
uses are pretty broad.  Mr. Reader then stated special assessment bonds result in a per lot assessment 
instead of a property tax, adding special assessment bonds can be used for public infrastructure, such as 
water, wastewater and streets.   
 
Mr. Reader then gave a brief background of his work stating he has worked in public finance, specific to 
Arizona, for the last 25 years with cities, towns, counties and some school districts, adding his specialty is 
emerging markets of cities, towns and counties with CFDs.  Mr. Reader then stated he has worked with the 
City of Benson over the years for City issued revenue bonds in the amount of $5 or $6 million and the 
refinancing of those bonds a few years later.  Mr. Reader then stated he has now been retained to assist the 
City in working collaboratively with El Dorado, adding developers can use CFDs to raise equity for their 
proposed development and advance millions of dollars for the project.  Mr. Reader then stated his firm’s 
job is to assist with the issuance of tax-exempt bonds, adding cities and towns can issue debt and the 
interest income from those bonds is exempt from federal and state taxation.   Mr. Reader then explained 
that municipalities, community colleges, school districts, hospital districts and community facilities 
districts can use bonds to finance public infrastructure on a tax-exempt basis with lower interest rates, 
which drives down the development’s cost of capital.  Mr. Reader then stated the bond underwriters have to 
be careful because they have professional responsibilities to the CFD board of directors as well as the legal 
and regulatory standards.  Mr. Reader then stated the other role his firm provides is to find investors who 







Page 4 of 22 


want to purchase those bonds.  
 
Mr. Reader then continued his presentation talking about the cycles of development and other CFDs in 
place in Arizona, noting the Town of Florence formed 2 CFDs for development and then the recession hit, 
but he noted Florence is coming out of the recession now.  Mr. Reader then explained that CFDs allow 
enhanced infrastructure to attract people to a development and without a CFD; it’s hard to do that.  Mr. 
Reader stated Pulte is looking forward to continuing issuing bonds and moving forward in their Florence 
development and have done both general obligation bonds and special assessment bonds.   
 
Mr. Reader then told the Council that as they consider CFDs, they need to be considering public policies 
and objectives for the CFD process and noted Benson may get other developers wanting to use CFDs in the 
future.  Mr. Reader then talked about transparency and communication being critical and noted that while 
CFDs are fantastic tools, they can be a disaster if they are not managed right, adding successful CFDs 
educate people about getting a fair bang for their taxes. 
 
Mr. Reader then briefly spoke about state law concerning CFDs in Title 48 and that they have been in the 
state law for about 24 years, adding other states have utilized this tool also.  He then stated about 15 cities 
in Arizona are using CFDs, including 3 in Marana, the one for Rancho Sahuarita development in Sahuarita, 
a recent CFD in Mesa for the large project proposed to develop the former GM proving grounds property.  
Mr. Reader stated there have been about 160-170 CFD transactions since 1991, adding the state has been 
conservative on their use, but noted his firm has been involved with most of those transactions.   
 
Mr. Reader then addressed the seriousness of issuing bonds and what happens if there would be a default, 
adding it would not impact a city’s general fund because the CFD is a separate political subdivision, but 
even so, the process needs to be done carefully so nothing like that happens.  Mr. Stephens stated this is 
why the City would eventually hire a bond attorney with Mr. Reader agreeing.  Mr. Reader then stated the 
Board of Directors for the CFD could be the Council, but since the proposed development by El Dorado 
consisted of more than 600 acres, the Council could appoint a separate board, adding there are pros and 
cons to consider in doing so, such as insurance ramifications and stated there would be some additional 
conversations regarding the Board of Directors.   
 
Mr. Reader then spoke about tax rates and said the statutes allow for revenue of $.30 per $100 of assessed 
valuation for an operating tax, which is not to pay debt service on bonds, but is a revenue for operating 
costs.  Mr. Reader stated that may not be a lot of value right now, but it would be more once a district is 
formed and development occurs.  Mr. Reader then stated again, the state law allows for $.30 per $100 
assessed valuation operating levy that goes into a special account for maintenance and operation of the 
district, which includes staffing, improvements to the property and maintenance.   
 
Mr. Reader then continued the presentation with the information on other local taxing districts and their 
current taxing rates, such as Cochise County – $2.30, a Flood Control District – $.26, the Cochise County 
Library District – $.14, the Cochise County Fire District Assistance – $.10, which is statewide, the San 
Pedro Valley Hospital – $.90, the Benson School District, which has a primary and a secondary tax, for a 
combined taxing rate of $6.98 and the City of Benson’s current property tax rate of $.55.  Mr. Reader then 
stated the combined tax rate for a Benson resident is $14.15 per $100 assessed valuation, which means that 
on a home valued at $150,000, the combined tax rate would be approximately $1,800 per year or $200.00 
per month.  Council then brought up that the property purchased by El Dorado is in the St. David school 
district with Mr. Reinbold and Mr. Krahn stating that 5% of the property is in the Benson school district 
and 95% of the property is in the St. David school district.  The Council then reviewed the annual and 
monthly tax rates in the presentation and discovered a mathematical error, but understood the taxing 
districts and their taxing rates.  Mr. Reader then stated if another CFD is formed, it will place an additional 
tax on the homes in the district, but only to the homes in the district.  Mr. Reader also stated the tax burden 
is disclosed to each potential homebuyer, adding they get a disclosure statement when they view homes for 
sale and again at the closing, noting communication is very important.       
 
Mr. Reader then noted the City of Benson and the St. David school district may want to have a bond 
election in the future for projects.  Mr. Reader then spoke about the roles in the CFD process, adding his 
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firm provides underwriters and sells the bonds.  Mr. Reader said there is a developer consultant and they 
will have their own legal counsel.  There is a district engineer as it relates to special assessment bonds and 
is needed to satisfy requirements.  There is also a bond attorney, on the financial side, who works for the 
Council, adding the Council will retain a bond attorney for the City, who will act as legal counsel, which is 
also required by law.   
 
Mr. Reader stated he hoped the presentation was helpful and could answer any questions the Council may 
have.  Councilmember Cook then asked if maintenance stayed with district or went to the City with Mr. 
Reader stating that would need to be decided and could be a negotiating point, adding $.30 per $100 could 
be levied, but until that revenue became sufficient to perform maintenance, the Council would have to work 
something out with the developer.  Councilmember Cook then stated the bond issuer was The Villages at 
Vigneto, but asked if the bonds were City bonds with Mr. Reader stating the City is the issuer of the bonds.  
Councilmember Cook asked if bonds were issued before or after the work was done with Mr. Reader 
stating typically it’s done both ways with bonds upfront and then ongoing for the infrastructure with the 
costs being split between the bonds and the developer.  Councilmember Cook then asked if the Board were 
to issue $1 million in bonds, how they would determine they received $1 million in work with Mr. Reader 
stating the procurement process for this is similar to the City’s procurement process and would need to be 
publicly bid, adding the procurement process must be followed so the infrastructure will be eligible for 
bond funding.  Councilmember Cook then expressed concerns over erosion and Mr. Reinbold stated 
hydrology is looked at and the drainage will be done to manage the property. 
 
Mayor King thanked Mr. Reader and then called for a break at 11:22 a.m.  The Council reconvened at 
11:48 a.m.                    
   


3. Presentation by each Department of the City on Department status, goals and objectives  


 


City Manager William Stephens stated this item will be presentations by Staff regarding their portions of 
the budget and will include their thoughts with regards to how to provide services and where they need to 
possibly continue to cut the budget, adding this will be dependent on the future of revenues.  Mr. Stephens 
then stated at noon, the Council is scheduled to break for an hour for lunch and when they reconvene, the 
presentations will continue.     
 
City Clerk Vicki Vivian gave brief statement about the City Clerk’s office and then discussed 
accomplishment and short- and long-term goals that are in place.  Ms. Vivian spoke about Council packets 
and the process of creating a Council packet, including keeping track of items that need to come before the 
Council, the assistance she gives in preparing items for the packet and working with the City Attorney for 
legal review, noting a lot is done behind the scenes before Council sees the finished product.  Ms. Vivian 
then spoke about other duties, which included processing the Council packet after a Council meeting is 
over, creating minutes, updating the City Code per Council action, handling Council travel arrangements 
and all logistics for the Mayor/Manager luncheons, the Showcase of Cities booth at the League’s annual 
conference, reception service in Administration office, boards and commissions, records organization, 
records retention with other departments, record requests, serving as the City’s elections official, 
maintaining the Clerk and Council portions of the City’s website, legal postings, the budgets for the City 
Clerk and the Council, serving as the deputy secretary for the BMPC and the Volunteer Fire Pension Board, 
hosting a potential candidate forum for those interested in running for Council and serve as a resource for 
staff.  Ms. Vivian then spoke about goals for the Clerk’s office including the organization of records back 
to the City’s incorporation date in 1924, which in an ongoing project, quarterly worksessions with Council 
and the City Attorney to keep Council abreast of open meeting laws, conflicts of interest, policies and new 
legislation, creating a boards and commission training seminar, hosting a Voter registration day to 
encourage participation in the local government process, records retention training for Council, boards, 
commissions and Staff, creating a manual for the City Clerk’s office, creating SOPs to be incorporated into 
the manual, creating a government outreach program with the Benson school, and creating and hosting a 
citizens academy with each department giving presentation to increase public knowledge of operations.  
Ms. Vivian then stated she works with all departments to assist in research when needed to produce 
Council items and works close with the City Attorney regarding legal matters and legal review of 
document, adding Staff prepares legal documents for review instead of the City Attorney preparing the 
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documents in an effort to continue reducing costs.  Ms. Vivian then stated furloughs have reduced working 
hours to 36-hour work weeks, adding the Clerk’s job can’t be done in 40 hours a week and certainly can’t 
be done in 36 hours a week.  Ms. Vivian then stated this reduction affects every department, with items for 
Council being pushed back because Staff is dealing with urgent issues, but eventually everything becomes 
urgent because of deadlines and this is not a good way to operate the City.  Councilmember Cook 
mentioned the Clerk’s office also provides assistance to Council with their iPads when there is a problem.   
 
Mr. Stephens recommended having lunch with Mayor King stating the Council meeting would break at 
12:07 p.m. 
 
Council reconvened at 12:53 p.m. 
 
Tourism Director Bob Nilson spoke about Benson being the hub of Cochise County with Amtrak only 
stopping in 4 places in Arizona:  Yuma, Maricopa, Tucson and Benson.  Mr. Nilson then stated the Visitor 
Center is also the official Greyhound stop now.  Mr. Nilson stated the Visitor Center is open Monday 
through Saturday, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. with a staff of 2.5, adding Dick Ferdon is a volunteer who has 
come in when no one else has been there.  Mr. Nilson then spoke about the different advertising he 
purchases to promote tourism and the maps of Benson showing all the hotels, restaurants, fast food 
locations and RV parks that are distributed in a corridor that encompasses Casa Grande, Pinal County, 
Pima County and Cochise County, noting 35,000 maps are printed and distributed each year promoting 
Benson.  Mr. Nilson stated he is welding stands to hold the same map, enlarged to 4’ x 8’ and stated they 
would be displayed in Benson at various locations, adding he is building the stands himself due to budget 
cuts and has to work on them when he has time.  Mr. Nilson then spoke about the Cochise County Tourism 
Council the City belongs to and their efforts to promote tourism in Cochise County, including the Land of 
Legends magazine they publish.  Mr. Nilson then talked about the advertising the City did using 2 
billboards, noting the cost of the billboards, which weren’t in very good locations, was $11,000 and that he 
feels there is no way to know if those ads worked because there is no tracking mechanism with billboards 
and that the City could do better with other advertising opportunities.  Mr. Nilson then stated he is often 
asked to talk on the history of events in Benson.   
 
Finance Director Megan Moreno spoke about the Finance Department with 5 Staff members; herself, 1 for 
payroll and accounts payable, 1 for the collection of utility bills, 1 for utility billing and 1 for grant 
management and accounting and noted all her staff is cross-trained.  Ms. Moreno then spoke about the 
accomplishments of the Finance Department including the implementation of the online bill pay system 
with over 600 customers and the renegotiation of the City’s merchant service fees, noting the reduced costs 
of the merchant service fees pays for the bill pay service instead of having to pass that charge on to the 
customer.  Ms. Moreno stated the online bill pay system offers paperless statements and emailing utility 
bills to customers, adding she can also email City information with those bills giving the City another 
information distribution system.   Other accomplishments included moving the transit grant administration 
back to the Finance office and conducting an internal audit for solid waste, adding she found overcharges 
by the contractor and undercharges for some customers.  Ms. Moreno then spoke about the duties of the 
Finance Department which includes processing all financial activities for the City, financial reporting, 
analysis, internal controls, investment management and debt management, noting the City has issued some 
bonds, audit coordination for the annual audit, budgeting, procurement administration, grant administration, 
sales tax monitoring, serving as the administration point for risk and insurance, accounts payable, payroll, 
utility billing and collection, work order processing and business licensing.  Ms. Moreno stated she also 
administers the CIP program under the budget process and she served on the EDSC before it was 
disbanded.  Ms. Moreno then spoke about goals for the Finance Department, noting she is leaving the City, 
but has agreed to stay on during the transition and will pass these goals on to the new Finance Director.  
The short-term goals included the implementation and central administration of the procurement code, with 
procurement SOPs in place to streamline the process, continuing to monitor changes at the legislative level 
regarding TPT tax, audit authority changes and the major change in construction sales tax to the point of 
sale location instead of the construction activity location, adding this change would only apply to 
remodeling activity and not be applicable to new construction.  Ms. Moreno then spoke about the State’s 
plan to sweep $8.2 million of state shared TPT tax and to charge over $2 million to Arizona cities for the 
Department of Revenue (DOR) collection activities, which will be taken out of the City’s TPT collections 
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they distribute.  Ms. Moreno stated in sweeping these funds, the DOR will increase their staff for collecting 
and auditing, adding the cost to do this will be $10.2 million and the State thinks DOR will get $6.5 million 
back from increased activity, noting the change will still be costing cities.  Ms. Moreno then stated the State 
is also recommending the removal of rental TPT tax.  Ms. Moreno then continued speaking about the short-
term goals that also include creating a Finance Department manual and putting the Finance Director in the 
City Code.  Ms. Moreno then spoke about her long-term goals which include the completion of a 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), adding right now, the City has basic financial statements 
by the auditors in accordance with the audit, but eventually she would like to complete a CAFR.  Ms. 
Moreno stated 2 years ago, legislation required a transparency reporting website and the City has utilized 
the State website (Arizona Open Books) for that, but it does cost and if the City were to have a CAFR, it 
would satisfy the requirement and the City wouldn’t need to pay for that service.  Ms. Moreno then spoke 
about the Caselle software system used in the Finance Department and that not all modules are being 
utilized, adding it would cost money to implement some modules the City already has, such as electronic 
work orders, the asset management system and being able to attach documentation to Caselle, which would 
eliminate having to search through paper records in storage.  Ms. Moreno stated the City has a maintenance 
agreement with Caselle and the IT contractor, Executech, who is the preferred IT provider of Caselle assists 
with updates.  Ms. Moreno stated other goals include the implementation of a round up program in utilities 
so people can choose to pay a little extra and that money is kept in a separate fund to help the needy pay for 
their utilities, but noted timing constraints and the online bill pay program took priority.  Ms. Moreno stated 
SEACAP is willing to administer the program, but they don’t have the capability for compatibility with the 
online bill pay program, adding she is waiting to hear back from them to see what can be done. 
 
Chief of Police Paul Moncada stated the Police Department is the single largest department in the General 
Fund, adding they provide service 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year.  Chief Moncada stated 
the Police Department provides dispatch for police, utilities, Benson Fire, Mescal Fire, St. David Fire and 
Pomerene Fire.  Chief Moncada then spoke about the process of transitioning to new software called 
Spielman Technologies, which is most used in this part of the country and will allow the Police Department 
to be connected to Willcox, Douglas, the Cochise County Sheriff’s office, Bisbee, the Tombstone 
Marshall’s office and Huachuca City.   Chief Moncada stated the cost for this software change is $163,000 
compared to the City’s own system, which would cost about $400,000; then stated it’s much better to 
piggyback with the County.  Chief Moncada then stated the cost for this transition is being paid for by a 
private foundation and there will be no cost to the City, adding the same foundation is paying transition 
costs for Willcox and Huachuca City also.  Chief Moncada then spoke about the features of the new 
software system which will allow improved tracking of officers and calls and the searching of a shared 
database to receive information on involvements throughout the County with the exception of Sierra Vista, 
who uses different servers.  Chief Moncada then stated eventually, the Police Department will be able to 
check involvement statewide with another part of this, called Kaufman.  Chief Moncada then spoke about 
the Automatic Vehicle Locating (AVL) feature with all police cars having an antenna and dispatch being 
able to tell where they all are at any given moment.  Chief Moncada stated if the radios the Police 
Department has have GPS capability, officers without antennas can be tracked using their radio, whether 
it’s portable or mobile.  Chief Moncada then stated AVL was included in the package and if the radios have 
GPS capability, he will work with IT to get them activated, but if the radios don’t have the GPS capability, 
antennas will need to be purchased, adding the antennas are not real expensive at about $65-$70 each, but 
when 15 or 20 are needed, it can cost quite a bit.  Vice Mayor McGoffin stated the portable radios the 
Police Department had 2 years ago had some dead spots in Benson with Chief Moncada stating to correct 
that issue would cost about $150,000.  Chief Moncada then spoke about budget concerns with the Governor 
sweeping funds to balance the state budget and HURF funds being taken again, instead of coming back to 
the cities this year.  Chief Moncada then spoke about mandates from the State legislature, stating a bill is 
currently being considered that would require all police officers to wear a body camera, adding the mandate 
comes with no funding so it would be up to the City to acquire or develop funding to comply with the 
mandate.  Chief Moncada stated each camera costs about $600-$700 and another part of the cost would be 
storing the videos, adding video takes a lot of storage and may require a new server.  Chief Moncada then 
stated the legislative bills are still going through the process so the City will have to wait and see what 
happens.  Chief Moncada then spoke about the federal government reducing grants in order to balance the 
federal budget, adding a few years ago the Police Department received $200,000 in grants, but last year 
was only awarded $55,000 Chief Moncada stated the federal government has also decided to move away 
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from funding equipment and only fund overtime and people on the street programs, adding opportunities 
for being able to acquire funding for equipment are almost non-existent now.  Chief Moncada then stated 
this year, Cochise County and Sierra Vista agreed to go to a 700mghz system and for the department to be 
able to continue to communicate with them, a transition to a dual-band radio is needed, adding the cost of 
one radio is $7,000.  Chief Moncada then stated as part of a Stone Garden grant application, he requested a 
radio and while the radio was funded by the grant, the amount of the overtime funding was reduced by the 
cost of the radio.  Chief Moncada then stated the 2009 budget for the Police Department was $2,351,743 
and last year the Police Department budget was $1,800,214; a reduction of $551,529.  Chief Moncada 
stated the Police Department is providing the same level of service, but it is becoming extremely difficult. 
 
Chief Moncada then spoke about the Police Department fleet which needs to be replaced, stating the last 
time the City spent any funding on vehicles was in 2005 and any vehicle purchased since then has been 
purchased with grant funding or RICO money.  Chief Moncada spoke about personnel and stated his 
number 1 goal is to retain personnel, but furloughs have taken quite a toll with the police officers now 
taking a wait and see approach.  Chief Moncada stated he will probably have a senior patrol officer retire, 
another officer will be leaving for DPS, there is 1 vacant officer position and 1 vacant dispatch position and 
he converted another full-time position to a part-time position that is also vacant, adding he has not filled 
these positions in an effort to save money.  Chief Moncada then spoke about the time it takes to hire or 
replace officers, noting the process of recruiting, testing, background checks, hiring, the police academy 
and field training means it takes a little over 1 year before an officer can work solo, which means it will be 
over a year before any new officers are on the streets.  Chief Moncada then stated the result is fewer 
officers which equal more hazardous conditions, adding it is a balancing act now with the number of 
current officers.  Chief Moncada then stated the preference is to not lose officers, noting there needs to be a 
plan to have things better.  Chief Moncada then stated the El Dorado project gives us hope, but it will be 
years down the road before it would result in a substantial benefit to the City, which is why he is asking the 
Council to try and find additional funding sources or additional funding so furloughs can be eliminated and 
the City will be in a better financial situation.   Chief Moncada stated it’s fine to hire an officer initially, but 
with no raise or COLAs and furloughs, officers start to look around at other opportunities and it’s very 
difficult to try to come up with new ways of trying to keep personnel in Benson because there isn’t a lot of 
upward mobility.  Chief Moncada stated he tries to do what he can laterally, to give officers a different 
perspective, such as the Auto Theft Task Force with new training and duties, but there aren’t a lot of those 
opportunities to do that and maintain an active force on the street which is his number 1 priority.   
 
Councilmember Lambert asked about the policy on officers going to court when they issue traffic citations 
and stated he understands the City gets a percentage of the court costs, but he checked with the Finance 
Director who after seeing the City never received anything, checked and found the money goes for the jail 
system.  Councilmember Lambert then stated the County has also said jail costs will be going up and the 
City will be billed for this.  Councilmember Lambert then stated when an officer decides not to go to court 
for traffic citations, unless there is a good cause to continue the hearing, the case is thrown out which 
means any money that would help is being thrown out.  Chief Moncada stated any citations issued by the 
officer would be in either Justice or Superior Court and a subpoena would be issued and served and the 
officer is required to attend.  Chief Moncada then stated he hasn’t been informed of any officers not 
showing up in court and if there is a problem, he needs to be informed so he can deal with the issue 
appropriately.  Councilmember Boyle asked if the officer has to appear on his own time with Chief 
Moncada stating the Police Department used to pay the officer 2 hours per appearance, but now the pay is 
for the actual appearance time, in an effort to save money.     
 
Councilmember Cook spoke about grants from Indian gaming, stating he understands 12% of the money 
taken in is required to be given back to communities, adding tribes like to issue grants on a quarterly basis 
and like to grant funding to Police and Fire Departments, especially for vehicles, equipment and dogs.  
Chief Moncada stated he applies for grants from the Tohono O’odham nation every year and he is also 
looking into other tribal grants.  Chief Moncada stated last year, the department received funding to replace 
tasers and were able to purchase 5, adding he will continue pursuing grants to complete the replacement, 
but the grants are competitive and a lot of other agencies apply, noting the department was unsuccessful the 
last 2 years.  Chief Moncada then stated these grants require no matching funds, which are the only type of 
grants he currently applies for.   
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City Manager William Stephens stated each department was allocated 15 minutes to address Council, but 
were taking 30-45 minutes, adding there were 5 more presentations to go with Public Works Director Brad 
Hamilton needing to address many different areas.   
 
Fire Chief Keith Spangler gave a brief overview of the services the Fire Department provides, such as 911 
calls, commercial inspections of about 104 of 430 commercial buildings around the City, maintenance of 
apparatus, issuing burn permits for ADEQ, plan reviews, administrative duties such as payroll, stats, noting 
any grant application requires stats for at least 3 previous years to justify the application.  Chief Spangler 
then spoke about the Explorer program for anyone 14-21 years old to join and see what it’s like to be a 
firefighter, adding the explorers complete the same training and can do everything a firefighter does, except 
go interior on a structure fire.  Chief Spangler stated once the fire is out on a structure fire, the explorers 
can do overhaul and hot spots.  Chief Spangler then spoke about the number of volunteers on the 
department; 28 members with 5 on reserve who live out of the City and come in to serve a number of shifts 
each month and then go back home.  Chief Spangler stated that program is not in place right now, so the 
department doesn’t have the availability to respond to calls after 4:00 p.m. if they leave town, adding out of 
the 23 volunteers, there are about 10 who respond on a regular basis, if they are available, noting the rest of 
the volunteers are a hit and miss and he is working on clarifying their status.  Chief Spangler then stated 
last year, the department responded to 999 or 2.7 calls a day for the year, up from 2013, when they 
responded to 877 or 2.4 calls a day and this month, the department has been running right at 3 to 3.5 calls a 
day.  Chief Spangler stated he didn’t apply for any individual grants this year, but did apply for a regional 
grant with Rincon Valley for SCBAs.  Chief Spangler then reviewed his budget and the cuts that were 
made to shift coverage during the day, training, turnout maintenance and replacement, station repair and 
maintenance, equipment repair and maintenance and community service projects such as fire prevention 
education.  Chief Spangler spoke about required certified education and training needed to maintain the 
City’s current ISO rating of 5, adding ISO ratings affect homeowners’ and commercial insurance rates.  
Chief Spangler stated the highest ISO rating is 10, which means there is no fire protection at all. 
Councilmember Cook asked how Benson compares to others in Arizona with Chief Spangler stating 
Benson is average for its size, adding Sierra Vista has an ISO rating of 4, but was previously a 5.  Chief 
Spangler stated a lot of Benson’s ISO rating has to do with training and personnel, adding the NFPA 
requires 17 people show up on a first alarm for a residential structure assignment, noting that would be an 
engine, ladder, ambulance, a battalion chief and service vehicle and he is lucky if 4 volunteers respond.  
Chief Spangler then stated there have been structure fires where he has had 6 people on scene, but that was 
by utilizing 3 Fire Departments, adding all the Fire Departments have the same problem with volunteers, 
which is why the reserve program was instituted.  Chief Spangler then continued speaking about the need 
for an annual exam for firefighters to ensure they are fit for duty, noting 75% of firefighter deaths are due 
to heart attacks and strokes.  Chief Spangler then spoke about the NFPA guidelines for turnout maintenance 
and replacement and how both the U.S. Osha and Arizona Osha adopted the same standard, which makes 
the maintenance and replacement mandatory.  He continued speaking about the required equipment testing 
and maintenance or repairs that must be made, noting the bay door motors are barely working and are 
leaking oil.  Chief Spangler then spoke about the community service projects and the fire prevention 
education normally done at the schools to educate primary school age children about stop drop and roll, 
having a fire plan, to meet someplace, etc. with handouts they can take home and talk to their parents about, 
adding it wasn’t done last year, but he hopes it can be put back in the budget.  Councilmember Lambert 
asked about the cost of this program with Chief Spangler stating the coloring books, pamphlets on home 
safety inspections and escape routes, pencils and erasers cost about $1,500-$1,700 just for Benson, adding 
the program usually serves about 500 kids.  Chief Spangler then stated he uses the leftover supplies for the 
hospital safety fair, adding he would like to reach everyone he can with this information.  Councilmember 
Konrad asked who would provide this information if the Fire Department didn’t and stated the Council 
needs to seriously consider funding $2,000 to this important program.  Chief Spangler agreed, adding he 
also would like to provide fire extinguishing training for upper grades using live props to demonstrate how 
to put out an actual kitchen or trash can fire.  Chief Spangler then spoke about grants and that it is hard to 
apply for them with limited full-time staff, adding most grant applications require a study on the targeted 
audience and he doesn’t have time to do studies, but noted the department did receive a grant for a new 
engine, which is being built and is scheduled to be delivered in May.   
Chief Spangler then spoke about how important it is for firefighters to be hydrated before going on a call, 







Page 10 of 22 


adding he met with the insurance carrier for workmen’s compensation who told him most of the firefighter 
claims are for dehydration and therefore, it’s important to provide hydration drinks.  Chief Spangler then 
spoke about the State Forestry contract the City has and its potential to raise income for the City, stating he 
projected it would take about 5 years to get someone qualified to take the apparatus out per the contract 
without the assistance from other departments.  Chief Spangler then stated currently there are 2 people who 
will hopefully have their tests completed and can then go out on extended assignments starting next year.  
Chief Spangler then stated the his department helped out another department last year and that department 
hopes to be able to give Benson’s Fire Department an Engine Boss at least twice this year, so if Benson 
gets called out, money can be made for the City.  Chief Spangler then noted the problem is the department 
hasn’t had enough reserve money to pay 2-4 people to go out on assignment, adding the average pay is 
about $5,000 for a 2-week 12-16 hour day assignment and if there isn’t any money to pay them, they can’t 
be sent out to earn income for the City.  Councilmember Lambert asked about the apparatus the department 
got 18 months ago and if it could be used to create income with Chief Spangler stating it is a matter of that 
particular apparatus being needed and being on the list for calls and then explained the process of being 
requested for calls.   
 
Councilmember Konrad asked about compensation for preparing the burn permits with Chief Spangler 
stating the State doesn’t compensate the department, but preparing the permits gives the department local 
control over who is burning and what is burning in addition to costs savings from being dispatched 
unnecessarily.  Councilmember Konrad agreed the cost of issuing the permits is not significant compared 
the benefit.     
 
Councilmember Lambert stated the Council will be looking at both expenses and revenue with the 
upcoming budget and asked about the expenses the Council created around 2009 with the implementation 
of the Fire Department responding to EMS calls.  Chief Spangler stated the expenses were very little 
compared to the other side, adding this year the department had 2 code saves from being on scene, by being 
able to do CPR and keeping the patient alive until the ambulance arrived to transport them.  Chief Spangler 
then stated the increased line item for supplies, such as gloves and things, is $3,000, adding most of the 
supplies, with the exception of gloves, get replaced by the ambulance company including IV supplies, 
oxygen masks and the oxygen that is used.     
 
Councilmember Lambert then stated he had spoken to some firefighters who have told him they are first to 
arrive on scene and do what they can, but then have to wait quite a while for the ambulance and then asked 
what it would take to have an ambulance and be able to transport patients.  Chief Spangler stated to do so 
would be cost prohibitive, adding one ambulance costs about $70,000-$100,000 without any equipment.  
Chief Spangler then explained that ambulance services are provided through a certificate of necessity, 
which is issued by the State, adding to take the certificate of necessity from the current ambulance 
company, the City would have to show negligence and that the City could provide that service, adding the 
current provider would probably fight that in court.  Chief Spangler stated the City would need to purchase 
at least 2 ambulances and hire 4 people in order to provide 24-hour coverage 7 days a week because 
patients have to transported to the most appropriate hospital or where they request to be taken, which could 
possibly take that ambulance out of service if the patient needed to be taken to Tucson.  Chief Spangler 
then stated most of the time, patients go to Tucson or to the VA, adding the VA won’t pay to transport a 
patient to Benson since they have their own emergency room.  Councilmember Lambert asked if there was 
any way to share the certificate of necessity with Chief Spangler stating he would have to look into it, then 
stated the department would need to start documenting the current provider’s response times, but noted the 
certificate of necessity addresses how long the provider has to respond to calls and as long as they are 
responding within that timeframe, they are fulfilling that requirement. 
 
Vice Mayor McGoffin stated this would also become an issue of municipalities taking money away from 
private businesses.  Councilmember Lambert stated he was just looking at ways to make revenue with 
Chief Spangler stating in 1990 or so, the City had the option to take over providing ambulance services for 
Benson, but chose not to, which is how Benson Ambulance came into formation, adding he could look into 
the matter if the Council directed him to do so.     
 
Library Director Peggy Scott gave a brief statement regarding the library and then spoke about staffing 
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changes, noting the library went from 5 full-time employees to 4.5 employees and have reduced their hours 
of operation due to the loss in Staff and furloughs.  Ms. Scott stated last year, the library completed a very 
successful summer reading program and Staff is working on scheduling presenters for the next one.  Ms. 
Scott the stated in January, the library started a new program for children, called pre-k, which was a short 
program with limited attendance due to a smaller staff, but it was also very successful, adding that program 
will be offered again this year.  Ms. Scott then stated in the previous fiscal year, the library provided 113 
programs with over 1,500 children attending the programs.  Ms. Scott noted part of the programs offered 
computer classes in the mornings, but due to a loss of Staff, that program has been eliminated, adding she 
would like to try and provide that program again.  Ms. Scott stated other services offered by Staff are 
library tours for kids and scout clubs.  Ms. Scott then stated the library is trying to change to meet the 
community’s needs, adding technology keeps changing and her Staff is trying to keep up with that, but the 
library lost 1 adult computer, 1 children’s computer and a laptop, adding the City doesn’t have the funding 
to replace those.  Ms. Scott stated she has been careful about spending this year, adding not only was 
Staffing cut and furloughs implemented, but all departments were asked to be careful with their spending so 
she cut back on books.  Ms. Scott said people ask about new books and the hours the library is open but she 
has told them it will depend on whether or not further cuts and further reductions in hours will be required.  
Ms. Scott then stated the current library hours still provide a good service to the community, but the library 
is now closed on Saturdays due to the cuts that have been made and noted with some employees on 
furlough days and others on vacations, the reduced operating hours are still hard to maintain.  Ms. Scott 
then stated the library still gets compliments and it’s nice to get those compliments from winter visitors 
who have traveled around the country and have seen a lot of other libraries.  Ms. Scott then stated library 
patrons can now use credit cards and the library staff has just put out a survey to get some feedback from 
library users.   
 
Recreation Coordinator Laura Parkin spoke about her duties that include the community facilities rentals of 
ballfields, ramadas, the community center and the pool.  Ms. Parkin then spoke about events and noted the 
City events, the Tree Lighting Ceremony and the Light Parade, are incredibly time consuming, noting she 
also puts together the advertising for Butterfield Stage Days.  Ms. Parkin continued speaking about her 
duties that include accepting and processing special permit applications and working with organizations 
wishing to hold special events in the community to ensure safety and quality and make sure the City has the 
needed insurance coverage, adding she works with each department to get approval and once she gets all 
approvals, she issues the permit.  Ms. Parkin then spoke about recreation programs and the increase in 
participation each year, adding she had 2 temporary assistants in the office last summer and that helped 
with participation.  Ms. Parkin then stated last summer to save costs, she decided to close the pool when 
school started and she also eliminated a couple days a week for adult swim due to extremely low numbers.  
Ms. Parkin then stated she assists in hiring lifeguards and she schedules and supervises the lifeguards.  Ms. 
Parkin stated she is a certified pool operator, so she has to make sure the chemicals are right and the pool is 
clean.  Ms. Parkin then continued about her duties, including updating the City’s website content with the 
exception of the City Clerk’s office, updating the City’s facebook page, participating on the Cochise 
County Tourism Council to promote recreational tourism, creating and completing all the Safety Data 
Sheets for her department and creating SOPs, adding she is not always going to be here and she didn’t want 
to leave her department like it was left for her.  Ms. Parkin then spoke about current projects, such as the    
new City website, working with State Parks and the National Forest Service on a trail from Las Vegas to 
Douglas through the Whetstone Mountains, adding this makes a master plan for parks, trails and open 
spaces even more critical, because connecting to the trail makes Benson more attractive.  Ms. Parkin then 
stated the Lions Park master plan needs to be updated to reflect the results of the 2013 recreation survey, 
adding the BEDC is applying for a grant to get trees and it would be beneficial to have the master plan 
completed and incorporate trees into the plan, rather than getting a grant for trees and then just putting them 
in anywhere.  Ms. Parkin then spoke about projects that are on hold such as a management policy for 
municipal partnerships and sponsorships, adding partnerships with businesses could absorb some of the 
City’s costs, adding in the case of fire prevention education, Arizona G&T could become a sponsor and pay 
for it and in turn, get advertising for doing so.  Ms. Parkin then stated other projects on hold include 
updating Chapter 11 in the City Code, creating a chapter for special events, creating a skin cancer 
prevention program to be used to apply for grants at Union Street Park, the Skate Park project and 
completing her SOPs.  Ms. Parking then stated she has cut everything from her budget that she can, adding 
if further cuts are needed, she will have to cut services; there will be no camps on Fridays because of 
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furloughs and other things like the Movies in the Park won’t be provided.     
 
Councilmember Lambert asked about the current master plan for Lions Park with Ms. Parkin stating the 
current plan shows multi-purpose fields in spite of the wash, adding based on survey results, the 
recommendation would be putting in additional baseball and softball fields west of the wash.  Ms. Parkin 
then stated she can apply for a grant with the Arizona Diamondbacks to get the fields built at no cost to the 
City.  Ms. Parkin then stated she is also trying to work with SSVEC to see about getting the electrical 
equipment for lights at the Sandlot, noting the City doesn’t have the money for that either.    Ms. Parkin 
reiterated the need for additional ballfields, noting it is a struggle each year between the schedules for 
leagues and other people who want to hold special events.  Councilmember Konrad asked how competitive 
the Field of Dreams grant with the Diamondbacks was with Ms. Parkin stating they award 1 grant each year 
and covers all the costs of constructing the fields with the exception of a flag pole the Council wanted, but 
noted she hasn’t looked to see how many entities apply for the grant.  Councilmember Konrad stated 
former Mayor Richard Saenz with the Diamondbacks organization was an ally of Benson and gave a lot 
support to his hometown, adding the booster club had a lot of success with the Diamondbacks.  Ms. Parkin 
agreed and stated she has always gotten a lot of support from Arizona G&T also.   
 
Director of Golf Joe DelVecchio stated he has been with the City for only 3 months, he then spoke about 
customer service, stating when someone experiences golf, their experience is not limited to the golf course, 
but starts as soon as they get out of their car in the parking lot and they remember the entire experience.  
Mr. DelVecchio then stated playing golf was on its way up in the 60s, 70s and 80s, but in the 90s, play 
started to decrease, however, according to the National Golf Foundation, play has started to increase again.  
Mr. DelVecchio then spoke about the City’s golf course, noting the fleet of golf carts is 1 year old and is 
kept nice and clean, though sometimes, it is a struggle when there are 117 carts and 1 person is tasked with 
this, adding it becomes even more challenging when they have additional duties such as bringing in the 
range balls.  Mr. DelVecchio then stated this position is filled by 2 part-time employees limited to 20 hours 
a week, and noted he is trying to use another employee from inside the proshop as a starter to help out with 
that because the impression of clean golf carts is fairly important.  Mr. DelVecchio then stated he played 
the golf course here in the early 2000s, but he hadn’t seen it for a long time and the first thing he noticed 
was the course is unfinished, adding the cart paths can drive away more revenue than it would cost to 
complete them and noted the online reviews that were negative were about the cart paths.  Mr. DelVecchio 
then spoke about his short-term and long-term goals which include finishing the course and making it a 
product that the customer comes to not only for the great greens, but the entire experience.  Mr. DelVecchio 
then stated the greens are some of the best in the whole state of Arizona, if not the southern part of the state 
and if the rest of the course, including the carts and cart paths, took on that appearance, there would be 
people playing who would be coming back to play.  Mr. DelVecchio stated his other goal is to address the 
range, adding he has seen the range revenue go down in the budget year after year for the past 3 years.  Mr. 
DelVecchio stated the range is now dirt, but originally was grass, adding he will have to close it until it 
dries up, but he has some ideas he is going to try on it.  Mr. DelVecchio then spoke about the restaurant at 
the golf course, and the difficulty in being short-staffed to begin with and trying to provide the best 
customer service while scheduling furlough days.  Mr. DelVecchio stated the restaurant is fairly crowded 
almost every day and they serve great food, but not having a dishwasher and being short-staffed is taking 
its toll.  Mr. DelVecchio stated he is going to cross train an outside server, who normally handles the 
beverage cart, to come in and help out with serving.  Mr. DelVecchio then said the golf course actually 
broke even, but the restaurant is still suffering in the red and he believes the restaurant isn’t open long 
enough to recoup the needed revenue, noting the restaurant will be open on Friday and Saturday for dinner 
starting February 13.  Mr. DelVecchio then reiterated how it has been tough to be short-staffed, because it 
gets so busy that on any given day, they need every employee they have and there are not enough 
employees and hours to maintain the course the way it should be maintained.  Mr. DelVecchio then stated 
he is developing a divots program to help clean out areas on the course that have been overgrown, adding 
he is trying to get the course looking as good as it can, but noted the major issue with the golf course is the 
cart paths.  Mr. DelVecchio stated the cart paths either need to be taken out with seed put in their place and 
the exit cart paths being from the tees with everyone being on the greens or cart paths can be put in 
eventually.  Mr. DelVecchio stated this would also save wear and tear on the 1-year old carts, adding he 
hopes when the 5-year lease is up, the carts haven’t been pushed to the breaking point because the paths are 
pretty bad.  Public Works Director Brad Hamilton asked how wide the average cart path is with Mr. 
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DelVecchio stating asphalt paths are usually 5’ and concrete are usually 6’.  Mr. DelVecchio then stated a 
new company in Florida is now into cart paths and they make paths from about 60% recycled tire and 
asphalt with an 80% flow through rate, that handles erosion well, leaves no puddling and is easy to install, 
adding he is supposed to hear from them on pricing.  Councilmember Boyle asked if the City had a big pile 
of millings with Mr. Hamilton stating he had millings from the State and had a lot delivered to the golf 
course to use for building a base for the paths, but he would need to look into that.  Mr. DelVecchio then 
stated the golf course hours of operation are different than they were, adding March and April will bring 
better numbers to use for preparing the budget.       
 
City Manager William Stephens then stated Judge Bruce Staggs asked for a few minutes to address the 
Council.  Judge Staggs spoke about what the justice system did for the City of Benson, stating the Court 
addressed 784 cases with 603 being traffic related and 181 being criminal related.  Judge Staggs then spoke 
about imposing fines and how they are paid or not paid and the resulting additional fines that continue to be 
incurred due to non-payment.  Judge Staggs then spoke about sentencing people to jail for not paying their 
fines, which takes $50.00 off their fines for each day they spend in jail, but noted the cost to have someone 
jailed is over $200.00 for the first day and is $65.00 for each additional day.  Judge Staggs then stated he 
heard that the County was going to start assessing those fees to cities, adding some cities have not been 
paying their fair share and it will really affect them.  Judge Staggs then stated he would prefer to keep 
people out of jail because not only is it not a good place for them, but it doesn’t make sense to give the 
person a $50.00 a day credit when it costs more than that to house them in jail.  Judge Staggs then stated if 
a person is brought in at 4:55 p.m., he will still see them instead of just automatically transferring them to 
Bisbee.  Judge Staggs then stated he will do what he can to help with jail costs and he and his staff are 
willing to put in the extra effort to bring back community service and community restitution, adding this 
would help both the County and the City resulting in a win/win situation for everyone.  Vice Mayor 
McGoffin asked about insurance and limits or constraints on the type of work these people can do with 
Judge Staggs stating if the person has a physical limitation, that needs to be recognized, but otherwise, they 
can pick up trash, dig holes or do whatever the City needs people to do.  Judge Staggs then stated he has 
had 3 people come and ask him to put them in jail, because they don’t have a job and can’t pay their fines, 
adding these are good people that just can’t afford to pay their fines and he hates to send them to jail.  
Discussion on community service continued with Judge Staggs stating he and City Manager William 
Stephens have been working on a form to use and Mr. Stephen stating they will continue to work on 
implementing the program.  Councilmember Cook asked what the City paid ADOT crews per hour with 
Mr. Hamilton stating they each received $.50 per hour.  Judge Staggs then stated the people he referred for 
community service would receive a credit on their fines at the rate of $8.00 per hour and it wouldn’t cost 
the City anything.  Councilmember Konrad asked who would supervise these people with Mr. Stephens 
stating it would depend on where they were assigned, noting the supervision isn’t as strict as the 
requirement for ADOT crews.  Councilmember Lambert then asked about cases that had to be thrown out 
due to officers not showing up with Judge Stagg stating of the last 7 traffic cases, he had to dismiss 4.  
Chief of Police Paul Moncada asked Judge Staggs to let him know who the officers were with Judge Staggs 
stating he could continue the case if the officer can show good cause for not being able to attend the 
hearing, adding he would notify Chief Moncada on a weekly basis.   
 
Public Works Director Brad Hamilton stated he would go over the highlights and then address problems 
and things he was concerned about.  Mr. Hamilton stated he has been working on an RFQ for engineering 
consultants, adding he held a meeting about the RFQ and he expected about 5 or 6 engineering firms to 
show up, but there were over 30 people who attended, noting there is a lot of interest in the El Dorado 
project from Tucson, Phoenix and even southern New Mexico.  Mr. Hamilton then stated the City will start 
to see some plan review fees, but the bigger benefit will be construction sales tax collections once 
construction on the infrastructure starts.  Mr. Hamilton then gave an update on the federal projects, 
including the soon-to-be installed bathrooms at Lions Park and the helicopter pad at the airport, noting the 
last time these were done, the City was given an exclusion on the environmental requirements, but this 
time, the federal government is being more strict, which increases the scope of work quite a bit.  Mr. 
Hamilton then spoke about utilities, stating at the last Council meeting, utility rates were discussed, adding 
the gas rate was last adjusted in 1995, water and wastewater rates were adjusted in 2006 and sanitation rates 
were adjusted in 2003.  Councilmember Lambert asked about Mr. Hamilton, as an engineer, completing a 
rate study with Mr. Hamilton stating he and the Finance Director Megan Moreno have discussed her 
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working part-time after her replacement is on board to complete these studies, adding their thought is to 
complete as much of the study as possible in an excel format to be used and updated as needed.  
Councilmember Lambert asked if the study could be done quickly enough for the Council to use in the 
upcoming budget year with Mr. Hamilton stating it would depend on how fast the new Finance Director 
comes up to speed.  Councilmember Konrad asked if the new rates had to be approved by the Arizona 
Corporation Commission (ACC) with Mr. Hamilton stating because the Council was an elected board 
overseeing the utilities, the rates didn’t have to go through the ACC.   
 
Mr. Hamilton then spoke about the Transit Department, adding he lost his engineering aide, who was 
handling the operations side of Transit, noting the Finance Department handles the grant side.  Mr. 
Hamilton stated operations are running ok, but he wouldn’t say it was running well.  Mr. Hamilton then 
stated Bisbee is looking at an RFP to have a private transit system, adding the system would still belong to 
Bisbee and they would still administer the grant but the day-to-day operations would be handled by a 
contractor, which may have some cost savings and benefits.  Mr. Hamilton then stated he did get a copy of 
their RFP he can possibly use to do the same thing, adding he will be watching to see what happens. 
 
Mr. Hamilton then spoke about IT services stating the server went down just as it was being replaced, but 
luckily Executech was able to extract most of the data, noting the Finance Department did have to go back 
and enter some information.  Mr. Hamilton then stated the City’s computer equipment is old, adding the 
Public Works’ and City Clerk’s laptops are over 8 years old and other computers are even older.  Mr. 
Hamilton then stated the new server at City Hall has problems, adding Executech was surprised it was up 
and running with 2 drivers being burned out.  City Manager William Stephens noted the server literally 
died the day Executech was trying to transfer the data, noting the City was close to a catastrophic failure.  
Mr. Hamilton then stated Executech ran into the same thing with the server at the Police Department, 
adding instead of the server being replaced, more storage was added to it, and after Executech looked at it, 
the recommendation was to replace it.  Mr. Hamilton then stated he looked up the existing server and found 
it was selling for $300.00, which is a good indicator of how old and outdated it is.  Mr. Hamilton then 
stated the server needs to be changed and the City needs to look into upgrading the phone system, adding 
the phones the system uses now, can’t even be purchased anymore.   
 
Mr. Hamilton then spoke about the Building Department, stating Fire Chief Keith Spangler spoke about the 
City’s ISO rating and noted there are 3 parts to the rating:  Fire protection, the water system and how it’s 
rated, adding the City has rated well in the past, but he is afraid the rating will drop due to not having the 
personnel to keep up with the requirements for flow testing, exercise and maintenance and the third 
component is building codes.  Mr. Hamilton stated the City Council needs to adopt newer codes or the 
City’s ISO rating will go from a 5 to a 9, adding this is critical.  Mr. Hamilton stated the City got a little 
more time to address the Building Codes after the former Building Official, Luis Garcia, left, but it needs to 
be done soon, noting the rate change would hit citizens hard and would hit commercial buildings hard. 
 
Mr. Hamilton then spoke about the City’s vehicle fleet, stating the last time any vehicle was replaced was 
in 2007.  Mr. Hamilton then stated he has trucks from 1973, which are 42 years old, adding he did recently 
get permission to purchase 2 dump trucks from the County and even though they are 16 and 19 years old, 
they are considered new to the City.  Mr. Hamilton then stated other trucks are just getting worn out, 
adding a master cylinder recently went out and to replace it, he located the part on antiquetruckparts.com, 
adding there is a lot of maintenance on the old trucks and there is always a problem locating parts.  Mr. 
Hamilton then spoke about the rest of the fleet, stating he will keep the medium duty truck because it 
doesn’t require a CDL driver and probably gets the most use; there is a 1982 Ford truck that needs new 
tires, but since those tires are no longer manufactured, rims will have to be purchased with new tires and to 
do so will cost $5,000-$6,000.  Mr. Hamilton then stated he is looking for a good deal on a medium duty 
that would be 15 or 20 years newer, noting the City used to get some vehicles from the State auction, which 
were well-serviced and maintained, but now the State has the same budget situation and instead of 
auctioning vehicles with 100,000 miles on them, they keep their vehicles until they have 250,000 miles and 
those vehicles aren’t really an option for the City anymore.  Mr. Hamilton then stated the City’s utility 
emergency response vehicle is almost 10 years old and is nearing 200,000 miles.    
 
Mr. Hamilton then spoke about utility rates compared to other entities, stating the City’s gas availability 
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charge is $7.50 and gas is $.74 a unit compared to Southwest Gas’ availability charge of $10.70 and gas 
being $1.32 a unit; adding the City’s unit charges are based on the cost plus $.30 and the gas fund is going 
into the red.  Mr. Hamilton then stated the City’s wastewater availability charge is $11.60 and the average 
bill is $26.00 compared to Pima County’s availability charge of $12.63 and the average bill of $48.00, 
adding Pima County is currently presenting another rate increase.     
 
Mr. Hamilton the spoke about Public Works personnel, stating personnel is his biggest worry right now, 
adding he has watched quite a few people leave since furloughs started and many employees come in and 
show him advertisements for the same job they have that pay a lot more.  Mr. Hamilton then stated he 
reviewed the information, adding the City’s last salary survey was done in 2005 and he looked at the 
changes in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) since 2005, noting there has been an increase of 21%, 
compared to the 5.5% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) given to employees.  Mr. Hamilton then stated 
now with the 10% reduction in pay due to furloughs, employees are actually making 25% less than they 
should be.  Mr. Hamilton stated this doesn’t include the higher rates for medical insurance or the higher 
retirement rates in place.  Mr. Hamilton then stated in the 2007-2008 fiscal year, the Public Works 
Department, including Parks, had 30 positions and now, in 2015 there are 13.25 positions filled.  Mr. 
Hamilton stated 1 employee works 10 hours a week and there are 13 full-time employees, which is a 45% 
decrease in personnel and is why it takes longer to get things done.  Mr. Hamilton stated the Gas 
Department used to have 4 employees and now has 1, adding he is trying to recruit internally for a 
supervisor, but if he hires someone from another department, that creates another vacancy.  Mr. Hamilton 
then stated 2 employees in the Gas Department, 2 employees in the Water Department and 3 employees in 
the Wastewater Department would still be considered very thin and the days of the City not getting written 
up for not having enough personnel are going to be over.  Mr. Hamilton stated when he started at the City, 
there were 3 people trained to do blue staking and now there is only 1 employee left to do that, adding if 
blue stakes don’t get done, the City can face fines and possible prosecution.  Councilmember Konrad 
expressed his concerns and stated the City lost a really good building official; now there is a major building 
project on the horizon and asked if at some point, the City would have an in-house Building Official who is 
capable of doing the job to serve the needs of the investor coming to Benson.  Mr. Hamilton stated the 
project has to go through the Planning & Zoning and engineering parts before starting construction on the 
infrastructure and vertical infrastructure.  Mr. Hamilton then stated the City currently uses Brown & 
Associates and as soon as the cost to use them is what it would cost to hire a Building Official, he would 
start the recruiting process, adding he would be happy to have a mix of employees and consultants, so the 
City wouldn’t have to hire and then possibly have to lay-off employees later.   
 
Mr. Hamilton then spoke about the airport, stating a UAV landing has been constructed using grass 
runways and is now ready to use.  Mr. Hamilton stated he also met with a company based in Tucson about 
launching high altitude balloons from the airport, adding they launched a Google executive tied to one and 
he went up to 135,000’ and then had a freefall back to earth.  Mr. Hamilton stated the company is looking 
at instrumentation and human flights, adding they are trying to build a capsule to take people up to the 
stratosphere and then bring them back with a parachute and will be charging somewhere around $5,000 a 
ticket.  Mr. Hamilton stated he is also working on a fee schedule for UAVs, adding he has been working 
with SAEDG (Southeast Arizona Economic Development Group) and the SVED (Sierra Vista Economic 
Development Foundation), noting there are several companies interested in using the airport, especially in 
using the grass runways.   
 
Council then discussed revenues and expenses with Councilmember Cook asking what percentage is being 
charged to the clubs and leagues for using the field lights with Mr. Hamilton stating they are being charged 
65% of the City’s cost.  Recreation Coordinator Laura Parkin stated the City’s cost will be increasing 11% 
and noted the City also lines the fields.  Councilmember Lambert asked about the $50.00 cost for oil 
changes on vehicles and if it might be beneficial to buy oil in bulk and hire a part-time person for 
maintenance.  Chief of Police Paul Moncada stated he has been looking at changing providers that will save 
the City considerable money, but getting vehicles to and from the location is a concern.  Chief Moncada 
then stated he is also looking at someone who would perform oil changes for $20.00 if the City provides 
the oil and filter, but another concern is the storage and accessing it when it’s needed.  Chief Moncada then 
stated he has been looking at ways to save money and now has oil changes done every 5,000 miles instead 
of every 3,000 miles.  Councilmember Lambert stated the City could look at hiring a part-time employee to 
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work 4 hours a day at $10.00 per hour and if he could complete 4 oil changes a day, the cost would only be 
$10.00 per car and the City could get the oil at bulk rate, adding everything the City can save adds up.  Mr. 
Hamilton then stated the City used to do that, but the safety inspector didn’t like the oil storage, so he went 
back to buying cases of quarts.  Mr. Hamilton then stated if down the road, the City could have something 
constructed to hold the oil, it may be an option, but the shop is being used for everything that needs to be 
done and for storage, adding there wouldn’t be a dedicated space to perform that specific vehicle 
maintenance.     
 


4. Presentation on the financial status and budgetary situation of the City; discussion to include all 


expenditures, revenues and revenue sources  


 
Finance Director Megan Moreno addressed the Council regarding City finances, stating the common theme 
from all departments is not good news, adding all Department Heads have cut significant amounts from 
their budgets and the last budget cycle was very difficult.  Ms. Moreno stated she didn’t like telling the Fire 
Chief that he couldn’t have money for fire prevention education and materials for children, adding there are 
a lot of programs and services the City can offer, but had to be put on hold due to the financial situation.  
Ms. Moreno then stated this year has been a really big sacrifice for all employees.  Ms. Moreno then stated 
the Council has heard the need for utility rate increases, noting the City’s utility rates are lower than the 
average utility rates in the area.  Ms. Moreno stated she and Public Works Director Brad Hamilton looked 
at a WIFA survey for water rates and the City could actually increase water rates by 89%, be financially 
sound, still be affordable according to household incomes for this area and still be in the median price 
charged for water utilities in the state of Arizona, which gives the Council an idea of how affordable the 
City’s utilities are, but noted affordable does not mean fiscally responsible.  Ms. Moreno then stated it is 
important to get a rate study done and adjust utility rates.   Councilmember Lambert asked if there was any 
utility contingency funds set aside with Ms. Moreno stating the City should have 20% of each of the annual 
utility operating expenses in separate contingency funds, but doesn’t, adding any utility repairs were paid 
for using bond funds.  Ms. Moreno then stated when the rate studies are done, the studies will include the 
20% contingency fund for each utility, including sanitation because even though there is no sanitation 
costs, funds are needed for street repair, adding the sanitation trucks have leaked oil in the past and alleys 
need to be regraded.  Mr. Hamilton then stated the American Water Works Association rate setting policy 
addresses different types of contingency funds, not only for repair and maintenance, but also for debt 
service for larger utility projects.  Ms. Moreno then spoke about the City’s unrestricted cash balance, 
stating in 2008, the City had $2.7 million, but depleted it year after year, adding she reported the City’s 
unrestricted cash balance was $899,000 in December of 2014.  Ms. Moreno then stated to make matters 
even more grim, the Governor is sweeping state shared revenues, noting the City seeks consistent increases 
in state shared sales tax and state shared revenues and relies on those in addition to the City sales tax, 
adding these are large sources of revenue for the General Fund.  Ms. Moreno stated she hasn’t seen the 
estimates of the sweeps and how it will affect the City specifically, but she knows the reduction is coming.  
Ms. Moreno then stated HURF money, which is normally used to pave and maintain City streets, has not 
been restored and without those funds, the City will have to pull money from somewhere else for street 
maintenance.  Ms. Moreno then spoke about House Bill 2254, which is proposing a residential rental tpt tax 
exemption, adding the bill as it stands, would reduce the tax rate by 25% each year over the next 4 years 
and would significantly affect the City’s tpt collections.  Ms. Moreno stated the bill would result in an 
estimated $87 million hit to all cities in the state and that estimate is climbing, adding the League sent out a 
spreadsheet asking for information to get a better idea of how much this would hurt cities and will then take 
that information to the legislature.  Ms. Moreno then stated on top of that, the City used to collect 
$100,000-$150,000 in rental tax, but now is only collecting about $20,000, which shows how many people 
in the City are not paying the rental tax that should be paying it.  Ms. Moreno stated the City doesn’t have 
the resources or the authority to audit, adding the State is upping collection and audit procedures, but she 
doesn’t think Benson will be very high on their priority lists for audits.  Ms. Moreno then stated she thinks 
the City can educate the community, adding the optimist in her thinks people don’t pay because they don’t 
know they are required to pay the tax.  Ms. Moreno stated she contacted the newspaper to see if they would 
run an article to make people aware and stated the Council could also vote on a notice of tax waiver to 
actually allow a brief period of time for people to come forward and apply for tax license and to start 
paying the rental tax without the weight of prior taxes and penalties hanging over them, adding those would 
be waived.  Councilmember Boyle asked what the process was to pay rental tax with Ms. Moreno stating 
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people need to apply for a license with the Arizona Department of Revenue (DOR) and apply for a State 
tax id number and then pay the tax using the state tax form.  Ms. Moreno then stated before January 1, if a 
person hired a property management company to manage their rentals, the company could collect the tax 
and remit it for all the properties they manage, which makes it hard to audit, but beginning January 1, each 
separate property has to have its own license and property managers can no longer file lump sums, adding 
if the company is going to file for the property, they must have a power of attorney and individually file for 
every location, which makes auditing easier.  Ms. Moreno stated her guess would be that the property 
company won’t offer the tax administration.  Councilmember Konrad stated the State legislature has looked 
at this in the past and asked how much time and effort the City would put in to try and collect 25% less 
each year for the next 4 years and at what point in time would the City benefit from it.  Ms. Moreno stated 
she is hoping the bill won’t go through, but if it does, she wouldn’t recommend pursuing the collection; it 
would just go away.  Councilmember Cook asked why the Council would waive taxes if the tax was going 
to be eliminated with Ms. Moreno stating she didn’t realize the State legislature was considering 
eliminating the tax altogether until last week.  Ms. Moreno then stated she would continue to monitor the 
bill and see what happens in the process.  City Manager William Stephens then stated every City and City 
Council can engage their state elected official and protest House Bill 2254, should they not want to see the 
bill passed.  Councilmember Cook noted the State would be in the best position to audit because when 
someone owns a rental and files a state return, most people declare the income, adding the State has the 
information and the means to enforce the collection.  Mr. Stephens then stated this is what should be 
happening, but it isn’t, adding the City could be collecting $150,000 each year, but last year only collected 
$20,000, which means there are a number of people who are not reporting and paying this tax.  Mr. 
Stephens then stated current law allows the City to place a lien on rental property if the owner is not paying 
tpt rental tax.  Mr. Stephens then stated he has had some phone calls from people claiming they didn’t 
know about the tax and from people who have been told others are blatantly ignoring the tax.  Mr. Stephens 
then stated the first step would be to educate everyone and let them know about the tax and then go from 
there, adding people will be looking at their past taxes and that may keep them from coming forward which 
is why Staff wanted to let the Council know about the option to waive past taxes and interest, but noted 
there will still be people who won’t pay.  Councilmember Konrad the best case would be to start soon and 
begin collecting what can be collected and the worst case would be if the bill passes, the City will have a 
diminishing return each year for the next 4 years.  Mr. Stephens agreed and stated there would probably not 
be a lot of effort in trying to collect this tax if the bill passes.  Councilmember Lambert stated he went in 
person to the DOR in Phoenix twice during his last term to tell them Benson needed to have audits 
performed because taxes weren’t being paid and DOR staff will tell you they will be sending someone out, 
but it never happens and they always have an excuse.  Ms. Moreno stated she has also requested audits, 
adding she attended a training session at the DOR and was told to get requests for audits submitted and they 
would be done, but when she told them she had already submitted requests, they told her the requests are 
done on a first submitted, first served basis.  Ms. Moreno then stated she thinks they may prioritize higher 
value audits, noting Benson would never be as high as larger municipalities, but the DOR wouldn’t 
comment on that.  Ms. Moreno then stated the city of St. Johns put an ad in the paper to educate and 
encourage compliance; then their Council approved a policy to waive past taxes in a certain time period and 
let the DOR know the time period the Council chose for people to apply for a license and tax id number and 
start paying taxes.  Ms. Moreno then stated if this is something the Council would like to have happen in 
Benson, the Council would have to formally approve the policy at a Council meeting.  Ms. Moreno then 
stated she performed an analysis with the information from the Cochise College Economic Outlook 
publication, adding the rental tax in the City should be $100,000-$150,000 each year.  Councilmember 
Cook stated the public recognized Mr. Lotsof trying to get a complete exemption to building codes and the 
Council got a beating for trying to do the right thing, adding whoever puts this on the agenda will take the 
same beating.  Ms. Moreno then stated she really didn’t want to waive any back taxes, but the City needs to 
start collecting these taxes and knowing the limitations the City has, sometimes, we just have to move 
forward and encourage compliance moving forward, adding it also shows the City is trying to work with 
people, noting some people really are unaware of this tax.  Councilmember Lambert stated he looked at this 
with the former Finance Director who could estimate taxes and there was one property that owed about 
$150,000, adding the taxes and interest add up very quickly.  Mr. Stephens stated the alternative is placing 
a lien on the property, adding some citizens have been cheating the City for years and won’t pay their rental 
tax until they are forced to pay it.  Councilmember Lambert stated when the Council tried to pass 
Appendices IV, everyone was in opposition, but it would have given the City the ability to hire outside 
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auditors to perform audits instead of waiting for the DOR.  Ms. Moreno stated the Council could still pass 
Appendices IV, but noted a multi-jurisdictional audit would still have to be done at the state level or by a 
state-certified auditor.  Councilmember Boyle stated the Council could possibly compromise and instead of 
waiving all past taxes, they could decide to still collect taxes owed for the past 5 years, and then waive any 
taxes that were due more than 5 years ago with Ms. Moreno stating the decision would be up to the 
Council.  Ms. Moreno then stated the Council could not only forgive back taxes, but could also forgive 
penalties, adding she wanted the Council to think about this and if they wanted more information, to let her 
know, noting she will work on this matter if Council decides to pursue it.  Ms. Moreno then stated she 
would rather have her department track down everyone who owes these taxes and can do that if the Council 
prefers, but noted it would require a lot of Staff time, which they don’t really have.  Councilmember 
Konrad asked how big of a job this would be with Ms. Moreno stating it would take 1 full-time employee 
and if this were all they were assigned to do, they could probably spend a year on it.   
 
Ms. Moreno then stated furloughs this year have saved the City $119,000, but noted the City has lost 10% 
of its employees since the furloughs were implemented and that only includes the first half of the year.  
Councilmember Lambert asked if that was directly due to furloughs with Ms. Moreno stating 9 of the 10 
employees who left could be directly contributed to furloughs.  Mr. Hamilton then stated the City used to 
offer tuition reimbursement, but quit that in 2010 also, noting the benefits seem to be less each year.  
Councilmember Lambert stated 8 months ago, a Police Sergeant came to the Council and said there were 3 
officers leaving because of the furloughs and asked if they left with Chief of Police Paul Moncada stating 
they had not left yet, but 3 or 4 officers were testing at other entities and 1 officer was retiring.  Mr. 
Stephens stated 1 officer is leaving for a better opportunity with Chief Moncada stating he has been talking 
to that officer.  Chief Moncada stated that officer is leaving as a direct result of furloughs, adding the 
officer didn’t want to go to the agency he is going to.  Councilmember Lambert stated it takes a year of 
training to be able to have an officer on the streets, noting that is a lot longer than other departments with 
Mr. Hamilton stating for a public works employee to be Operator Qualified and able to be on-call takes a 
year also.  Councilmember Boyle asked about the ability to hire lateral officers with Chief Moncada stating 
there is usually a reason an officer is leaving a jurisdiction.  Mr. Stephens then stated in addition to having 
furloughs, the City is fairly low-paying and most laterals are not looking at Benson.  Councilmember 
Konrad stated Benson is basically providing the training to upgrade other police departments and this is 
what the City is up against.  Chief Moncada agreed, stating it’s hard for an officer to graduate from the 
academy and start furloughs, adding the City offers a starting pay rate, but the actual pay rate is lower due 
to furloughs.  Chief Moncada then stated another issue that needs to be looked at is the Police Department 
is going to start advertising officer positions very soon and every advertisement process costs the City 
about $400-$600.  Chief Moncada then stated the last time an officer was hired, it took 5 advertising cycles 
before he was able to find someone to hire and make it through the process, which cost about $3,000 and 
doesn’t count all the other testing that has to be done, such as a polygraph and medical and drug testing, 
just to get them into the academy.  Chief Moncada stated the officer then attends the academy for 18 weeks, 
followed by 12 weeks of field training.  Ms. Moreno stated it’s been very difficult with furloughs, adding 
she thinks she can speak for most departments when she says scheduling furlough days has been very 
difficult, especially in Public Works, the Police Department and the Golf Course.  Ms. Moreno then stated 
employee morale is down and there is talk about more people leaving.  Councilmember Boyle asked what 
level of staffing the City would need to get to by cutting Staff in order to eliminate furloughs with Mr. 
Stephens stating Councilmember Boyle was talking about layoffs, adding there is also going to be a 
corresponding service that would be cut, such as shutting down the Library or the Recreation Department.  
Councilmember Boyle then stated he was looking for the information to use as an educational tool to show 
if the Council cut more, what would have to happen.  Councilmember Lambert stated the Police 
Department might have to go down to having only 1 officer on duty at a time and people would have to 
wait for responses.  Mr. Stephens then stated every department has had problems with furloughs.  Ms. 
Moreno stated there is always talk the City is overstaffed, but the Council could look around and see a 1-
person department, a 2-person department, the City is running 4 utilities with 7 people and when you 
compare that to SSVEC, anyone can see the City is stretched thin and is not overstaffed.  Ms. Moreno then 
stated when Councilmembers suggest laying people off, Staff can’t see how it can be done.  
Councilmember Lambert stated if the Deputy Clerk was laid off, the City Clerk would have to do 
everything for both positions and if you lay off the City Clerk, the City Manager would have to do his job 
as well as those of the City Clerk.  Councilmember Lambert then stated when people talk about no one 
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being in Mr. Hamilton’s office, it’s because there is only 1 other employee in that office besides Mr. 
Hamilton.  Ms. Moreno then stated she is saying that the City is now at a point, and she hopes the Council 
sees it, that if additional Staff is cut or if furloughs have to continue, more employees will leave.  Ms. 
Moreno then stated this will result in a direct cut in services, adding hard decisions will have to be made 
about what the City will and will not offer, noting the Library has already reduced evening hours and 
eliminated being open on Saturdays and there was no fire prevention education for children.  Ms. Moreno 
then stated there are things the City wants to offer, but now even harder decisions have to be made, which 
is why she is coming to the Council with a very unpopular request, adding she strongly believes the City 
sales tax rate needs to be increased.  Ms. Moreno then stated the City of Bisbee just raised their sales tax by 
1% and her argument is only strengthened by the action of the State sweeping funds from cities.  Ms. 
Moreno then stated taxes aren’t being increased at the State level, but the State is taking tax revenue away 
from cities and forcing the cities to do something.  Ms. Moreno then stated a sales tax increase of 1% will 
result in a revenue increase of $1,040,000 and would be spread across a larger base of taxpayers instead of 
increasing taxes only on citizens with a property tax increase.  Ms. Moreno stated the increase would be 
spread across the region and would be paid for by everyone who comes to shop in Benson, adding Benson 
is a shopping hub for the region and would then have less of an impact on residents.  Ms. Moreno then 
stated the Council also needs to realize that in 2018, the temporary tax increase of .5% will sunset, adding 
this tax was implemented in 1998 and was to be for a period of 20 years with the revenue being used to pay 
for the wastewater treatment plant.  Ms. Moreno then stated the City refinanced that debt because the loan 
required the City to find another financing mechanism as soon as possible. Ms. Moreno then stated the 
refinancing extended the debt until 2030 instead of 2018, adding the City still need to make a debt service 
payment until 2030 and the revenue for the payment will have ceased in 2018.  Ms. Moreno then stated a 
1% tax increase will generate $1 million, but in 2018, tax collections will decrease by .5%, which is 
approximately $520,000, then stated the City will have the next couple years to build the reserves back up, 
eliminate furloughs to continue services and would be able to afford replacing a dump truck instead of 
having to buy antique parts.  Ms. Moreno then stated the Council could also look at diverting the property 
tax of about $230,000, which is money generated from this community by property owners, and possibly 
put it to capital infrastructure, like parks and recreation to show a tangible asset paid for by property taxes 
instead of using that money for operational expenses.  Ms. Moreno then stated property owners may be 
willing to support a sales tax increase if they know their property taxes are being used to create new fields 
or something at the park, because they would be seeing an actual benefit from their property taxes, adding 
new ball fields could even be used for tournaments and create more revenue.  Ms. Moreno then stated new 
development is happening, but the City won’t see homes being built until 2017, which means no property 
taxes increasing from new residents, no bigger tax base for state shared revenue or additional sales taxes 
from new residents.  Ms. Moreno then stated at the new development, there will also be a lot of new 
amenities that will not be in the existing Benson area, noting this could be an opportunity to develop 
amenities in the downtown Benson area.    Ms. Moreno then stated the sales tax increase is her plan and she 
hopes the Council will approve it.   
 
Mr. Stephens stated the City also needs to address utility rates with Ms. Moreno agreeing.  Councilmember 
Boyle asked about eliminating the furloughs and just keeping the existing staff level with Ms. Moreno 
stating the goal would be to regain the staffing level and fill vacancies in the Police Department.  Mr. 
Stephens stated he could have brought the staffing level back up and fill authorized positions, but he hasn’t 
due to the budget, adding he put a freeze on hiring and spending and cut services.  Mr. Stephens then stated 
the increased sales tax would allow hiring staff to fill those positions and bring services back, adding the 
staffing level could then be reevaluated at that time, but it would be at least a year before that evaluation 
could be made.  Ms. Moreno stated she would strongly encourage the continuation of a very conservative 
spending practice because the point of the increase is to build up the City’s cash reserve.  Ms. Moreno then 
stated the City has always been conservative in spending, which is why the City was able to get through the 
recession.  Mr. Stephens then stated every year for the next 4 years, the City has a $250,000 payment to 
make in addition to the $400,000 bond payment that will continue until 2030, noting those 2 payments 
alone are more than $600,000 each year and the City’s unrestricted cash is already down to $899,000.   
 
Councilmember Konrad said he wanted to make a statement and said if anyone, whether on Council or in 
the public, think employees are overpaid, they should participate in a wage study at some point because that 
is certainly not the case.  Councilmember Konrad stated he could say that with 100% certainty, noting he 
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has been involved with wage studies and he knows what labor pays in other areas and other sectors.  
Councilmember Konrad then stated the other thing Council needs to keep in mind is where the money in 
the reserve went, adding it didn’t just evaporate.  Councilmember Konrad stated the City needs to build the 
cash reserves back up, but should never let it get that low again.  Councilmember Konrad then stated 
anyone who has tried to blame City staff for the problems the City has and not ask the Council how they let 
$1.8 million go has their head in the sand.   
 
Councilmember Lambert stated 4 years ago, the previous Council tried to raise bed tax to 4%, adding right 
now, Benson is one of the lowest in the state at 2%, noting 4% would still be around the bottom of the 
range and would be nowhere near the middle.  Councilmember Lambert then stated bed tax money helps 
fund tourism and billboards, adding if people don’t come to Benson, the City doesn’t make money.  Mr. 
Stephens then stated he wanted to make sure Staff understood that his comments about closing the Library 
and the Recreation Department were simply examples of cutting services and he was not considering doing 
so.   
 
Mr. Stephens then stated there are steps that could be taken before totally eliminating the Library and the 
Recreation Department, such as charging to use softball field lights and materials and eliminating league 
use, but again, wanted to stress he was only using those departments as examples.  Mr. Stephens then stated 
he was saying that the City is in a crucial position and is ready to teeter, adding something needs to be 
done.     
 
Councilmember Cook stated he agreed with the utility rate increases to build contingencies in those funds, 
adding he sees the wisdom in that and he agrees with increasing sales tax and bed tax, noting the additional 
burden would be placed on people outside the City.  Councilmember Cook then stated the Police 
Department furlough days are not as many as every other department is taking, adding the officers are also 
using Stone Garden grant funding to make up the loss in compensation.  Chief of Police Paul Moncada 
stated officers can work extra to make the difference up, but noted they are working harder to make the 
same money, adding the loss of overtime pay still results in officers losing income.  Mr. Stephens noted 
some officers don’t work under the Stone Garden grant with Chief Moncada adding the dispatchers also 
can’t utilize Stone Garden grant funding.  Councilmember Cook expressed his thoughts that the officers 
could still use Stone Garden funding to eliminate the impact of furlough days with Chief Moncada stating 
any way it’s looked at, the officers are still seeing a reduction of income, noting officers can’t work 
overtime in the same week they are scheduled to have a furlough day.  Councilmember Cook stated the 
Police Department has turnover anyway, adding 2 officers were leaving before the furloughs were even 
considered.  Chief Moncada stated the Police Department does lose officers for better opportunities, adding 
it’s hard to retain officers, when the City offers low pay and very little in the way of upward mobility, 
adding furloughs make it even harder to retain officers.   
 
Councilmember Cook then stated this is his 3rd Council retreat and start of the budget process, adding the 
Council listens to the Department Heads telling what the City’s needs were and Council approved those 
expenses.  Councilmember Cook then stated everyone went hand in hand on the $1.8 million reduction of 
the City’s unrestricted cash, adding that is what he saw and stated he was part of it last year also.   
 
Mr. Stephens stated there is no going back with Councilmember Boyle stating it wasn’t like the Council 
took the money and went to Vegas.  Mr. Stephens agreed, stating the bottom line is the past can’t be 
changed and the Council needs to look at where the City is and move forward in a progressive way that 
secures the City.  Mr. Stephens then stated as the City moves forward and the new development happens, 
things will begin to progressively get better.  Mr. Stephens then stated the Council would get some 
pushback and some disgruntled people, adding there are a lot of people who don’t want to pay more than 
what they currently pay and a lot of people would like to see the government just go away, but the City 
provides services and needs to be fiscally responsible and secure.  Mr. Hamilton then stated no one would 
have predicted in October 2010 that the recession would last more than a year or two, much less 6 or 7 
years, adding each year, the City kept surviving for one more year and then just one more year after that, 
which is why the City is where it is now.  Vice Mayor McGoffin agreed stating hindsight in always 20/20.  
Judge Staggs stated the situation seemed easy to explain to the public with Councilmember Boyle stating 
the newspaper reporter should have been at this meeting.     
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Mayor King stated the Council has a lot of decisions to make, adding over the past few years, the Council 
made decisions for the citizens of Benson and gave them what they wanted, but now it was time to look at 
the City and its employees.  Mayor King then stated the City has lost employees and he doesn’t see how the 
City can still be run in the current situation, adding the Council will have to make some tough decisions 
and if it comes down to raising taxes, then the Council will have to make the decision to raise taxes and if it 
comes down to raising utility rates, the Council will have to make the decision to raise utility rates.  Mayor 
King then stated citizens are not going to want taxes increased, but to see the City survive, the Council will 
do what has to be done.  Mayor King stated the Council has a job to do and stated they need to do what is 
right in order to move the City forward.  Mayor King then stated the Council doesn’t want to lose any more 
employees and the Council needs to advocates for them, adding it’s time for the Council to take this 
forward and get the City back to where it needs to be.   
 
Mr. Stephens then stated the increase is not punishing the citizens, adding the return on the investment is 
getting a library that is back to being open full-time, use of ballfields, leagues continuing to operate with 
lights and street potholes being fixed.  Mr. Stephens then stated the City has a sewer line running down 
Ocotillo that is deteriorating, noting it’s amazing the line hasn’t collapsed yet, and again stated the citizens 
are going to benefit from this, even though initially they may struggle with it.  Councilmember Boyle stated 
citizens and City employees are not like 2 separate entities, adding they are in the same boat and that boat 
has been going down the rapids.  Councilmember Boyle then stated the City needs to do something to 
educate the citizens of Benson on the situation and include how the cash reserves were used so the facts 
will be presented to combat people saying the City just wasted money.  Councilmember Boyle stated an 
educational program shouldn’t cost much at all.  Ms. Moreno agreed that education is going to be key and 
stated the City could hold public forums.  Councilmember Boyle stated no one attends public forums with 
Councilmember Lambert stating when people complain, they need to be told there were several meetings 
on this issue.  Councilmember Lambert then asked if a sales tax increase was temporary with Ms. Moreno 
stating the Council could implement a temporary tax with a sunset clause or could implement a permanent 
tax rate increase.  Councilmember Lambert then asked if a tax rate increase was referable with City Clerk 
Vicki Vivian stating she would confirm the answer with the City Attorney, but noted she had previously 
conferred with other attorneys in various municipalities and she was told as long as a tax was already in 
place, the Council could increase the rate and they didn’t think it would be referable.  Ms. Vivian then 
stated any new tax the Council chose to implement would have additional requirements such as public 
hearings.  Councilmember Lambert if the increase was referred, the public would need to understand that if 
it fails, the City would face further reductions and would need to go down to having only 1 officer on each 
shift, the Recreation Department would be smaller and there would be no summer programs, etc.    
Councilmember Lambert then stated the Council couldn’t make any decisions today, but they could direct 
Staff to place the issue on an upcoming agenda.  Judge Staggs agreed the education needs to let people 
know what will be cut if the increase isn’t done.  Director of Golf Operations Joe DelVecchio stated 
Tucson has gone through the same thing, adding they lost employees and services, then increased the sales 
tax rate and added another tax.  Mr. DelVecchio then stated there was a negligible difference and he didn’t 
even realize the difference when he was shopping recently.  Ms. Vivian then stated there will definitely be 
people complaining, but the benefits need to be explained and people need to realize 80% of the increase in 
collections will probably be paid for by people who don’t reside in the City.   
 
Mr. Stephens stated one of the benefits will be the elimination of furloughs and the restoration of City 
operating hours.  Ms. Moreno agreed and stated another benefit would be the possible use of property tax 
for capital improvements, adding the City could conduct a survey asking citizens what they would like to 
see done in the community and then do projects based on that information.  Ms. Moreno stated the City of 
Mesa did this and then held a bond election for the projects and the bonds passed with tremendous success 
because there was buy-in from the citizens due to the projects coming directly from them and the bonds 
were to pay for those projects.  Ms. Moreno stated the City only collects about $230,000; then stated any 
project built by using these funds shouldn’t be something that takes 10 years to build, adding it should be 
used each year to complete smaller projects and more of them.     
 
Councilmember Cook stated if the Council may get some negative responses if they tried to push a tax rate 
increase without getting some reasonable financial stability in the Golf Course, but a lot of people don’t 
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understand that 40% of RVers want a Golf Course or they won’t continue coming to Benson.  
Councilmember Cook then stated if the Golf Course is closed down, there will be more sales tax revenue 
lost for the City and businesses in the community.  Mr. DelVecchio stated he briefly talked about making 
improvements to increase revenue at the Golf Course with Councilmember Cook stating the closer the Golf 
Course was to breaking even, the closer the Council was to getting buy-in from voters. 
 
Councilmember Lambert asked how soon this issue could be placed on an agenda with Ms. Moreno stating 
it would have to be 2 Council meetings out, because the deadline for the next Council meeting had already 
passed.   
 
Mr. Stephens then stated everyone has a perspective on what is important, adding some people don’t use 
the community center, while others don’t use the Library, but noted there are a lot of intangibles; stating the 
Community Center electric bill is about $19,000 a year and part of the electricity usage is from the 
Salvation Army, who helps the needy in the community and from CCS, who provides a service for the 
elderly in the community who need meals.  Mr. Stephens then stated there are a lot of benefits that are 
being provided to the community that a lot of people don’t think about, adding that $19,000 is being spent 
on more in the community than people realize.  Mr. Stephens then stated some people and a lot of winter 
visitors use the Golf Course, adding the City provides free water, but also get a place to discharge effluent.   
 
Councilmember Lambert then asked if a list could be prepared for the Council to review and then use when 
they are talking to citizens.  Ms. Moreno then stated she realizes this is a tough position and is not a popular 
decision, but noted the more information that can be given out, the better it will be.  Ms. Moreno then asked 
the Council to let her know what they wanted and stated she would start working on the education material.  
Ms. Moreno then stated based on what she was hearing from Council today, she was going to tell 
Department Heads to move forward with their budgets knowing the Council would be moving forward in 
considering a sales tax increase.  Councilmember Lambert stated the Council also needed the utility rate 
studies done to consider utility rate increases, adding he would like to have those before the Council takes 
action on the budget.  Mr. Stephens then stated one way to look at the situation was that it wasn’t a tax 
increase; it was a quality of life improvement.  Mr. Stephens then thanked the Council for their attendance 
and participation.   
 


ADJOURNMENT:  
 
Councilmember Konrad moved to adjourn at 5:41 p.m.  Seconded by Councilmember Boyle.  Motion 
passed 6-0.   
 
 


                  
____________________________ 


                 Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor 
  ATTEST: 
   


____________________________   
  Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 







                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
Attached are the minutes of the February 8, 2016 Regular Meeting.       
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1b 
                                               
From: Vicki Vivian, CMC, City Clerk                   
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Minutes of the February 8, 2016 Regular Meeting        
 
 
 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                                        March 28, 2016 
 







Page 1 of 7 


THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF BENSON, ARIZONA 


HELD FEBRUARY 8, 2016 AT 7:00 P.M. 
AT CITY HALL, 120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA         


 
CALL TO ORDER:    
    


Mayor King called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
ROLL CALL:   
 


Present were: Mayor Toney D. King, Sr., Vice Mayor Lori McGoffin, Councilmembers Pat Boyle, Jeff Cook,     
Joe Konrad, David Lambert and Chris Moncada (arriving at 7:17 p.m.)  
 


EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  None   
  
PROCLAMATION:  None  
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  None 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   


 
Jim Thelander, La Mesa Drive, Benson, expressed concerns about the (GDP) General Development Plan and 
noted the current GDP, under the “Cost of Development Principles” calls for projected growth to pay for itself, 
adding Goal 1 reads that new developments should pay their own way.  Mr. Thelander then stated this includes 
developments that will construct and dedicate water infrastructure to the City.  Mr. Thelander then stated he is 
also concerned over hearing that the City is trying to act on its own without coordinating with SSVEC (Sulphur 
Springs Valley Electric Cooperative) and stated SSVEC’s system is not big enough to support the size of the 
proposed development, adding he has heard SSVEC has been basically left out of the picture so far.  Mr. 
Thelander then stated he didn’t know if anyone is talking to the St. David schools, but he hopes everyone is 
working together, adding they can’t work independently without others. 
 
Mayor King then asked if Pastor Mike from the First Baptist Church was present to give the invocation.  Pastor 
Mike was not present.   
 
Don Buchanan, River Road, St. David, stated Mr. Thelander, who has been on the City’s Planning & Zoning 
Commission for 10 years, shared some material with him and it contained a statement about constructing and 
dedicating water infrastructure to the City, adding it is also important to develop and manage a drought 
management plan and the Council should be sensitive about water use.  Mr. Buchanan then stated he knows the 
developer will use the most economical plan, adding a synonym for economical is cheap.  Mr. Buchanan then said 
the City should work collectively with other jurisdictions to protect and maintain the San Pedro River corridor, 
adding native vegetation should be maintained and there should be minimum setbacks for unique areas.  Mr. 
Buchanan then stated he doesn’t know if anyone is studying this besides the developer.  Mr. Buchanan then stated 
he knows the state senate is discussing a bill that would eliminate rights over water and cities will then be able to 
do anything they want, adding he doesn’t like it and he thinks the federal government will eventually do 
something about it.  Mr. Buchanan then stated bigger is not necessarily better, adding when the population 
reaches 10,000, there may not be anyone on Council who lives in what is currently Benson and they will lose 
control of everything. 
 
Joan Horn, La Cuesta, Benson, stated she and her husband were both vets and they were proud of that, adding 
some people have given their life for this country.  Ms. Horn then stated she doesn’t want the animal shelter to be 
a place where animals are just euthanized, adding she started volunteering there last June and walks the dogs 
twice a week.  Ms. Horn stated she has seen a lot of adoptions and is amazed with Animal Control Officer Laurie 
Fivecoat and what she could do, adding Ms. Fivecoat puts her whole heart and soul into taking care of the dogs. 
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Ms. Horn then stated she was upset Rusty, who was very loving and sweet, was put down.  Ms. Horn then stated 
she donated food and treats to the shelter, but she didn’t feel she could continue to go there anymore if it’s just 
going to be a place where dogs will be euthanized.  Ms. Horn then stated she wants Benson to be a good place 
where animals can come and good homes can be found for them.  Ms. Horn then restated she is a concerned 
citizen of Benson and she doesn’t want dogs being euthanized; she wants the Animal Shelter staff to continue 
trying to find good homes for them.   
 
Frederica Powell, Low Lane, J-6 Ranch, stated she is a proud citizen of the community and began the Smiling 
Dog rescue program at her ranch in Benson.  Ms. Powell stated before Animal Control Office Laurie Fivecoat 
was hired, the shelter was a shelter of the past, with a closed door policy and no transparency, adding it had a 
1950s attitude that animals weren’t family members and strays weren’t more than trash.  Ms. Powell then stated 
when Ms. Fivecoat was hired, she made astonishing changes that brought the shelter from the archaic situation of 
years gone by to a vibrant up and coming shelter that had the community involved, volunteers like crazy, cheap 
spay and neutering programs and social media.  Ms. Powell stated the networking they can do is incredible, 
adding she has 14,000 fans on her page and she has a friend with over 500,000 fans.  Ms. Powell then stated Ms. 
Fivecoat has done incredible things that didn’t cost anything and has gotten food and medical treatments donated 
by volunteers, adding when she has had dogs that need severe medical treatment, she posts it on facebook and 
funds are collected to help those dogs which never would have happened in prior years.  Ms. Powell then stated 3 
years ago in the heat of the summer, the swamp cooler went out in the back of the shelter and the City didn’t have 
the funds to replace it, but Ms. Fivecoat put the information on facebook and in 48 hours, $1,000 was donated by 
the public and an HVAC company volunteered to install it.  Ms. Powell then stated there is huge community 
involvement here and they are concerned about the shelter moving forward and its management, adding the 
community involvement needs to be continued and the animals need to be treated humanely.   
 
Geir Hundal, Fairmont Street, Tucson, stated the definition of shelter is a place that provides food and shelter for 
those in need.  Mr. Hundal then stated the animal shelter had an 89% live release rate which included the animals 
that needed to be put down at the owner’s request due to the great effort and commitment to try and save them.  
Mr. Hundal stated the animal shelter staff would spend up to a year to find the right home for a pet and all of this 
is being undone since the City replaced Laurie Fivecoat.  Mr. Hundal stated the new animal control officer 
euthanized a young, friendly, healthy dog that hadn’t done anything wrong, except having been in the shelter for 
11 months, which was not unusual, adding in a matter of days, the new animal control officer deemed the dog 
aggressive and that he had been there too long, yet the shelter was only at 1/3 capacity.  Mr. Hundal stated 
relationships with rescue organizations have also been cut off, adding as an animal advocate, he finds all of this 
unacceptable.  Mr. Hundal then stated he went to the shelter today during posted hours but there was no one there 
and asked how the 90% live release rate will be maintained if no one could get in to adopt and animal rescue 
organizations can’t come in and transfer out animals.  Mr. Hundal then stated he wants Council to take some 
action and he would like to see the shelter remain a no-kill shelter, adding it doesn’t cost the Council anything; it 
just takes time and effort to find them a home.  Mr. Hundal then stated a shelter is a place to live, not a place to 
die. 
 
Suzanne Van Skike, Empire Road, Mescal stated she was not happy about the changes at the animal shelter, 
adding she was a volunteer there for almost a year, but 2 weeks ago Ms. Fivecoat went out on medical leave for 2 
weeks and Ms. Van Skike was told not to come back during that 2 weeks and then was told not to come back until 
she talked to the new animal control officer to see if she was still needed.  Ms. Van Skike then stated her normal 
volunteer hours were when the new animal control officer would not be at the shelter and asked why he would 
need to approve of that, adding she was just volunteering to help in any way she could.  Ms. Van Skike then stated 
she lives in Benson, which is a big community, the City is trying to get businesses to come here and the Benson 
school is number 1 in the state.  Ms. Van Skike then stated the animal shelter euthanized 11% of the animals and 
when the new animal control officer worked at the animal shelter previously, 41% of the animals were 
euthanized, adding she would not be proud of that fact at all and doesn’t want that happening again.  Ms. Van 
Skike then stated Ms. Fivecoat has done a great job and will continue to, adding Ms. Fivecoat and she consider 
those their dogs.  Ms. Van Skike then stated she was at the animal shelter today, adding the dogs at the shelter 
were like hers and she misses them.   
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Angela Roberts, Pearl Street, Benson, Arizona, stated when she first moved to Benson in 2010, she was warned to 
make sure her dogs stayed in her yard and didn’t go to the shelter and to make sure she got to the shelter quickly 
if they did, because the animal control officer had the reputation that he would kill anything that looked like a 
bully breed and because some things didn’t add up.  Ms. Roberts then stated she did apply for the new animal 
control officer position, but that doesn’t affect her statement.  Mr. Roberts stated the new animal shelter employee 
was given the title of Co-Senior Animal Control Officer and Shelter Manager, adding the person hired has full-
time employment elsewhere and even though Ms. Fivecoat wanted help with the call load during the week, the 
new employee can’t do it.  Ms. Fivecoat then said she would like to know how a person who works 20 hours a 
week could run the shelter and care for the health and well-being of the animals, giving them their medication, 
scheduling spay and neutering clinics and getting the animals adopted.  Ms. Roberts stated since the hiring of the 
new animal control officer, she has seen drastic changes such as no longer being allowed to transfer animals or 
work with other shelters unless they are on his list.  Ms. Roberts stated last year, the animal shelter only 
euthanized 30 animals or 11%, adding some animals were not safe, but most of them were end of life requests and 
she found it troubling that the new animal control officer would deem a dog aggressive after that dog was at 
numerous adoption events with no problems.  Ms. Roberts then asked the Council to discuss the reinstatement of 
Ms. Fivecoat as the Senior Animal Control Officer and Shelter Manager with the Chief of Police, adding 
otherwise the animal shelter would be regressing instead of progressing.   
 
Tricia Gerrodette, Eagle Ridge Drive, Sierra Vista, stated she looked forward to learning as much about (RDs) 
Revitalization Districts as she did about (CFDs) Community Facilities Districts.  Ms. Gerrodette stated the 
Council spent many months learning about these, but only in December were they introduced to RDs, and she 
hoped there would be some worksessions about the powers RDs have before anything was adopted. 
 
Nancy Young Wright, Wilkenson Drive, Tucson, spoke about the animal shelter stating she was a member of the 
Humane Society and is promoting legislation that promotes good care and doesn’t single out any breeds.  Ms. 
Wright then spoke about the Lucky Dog rescue program that requires more than one person deciding on 
euthanasia.  Ms. Wright stated there are a lot of progressive ways shelters are run that are worth looking at and 
volunteered to help, adding Pima Animal Care workers have also agreed to help, all free of charge.  Ms. Wright 
stated she volunteered at Pima Animal Care when it was a high kill municipal shelter, noting less than 50% of the 
animals got out and there was no adoption staff person, but that changed about 3 years ago and now they have a 
nearly 90% live release rate even though they took in 24,000 animals.  Ms. Wright stated she would like to share 
how those numbers were achieved, adding they have a lot of support with about 500 volunteers.  Ms. Wright then 
stated those organizations would help the City with anything they could, adding many people are willing to take 
the dogs from the shelter.  Ms. Wright then stated it was with heartfelt sincerity they were offering to befriend and 
help the animal shelter.  Ms. Wright then gave information to the City Clerk for distribution to the Council.  (The 
information will also be retained with the Council packet.)  Ms. Wright then suggested the Council put together a 
committee to meet and work with the Council.     
 
Marcie Velen, Calle Montuoso, Tucson, stated she was the co-founder of No Kill Pima County and she came to 
share lessons she has learned, adding most no kill facilities can save money.  Ms. Velen then stated the no kill 
model she is referring to consists of 10 programs and a manager who is committed to saving lives of animals that 
are not incurably ill and are not a danger.  Ms. Velen then stated she understands Benson has been utilizing 
volunteers and working with organizations, adding no shelter can pay for all the staff who would do the great job 
and all of them rely on volunteers.  Ms. Velen then stated recues are ways to transfer the expenses.  Ms. Velen 
stated she would like to leave a document that better explains the no kill equation.  Ms. Velen then stated she 
believes saving lives comes from a state of mind and an animal shelter manager can do things that don’t cost 
money and can find ways to save lives, adding no shelter can do it on its own and the City has volunteers who 
want to help. 
 
Lupe Diaz, Post Rd, Benson, stated he was the President of the Chamber of Commerce and was a Pastor, then 
stated he also agreed the animal shelter should be non-kill and they should do everything they can to help the 
animal population.  Mr. Diaz then addressed the Council regarding New Business Item 2, asking the Council to 
carefully consider the issue, adding the contract binds the City for 50 years.  Mr. Diaz stated anytime an 
endangered species is introduces, it brings in all kinds of regulations, limitations and also allows Game & Fish to 
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cross jurisdictions lines, adding this would be opening the door to them and to the feds.  Mr. Diaz then stated 
there are a lot of golfers and asked what would happen if a golf ball were to go into the pond and kill these fish, 
adding the contract reads that the fish can’t be harassed or harmed.  Mr. Diaz then encouraged the Council to be 
careful in signing up for this, regardless of what is being dangled as a carrot to the City.  Mr. Diaz then noted 
there is a proposed housing development around the golf course that may be affected because an endangered 
species introduction can kill any kind of activity and work in that area.  Mr. Diaz then stated the dogs should be 
saved, but the pupfish should be turned down so the Council doesn’t sign away the right to do what you want with 
the golf course.   
 
Stephen Insalaco, Pinto Place, J6 Ranch, stated he had prepared an address regarding the animal shelter, but noted 
a lot has already been said so he would briefly suggest that the Council issue a directive to Staff to get together 
with stakeholders and draft policies for the Council to review and approve.  Mr. Insalaco stated the policies 
should include guidelines, what should be done with a surplus of animals and how it should be done, adding it 
might include having the decision to euthanize be made by more than one person or a board operating under the 
guidelines the Council approves.   
 
Barbara Nunn, La Cuesta Drive, Benson stated she moved to Benson 7 years ago, adding Mr. Teza didn’t know 
her.  Ms. Nunn then stated they bought a house across from someone who wanted to kill their dogs and Mr. Teza 
told Ms. Nunn he would watch the dogs when she was out of town so they would be safe from the neighbor.  Ms. 
Nunn then stated she didn’t have a dog in the fight over the animal shelter, but that there was another side to Mr. 
Teza and the story.  Ms. Nunn stated she realized the people speaking about the animal shelter were all friends 
with Animal Control Officer Laurie Fivecoats and stated she didn’t know Ms. Fivecoats, but there is another side 
to the story being told.  Ms. Nunn then stated she heard on the CAVE FM radio station a story about the 
Mayor/Manager luncheon being held at the golf course to boost revenue at the restaurant and stated it was a snotty 
comment.  Ms. Nunn then stated everyone should work together instead of being a cancer and trying to tear every 
one down.  Ms. Nunn then congratulated the Fire Department and the City on the new fire truck, adding the new 
truck was needed.   
 
Dave Thompson, La Cuesta Drive, Benson, stated the Fire Chief did a great job on the grant for the new fire truck 
and the department deserves it, adding they work hard to protect Benson and now have a truck they know will 
make it to the fire.  Mr. Thompson then stated he has known Paul Teza for about 8 years and Mr. Teza is honest, 
hardworking and is very, very caring for the animals.  Mr. Thompson stated Mr. Teza has picked up animals and 
found the owner on his own time.  Mr. Thompson then asked why people didn’t use common sense, adding he 
agrees people need to be careful with water use, animals in the development area and how to set up Villages at 
Vigneto.  Mr. Thompson then stated it all comes down to good old-fashioned common sense, and people have to 
put people before the Mexican garter snake or some bird that flys by, adding he thinks people are important and 
the town needs to survive. 
 


CITY MANAGER REPORT: 
 
City Manager William Stephens addressed Council, giving the dates of upcoming meetings and events. 
 
Tuesday, February 9, 2016   – Library Advisory Board, 4:00 p.m., City Library 
Wednesday, February 17, 2016  – Community Watershed Alliance, 6:00 p.m., City Hall 
Thursday, February 18, 2016  – Citizen Review Session, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 
Monday, February 22, 2016   – City Council Meeting, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 
 
Monday, February 15, 2016   – Presidents’ Day – City Offices Closed 
 
Mr. Stephens then stated for more events in Benson, the public could visit the City’s website:  
www.cityofbenson.com under “What to do Today.”     Vice Mayor McGoffin asked what the subject of the 
Citizens Review Session was with Mr. Stephens stating Mr. Daniel Ball and Cincy Allen will hold a Citizen 
Review Session to receive comments on their application for a conditional use permit to operate an antiques store, 
museum and plant nursery at 253 E. Third Street, the historic Arnold Hotel.   



http://www.cityofbenson.com/
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NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. Discussion and possible action on the Consent Agenda    


 
1a. Minutes of the December 14, 2015 Worksession  
1b. Minutes of the December 14, 2015 Regular Meeting  
1c. Minutes of the December 21, 2015 Worksession  
1d. Resignation of Debra Crafts from the Benson Economic Development Committee  
1e. Appointment of David Yeager to the Benson Economic Development Committee  
1f. Reappointment of Gerald Hoskinson to the Local Public Safety Retirement Boards for the Police Department 


and Fire Department  
1g. Invoices processed for the period from January 16, 2016 through January 31, 2016   
 
Councilmember Cook stated he would like to remove Item 1c from the Consent Agenda.  Vice Mayor McGoffin 
moved to approve the Consent Agenda without Item 1c.  Seconded by Mayor King.  Motion passed 7-0. 
 
Consent Agenda – Items Removed: 
 
1c. Minutes of the December 21, 2015 Worksession   
 
Councilmember Cook stated he was not present for this meeting and asked for the minutes to reflect his absence.  
Councilmember Moncada then moved to approve Item 1c with the correction noted by Councilmember Cook.  
Seconded by Vice Mayor McGoffin.  Motion passed 7-0.  
 


2. Discussion and possible action regarding Resolution 7-2016 of the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Benson, Arizona, approving the Safe Harbor Agreement for Topminnows and Pupfish in Arizona between 
the Arizona Game and Fish Department and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the City of Benson           
 
City Manager William Stephens turned the item over to Director of Golf Joe DelVecchio.  Mr. DelVecchio 
addressed stating Arizona Game and Fish is requesting help in saving these fish.  Mr. DelVecchio stated the U.S. 
Fish and Wildlife developed the agreement, but the program is administered by the State and noted other golf 
courses in Parker and Phoenix also have this agreement in place.  Mr. DelVecchio stated, if the lake at the golf 
course is suitable, it would be drained and filled before the fish would be introduced.  Mr. DelVecchio noted 
during this process the City could make needed improvements to the lake, such as installing some drains and 
repairing damaged grates and irrigation equipment.  Mr. DelVecchio then stated Game and Fish staff would come 
out 1 or 2 times each year and complete a study, adding the rest of the reporting would be done by volunteers and 
noted Game and Fish suggested volunteers, boy scouts attempting to achieve merit badges and students.  Mr. 
DelVecchio then stated he has limited information, but he could have the Game and Fish present if the Council 
wished to have them attend a Council meeting.    
 
Council discussed how long fish could be kept in the pond and if the agreement would be an issue should the City 
ever sell the golf course with Mr. DelVecchio stating the fish only reach 2 inches and if there ever was a problem 
with either the lake or with the City wanting to end the partnership or selling the golf course, Arizona Game and 
Fish would simply recover the fish.  Councilmember Moncada expressed concern over the 50-year term of the 
agreement and stated he didn’t want to lock future Councils into the contract.  Councilmember Konrad stated he 
would like a more detailed presentation from the Game and Fish to make sure the Council had all the information 
and knew what the responsibilities and ramifications of the agreement are.  Councilmember Konrad then moved 
to table the item until a presentation with more in-depth information could be made to the Council.  Seconded by 
Councilmember Moncada.   
 
Councilmember Cook stated he would like to see the fish brought back without being encumbered for 50 years 
and stated his concerns about the contract were that the agreement required a 30-day notification to the Game and 
Fish before any activity that would result in loss of the fish, the City being the cooperator and having to file 
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reports and the taking of these fish.  Councilmember Cook stated Mr. Diaz spoke about a passage that included 
capturing or taking the fish, adding a few years ago, there was a fire in the San Pedro River and a helicopter used 
water from the golf course pond to fight the fire, asking how would the City give Game and Fish a 30-day notice 
to do this.  Councilmember Cook then agreed the Council need Game and Fish to come to a Council meeting to 
address Council’s concerns.  
 
Mr. DelVecchio spoke about the voiced concerns stating the Council could determine the duration of the 
agreement to achieve the desired benefit, these types of agreements are in place with other golf courses and the 
reports are done by volunteers and Game and Fish representatives and then stated he could have Game and Fish 
give a presentation to the Council. 
 
Mayor King stated he would also like information on any fines that could be possibly imposed on the City, adding 
he would like some reassurance that there were no possible fines and stated he didn’t want to put the City in a 
position in the future where something happened and the City would be responsible.  Motion then passed 7-0.    
 


3. Review of City Finance with emphasis on December financial results and the City’s financial position at 
December 31, 2015    
 
Finance Director Dustin DeSpain addressed Council stating December’s numbers are based on October sales and 
the reason he is reviewing the December numbers in February is because the State collects and then distributes 
taxes and the reports on those distributions come in approximately 4 weeks later, adding from those reports, his 
Staff then has to separate the information used to create the presentation given to Council.  Mr. DeSpain reviewed 
the citywide financial highlights stating the City had to make a bond payment in December, leaving the City’s 
unrestricted cash at $1.3 million and the bond proceeds are still at $1.07 million.  Mr. DeSpain then stated 
revenues exceeded expenditures by $150,000 for the month of December and exceeded expenditures for the fiscal 
year by $237,000, adding last year at this time, the fund balance was actually down $127,000 noting this has been 
a big turnaround.  Mr. DeSpain then stated monthly revenues citywide were $900,000 for December and are $5.1 
million year-to-date, which is a $906,000 increase from last year at this time.  Mr. DeSpain then stated citywide 
monthly personnel costs for December were $364,000, which is an increase of $4,000 compared to December of 
last year and other citywide expenditures were $287,000 for the month which is a decrease of $35,000 compared 
to last December.  
 
Mr. DeSpain then reviewed the General Fund stating revenues for the month of December were $534,000 and 
were $2.6 million year-to-date which is an increase of $370,000 from last year.  General Fund personnel costs for 
December were $234,000 which is an increase of $4,000 from last December and other General Fund expenses 
for the month of December were $87,000 which is a decrease of $62,000 from December of last year.  Mr. 
DeSpain then stated General Fund revenues exceeded expenditures by $119,000 for the month of December and 
the General Fund year-to-date fund balance was $21,000, which was a $297,000 increase from last year at this 
time.  Councilmember Konrad asked how many employees were involved in the $4,000 increase with Mr. 
DeSpain stating the City hired 1 full-time employee and 2 part-time employees.  Councilmember Cook asked if 
any of the additional employees were for the library with Mr. DeSpain stating the City is currently using temp 
services until an employee is hired to return to the number of library Staff to the same amount it was before the 
former Library Director retired.    
 
Mr. DeSpain then reviewed Enterprise Funds stating the Gas Fund revenue for the month of December was 
$102,000, year-to-date revenue was $312,000 and the fund balance was $68,000; the Water Fund revenue for the 
month of December was $50,000, year-to-date revenue was $342,000 and the fund balance was only $48,000; the 
Wastewater Fund revenue for the month of December was $57,000, year-to-date revenue was $344,000 and the 
fund balance was $97,000.  Councilmember Moncada asked if this included any improvements at the treatment 
plant with Mr. DeSpain stating some prep work has been done, but the upcoming project of rebuilding the bar 
screen will be done in March, when the flow slows down.  Mr. DeSpain then continued stating the Sanitation 
Fund revenue for the month of December was $49,000 and year-to-date revenue was $296,000 and the fund 
balance was $53,000, noting the City hasn’t received the latest invoice from the County yet.  Mayor King asked 
what was happening with solid waste with Mr. DeSpain stating he was not aware of the results of the recent RFP 
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the County put out for the privatization of solid waste services, but he knew increases were coming.  Mayor King 
then stated the Council needed to look at solid waste rates soon, adding he knew of the 2 increases that would be 
coming, and that smaller cities will be hit hard, Mayor King then directed City Manager William Stephens to look 
into this and bring something to the Council.  Mayor King then stated he was also concerned about the water 
fund.  Mr. DeSpain stated he did have projections for possible increases that he needed to bring to Council. 
 
Mr. DeSpain then continued, stating the Golf Course Operations fund balance was -$4,000 for the month of 
December and was -$124,000 year-to-date, compared to the -$89,000 year-to-date last December and the Golf 
Course Food & Beverage fund balance was -$977.00 for the month of December and was -$17,000 year-to-date, 
compared to -$7,000 for the month of December, 2014 and -$25,000 year-to-date last December.  Mayor King 
asked how long the construction was expected with City Manager William Stephens stating ADOT extended the 
construction to September, 2016. 
 
Mr. DeSpain then reviewed sales tax stating the City’s retail sales tax increased almost $100,000 from last 
December, adding the 1% sales tax increase helped significantly.  Mr. DeSpain then stated he looks forward to 
January’s report, adding the collections should stay higher through March before the City sees a reduction.   
 
Vice Mayor McGoffin stated she had heard rumors about furloughs with Mr. DeSpain stating furloughs are not 
being considered.  Mr. Stephens stated he is not considering furloughs or layoffs, noting if he were to consider 
those, he would bring the matter to Council, adding this is another unsubstantiated rumor.  Mayor King stated he 
would have been told if furloughs were being considered, adding there is nothing we know of that would cause 
furloughs to be considered and he wanted it to be clear they weren’t being considered.  Mr. DeSpain agreed, 
stating the 1% sales tax increase has outperformed what he thought it would do.     
  
Mr. DeSpain then continued, stating Bed Tax is holding at about $5,000 a month, adding the City won’t see a 
peak until March and April due to the delay in collection and reporting.  Mr. DeSpain then stated Construction 
Sales Tax is approximately $12,000, up from about $5,000, noting this is due to the ADOT bridge project at the 
San Pedro River and should stabilize at $12,000 a month until that project is completed.   
 
Mr. DeSpain then stated State sales tax is at $39,000, adding it’s not a huge increase, although it is up from last 
year and stated the total City Sales tax did well in December.  Mayor King thanked Mr. DeSpain for the 
information and the job he and his department are doing. 
 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  No comments from Council. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  


 
Vice Mayor McGoffin moved to adjourn at 8:30 p.m.  Seconded by Councilmember Konrad.  Motion passed 7-0. 
 
 
 
 


                  
____________________________ 


                 Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor 
  ATTEST: 
   


____________________________   
  Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 
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THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF BENSON, ARIZONA 


HELD FEBRUARY 22, 2016 AT 7:00 P.M. 
AT CITY HALL, 120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA         


 
CALL TO ORDER:    
    


Mayor King called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mayor King then 
introduced Steve Medieros of the New Life Family Worship Center who offered the invocation.   


 
ROLL CALL:   
 


Present were: Mayor Toney D. King, Sr., Vice Mayor Lori McGoffin, Councilmembers Pat Boyle, Jeff 
Cook, Joe Konrad, David Lambert and Chris Moncada.    
 


EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  None   
  
PROCLAMATION:   
 
 Mayor King read a proclamation of the Mayor and Council declaring 2016 as “The Year of Promoting 


211.” 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  None 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   


 
Anna Lands, Cascabel Road, Benson read a letter from Elna Odard, Cascabel Road, Benson commenting 
on Debbie Kilpatrick’s note that was sent out from the San Pedro Chamber of Commerce.  The letter read 
that the Army Corps of Engineers has not been studying the impacts of the Vigneto project despite requests 
to do so, and are sticking to their previous study.  The letter disagreed with Ms. Kilpatrick’s statement that 
Arizona is a tourism state and development would fit right in with what is already established and what this 
state is known for because she doubts tourists would want a home in the development and because very 
little of what Ms. Kilpatrick listed as tourism draws deserves more than visiting once or twice.  The letter 
said birding and hiking is one of the most fulfilling things in Ms. Odard’s mind, but the problem is this size 
of a development will scare away birds and wildlife, which will destroy the tourism effort.  The letter read 
that some species have been recently filmed in nearby mountains and they are not likely to spend time in a 
development that is likely to be bigger than Sierra Vista.  The letter then asked why the development is 
wanted and said people are told it will benefit them economically, but Ms. Odard assumes purchases for 
construction will not be purchased in Benson and that specialized help will be brought in rather than people 
here being trained, noting for a short time, there may be increased business, but once the development is 
done, people will shop in the new stores and won’t be shopping at older stores.  Ms. Lands then read from a 
letter from Colonel Kirk Gibbs, U.S. Army Commander and District Engineer, about the scope of the Corps 
of Engineers’ regulatory authority over development projects being limited to provisions of Section 404, 
the Clean Water Act 33USC1344, which gives them the authority to regulate the discharge of dredge or fill 
materials into waters of the U.S.  The letter read that the decisions on Section 404 permit applications 
qualify as federal actions which must also comply with other federal statutes such as the ESA, the 
Endangered Species Act, which relies on survey protocols outlined by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.  
The letter went on to explain that the Corps then determines the presence or absence of federally listed 
species or designated critical habitat within the action area, which is defined as all areas to be affected 
directly or indirectly by the federal action.  If a listed species or designated critical habitat is present within 
the action area and the Corps determines the federal action may affect such listed species or critical habitat, 
the Corps will consult under Section 7 of the ESA, but if no listed species or critical habitat occurs within 
the action area and the Corps determines the federal action would have no effect to listed species or critical 
habitat, consultation pursuant to Section 7 of the ESA is not required.  For effects to listed species outside 
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the core action area, the developer must first request authorization directly from Fish and Wildlife Service 
pursuant to Section 10 of ESA.   
 
Stephen Insalaco, Pinto Place, J6 Ranch, stated he understands the development project proposes an Italian 
theme and cultural overtone with landscaping, community amenities and consumption of local water 
resources to fit this design.  Mr. Insalaco stated he likes the theme, however poor marketing strategies is a 
concern second only to limited water resources and he would encourage the Council to consider a 
southwestern theme that uses less water and is more representative of the local heritage, adding he thinks it 
would be equally prudent if the builder would develop greater sensitivity to the western heritage and 
limited ground water resources.  Mr. Insalaco then stated the City was once told if they built an airport in 
Benson, it would become the crown jewel of general aviation in the Southwest, but the airport has 
witnessed very little economic growth and development as a municipal business unit for its operational 
duration.  Mr. Insalaco then stated the City acquired the golf course for pennies on the dollar, yet that 
business unit has shown continued operating losses, adding just because the City flounders into a great idea 
doesn’t mean it’s going to work.  Mr. Insalaco then stated great ideas still require, time, energy and effort to 
make them work and asked where the efforts were to bring additional Fixed Based Operator providers and 
hangar developers to the airport and what the airport technical advisor was doing to bring new businesses to 
the airport.  Mr. Insalaco then spoke about the importance of advertising and promoting the golf course and 
the lack of advertising being done, noting the only advertising he has seen for the City Grille is a paper 
posting at the golf course listing the hours of operation.  Mr. Insalaco then stated if the housing 
development is going to be done, his suggestion is to get aggressive about advertising and marketing it, 
with signs and brochures.  Mr. Insalaco then asked the Council what their strategy was to capture Benson’s 
market share, adding they need to find ways to get the shoppers to buy in Benson instead of Tucson and 
Sierra Vista where they have lower fuel prices, lower municipal sales tax and far better selection and 
choices where to shop.  Mr. Insalaco then asked the Council to think about marketing.  
 
Tricia Gerrodette, Eagle Ridge Drive, Sierra Vista, stated there are 2 legislative bills that are getting some 
attention: SB 1268 and SB1400, adding she was not sure if Council is aware of those bills or of the articles 
and editorials that have been written about them.  Ms. Gerrodette then stated she would like to explain why 
she is angry about SB1268, adding Senator Griffin has proposed these bills and it is fairly clearly SB1268 
is an attempt to end the lawsuit over the Tribute development in Sierra Vista.  Ms. Gerrodette stated 
Senator Griffin has failed to grasp that this bill, if passed, will not have any impact on that lawsuit and will 
not remove the federal reserve water rights, which is the basis of the lawsuit.  Ms. Gerrodette then stated 
the bill would allow a city to declare that a developer would not have to have adequate water in order to 
build a subdivision and the only person that hurts is the homebuyer.  Ms. Gerrodette then stated people 
were sold homes and lots with inadequate water supply for a number of years in Arizona before the state 
took some steps to protect homebuyers, adding there is less protection in rural areas than in metropolitan 
areas, but there is some.  Ms. Gerrodette then stated this bill would remove the requirement to have the 
definition of an adequate water supply before proceeding with the development.  Ms. Gerrodette then stated 
she thinks the Mayor of Sierra Vista spoke at the hearing in Phoenix about 2 weeks ago and made what she 
feels is some questionable statements and then reached out to Mayors in Cochise County and got them to 
sign on to a letter in support of SB1268.  Ms. Gerrodette stated Mayor King put his signature on the letter, 
adding that means Mayor King is in support of the bill and not the City of Benson, but a lot of people think 
if the Mayor’s name is there, it implies the entire City and the Council is in support of the bill.  Ms. 
Gerrodette then stated the Council had not discussed the issue or taken a position on the issue.  Ms. 
Gerrodette then stated she was bringing the issue to the Council’s attention, adding she feels it was poorly 
done on the part of Sierra Vista and she wants the Council to be aware that a letter in support of this bill 
exists with the Mayor’s signature along with the Mayors of Tombstone, Douglas and a number of other 
cities.  Ms. Gerrodette then stated the bill is complicated but is moving quickly through the legislature and 
will remain an issue until it is either signed by the Governor or vetoed.   
 
Christopher Early, Pomerene, asked if the City of Benson was on-track or not, adding that was determined 
by each resident’s and prospector’s opinion.  Mr. Early stated he felt the City is on-track in the way that it 
is being less nitpicky on things that have been in such a manner for over 30 years, like the radio station in 
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Benson.  Mr. Early stated the City of Benson can stay focused or they can choose not to stay focused and 
asked the Council to please stay focused on what’s most important.   
 
David Thompson, La Cuesta Drive, Benson stated he was speaking to each individual Councilmember and 
to Staff because it was personal, adding he is a citizen and resident of Benson; he earns his livelihood, 
spends his tax money, bought a home, buys groceries, raises his family and invests in Benson.  Mr. 
Thompson stated Benson is important to him and it should be important to the Council, adding the Council 
made a commitment to protect Benson and its citizens.  Mr. Thompson then stated there will be an election 
in November, which will affect a majority of Council.  Mr. Thompson then asked the Council to keep in 
mind that they can listen to everything said at the call to the public and they can read whatever they are 
given, but when it comes from people in Sierra Vista, Tucson, San Francisco, San Diego or other places, 
the Council needs to remember that unless those people are living in Benson, raising families and working 
in Benson under the City’s economic burdens, they have very little impact on the Council.  Mr. Thompson 
then stated the citizens who live in Benson have tremendous impact on the Council; they are the people 
who are going to reelect Councilmembers and the Council needs to be responsible to them, adding the 
Council needs to consider their economic needs, their living conditions, their tax conditions and so on.  Mr. 
Thompson then asked the Council to do a good job for the City of Benson.   
 
Alex Binford-Walsh, Cascabel Road, Benson, stated he totally agreed with the previous speaker’s point of 
view, adding he does live in Cascabel, but the residents there feel like Benson is their town as well.  Mr. 
Binford-Walsh stated they come to Benson to do their shopping and drive through Benson every time they 
go somewhere.  Mr. Binford-Walsh then stated he does care about what happens to Benson and then spoke 
on some economic points being made about the development project.  Mr. Binford-Walsh stated he feels 
like the basis of this whole discussion is that the more GDP Benson has, the better off it is, fading he feels 
that is the model the whole country is following, but he doesn’t know how much it would improve the 
standard of living for the people who currently live in Benson.  Mr. Binford-Walsh stated there may be a lot 
of shopping in the Benson stores at the beginning and it may put more money into the system, but over time 
there will be more competition.  Mr. Binford-Walsh stated more people will move to Benson and he feels 
in the end, the City would be left with more service jobs, more government and more human health 
services such as a fire department.  Mr. Binford-Walsh stated the development would affect the entire river 
valley and he thinks it is the most important and fragile wildlife corridor in the entire south, adding it is 
pretty much the only wildlife corridor between the mountain ranges in the U.S. and Mexico.  Mr. Binford-
Walsh stated there is so much fragility in the system and he feels it is important to let it thrive and continue.  
Mr. Binford-Walsh then stated he thinks there are other ways to help Benson’s economic situation, adding 
Benson is the gateway to the San Pedro Valley and stated trails could be installed along the river, walnut 
trees could be planted along 4th Street and more traffic on Interstate 10 could be encouraged to stop to 
enjoy the river, which is the last free-flowing river in the Southwest.  
 


CITY MANAGER REPORT: 
 
City Manager William Stephens addressed Council, giving the dates of upcoming meetings and events. 
 
Wednesday, March 2, 2016   – Benson Economic Development Committee, 6:00 p.m., City Hall 
Tuesday, March 8, 2016    – Library Advisory Board, 4:00 p.m., City Library 
Tuesday, March 8, 2016    – Planning & Zoning Commission Public Hearing, 7:00 p.m., City 
Hall 
Monday, March 14, 2016   – City Council Meeting, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 
Wednesday, March 16, 2016  – Community Watershed Alliance, 6:00 p.m., City Hall 
Saturday, March 19, 2016   – Historic Preservation Commission, 9:00 a.m., City Hall 
Monday, March 28, 2016   – City Council Meeting, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 
 
Mr. Stephens then stated for more events in Benson, the public could visit the City’s website:  
www.cityofbenson.com under “What to do Today.”      
 



http://www.cityofbenson.com/
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NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. Discussion and possible action on the Consent Agenda    


 
1a. Minutes of the January 11, 2016 Worksession 
1b. Minutes of the January 11, 2016 Regular Meeting 
1c. Minutes of the January 25, 2016 Regular Meeting 
1d. Invoices processed for the period from February 1, 2016 through February 16, 2016 
 
Vice Mayor McGoffin moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Seconded by Councilmember Konrad.  
Motion passed 7-0. 
 


2. Discussion and possible action regarding Resolution 8-2016 of the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Benson, Arizona, appointing ______________________ as the City’s representative to Coronado 
Resource Conservation and Development Area, Inc.          
 
City Manager William Stephens stated Resolution 26-2012 designated Councilmember Chris Moncada to 
serve as the representative to Coronado Resource Conservation and Development Area, Inc. (Coronado 
RC&D) with Vice Mayor Sacco serving as the alternate.  Mr. Stephens then stated at the time of the change 
in Council, the City Clerk communicated with the Coronado RC&D and was informed that the Coronado 
RC&D may not remain in existence.  Mr. Stephens then stated after a recent grant award to the Coronado 
RC&D, the City was notified that they will be operating for another 3 years; therefore, the City needs to 
update the records to appoint a Coronado RC&D representative and alternate representative.   
 
Mayor King asked for any volunteers.  Councilmember Moncada stated the Coronado RC&D meets once 
or twice a year in Willcox usually during a weekday morning at 10:00 a.m. to discuss grants, projects 
relating to species and plants and where to allocate grant funding.  Mayor King then volunteered to be the 
representative.  Vice Mayor McGoffin stated she would like to participate but was unable due to work.  
Councilmember Lambert then volunteered to serve as the alternate representative.  Vice Mayor McGoffin 
moved to approve Resolution 8-2016 with Mayor King as the representative and Councilmember Lambert 
as the alternate representative to the Coronado RC&D.  Seconded by Councilmember Moncada.  Motion 
passed 7-0.    
 


3. Discussion and possible action regarding Resolution 9-2016 of the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Benson, Arizona, approving a Special Event Liquor License for Helping Hands @ Cochise Terrace 
for March 5, 2016 at Cochise Terrace, 1030 S. Barrel Cactus Ridge, Benson, Arizona    
 
City Clerk Vicki Vivian stated the organization, Helping Hands @ Cochise Terrace has applied for a 
Special Event Liquor License which allows a charitable, civic, fraternal, political or religious organization 
to sell and serve spirituous liquor for consumption only on the premises where the spirituous liquor is sold, 
and only for the period authorized on the license.  Ms. Vivian then stated as per ARS §4-203.02, the 
application is sent to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses & Control, where the director may 
‘subject to the approval of…the governing body of a city or town...’ issue the license on a temporary basis.  
Ms. Vivian then stated it is further stipulated that qualifying organizations will be granted a special event 
liquor license for no more than ten (10) days in a calendar year and a special event may be held for more 
than one (1) day, but it must be held on consecutive days and at the same location, or additional licenses 
will be required.  Ms. Vivian then stated if this item is approved, it would be their first special event held in 
2016.  Ms. Vivian then stated the Helping Hands @ Cochise Terrace is requesting the permit for a 
fundraiser to be held at Cochise Terrace on Saturday, March 5, 2016 from 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. 
 
Mayor King stated this organization has held events like this in the past and the Council should be familiar 
with their request.  Vice Mayor McGoffin asked what the organization did with Ms. Vivian stating they 
choose a local in-need program and donate 100% of the proceeds to that, adding this year, the proceeds will 
be donated to the Senior Meals program.  
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Mayor King then moved to approve Resolution 9-2016.  Seconded by Councilmember Lambert.  Motion 
passed 7-0. 
 


4. Discussion and possible action regarding a Fireworks display contract between Fireworks 
Productions of Arizona, Ltd. and the City of Benson   
 
City Manager William Stephens stated this item is a 3-year renewable contract with Fireworks Productions 
of Arizona (FPA), Ltd. for the amount of $10,000.00 to display fireworks during the 4th of July 
Celebration, adding the contract requires a 50% deposit by May 15, 2016.  Mr. Stephens stated as per the 
procurement code, Staff sent a request to four different companies requesting a bid for our 2016 show, 
adding Zambelli Fireworks and Pyritz Pyrotechnics Group L.L.C. stated they were unable to provide a bid 
and Fireworks Productions of Arizona (FPA) and Lantis Fireworks and Lasers submitted bids.  Mr. 
Stephens stated Staff is recommending a renewable contract with Arizona Fireworks Productions for the 
following reasons:  Each year Staff requests a bid on Fireworks from four different companies and with the 
exception of this year, FPA is the only company that submits a bid; FPA carries a $10 million dollar 
insurance policy, while Lantis carries a $2 million dollar insurance policy; FPA’s renewal terms provide 
the City with an opt-out clause should the City decide FPA’s pricing is no longer in the best interest of the 
City, while Lantis makes provisions for a 2% – 3% increase for various elements of the agreement.  Mr. 
Stephens stated Recreation Coordinator Laura Parkin was present should Council have any questions.   
 
Councilmember Konrad asked if this was the same company the City has used in the past with Ms. Parkin 
confirming they were.  Councilmember Lambert then clarified that the 50% deposit was an annual deposit 
of $5,000 on the $10,000 yearly price with Ms. Parkin confirming this.  Ms. Parkin then stated even though 
the contract was renewable, it would be looked at each year and she would still request bids, but it wouldn’t 
have to come before the Council.  Vice Mayor McGoffin asked if the City normally spent about $10,000 
each year with Ms. Parkin stating the original contract is for $10,000; then she gets an addendum for 
additional fireworks in the amount of donations she receives, adding last year, the donations were $4,000 or 
$5,000, bringing the total amount of fireworks up to $14,000 or $15,000.   
 
Councilmember Cook asked how the number of fireworks on the proposed contract compared to previous 
contracts with Ms. Parkin stating the amount of fireworks is basically the same as last year, adding based 
on the addendum, fireworks are added to the list of firework displays. 
 
Councilmember Konrad stated there was an addition error in the number of fireworks displays and 
Councilmember Lambert noted the reference to a wrong paragraph related to inclement weather, stating 
page 4, item 13 of the contract should reference paragraph 9 instead of paragraph 8.  Councilmember 
Lambert then moved to approve the contract between Fireworks Production of Arizona, Ltd. and the City 
of Benson with the changes noted.  Seconded by Councilmember Moncada. Motion passed 7-0. 
 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  No comments from Council. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  


 
Vice Mayor McGoffin moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:43 p.m.  Seconded by Councilmember Moncada.  
Motion passed 7-0. 
 


                  
____________________________ 


                 Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor 
  ATTEST: 
   


____________________________   
  Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 







                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
Attached is a list of large and/or unusual invoices processed by the Finance Department during the period from 
February 17, 2016 through March 4, 2016.  The total of the invoices is $336,722.33.       
 


          


Arizona Public Safety Retirement Bi-weekly retirement contribution 11,079.60                                     
Arizona State Retirement Bi-weekly retirement contribution 20,730.54                                     
Bowman Consulting Group January Planning Services 4,532.50                                       
Benson Volunteer Fire Monthly Contribution 6,600.00                                       
Blue Cross Blue Shield Monthly Health Insurance Premium Pa 41,153.06                                     
Cochise County Treasurer Monthly Transfer Expense 16,021.59                                     
Executech Software Maintenance 5,621.37                                       
Mesch, Clark & Rothschild Attorney Fees 32,718.45                                     
National Bank of Arizona Monthly Credit Card Invoice 4,670.46                                       
Shell Energy Monthly Natural Gas Purchase 49,978.15                                     
SSVEC Monthly City Electric Bill 31,967.85                                     
TCF Equipment Golf Cart Financing 9,549.80                                       
Watson Chevrolet #7005 Transit Bus Repairs 4,387.60                                       
TOTAL LARGE INVOICES 239,010.97                                   
Invoices listed above as a percentage of all invoices processed 71%  


 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approval of invoices processed for the period from February 17, 2016 through March 4, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1d 
                                               
From: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director                    
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Invoices processed for the period from February 17, 2016 through March 4, 2016        
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CITY OF BENSON Check Register - Council Packets Page:     1


Check Issue Dates: 2/17/2016 - 3/4/2016 Mar 08, 2016  08:19AM


Report Criteria:


Report type:  Summary


Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"


GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


03/16 03/04/2016 498 6765 SOUTHERN WINE & SPIRITS OF ARIZONA 595.40 M


03/16 03/04/2016 499 1111 ALLIANCE BEVERAGE DISTRIBUTING CO LLC 778.68 M


03/16 03/04/2016 500 6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIBUTING 2,434.25 M


03/16 03/04/2016 5002 3728 FINTECH.NET 20.00 M


03/16 03/04/2016 5003 7856 XPRESS BILL PAY 647.80 M


03/16 03/01/2016 5052 3078 SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA 49,978.15 M


02/16 02/19/2016 7049 4118 GREYHOUND 46.80 M


02/16 02/26/2016 7050 4118 GREYHOUND 457.50 M


03/16 03/04/2016 7051 4118 GREYHOUND 440.74 M


02/16 02/26/2016 7198 5496 NATIONWIDE  RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS 150.00 M


02/16 02/26/2016 7199 5495 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION 705.00 M


02/16 02/26/2016 7200 1490 AZ STATE RETIREMENT    ACC REC 20,730.54 M


03/16 03/01/2016 8004 1130 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE ASSURANCE 1,801.13 M


03/16 03/04/2016 42494 11541 JESSICA L DUPONT 43.30- V


02/16 02/19/2016 46291 1027 A&M PERSONNEL SERVICES LTD 42.20


02/16 02/19/2016 46292 1157 AMERICAN INSPECTION & TEST INC 1,223.00


02/16 02/19/2016 46293 1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 165.47


02/16 02/19/2016 46294 1334 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 531.50


02/16 02/19/2016 46295 1964 BENSON BLOSSOM SHOP 59.32


02/16 02/19/2016 46296 1975 BENSON SHOP WITH A COP INC 130.00


02/16 02/19/2016 46297 2289 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY 2,354.39


02/16 02/19/2016 46298 2298 BOWMAN CONSULTING GROUP LTD 4,532.50


02/16 02/19/2016 46299 2304 BROWN & ASSOCIATES 1,780.00


02/16 02/19/2016 46300 2599 CENTURYLINK 1,772.39


02/16 02/19/2016 46301 2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 2,517.53


02/16 02/19/2016 46302 2784 CNG 2,360.00


02/16 02/19/2016 46303 2870 COCHISE COUNTY TREASURER 16,021.59


02/16 02/19/2016 46304 3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 1,058.83


02/16 02/19/2016 46305 3129 CREATIVE COMMUNICATIONS 287.93


02/16 02/19/2016 46306 3678 E-Z-GO 466.98


02/16 02/19/2016 46307 3704 FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 331.55


02/16 02/19/2016 46308 3983 GEORGE'S AUTOMOTIVE 297.74


02/16 02/19/2016 46309 4126 GUARDIAN EMS 2,465.71


02/16 02/19/2016 46310 4333 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 3,237.51


02/16 02/19/2016 46311 4232 HEALTHCARE INNOVATIONS INC 1,696.87


02/16 02/19/2016 46312 4268 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO 3,697.02


02/16 02/19/2016 46313 4293 HORIZON IRRIGATION 1,197.81


02/16 02/19/2016 46314 11412 LAURIE BOTTS 33.18


02/16 02/19/2016 46315 5121 MARLIN BUSINESS BANK 81.57


02/16 02/19/2016 46316 5219 MED-TECH RESOURCE INC 1,180.00


02/16 02/19/2016 46317 5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 775.81


02/16 02/19/2016 46318 3151 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS 135.50


02/16 02/19/2016 46319 5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 200.52


02/16 02/19/2016 46320 5940 PIONEER TITLE AGENCY INC 75.00


02/16 02/19/2016 46321 5978 POSTAL PROS INC 1,140.54


02/16 02/19/2016 46322 6038 PROGRESSIVE ROOFING 509.88


02/16 02/19/2016 46323 6480 SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 720.12


02/16 02/19/2016 46324 6802 STAMBACK SEPTIC SERVICE 425.00


02/16 02/19/2016 46325 6809 STANDARD RESTAURANT EQUIPMENT CO 310.52


02/16 02/19/2016 46326 6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY ELEC 31,967.85


02/16 02/19/2016 46327 7004 TCF EQUIPMENT FINANCE INC 9,549.80


02/16 02/19/2016 46328 7536 USA BLUEBOOK 674.29


02/16 02/19/2016 46329 7696 WATSON CHEVROLET 4,387.60


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check
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Check Issue Dates: 2/17/2016 - 3/4/2016 Mar 08, 2016  08:19AM


GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


02/16 02/26/2016 46330 1027 A&M PERSONNEL SERVICES LTD 506.40


02/16 02/26/2016 46331 1430 AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT 11,079.60


02/16 02/26/2016 46332 2075 BENSON NAPA 1,937.62


02/16 02/26/2016 46333 7448 BJ DRILLING COMPANY, INC. 1,301.64


02/16 02/26/2016 46334 2599 CENTURYLINK 47.32


02/16 02/26/2016 46335 3125 COURTNEY OR TIMOTHY SCHMIDTCHEN 32.56


02/16 02/26/2016 46336 11761 DREW D HANNA 3.12


02/16 02/26/2016 46337 3466 DUSTIN DESPAIN 244.15


02/16 02/26/2016 46338 11760 FILIPE P PALMA 21.20


02/16 02/26/2016 46339 5618 L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 891.06


02/16 02/26/2016 46340 4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICES 15.00


02/16 02/26/2016 46341 5157 MARYLAND CHILD SUPPORT ACCOUNT 69.81


02/16 02/26/2016 46342 5212 MCI COMM SERVICE 32.81


02/16 02/26/2016 46343 5268 MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD PC 32,718.45


02/16 02/26/2016 46344 5661 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC 1,806.43


02/16 02/26/2016 46345 5928 PIONEER LANDSCAPING MATERIALS, INC 2,159.37


02/16 02/26/2016 46346 6252 RIKERTEK 919.95


02/16 02/26/2016 46347 6570 SHANNON'S AUTO PARTS 346.98


02/16 02/26/2016 46348 6700 SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT 129.11


02/16 02/26/2016 46349 2791 SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARINGHOUSE 450.86


02/16 02/26/2016 46350 7291 TREJO REFRIGERATION AND 723.92


02/16 02/26/2016 46351 7306 TRI-TECH FORENSICS 107.20


02/16 02/26/2016 46352 7534 UPSTART 211.54


02/16 02/29/2016 46353 1023 A-1 PORT-A-POTS 164.00


02/16 02/29/2016 46354 1095 AIRGAS USA, LLC 199.82


02/16 02/29/2016 46355 3100 CORONADO RC&D 150.00


02/16 02/29/2016 46356 3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 534.91


02/16 02/29/2016 46357 3421 DIRECTV 191.98


02/16 02/29/2016 46358 4094 H & E EQUIPMENT SERVICES 3,488.94


02/16 02/29/2016 46359 4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICES 268.00


02/16 02/29/2016 46360 5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 1,099.36


02/16 02/29/2016 46361 5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 504.56


02/16 02/29/2016 46362 6409 SALEM 100.00


02/16 02/29/2016 46363 7279 TRANSWORLD NETWORK CORP 218.92


02/16 02/29/2016 46364 7697 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 650.69


03/16 03/01/2016 46365 8913 ALBERT ESTAVILLO 200.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46366 5551 ANICLETO D MALDONADO 200.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46367 1334 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 585.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46368 2071 BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LLC 734.98


03/16 03/01/2016 46369 2160 BENSON VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPT INC 6,600.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46370 2250 BLUE CROSS-BLUE SHIELD 41,153.06


03/16 03/01/2016 46371 2592 CENTRAL ALARM INC 95.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46372 2970 COLONIAL LIFE ASSURANCE 71.05


03/16 03/01/2016 46373 3050 COMMUNITY FOOD PANTRY OF 130.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46374 3240 DARRELL FOSTER 200.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46375 3677 EXECUTECH 5,621.37


03/16 03/01/2016 46376 3975 GEOFFREY MCGOFFIN 200.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46377 8909 HAMILTON, RICHARD 200.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46378 4333 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 36.22


03/16 03/01/2016 46379 4293 HORIZON IRRIGATION 2,252.24


03/16 03/01/2016 46380 4332 HUMANA 1,783.18


03/16 03/01/2016 46381 7895 JAMES HANSEN JR. 200.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46382 4505 JERRY FINK 200.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46383 4573 JOE RODRIGUEZ 200.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46384 8914 JOE ROTHERMICH 200.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46385 4840 LARRY NAPIER 200.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46386 5191 MAX JONES 200.00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check
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Check Issue Dates: 2/17/2016 - 3/4/2016 Mar 08, 2016  08:19AM


GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


03/16 03/01/2016 46387 5205 MCCARTER & ENGLISH, LLP 218.64


03/16 03/01/2016 46388 6010 PRINCIPAL LIFE 887.17


03/16 03/01/2016 46389 6144 RAY JOHNSON II 200.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46390 6250 RICK ENGINEERING COMPANY 1,302.60


03/16 03/01/2016 46391 6777 SOUTHWESTERN AVIATION LLC 1,000.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46392 8907 THELANDER, JAMES 200.00


03/16 03/01/2016 46393 7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 2,404.14


03/16 03/01/2016 46394 7652 VISION SERVICE PLAN 351.51


03/16 03/01/2016 46395 7790 WILLIAM BRANDT 200.00


03/16 03/04/2016 46396 1027 A&M PERSONNEL SERVICES LTD 506.40


03/16 03/04/2016 46397 1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 368.28


03/16 03/04/2016 46398 1231 ANGELO J FRATTAROLE 307.33


03/16 03/04/2016 46399 1308 ARIZONA CORRECTIONAL INDUSTRIE 334.02


03/16 03/04/2016 46400 1339 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF LIQUOR 100.00


03/16 03/04/2016 46401 1779 AZ DEPT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 44.00


03/16 03/04/2016 46402 1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 1,160.49


03/16 03/04/2016 46403 11629 BENSON FIREMATES 150.00


03/16 03/04/2016 46404 2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 2,212.79


03/16 03/04/2016 46405 2863 COCHISE COLLEGE 843.00


03/16 03/04/2016 46406 3074 COPPER STATE BOLT & NUT CO. 115.88


03/16 03/04/2016 46407 3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 236.19


03/16 03/04/2016 46408 3129 CREATIVE COMMUNICATIONS 486.45


03/16 03/04/2016 46409 11762 DAVE F FLETCHER 29.59


03/16 03/04/2016 46410 3410 DIGGINS & SONS POWER SWEEPING 1,900.00


03/16 03/04/2016 46411 3704 FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 200.55


03/16 03/04/2016 46412 3698 FWC SUPPLY 154.04


03/16 03/04/2016 46413 4333 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 970.18


03/16 03/04/2016 46414 4785 KIM LONDON SALES 250.00


03/16 03/04/2016 46415 4872 LAURA PARKIN 13.26


03/16 03/04/2016 46416 4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICES 189.00


03/16 03/04/2016 46417 5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 3,275.33


03/16 03/04/2016 46418 11764 MICHAEL S PATTIE 41.79


03/16 03/04/2016 46419 5295 MICROMARKETING, LLC 70.87


03/16 03/04/2016 46420 5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 4,670.46


03/16 03/04/2016 46421 5663 OFFICE SMART INC 329.30


03/16 03/04/2016 46422 5860 PETTY CASH 47.23


03/16 03/04/2016 46423 7731 PURCELL WESTERN STATES TIRE 236.05


03/16 03/04/2016 46424 6075 PURCHASE POWER 500.00


03/16 03/04/2016 46425 6180 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 160.95


03/16 03/04/2016 46426 11763 SHANNON L KELLY 91.43


03/16 03/04/2016 46427 6802 STAMBACK SEPTIC SERVICE 208.24


03/16 03/04/2016 46428 6812 STAN'S FENCE CO, INC. 388.33


03/16 03/04/2016 46429 7040 TEXAS CANYON ROCK & SAND, INC. 223.74


03/16 03/04/2016 46430 11765 THOMAS F RUDD JR 135.90


03/16 03/04/2016 46431 7712 THOMSON REUTERS - WEST 534.44


03/16 03/04/2016 46432 7402 US FOODS 2,947.24


03/16 03/04/2016 46433 5211 VERIZON BUSINESS 177.17


03/16 03/04/2016 46434 7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 1,577.96


          Grand Totals:  336,679.03


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check
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Report dates: 2/17/2016-3/4/2016 Mar 08, 2016  08:22AM


Report Criteria:


Detail report.


Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.


Only paid invoices included.


Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid Voided


Invoice Amount


10-22250


1490 AZ STATE RETIREMENT    ACC  021916 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION 02/19/2016 20,730.54 20,730.54 02/26/2016


5496 NATIONWIDE  RETIREMENT SO 021916 DEFERRED COMPENSATION -  02/26/2016 150.00 150.00 02/26/2016


5495 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SO 021916A DEFERRED COMPENSATION 02/26/2016 705.00 705.00 02/26/2016


          Total 10-22250: 21,585.54 21,585.54


10-22255


1430 AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREME 021916 P.D. RETIREMENT 02/26/2016 10,535.40 10,535.40 02/26/2016


1430 AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREME 021916A F.D. RETIREMENT 02/26/2016 544.20 544.20 02/26/2016


          Total 10-22255: 11,079.60 11,079.60


10-22265


5157 MARYLAND CHILD SUPPORT A L-021916 #340002729 02/26/2016 69.81 69.81 02/26/2016


2791 SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN A-021916 #0002160133-00 02/26/2016 52.93 52.93 02/26/2016


2791 SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN B-021916 0001716217-00 02/26/2016 140.77 140.77 02/26/2016


2791 SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN K-021916 #001347635700 02/26/2016 38.07 38.07 02/26/2016


2791 SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN K-021916A #001347663400 02/26/2016 38.07 38.07 02/26/2016


2791 SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN L-021916 #000508942900 02/26/2016 181.02 181.02 02/26/2016


          Total 10-22265: 520.67 520.67


10-22280


2250 BLUE CROSS-BLUE SHIELD 021616 HEALTH INSURANCE - AAC 02/16/2016 4,782.31 4,782.31 03/01/2016


2250 BLUE CROSS-BLUE SHIELD 021616A HEALTH INSURANCE - AAA 02/16/2016 36,370.75 36,370.75 03/01/2016


          Total 10-22280: 41,153.06 41,153.06


10-22281


1130 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE ASSU 972429 EMPLOYEE INSURANCE 02/11/2016 1,801.13 1,801.13 03/01/2016


          Total 10-22281: 1,801.13 1,801.13


10-22282


2970 COLONIAL LIFE ASSURANCE 8248601-0305 EMPLOYEE INSURANCE - #E82 02/26/2016 71.05 71.05 03/01/2016


          Total 10-22282: 71.05 71.05


10-22285


4332 HUMANA 415781795 DENTAL INSURANCE 02/13/2016 1,783.18 1,783.18 03/01/2016


          Total 10-22285: 1,783.18 1,783.18


10-22287


7652 VISION SERVICE PLAN 021916 VISION INSURANCE 02/19/2016 351.51 351.51 03/01/2016


          Total 10-22287: 351.51 351.51


10-22290


6010 PRINCIPAL LIFE 021616 LIFE INSURANCE 02/16/2016 887.17 887.17 03/01/2016
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Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid Voided


Invoice Amount


          Total 10-22290: 887.17 887.17


10-41-310


1964 BENSON BLOSSOM SHOP 100001121 SYMPATHY PLANT 02/16/2016 59.32 59.32 02/19/2016


3151 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENT 158474121 PER EMPLOYMENT DRUG TES 01/27/2016 56.00 56.00 02/19/2016


          Total 10-41-310: 115.32 115.32


10-41-330


3677 EXECUTECH 28552 IT MAINTENANCE 02/01/2016 4,550.00 4,550.00 03/01/2016


3677 EXECUTECH 28552 IT MAINTENANCE 02/01/2016 1,071.37 1,071.37 03/01/2016


6252 RIKERTEK 2008 COMPUTER REPAIRS - LIBRAR 02/19/2016 919.95 919.95 02/26/2016


          Total 10-41-330: 6,541.32 6,541.32


10-41-340


3466 DUSTIN DESPAIN 021916 LEAGUE OF CITIES BUDGET T 02/19/2016 244.15 244.15 02/26/2016


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 BUDGET MEETING 02/18/2016 100.00 100.00 03/04/2016


          Total 10-41-340: 344.15 344.15


10-41-410


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 012216 UTILITIES 01/22/2016 21.92 21.92 02/19/2016


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 020516 UTILITIES 02/05/2016 508.46 508.46 02/19/2016


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 021916 UTILITIES 02/19/2016 22.25 22.25 03/04/2016


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 020116 TV 02/01/2016 25.95 25.95 02/19/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 480.93 480.93 02/19/2016


          Total 10-41-410: 1,059.51 1,059.51


10-41-415


2599 CENTURYLINK 020116 MONTHLY SERVICE 02/01/2016 58.15 58.15 02/19/2016


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 020116 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICE 02/01/2016 214.00 214.00 02/19/2016


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 020116 TELEPHONE 02/01/2016 624.88 624.88 02/19/2016


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 98.33 98.33 03/01/2016


          Total 10-41-415: 995.36 995.36


10-41-430


4333 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS F062715 PARTS FOR LIFT STATION 02/10/2016 970.18 970.18 03/04/2016


          Total 10-41-430: 970.18 970.18


10-41-540


11629 BENSON FIREMATES 100 SPONSORSHIP 02/23/2016 150.00 150.00 03/04/2016


          Total 10-41-540: 150.00 150.00


10-41-542


6480 SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 013116 #6 - HELP WANTED ADS 01/31/2016 205.71 205.71 02/19/2016


          Total 10-41-542: 205.71 205.71


10-41-590


3100 CORONADO RC&D 1272016 2016 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP 01/27/2016 150.00 150.00 02/29/2016


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 AZ CORP COMMISSION ANNUA 02/18/2016 10.00 10.00 03/04/2016
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Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid Date Paid Voided


Invoice Amount


          Total 10-41-590: 160.00 160.00


10-41-610


5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 821011629001 OFFICE SUPPIES 01/29/2016 284.00 284.00 02/29/2016


          Total 10-41-610: 284.00 284.00


10-41-620


6075 PURCHASE POWER 021916 POSTAGE 02/19/2016 500.00 500.00 03/04/2016


          Total 10-41-620: 500.00 500.00


10-41-630


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 COMPUTER PARTS 02/18/2016 597.50 597.50 03/04/2016


          Total 10-41-630: 597.50 597.50


10-41-640


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 SUPPLIES 02/29/2016 11.49 11.49 03/04/2016


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 CONTACT PAPER 02/18/2016 25.93 25.93 03/04/2016


5860 PETTY CASH 030316 SUPPLIES 03/03/2016 2.00 2.00 03/04/2016


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 50.38 50.38 03/04/2016


          Total 10-41-640: 89.80 89.80


10-41-670


5860 PETTY CASH 030316 CAR WASH 03/03/2016 10.00 10.00 03/04/2016


          Total 10-41-670: 10.00 10.00


10-43-300


2304 BROWN & ASSOCIATES 28601 INSPECTIONS, PLAN REVIEWS,  01/29/2016 1,780.00 1,780.00 02/19/2016


5940 PIONEER TITLE AGENCY INC 020916 ESCROW 70900163-KLB LIMITE 02/09/2016 75.00 75.00 02/19/2016


          Total 10-43-300: 1,855.00 1,855.00


10-43-415


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 29.78 29.78 03/01/2016


          Total 10-43-415: 29.78 29.78


10-43-590


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 MEMBERSHIP 02/18/2016 230.00 230.00 03/04/2016


          Total 10-43-590: 230.00 230.00


10-43-640


5860 PETTY CASH 030316 PARKING 03/03/2016 4.00 4.00 03/04/2016


          Total 10-43-640: 4.00 4.00


10-45-300


3129 CREATIVE COMMUNICATIONS 374017 RADIO REPAIR 01/21/2016 160.61 160.61 02/19/2016


3129 CREATIVE COMMUNICATIONS 374018 REPAIRS 01/21/2016 486.45 486.45 03/04/2016


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 INTELIUS 02/18/2016 19.95 19.95 03/04/2016
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Invoice Amount


          Total 10-45-300: 667.01 667.01


10-45-410


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 020516 UTILITIES 02/05/2016 291.85 291.85 02/19/2016


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022616 UTILITIES 02/26/2016 267.84 267.84 03/04/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 184.28 184.28 02/19/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 647.28 647.28 02/19/2016


          Total 10-45-410: 1,391.25 1,391.25


10-45-415


2599 CENTURYLINK 020116 MONTHLY SERVICE 02/01/2016 367.74 367.74 02/19/2016


2599 CENTURYLINK 020116 MONTHLY SERVICE 02/01/2016 165.82 165.82 02/19/2016


2599 CENTURYLINK 020116 MONTHLY SERVICE 02/01/2016 74.90 74.90 02/19/2016


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 020116A MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICE 02/01/2016 194.00 194.00 02/19/2016


7279 TRANSWORLD NETWORK COR 13640920 INTERNET SVC 02/10/2016 53.73 53.73 02/29/2016


5211 VERIZON BUSINESS 09069133 LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 02/25/2016 83.38 83.38 03/04/2016


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760402398 PD DATA LINK 02/12/2016 400.10 400.10 03/01/2016


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 59.56 59.56 03/01/2016


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 EQUIPMENT 02/12/2016 16.43 16.43 03/01/2016


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 598.21 598.21 03/01/2016


          Total 10-45-415: 2,013.87 2,013.87


10-45-590


6409 SALEM 021016 MEMBERSHIP DUES 2016 02/10/2016 100.00 100.00 02/29/2016


          Total 10-45-590: 100.00 100.00


10-45-593


2870 COCHISE COUNTY TREASURE 21931 DOMESTIC ANIMALS 01/31/2016 4.00 4.00 02/19/2016


          Total 10-45-593: 4.00 4.00


10-45-610


5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 823039086001 OFFICE SUPPIES 02/10/2016 19.09 19.09 02/29/2016


5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 823039170001 OFFICE SUPPIES 02/09/2016 45.43 45.43 02/29/2016


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 OFFICE SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 89.57 89.57 03/04/2016


          Total 10-45-610: 154.09 154.09


10-45-640


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 SUPPLIES 02/29/2016 103.85 103.85 03/04/2016


6700 SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT 0239925-IN FINGERPRINT SUPPLIES 02/01/2016 129.11 129.11 02/26/2016


7306 TRI-TECH FORENSICS 127598 INV SUPPLIES 01/20/2016 107.20 107.20 02/26/2016


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 47.06 47.06 03/04/2016


          Total 10-45-640: 387.22 387.22


10-45-670


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 108.17 108.17 02/26/2016


2784 CNG 013116 #29 - BATTERY, OIL CHANGE, S 01/31/2016 140.00 140.00 02/19/2016


3983 GEORGE'S AUTOMOTIVE 37525 #AC 24 - REPAIRS 01/26/2016 297.74 297.74 02/19/2016


          Total 10-45-670: 545.91 545.91
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10-46-300


1779 AZ DEPT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 030416 FINGERPRINT FEES - FIRE DEP 03/04/2016 44.00 44.00 03/04/2016


2160 BENSON VOLUNTEER FIRE DE 100 MONTHLY PAYMENT 03/01/2016 6,600.00 6,600.00 03/01/2016


          Total 10-46-300: 6,644.00 6,644.00


10-46-310


4232 HEALTHCARE INNOVATIONS IN H510147 MEDICAL SERVICES 10/13/2015 1,696.87 1,696.87 02/19/2016


          Total 10-46-310: 1,696.87 1,696.87


10-46-340


2863 COCHISE COLLEGE 23616 TRAINING 02/12/2016 843.00 843.00 03/04/2016


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 TRAINING BOOKS 02/18/2016 70.00 70.00 03/04/2016


          Total 10-46-340: 913.00 913.00


10-46-410


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 020516 UTILITIES 02/05/2016 291.85 291.85 02/19/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 665.42 665.42 02/19/2016


          Total 10-46-410: 957.27 957.27


10-46-415


2599 CENTURYLINK 020116 MONTHLY SERVICE 02/01/2016 155.97 155.97 02/19/2016


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 020616 TELEPHONE 02/06/2016 30.82 30.82 02/29/2016


5211 VERIZON BUSINESS 09069133 LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 02/25/2016 83.38 83.38 03/04/2016


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 263.51 263.51 03/01/2016


          Total 10-46-415: 533.68 533.68


10-46-430


1157 AMERICAN INSPECTION & TES 7213 INSPECT GROUND LADDER, LA 12/30/2015 1,223.00 1,223.00 02/19/2016


3129 CREATIVE COMMUNICATIONS 375362 RADIO REPAIR 02/11/2016 127.32 127.32 02/19/2016


          Total 10-46-430: 1,350.32 1,350.32


10-46-432


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 113.19 113.19 03/04/2016


          Total 10-46-432: 113.19 113.19


10-46-610


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 OFFICE SUPPLIES 02/18/2016 121.45 121.45 03/04/2016


          Total 10-46-610: 121.45 121.45


10-46-640


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 SUPPLIES 02/29/2016 12.87 12.87 03/04/2016


5219 MED-TECH RESOURCE INC 52586 SUPPLIES 11/20/2015 214.00 214.00 02/19/2016


5219 MED-TECH RESOURCE INC 53745 SUPPLIES 12/17/2015 966.00 966.00 02/19/2016


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 SUPPLIES 02/18/2016 547.62 547.62 03/04/2016


          Total 10-46-640: 1,740.49 1,740.49


10-46-650


4126 GUARDIAN EMS 5650665 SUPPLIES 01/20/2016 428.00 428.00 02/19/2016
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4126 GUARDIAN EMS 5651648 SUPPLIES 01/26/2016 19.50 19.50 02/19/2016


4126 GUARDIAN EMS 5652632 SUPPLIES 01/29/2016 1,382.00 1,382.00 02/19/2016


4126 GUARDIAN EMS 565310 SUPPLIES 02/02/2016 179.70 179.70 02/19/2016


4126 GUARDIAN EMS 5653716 SUPPLIES 02/04/2016 6.51 6.51 02/19/2016


4126 GUARDIAN EMS 5654544 SUPPLIES 02/09/2016 450.00 450.00 02/19/2016


          Total 10-46-650: 2,465.71 2,465.71


10-46-670


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 134.93 134.93 02/26/2016


4094 H & E EQUIPMENT SERVICES 92505007 PARTS 01/07/2016 512.67 512.67 02/29/2016


4094 H & E EQUIPMENT SERVICES 92505009 REPAIRS 01/07/2016 2,873.72 2,873.72 02/29/2016


4094 H & E EQUIPMENT SERVICES 92505011 PARTS 01/07/2016 102.55 102.55 02/29/2016


          Total 10-46-670: 3,623.87 3,623.87


10-49-300


1027 A&M PERSONNEL SERVICES L 13048 TEMP SERVICE - 2/11/16 02/19/2016 42.20 42.20 02/19/2016


1027 A&M PERSONNEL SERVICES L 13073 TEMP SERVICE - 2/16-2/19/16 02/26/2016 506.40 506.40 02/26/2016


1027 A&M PERSONNEL SERVICES L 13107 TEMP SERVICE - 02/22 - 2/26/16 03/04/2016 506.40 506.40 03/04/2016


          Total 10-49-300: 1,055.00 1,055.00


10-49-410


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 020516 UTILITIES 02/05/2016 337.42 337.42 02/19/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 525.41 525.41 02/19/2016


          Total 10-49-410: 862.83 862.83


10-49-415


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 021816 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICE 02/18/2016 114.00 114.00 03/04/2016


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 021816 TELEPHONE 02/18/2016 93.80 93.80 03/04/2016


          Total 10-49-415: 207.80 207.80


10-49-430


2071 BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LL 18473 REPAIRS & MAINT 02/16/2016 31.77 31.77 03/01/2016


6038 PROGRESSIVE ROOFING 18601883 REPAIRS TO ROOF 01/29/2016 509.88 509.88 02/19/2016


          Total 10-49-430: 541.65 541.65


10-49-610


5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 820879328001 OFFICE SUPPIES 01/28/2016 200.52 200.52 02/19/2016


          Total 10-49-610: 200.52 200.52


10-49-640


7534 UPSTART 5768012 SUPPLIES 01/04/2016 211.54 211.54 02/26/2016


          Total 10-49-640: 211.54 211.54


10-49-696


5295 MICROMARKETING, LLC 609464 BOOKS 02/15/2016 27.98 27.98 03/04/2016


5295 MICROMARKETING, LLC 609777 BOOKS 02/17/2016 42.89 42.89 03/04/2016


6180 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 75284870 BOOK ON CD 02/12/2016 34.99 34.99 03/04/2016


6180 RECORDED BOOKS, LLC 75290119 BOOKS ON CD 02/18/2016 125.96 125.96 03/04/2016
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          Total 10-49-696: 231.82 231.82


10-50-305


1334 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COBPPE01151 DOC LABOR - 1/2 - 1/15/16 01/26/2016 98.25 98.25 02/19/2016


1334 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COBPPE01291 DOC LABOR - 1/16 - 1/29/16 02/09/2016 108.00 108.00 03/01/2016


          Total 10-50-305: 206.25 206.25


10-50-410


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022616 UTILITIES 02/26/2016 317.39 317.39 03/04/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 1,081.22 1,081.22 02/19/2016


          Total 10-50-410: 1,398.61 1,398.61


10-50-415


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 021316A MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICE 02/13/2016 114.00 114.00 02/29/2016


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 021316A TELEPHONE 02/13/2016 61.04 61.04 02/29/2016


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 59.56 59.56 03/01/2016


          Total 10-50-415: 234.60 234.60


10-50-430


1023 A-1 PORT-A-POTS 3599 PORT-A-POTS 02/08/2016 164.00 164.00 02/29/2016


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 REPAIRS/MAINT 02/29/2016 328.41 328.41 03/04/2016


2071 BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LL 18473 REPAIRS & MAINT 02/16/2016 378.13 378.13 03/01/2016


7448 BJ DRILLING COMPANY, INC. 7341 REPAIRS TO BOOSTER PUMP  01/19/2016 1,301.64 1,301.64 02/26/2016


          Total 10-50-430: 2,172.18 2,172.18


10-50-640


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 SUPPLIES 02/29/2016 312.91 312.91 03/04/2016


4293 HORIZON IRRIGATION 2W138557 PARTS 01/27/2016 1,197.81 1,197.81 02/19/2016


5618 L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 38.71 38.71 02/26/2016


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 55.93 55.93 03/04/2016


7697 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 75775771 SUPPLIES 02/04/2016 650.69 650.69 02/29/2016


          Total 10-50-640: 2,256.05 2,256.05


10-50-670


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 54.16 54.16 02/26/2016


2784 CNG 0211 416B BACKHOE - LUBE 02/02/2016 105.00 105.00 02/19/2016


5618 L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 92.17 92.17 02/26/2016


7731 PURCELL WESTERN STATES TI 6175993 TIRES 02/16/2016 236.05 236.05 03/04/2016


          Total 10-50-670: 487.38 487.38


10-56-350


7856 XPRESS BILL PAY 21116 MONTHLY CHARGE 03/01/2016 129.56 129.56 03/04/2016


          Total 10-56-350: 129.56 129.56


10-56-415


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 133.84 133.84 03/01/2016


          Total 10-56-415: 133.84 133.84
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10-56-610


5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 821018567001 OFFICE SUPPIES 02/01/2016 15.95 15.95 02/29/2016


5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 821019093001 OFFICE SUPPIES 01/29/2016 45.15 45.15 02/29/2016


5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 821019094001 OFFICE SUPPIES 01/29/2016 3.56 3.56 02/29/2016


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 10.93 10.93 03/04/2016


          Total 10-56-610: 75.59 75.59


10-56-640


1975 BENSON SHOP WITH A COP IN 02132016 SHREDDING - DONATION 02/13/2016 130.00 130.00 02/19/2016


          Total 10-56-640: 130.00 130.00


10-57-340


4872 LAURA PARKIN 022416 REIMBURSE MEAL CCTC MEET 02/24/2016 13.26 13.26 03/04/2016


5860 PETTY CASH 030316 OSHA TRAINING 03/03/2016 5.00 5.00 03/04/2016


          Total 10-57-340: 18.26 18.26


10-57-410


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 582.70 582.70 02/19/2016


          Total 10-57-410: 582.70 582.70


10-57-412


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 021216 UTILITIES 02/12/2016 319.12 319.12 02/19/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 439.03 439.03 02/19/2016


          Total 10-57-412: 758.15 758.15


10-57-415


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 021916 PHONE @ POOL 02/19/2016 28.39 28.39 03/04/2016


          Total 10-57-415: 28.39 28.39


10-57-417


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 021016 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICE 02/10/2016 114.00 114.00 02/29/2016


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 021016 TELEPHONE 02/10/2016 101.05 101.05 02/29/2016


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 29.78 29.78 03/01/2016


          Total 10-57-417: 244.83 244.83


10-57-432


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 FIX DOOR 02/18/2016 555.61 555.61 03/04/2016


          Total 10-57-432: 555.61 555.61


10-57-610


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 132.34 132.34 03/04/2016


          Total 10-57-610: 132.34 132.34


10-57-640


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 SUPPLIES 02/18/2016 19.35 19.35 03/04/2016


          Total 10-57-640: 19.35 19.35
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10-58-545


3050 COMMUNITY FOOD PANTRY O 96 MONTHLY ASSISTANCE 03/01/2016 130.00 130.00 03/01/2016


          Total 10-58-545: 130.00 130.00


10-58-546


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 020516 UTILITIES 02/05/2016 152.12 152.12 02/19/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 329.88 329.88 02/19/2016


          Total 10-58-546: 482.00 482.00


10-60-340


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 COCHISE COLLEGE 02/18/2016 20.00 20.00 03/04/2016


          Total 10-60-340: 20.00 20.00


10-60-410


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 020516 UTILITIES 02/05/2016 83.11 83.11 02/19/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 107.80 107.80 02/19/2016


          Total 10-60-410: 190.91 190.91


10-60-415


2599 CENTURYLINK 020116 MONTHLY SERVICE 02/01/2016 236.08 236.08 02/19/2016


3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 021316 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICE 02/13/2016 114.00 114.00 02/29/2016


          Total 10-60-415: 350.08 350.08


10-60-630


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 LAPTOP 02/18/2016 110.99 110.99 03/04/2016


          Total 10-60-630: 110.99 110.99


10-60-635


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 SOUVENIER INVENTORY 02/18/2016 503.43 503.43 03/04/2016


          Total 10-60-635: 503.43 503.43


10-61-300


5268 MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD  211264 NOVEMBER 2015 12/02/2015 14,560.60 14,560.60 02/26/2016


5268 MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD  211587 DECEMBER 2015 01/08/2016 10,134.10 10,134.10 02/26/2016


5268 MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD  212071 JANUARY 2016 02/19/2016 8,023.75 8,023.75 02/26/2016


7712 THOMSON REUTERS - WEST 833474817 CD ROM 2/1-2/29/16 AZ REVISE 02/04/2016 534.44 534.44 03/04/2016


          Total 10-61-300: 33,252.89 33,252.89


10-61-580


5860 PETTY CASH 030316 FUEL 03/03/2016 15.00 15.00 03/04/2016


          Total 10-61-580: 15.00 15.00


10-61-610


5663 OFFICE SMART INC 1441094 OFFICE SUPPLIES 03/01/2016 329.30 329.30 03/04/2016


          Total 10-61-610: 329.30 329.30
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10-62-540


6480 SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 013116 ORD 579 01/31/2016 260.83 260.83 02/19/2016


          Total 10-62-540: 260.83 260.83


10-62-630


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 IPAD 02/18/2016 392.93 392.93 03/04/2016


          Total 10-62-630: 392.93 392.93


10-64-300


2298 BOWMAN CONSULTING GROU 207769 ON CALL PLANNING SERVICES  01/31/2016 4,532.50 4,532.50 02/19/2016


6250 RICK ENGINEERING COMPANY 0011136 ON CALL PLANNING SVCS 1/1-1 02/09/2016 1,302.60 1,302.60 03/01/2016


          Total 10-64-300: 5,835.10 5,835.10


10-65-410


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022616 UTILITIES 02/26/2016 16.61 16.61 03/04/2016


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022616 UTILITIES 02/26/2016 335.01 335.01 03/04/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 553.81 553.81 02/19/2016


          Total 10-65-410: 905.43 905.43


10-65-415


2599 CENTURYLINK 020116 MONTHLY SERVICE 02/01/2016 155.31 155.31 02/19/2016


7279 TRANSWORLD NETWORK COR 13640922 INTERNET SVC 02/10/2016 57.73 57.73 02/29/2016


5211 VERIZON BUSINESS 09069133 LONG DISTANCE SERVICE 02/25/2016 10.41 10.41 03/04/2016


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 105.06 105.06 03/01/2016


          Total 10-65-415: 328.51 328.51


10-65-430


7291 TREJO REFRIGERATION AND 3952 INSTALLED NEW SUB PANEL &  10/19/2015 723.92 723.92 02/26/2016


          Total 10-65-430: 723.92 723.92


10-65-610


5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 821004266001 OFFICE SUPPIES 01/29/2016 91.38 91.38 02/29/2016


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 55.86 55.86 03/04/2016


          Total 10-65-610: 147.24 147.24


10-65-640


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 LUNCH MEETING 02/18/2016 32.33 32.33 03/04/2016


          Total 10-65-640: 32.33 32.33


14-20300


4118 GREYHOUND 021916 TICKET SALES 02/19/2016 46.80 46.80 02/19/2016


4118 GREYHOUND 022616 TICKET SALES 02/26/2016 457.50 457.50 02/26/2016


4118 GREYHOUND 030416 TICKET SALES 03/04/2016 440.74 440.74 03/04/2016


          Total 14-20300: 945.04 945.04


14-40-300


3151 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENT 158474121 DOT PHYSICAL 01/27/2016 79.50 79.50 02/19/2016
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          Total 14-40-300: 79.50 79.50


14-40-340


11412 LAURIE BOTTS 021716 REIMBURSE MILEAGE/PARKIN 02/17/2016 33.18 33.18 02/19/2016


          Total 14-40-340: 33.18 33.18


14-40-415


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 119.12 119.12 03/01/2016


          Total 14-40-415: 119.12 119.12


14-40-670


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 120.68 120.68 02/26/2016


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 54.15 54.15 02/26/2016


2784 CNG 0204 #7003 - COMPLETE SERVICE 02/13/2016 105.00 105.00 02/19/2016


2784 CNG 0205 #7003 - REPAIRS 02/09/2016 210.00 210.00 02/19/2016


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 TOWING #7005 02/18/2016 452.00 452.00 03/04/2016


5860 PETTY CASH 030316 CAR WASH 03/03/2016 8.00 8.00 03/04/2016


7696 WATSON CHEVROLET CTCS737430 #7005 - BUS REPAIRS 02/18/2016 4,387.60 4,387.60 02/19/2016


          Total 14-40-670: 5,337.43 5,337.43


20-40-300


3410 DIGGINS & SONS POWER SWE 53509 SWEEP STREETS  - 2/16 02/29/2016 1,900.00 1,900.00 03/04/2016


6802 STAMBACK SEPTIC SERVICE 7085 PORT A POTS 2/23-3/22/16 02/22/2016 208.24 208.24 03/04/2016


          Total 20-40-300: 2,108.24 2,108.24


20-40-305


1334 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COBPPE01151 DOC LABOR - 1/2 - 1/15/16 01/26/2016 116.25 116.25 02/19/2016


1334 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COBPPE01291 DOC LABOR - 1/16 - 1/29/16 02/09/2016 153.00 153.00 03/01/2016


          Total 20-40-305: 269.25 269.25


20-40-410


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 7,356.52 7,356.52 02/19/2016


          Total 20-40-410: 7,356.52 7,356.52


20-40-415


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 89.34 89.34 03/01/2016


          Total 20-40-415: 89.34 89.34


20-40-640


1308 ARIZONA CORRECTIONAL IND 412993 WORK ORDERS 02/18/2016 83.50 83.50 03/04/2016


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 SUPPLIES 02/29/2016 68.73 68.73 03/04/2016


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 AV GAS 02/18/2016 174.00 174.00 03/04/2016


6570 SHANNON'S AUTO PARTS 013116 SUPPLIES 01/31/2016 58.22 58.22 02/26/2016


          Total 20-40-640: 384.45 384.45


20-40-670


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 368.19 368.19 02/26/2016


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 54.16 54.16 02/26/2016
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2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 71.15 71.15 02/26/2016


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 17.27 17.27 02/26/2016


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 32.18 32.18 02/26/2016


          Total 20-40-670: 542.95 542.95


46-60-100


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 UNION PACIFIC GRANT 02/29/2016 51.32 51.32 03/04/2016


          Total 46-60-100: 51.32 51.32


46-80-100


3698 FWC SUPPLY S2624269.001 PARTS - CDBG PARKS 02/17/2016 106.31 106.31 03/04/2016


3698 FWC SUPPLY S2624269.002 PARTS - CDBG PARKS 02/17/2016 47.73 47.73 03/04/2016


6812 STAN'S FENCE CO, INC. 0011432 TEMP FENCE - CDBG PARKS 02/17/2016 388.33 388.33 03/04/2016


          Total 46-80-100: 542.37 542.37


50-22900


11761 DREW D HANNA 022516 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 02/25/2016 3.12 3.12 02/26/2016


11764 MICHAEL S PATTIE 030116 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 03/01/2016 16.79 16.79 03/04/2016


11763 SHANNON L KELLY 022916 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 02/29/2016 91.43 91.43 03/04/2016


11765 THOMAS F RUDD JR 030316 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 03/03/2016 135.90 135.90 03/04/2016


          Total 50-22900: 247.24 247.24


50-40-300


1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700529674 MATS 02/03/2016 23.70 23.70 02/19/2016


5205 MCCARTER & ENGLISH, LLP 8024153 SHARE OF EL PASO CASE 02/10/2016 218.64 218.64 03/01/2016


          Total 50-40-300: 242.34 242.34


50-40-351


7856 XPRESS BILL PAY 21116 MONTHLY CHARGE 03/01/2016 129.56 129.56 03/04/2016


          Total 50-40-351: 129.56 129.56


50-40-410


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 020516 UTILITIES 02/05/2016 142.14 142.14 02/19/2016


          Total 50-40-410: 142.14 142.14


50-40-415


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 146.67 146.67 03/01/2016


          Total 50-40-415: 146.67 146.67


50-40-440


1095 AIRGAS USA, LLC 9933486610 CYLINDER RENTAL 01/31/2016 199.82 199.82 02/29/2016


          Total 50-40-440: 199.82 199.82


50-40-540


6480 SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 013116 GAS LEAK & EMERGENCY AD 01/31/2016 253.58 253.58 02/19/2016


          Total 50-40-540: 253.58 253.58
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50-40-602


3078 SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERI 2746485 COST OF GAS PURCHASED 02/22/2016 49,978.15 49,978.15 03/01/2016


          Total 50-40-602: 49,978.15 49,978.15


50-40-620


5978 POSTAL PROS INC 2250 UTILITY BILLS 01/31/2016 285.14 285.14 02/19/2016


          Total 50-40-620: 285.14 285.14


50-40-640


1308 ARIZONA CORRECTIONAL IND 412993 WORK ORDERS 02/18/2016 83.51 83.51 03/04/2016


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 SUPPLIES 02/29/2016 20.88 20.88 03/04/2016


2071 BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LL 18473 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 9.86 9.86 03/01/2016


2289 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC S 910689367 PARTS 01/26/2016 680.01 680.01 02/19/2016


2289 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC S 910689368 PARTS 01/26/2016 769.16 769.16 02/19/2016


2289 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC S 910750739 PARTS 02/08/2016 428.81 428.81 02/19/2016


2289 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC S 910764121 PARTS 02/10/2016 476.41 476.41 02/19/2016


5860 PETTY CASH 030316 CARD 03/03/2016 3.23 3.23 03/04/2016


          Total 50-40-640: 2,471.87 2,471.87


50-40-670


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 14.74 14.74 02/26/2016


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 54.16 54.16 02/26/2016


2784 CNG 0200 #2100 - COMPLETE SERVICE, M 02/06/2016 70.00 70.00 02/19/2016


6570 SHANNON'S AUTO PARTS 013116 REPAIRS 01/31/2016 139.38 139.38 02/26/2016


          Total 50-40-670: 278.28 278.28


51-12500


11762 DAVE F FLETCHER 022916 REFUND CREDIT BALANCE 02/29/2016 29.59 29.59 03/04/2016


          Total 51-12500: 29.59 29.59


51-22900


3125 COURTNEY OR TIMOTHY SCH 022216 REFUND WATER DEPOSIT 02/22/2016 32.56 32.56 02/26/2016


11760 FILIPE P PALMA 022416 REFUND WATER DEPOSIT 02/24/2016 21.20 21.20 02/26/2016


11764 MICHAEL S PATTIE 030116 REFUND WATER DEPOSIT 03/01/2016 25.00 25.00 03/04/2016


          Total 51-22900: 78.76 78.76


51-40-301


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1601559 TESTING 02/03/2016 128.00 128.00 02/29/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1601560 TESTING 02/03/2016 32.00 32.00 02/29/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1601568 TESTING 02/03/2016 16.00 16.00 02/29/2016


          Total 51-40-301: 176.00 176.00


51-40-350


7856 XPRESS BILL PAY 21116 MONTHLY CHARGE 03/01/2016 129.56 129.56 03/04/2016


          Total 51-40-350: 129.56 129.56


51-40-410


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 020516 UTILITIES 02/05/2016 100.20 100.20 02/19/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 7,915.14 7,915.14 02/19/2016
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          Total 51-40-410: 8,015.34 8,015.34


51-40-415


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 89.34 89.34 03/01/2016


          Total 51-40-415: 89.34 89.34


51-40-430


2784 CNG 02010 REPAIRS TO TRAILER 02/06/2016 50.00 50.00 02/19/2016


          Total 51-40-430: 50.00 50.00


51-40-620


5978 POSTAL PROS INC 2250 UTILITY BILLS 01/31/2016 285.14 285.14 02/19/2016


          Total 51-40-620: 285.14 285.14


51-40-640


1308 ARIZONA CORRECTIONAL IND 412993 WORK ORDERS 02/18/2016 83.51 83.51 03/04/2016


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 SUPPLIES 02/29/2016 48.38 48.38 03/04/2016


4333 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS F011388 SUPPLIES 01/26/2016 1,162.70 1,162.70 02/19/2016


4333 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS F044388 SUPPLIES 01/26/2016 2,074.81 2,074.81 02/19/2016


          Total 51-40-640: 3,369.40 3,369.40


51-40-670


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 149.69 149.69 02/26/2016


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 14.74 14.74 02/26/2016


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 205.06 205.06 02/26/2016


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 54.16 54.16 02/26/2016


2784 CNG 0200 #2100 - COMPLETE SERVICE, M 02/06/2016 70.00 70.00 02/19/2016


2784 CNG 0201 #2600 - REPAIRS FUEL TANK &  01/24/2016 350.00 350.00 02/19/2016


2784 CNG 0202 #2600 - MISC REPAIRS 02/08/2016 315.00 315.00 02/19/2016


6570 SHANNON'S AUTO PARTS 013116 REPAIRS 01/31/2016 139.38 139.38 02/26/2016


          Total 51-40-670: 1,298.03 1,298.03


52-40-301


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1601382 TESTING 01/31/2016 15.00 15.00 02/26/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1601508 TESTING 02/03/2016 15.00 15.00 02/29/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1601516 TESTING 02/03/2016 32.00 32.00 02/29/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1601700 TESTING 02/04/2016 15.00 15.00 02/29/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1601780 TESTING 02/05/2016 15.00 15.00 02/29/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1601872 TESTING 02/08/2016 15.00 15.00 02/29/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1601969 TESTING 02/10/2016 15.00 15.00 03/04/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1601973 TESTING 02/10/2016 32.00 32.00 03/04/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1601985 TESTING 02/10/2016 52.00 52.00 03/04/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1602042 TESTING 02/11/2016 15.00 15.00 03/04/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1602124 TESTING 02/12/2016 15.00 15.00 03/04/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1602202 TESTING 02/15/2016 15.00 15.00 03/04/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1602367 TESTING 02/17/2016 15.00 15.00 03/04/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1602419 TESTING 02/18/2016 15.00 15.00 03/04/2016


4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1602503 TESTING 02/19/2016 15.00 15.00 03/04/2016


          Total 52-40-301: 296.00 296.00
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52-40-350


7856 XPRESS BILL PAY 21116 MONTHLY CHARGE 03/01/2016 129.56 129.56 03/04/2016


          Total 52-40-350: 129.56 129.56


52-40-410


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 020516 UTILITIES 02/05/2016 100.20 100.20 02/19/2016


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022616 UTILITIES 02/26/2016 57.79 57.79 03/04/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 6,938.46 6,938.46 02/19/2016


          Total 52-40-410: 7,096.45 7,096.45


52-40-415


2599 CENTURYLINK 020116 MONTHLY SERVICE 02/01/2016 97.32 97.32 02/19/2016


5212 MCI COMM SERVICE 021116 LONG DISTANCE 02/11/2016 32.81 32.81 02/26/2016


7279 TRANSWORLD NETWORK COR 13636708 INTERNET SERVICE - PERK PL 02/06/2016 53.73 53.73 02/29/2016


7279 TRANSWORLD NETWORK COR 13640923 INTERNET SVC 02/11/2016 53.73 53.73 02/29/2016


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 59.56 59.56 03/01/2016


          Total 52-40-415: 297.15 297.15


52-40-430


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 23.14 23.14 02/26/2016


2784 CNG 0208 REPAIRS TO TRAILER 02/09/2016 105.00 105.00 02/19/2016


3074 COPPER STATE BOLT & NUT C I01517263 PARTS 02/11/2016 115.88 115.88 03/04/2016


          Total 52-40-430: 244.02 244.02


52-40-610


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 2.06 2.06 03/04/2016


          Total 52-40-610: 2.06 2.06


52-40-620


5978 POSTAL PROS INC 2250 UTILITY BILLS 01/31/2016 285.13 285.13 02/19/2016


          Total 52-40-620: 285.13 285.13


52-40-640


1308 ARIZONA CORRECTIONAL IND 412993 WORK ORDERS 02/18/2016 83.50 83.50 03/04/2016


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 SUPPLIES 02/29/2016 101.43 101.43 03/04/2016


2071 BENSON LUMBER & SUPPLY LL 18473 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 315.22 315.22 03/01/2016


4333 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS F112629 PARTS 02/10/2016 36.22 36.22 03/01/2016


4268 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL CO 50900252 12.5% LIQUID BLEACH 01/29/2016 3,697.02 3,697.02 02/19/2016


4293 HORIZON IRRIGATION 2W139309 IRRIGATION PARTS 02/11/2016 2,252.24 2,252.24 03/01/2016


7040 TEXAS CANYON ROCK & SAND 020537 13.18 TONS ROCK 02/22/2016 223.74 223.74 03/04/2016


7536 USA BLUEBOOK 862991 #71229 - WWTP SUPPLIES 02/02/2016 674.29 674.29 02/19/2016


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 18.47 18.47 03/04/2016


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 60.69 60.69 03/04/2016


          Total 52-40-640: 7,462.82 7,462.82


52-40-670


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTEN 02/29/2016 12.92 12.92 03/04/2016


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 352.73 352.73 02/26/2016


2075 BENSON NAPA 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 54.16 54.16 02/26/2016


2784 CNG 0200 #2100 - COMPLETE SERVICE, M 02/06/2016 70.00 70.00 02/19/2016
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2784 CNG 0203 #2010 - BRAKE REPAIR 01/25/2016 420.00 420.00 02/19/2016


2784 CNG 0206 #2010 - REPAIRS 02/14/2016 140.00 140.00 02/19/2016


2784 CNG 0207 #2009 & 2010 - REPAIRS 02/14/2016 210.00 210.00 02/19/2016


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 PARTS 02/18/2016 58.35 58.35 03/04/2016


6570 SHANNON'S AUTO PARTS 013116 REPAIRS 01/31/2016 10.00 10.00 02/26/2016


          Total 52-40-670: 1,328.16 1,328.16


53-40-350


7856 XPRESS BILL PAY 21116 MONTHLY CHARGE 03/01/2016 129.56 129.56 03/04/2016


          Total 53-40-350: 129.56 129.56


53-40-620


5978 POSTAL PROS INC 2250 UTILITY BILLS 01/31/2016 285.13 285.13 02/19/2016


          Total 53-40-620: 285.13 285.13


53-40-665


2870 COCHISE COUNTY TREASURE 21931 TRANSFER STATION EXPENSE 01/31/2016 16,017.59 16,017.59 02/19/2016


          Total 53-40-665: 16,017.59 16,017.59


55-40-300


1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700527724 MATS 01/27/2016 23.76 23.76 03/04/2016


1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700531646 MATS 02/10/2016 23.76 23.76 03/04/2016


1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700533603 MATS 02/17/2016 23.76 23.76 03/04/2016


1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700535600 MATS 02/24/2016 23.76 23.76 03/04/2016


2592 CENTRAL ALARM INC 847416 ALARM SERVICE 03/01/2016 67.00 67.00 03/01/2016


          Total 55-40-300: 162.04 162.04


55-40-310


4785 KIM LONDON SALES LON261 INVENTORY 02/24/2016 250.00 250.00 03/04/2016


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 INVENTORY 02/18/2016 65.23 65.23 03/04/2016


          Total 55-40-310: 315.23 315.23


55-40-410


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 012216 UTILITIES 01/22/2016 21.31 21.31 02/19/2016


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 021916 UTILITIES 02/19/2016 12.22 12.22 03/04/2016


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022616 UTILITIES 02/26/2016 895.53 895.53 03/04/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 1,470.48 1,470.48 02/19/2016


          Total 55-40-410: 2,399.54 2,399.54


55-40-415


2599 CENTURYLINK 020116 MONTHLY SERVICE 02/01/2016 395.18 395.18 02/19/2016


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 55.05 55.05 03/01/2016


          Total 55-40-415: 450.23 450.23


55-40-700


7004 TCF EQUIPMENT FINANCE INC 4452730 GOLF CART FINANCING 01/12/2016 9,549.80 9,549.80 02/19/2016


          Total 55-40-700: 9,549.80 9,549.80
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55-50-300


2592 CENTRAL ALARM INC 847417 ALARM SERVICE 03/01/2016 28.00 28.00 03/01/2016


          Total 55-50-300: 28.00 28.00


55-50-305


1334 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COBPPE01151 DOC LABOR - 1/2 - 1/15/16 01/26/2016 317.00 317.00 02/19/2016


1334 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COBPPE01291 DOC LABOR - 1/16 - 1/29/16 02/09/2016 324.00 324.00 03/01/2016


          Total 55-50-305: 641.00 641.00


55-50-410


2599 CENTURYLINK 021016 MONTHLY SERVICE 02/10/2016 47.32 47.32 02/26/2016


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 022616 UTILITIES 02/26/2016 288.15 288.15 03/04/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 1,526.50 1,526.50 02/19/2016


          Total 55-50-410: 1,861.97 1,861.97


55-50-415


7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 9760429354 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 02/12/2016 50.90 50.90 03/01/2016


          Total 55-50-415: 50.90 50.90


55-50-600


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 51.44 51.44 03/04/2016


          Total 55-50-600: 51.44 51.44


55-50-604


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 CHEMICALS 02/29/2016 86.54 86.54 03/04/2016


          Total 55-50-604: 86.54 86.54


55-50-608


5928 PIONEER LANDSCAPING MATE SI1058253 MORTAR SAND 02/01/2016 2,159.37 2,159.37 02/26/2016


          Total 55-50-608: 2,159.37 2,159.37


55-50-640


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 SUPPLIES 02/18/2016 404.51 404.51 03/04/2016


          Total 55-50-640: 404.51 404.51


55-50-660


5618 L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 013116 OIL 01/31/2016 554.82 554.82 02/26/2016


          Total 55-50-660: 554.82 554.82


55-50-670


1950 BENSON ACE HARDWARE 02/29/16 REPAIRS/MAINT 02/29/2016 .76 .76 03/04/2016


3678 E-Z-GO 90717186 PARTS 02/02/2016 466.98 466.98 02/19/2016


5618 L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 013116 PARTS 01/31/2016 205.36 205.36 02/26/2016


5661 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC 012816 PARTS 01/28/2016 1,806.43 1,806.43 02/26/2016


          Total 55-50-670: 2,479.53 2,479.53
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55-60-300


1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700527727 LINENS 01/27/2016 70.48 70.48 02/19/2016


1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700529678 LINENS 02/03/2016 71.29 71.29 02/19/2016


1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700531650 LINENS 02/10/2016 70.48 70.48 03/04/2016


1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700533606 LINENS 02/17/2016 99.88 99.88 03/04/2016


1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700535604 LINENS 02/24/2016 70.48 70.48 03/04/2016


1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1710028839 LINENS 01/18/2016 32.40 32.40 03/04/2016


6802 STAMBACK SEPTIC SERVICE 5722 PUMPED 1000 GAL MUD/WATE 10/29/2015 425.00 425.00 02/19/2016


          Total 55-60-300: 840.01 840.01


55-60-310


3704 FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 63201268SO FOOD 01/27/2016 331.55 331.55 02/19/2016


3704 FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 63201554SO FOOD 02/24/2016 200.55 200.55 03/04/2016


5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 195407C FOOD 01/27/2016 775.81 775.81 02/19/2016


5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 196778A FOOD 02/03/2016 667.53 667.53 02/29/2016


5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 197446A FOOD 02/05/2016 431.83 431.83 02/29/2016


5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 198042B FOOD 02/10/2016 690.52 690.52 03/04/2016


5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 198785A FOOD 02/13/2016 447.00 447.00 03/04/2016


5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 199048A FOOD 02/16/2016 223.08 223.08 03/04/2016


5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 199335B FOOD 02/17/2016 1,060.85 1,060.85 03/04/2016


5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 200063B FOOD 02/20/2016 325.74 325.74 03/04/2016


5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 200651B FOOD 02/24/2016 528.14 528.14 03/04/2016


6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 282888 BLOODY MARY MIX 02/19/2016 87.40 87.40 03/04/2016


6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 283755 BLOODY MARY MIX 02/26/2016 43.70 43.70 03/04/2016


7402 US FOODS 5328544 FOOD 02/11/2016 654.84 654.84 03/04/2016


7402 US FOODS 5459311 FOOD 02/18/2016 1,153.91 1,153.91 03/04/2016


7402 US FOODS 5584398 FOOD 02/25/2016 911.13 911.13 03/04/2016


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 FOOD 02/16/2016 794.10 794.10 03/04/2016


          Total 55-60-310: 9,327.68 9,327.68


55-60-315


6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 282019 BEER COSTS 02/12/2016 696.25 696.25 03/04/2016


6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 282887 BEER COSTS 02/19/2016 1,166.25 1,166.25 03/04/2016


6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 283754 BEER COSTS 02/26/2016 440.65 440.65 03/04/2016


          Total 55-60-315: 2,303.15 2,303.15


55-60-320


1111 ALLIANCE BEVERAGE DISTRIB 321260900 LIQUOR COSTS 02/10/2016 778.68 778.68 03/04/2016


6765 SOUTHERN WINE & SPIRITS O 1102217 LIQUOR COSTS 02/10/2016 595.40 595.40 03/04/2016


          Total 55-60-320: 1,374.08 1,374.08


55-60-350


3728 FINTECH.NET 2557477 MONTHLY CHARGE 03/02/2016 20.00 20.00 03/04/2016


          Total 55-60-350: 20.00 20.00


55-60-420


3421 DIRECTV 27869589169 DIRECTV 02/19/2016 191.98 191.98 02/29/2016


          Total 55-60-420: 191.98 191.98


55-60-430


1231 ANGELO J FRATTAROLE 021716 REPAIR EQUIPMENT 02/17/2016 307.33 307.33 03/04/2016
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          Total 55-60-430: 307.33 307.33


55-60-440


5121 MARLIN BUSINESS BANK 13864506 DISHWASHER 02/03/2016 81.57 81.57 02/19/2016


          Total 55-60-440: 81.57 81.57


55-60-470


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 UNIFORMS 02/16/2016 32.75 32.75 03/04/2016


          Total 55-60-470: 32.75 32.75


55-60-590


1339 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF LIQ 030316 LIQUOR LICENSE AGENT CHAN 03/03/2016 100.00 100.00 03/04/2016


          Total 55-60-590: 100.00 100.00


55-60-603


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 SUPPLIES 02/18/2016 46.14 46.14 03/04/2016


5454 NATIONAL BANK OF ARIZONA 021816 SUPPLIES 02/18/2016 113.14 113.14 03/04/2016


6809 STANDARD RESTAURANT EQU 1782534 SUPPLIES 01/27/2016 310.52 310.52 02/19/2016


7402 US FOODS 5459310 SUPPLIES 02/18/2016 107.51 107.51 03/04/2016


7402 US FOODS 5584396 SUPPLIES 02/25/2016 119.85 119.85 03/04/2016


          Total 55-60-603: 697.16 697.16


55-60-605


7675 WAL-MART BUSINESS 021616 SUPPLIES 02/16/2016 63.19 63.19 03/04/2016


          Total 55-60-605: 63.19 63.19


56-40-300


6777 SOUTHWESTERN AVIATION LL 70 CONTRACTUAL PAYMENT 03/01/2016 1,000.00 1,000.00 03/01/2016


6777 SOUTHWESTERN AVIATION LL 70 03/01/2016 .00 .00


          Total 56-40-300: 1,000.00 1,000.00


56-40-410


2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 021216 UTILITIES 02/12/2016 147.83 147.83 02/19/2016


6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 020916 POWER 02/09/2016 1,162.99 1,162.99 02/19/2016


          Total 56-40-410: 1,310.82 1,310.82


56-40-415


2599 CENTURYLINK 020116 MONTHLY SERVICE 02/01/2016 65.92 65.92 02/19/2016


          Total 56-40-415: 65.92 65.92


70-40-660


8913 ALBERT ESTAVILLO 100 FIREMEN'S PENSION 03/15/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


5551 ANICLETO D MALDONADO 39 FIREMEN'S PENSION 03/15/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


3240 DARRELL FOSTER 7 Pension Payment 03/01/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


3975 GEOFFREY MCGOFFIN 100 FIREMEN'S  PENSION 03/15/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


8909 HAMILTON, RICHARD 100 FIREMEN'S PENSION 03/15/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


7895 JAMES HANSEN JR. 100 FIREMEN'S PENSION 03/15/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


4505 JERRY FINK 110 FIREMEN'S PENSION 03/15/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016
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4573 JOE RODRIGUEZ 13 FIREMEN'S PENSION 03/01/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


8914 JOE ROTHERMICH 100 FIREMEN'S PENSION 03/15/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


4840 LARRY NAPIER 83 FIREMEN'S PENSION 03/15/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


5191 MAX JONES 100 FIREMEN'S PENSION 03/15/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


6144 RAY JOHNSON II 97 FIREPENSION 03/15/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


8907 THELANDER, JAMES 100 FIREMEN'S PENSION 03/15/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


7790 WILLIAM BRANDT 6 FIRE PENSION PAYMENT 03/01/2016 200.00 200.00 03/01/2016


          Total 70-40-660: 2,800.00 2,800.00


          Grand Totals:  336,722.33 336,722.33


           Dated: ______________________________________________________


           Mayor: ______________________________________________________


  City Council: ______________________________________________________


                       ______________________________________________________


                       ______________________________________________________


                       ______________________________________________________


                       ______________________________________________________


                       ______________________________________________________


City Recorder: _____________________________________________________


Report Criteria:


Detail report.


Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.


Only paid invoices included.







                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
Attached is a list of large and/or unusual invoices processed by the Finance Department during the period from 
March 5, 2016 through March 20, 2016.  The total of the invoices is $153,276.61. 
       
 


          


Arizona Public Safety Retirement Bi-weekly retirement contribution 10,332.76                                     
Arizona State Retirement Bi-weekly retirement contribution 20,281.14                                     
ESG Corp Monthly Flexible Spending Account Co 3,662.89                                       
Mesch, Clark & Rothschild Attorney Fees 5,326.00                                       
Psomas Vignetto Master Plan Review 6,794.25                                       
Southwest Disposal Monthly Garbage Collection 31,132.61                                     
SSVEC Monthly City Electric Bill 33,276.61                                     
Voyager Monthly Fuel for City Fleet 5,388.00                                       
TOTAL LARGE INVOICES 116,194.26                                   
Invoices listed above as a percentage of all invoices processed 76%  


 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approval of invoices processed for the period from March 5, 2016 through March 20, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1e 
                                               
From: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director                    
           
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Invoices processed for the period from March 5, 2016 through March 20, 2016        
 
 
 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                                        March 28, 2016 
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Report Criteria:


Report type:  Summary


Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"


GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


03/16 03/11/2016 501 6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIBUTING 777.25 M


03/16 03/14/2016 502 5910 PIERCE WINES ARIZONA LLC 57.00 M


03/16 03/11/2016 5120 3651 ETS CORPORATION 1,479.67 M


03/16 03/11/2016 5121 2663 CHASE 846.06 M


03/16 03/11/2016 5122 1136 AMERICAN EXPRESS 133.70 M


03/16 03/11/2016 7052 4118 GREYHOUND 669.52 M


03/16 03/11/2016 7201 3648 ESG CORP 3,662.89 M


03/16 03/11/2016 7203 5495 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION 150.00 M


03/16 03/11/2016 7204 5496 NATIONWIDE  RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS 580.00 M


03/16 03/11/2016 7205 1490 AZ STATE RETIREMENT    ACC REC 20,281.14 M


03/16 03/11/2016 46435 1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 95.08


03/16 03/11/2016 46436 1297 ARIZONA BLUE STAKE INC 441.99


03/16 03/11/2016 46437 1430 AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT 10,332.76


03/16 03/11/2016 46438 2289 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY 140.94


03/16 03/11/2016 46439 2304 BROWN & ASSOCIATES 3,179.91


03/16 03/11/2016 46440 2350 BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING CO 1,988.00


03/16 03/11/2016 46441 3051 CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 582.70


03/16 03/11/2016 46442 11767 CAROLE BARRETT 9.66


03/16 03/11/2016 46443 2599 CENTURYLINK 1,775.77


03/16 03/11/2016 46444 2781 CLEAR VIEW GLASS AND TINT 541.58


03/16 03/11/2016 46445 3137 CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES INC 350.13


03/16 03/11/2016 46446 3210 DANA KEPNER COMPANY INC 2,486.30


03/16 03/11/2016 46447 3339 DENNIS CRUMP WINDOW CLEANING 120.00


03/16 03/11/2016 46448 3610 EMPIRE SOUTHWEST, LLC 414.00


03/16 03/11/2016 46449 3648 ESG CORP 3,125.00


03/16 03/11/2016 46450 3704 FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 283.74


03/16 03/11/2016 46451 3710 FEDEX 100.51


03/16 03/11/2016 46452 3716 FERTIZONA - WILLCOX LLC 1,188.32


03/16 03/11/2016 46453 4372 INDUSTRIAL METAL SUPPLY COMPANY 482.67


03/16 03/11/2016 46454 4440 J & D STEAM CLEANING 275.00


03/16 03/11/2016 46455 5989 LEGALSHIELD 119.55


03/16 03/11/2016 46456 4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICES 79.00


03/16 03/11/2016 46457 5121 MARLIN BUSINESS BANK 98.12


03/16 03/11/2016 46458 5157 MARYLAND CHILD SUPPORT ACCOUNT 69.81


03/16 03/11/2016 46459 5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 597.14


03/16 03/11/2016 46460 5268 MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD PC 5,326.00


03/16 03/11/2016 46461 5295 MICROMARKETING, LLC 14.36


03/16 03/11/2016 46462 5544 NIKE USA, INC 777.22


03/16 03/11/2016 46463 5675 OSCHMANN EMPLOYEE SCREEING SERVICES 780.00


03/16 03/11/2016 46464 6052 PSOMAS 6,794.25


03/16 03/11/2016 46465 6620 SIERRA SOUTHWEST COOP SVCS INC 479.80


03/16 03/11/2016 46466 6701 SIMPLOT PARTNERS 416.19


03/16 03/11/2016 46467 6774 SOUTHWEST DISPOSAL 31,132.61


03/16 03/11/2016 46468 2791 SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARINGHOUSE 469.20


03/16 03/11/2016 46469 7040 TEXAS CANYON ROCK & SAND, INC. 425.08


03/16 03/11/2016 46470 11766 TRACY HOULIHAN 94.02


03/16 03/11/2016 46471 7402 US FOODS 1,283.87


03/16 03/11/2016 46472 7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 358.11


03/16 03/11/2016 46473 7671 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC 5,388.00


03/16 03/14/2016 46474 1023 A-1 PORT-A-POTS 164.00


03/16 03/14/2016 46475 1117 ALL CREATURES VETERINARY SVC 1,341.15


03/16 03/14/2016 46476 1063 ANIMAL RURAL KLINIC 168.75


03/16 03/14/2016 46477 1280 ARIZONA ASSOCIATION FOR PROPERTY 205.00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check
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GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


03/16 03/14/2016 46478 2599 CENTURYLINK 58.15


03/16 03/14/2016 46479 2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 2,576.31


03/16 03/14/2016 46480 2784 CNG 2,850.00


03/16 03/14/2016 46481 4333 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 1,222.89


03/16 03/14/2016 46482 6126 RANCHO MARIA VINEYARDS 310.00


03/16 03/14/2016 46483 6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY ELEC 33,126.74


          Grand Totals:  153,276.61


Report Criteria:


Report type:  Summary


Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check
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Report dates: 3/5/2016-3/20/2016 Mar 21, 2016  09:35AM


Report Criteria:


Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.


Only paid invoices included.


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


GENERAL FUND


10-22250  RETIREMENT PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND AZ STATE RETIREMENT    ACC  030416 03/11/2016 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION 20,281.14


GENERAL FUND NATIONWIDE  RETIREMENT SO 030416 03/11/2016 DEFERRED COMPENSATION 580.00


GENERAL FUND NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SO 030416A 03/11/2016 DEFERRED COMPENSATION 150.00


          Total 10-22250  RETIREMENT PAYABLE: 21,011.14


10-22255  POLICE DEPARTMENT RET PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREME 030416 03/11/2016 P.D. RETIREMENT 9,788.56


GENERAL FUND AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREME 030416A 03/11/2016 F.D. RETIREMENT 544.20


          Total 10-22255  POLICE DEPARTMENT RET PAYABLE: 10,332.76


10-22265  GARNISHMENTS PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND MARYLAND CHILD SUPPORT A L-030416 03/11/2016 #340002729 69.81


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN A-030416 03/11/2016 #0002160133-00 52.93


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN B-030416 03/11/2016 0001716217-00 140.77


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN K-030416 03/11/2016 #001347635700 47.24


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN K-030416A 03/11/2016 #001347663400 47.24


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN L-030416 03/11/2016 #000508942900 181.02


          Total 10-22265  GARNISHMENTS PAYABLE: 539.01


10-22280  HEALTH INSURANCE PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND ESG CORP 030416 03/11/2016 MONTHLY FUNDING 3,662.89


GENERAL FUND ESG CORP 35787 03/07/2016 BENEFIT ADMINISTRATION 1,689.70


          Total 10-22280  HEALTH INSURANCE PAYABLE: 5,352.59


10-22293  PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND LEGALSHIELD 030516 03/05/2016 PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICE 119.55


          Total 10-22293  PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES: 119.55


10-41-230  EMPLOYEE INSURANCE


GENERAL FUND ESG CORP 35787 03/07/2016 COBRA ADMINISTRATION 127.50


          Total 10-41-230  EMPLOYEE INSURANCE: 127.50


10-41-310  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - HR


GENERAL FUND OSCHMANN EMPLOYEE SCRE 32113 03/01/2016 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 4/16-3/17 780.00


GENERAL FUND SIERRA SOUTHWEST COOP SV 90008063 02/29/2016 PLAQUE ENGRAVING 30.77


          Total 10-41-310  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - HR: 810.77


10-41-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030416 03/04/2016 UTILITIES 395.55


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 419.01


          Total 10-41-410  UTILITIES: 814.56
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 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


10-41-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030116A 03/01/2016 MONTHLY SERVICE 58.15


          Total 10-41-415  TELEPHONE: 58.15


10-41-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  118596 02/02/2016 EXTERMINATING 62.00


          Total 10-41-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 62.00


10-41-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 65.50


          Total 10-41-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 65.50


10-41-670  VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT


GENERAL FUND CLEAR VIEW GLASS AND TINT WOA0014039 03/09/2016 REPLACE WINDSHIELD - HIGHLANDER 313.48


          Total 10-41-670  VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT: 313.48


10-43-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND BROWN & ASSOCIATES 28658 02/04/2016 PLAN REVIEW 259.91


GENERAL FUND BROWN & ASSOCIATES 28689 02/26/2016 PLAN REVIEW, BUILDING OFFICIAL, VARIOU 2,920.00


          Total 10-43-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 3,179.91


10-43-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 30.81


          Total 10-43-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 30.81


10-43-670  VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT


GENERAL FUND CNG 2083 02/21/2016 #107 - COMPLETE SERVICE 70.00


          Total 10-43-670  VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT: 70.00


10-45-330  IT SERVICES


GENERAL FUND FEDEX 5-331-66950 02/25/2016 EXPRESS MAIL 100.51


          Total 10-45-330  IT SERVICES: 100.51


10-45-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING


GENERAL FUND ARIZONA ASSOCIATION FOR P 021816A 02/18/2016 ANNUAL TRAINING 6/9-6/10/16 175.00


          Total 10-45-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING: 175.00


10-45-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030416 03/04/2016 UTILITIES 231.52


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 161.46


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 639.27


          Total 10-45-410  UTILITIES: 1,032.25


10-45-415  TELECOMMUNICATIONS


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030116 03/01/2016 MONTHLY SERVICE 64.85


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030116 03/01/2016 MONTHLY SERVICE 165.82


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030116 03/01/2016 MONTHLY SERVICE 367.74
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          Total 10-45-415  TELECOMMUNICATIONS: 598.41


10-45-430  BLDG & EQUIP REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  118608 02/02/2016 EXTERMINATING 29.00


          Total 10-45-430  BLDG & EQUIP REPAIRS & MAINT: 29.00


10-45-590  DUES & LICENSES


GENERAL FUND ARIZONA ASSOCIATION FOR P 021816 02/18/2016 MEMBERSHIP 2015-2016 30.00


          Total 10-45-590  DUES & LICENSES: 30.00


10-45-594  ANIMAL MEDICAL FROM DONATIONS


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  140238 01/25/2016 #8789 - MEDICAL 493.00


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  140289 01/28/2016 #8789 - MEDICAL 15.40


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  140377 02/03/2016 #8789 - MEDICAL 361.00


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  140511 02/15/2016 #8789 - MEDICAL 238.00


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  140543 02/17/2016 #8789 - MEDICAL 110.00


          Total 10-45-594  ANIMAL MEDICAL FROM DONATIONS: 1,217.40


10-45-595  SPAY & NEUTER FROM GRANTS


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  140206 01/25/2016 VOUCHER FOR NEUTER - 9000 123.75


GENERAL FUND ANIMAL RURAL KLINIC 011416 01/14/2016 RABIES, K9 SPAY & NEUTER 168.75


          Total 10-45-595  SPAY & NEUTER FROM GRANTS: 292.50


10-45-660  FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 1,974.91


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 38.29


          Total 10-45-660  FUEL & OIL: 2,013.20


10-45-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND CNG 2093 03/13/2016 #29 - LUBE, OIL CHANGE, MISC REPAIRS 350.00


          Total 10-45-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 350.00


10-46-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030416 03/04/2016 UTILITIES 231.51


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 657.42


          Total 10-46-410  UTILITIES: 888.93


10-46-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030116 03/01/2016 MONTHLY SERVICE 155.97


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9760968393 02/23/2016 AIR CARDS 280.07


          Total 10-46-415  TELEPHONE: 436.04


10-46-432  STATION REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  118609 02/02/2016 EXTERMINATING 37.00


          Total 10-46-432  STATION REPAIRS & MAINT: 37.00
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 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


10-46-660  FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 325.11


          Total 10-46-660  FUEL & OIL: 325.11


10-49-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030416 03/04/2016 UTILITIES 301.79


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 507.51


          Total 10-49-410  UTILITIES: 809.30


10-49-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  118611 02/02/2016 EXTERMINATING 47.00


          Total 10-49-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 47.00


10-49-696  BOOKS


GENERAL FUND MICROMARKETING, LLC 611169 02/27/2016 BOOKS 14.36


          Total 10-49-696  BOOKS: 14.36


10-50-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 1,642.79


          Total 10-50-410  UTILITIES: 1,642.79


10-50-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND A-1 PORT-A-POTS 030116 03/01/2016 PORT-A-POTS 164.00


          Total 10-50-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 164.00


10-50-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND FERTIZONA - WILLCOX LLC 18014370 02/24/2016 SEED 1,188.32


          Total 10-50-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES: 1,188.32


10-50-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 316.83


          Total 10-50-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 316.83


10-56-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND ESG CORP 35787 03/07/2016 MONTHLY FSA ADMINSTRATION 250.80


GENERAL FUND ESG CORP 35787 03/07/2016 HRA MONTHLY ADMINISTRATION 832.00


GENERAL FUND ESG CORP 35787 03/07/2016 EMPLOYER INFO RETURN FILING FEE 225.00


          Total 10-56-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 1,307.80


10-56-350  BANK CHARGES


GENERAL FUND CHASE 2/16A 02/29/2016 CREDIT CARD FEES 56.04


          Total 10-56-350  BANK CHARGES: 56.04


10-57-410  UTILITIES - POOL


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 554.48
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          Total 10-57-410  UTILITIES - POOL: 554.48


10-57-412  UTILITIES - COMM CENTER


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 031116 03/11/2016 UTILITIES 285.93


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 489.94


          Total 10-57-412  UTILITIES - COMM CENTER: 775.87


10-57-432  REPAIRS & MAINT - COMM CENTER


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  118612 02/02/2016 EXTERMINATING 32.00


          Total 10-57-432  REPAIRS & MAINT - COMM CENTER: 32.00


10-57-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 38.68


          Total 10-57-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 38.68


10-57-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND CNG 2080 02/22/2016 #2003 - MISC REPAIRS 525.00


          Total 10-57-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 525.00


10-58-546  FOOD BANK


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030416 03/04/2016 UTILITIES 125.16


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 332.40


          Total 10-58-546  FOOD BANK: 457.56


10-60-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030416 03/04/2016 UTILITIES 470.12


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 97.40


          Total 10-60-410  UTILITIES: 567.52


10-60-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030116 03/01/2016 MONTHLY SERVICE 236.08


          Total 10-60-415  TELEPHONE: 236.08


10-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  118620 02/03/2016 EXTERMINATING 37.00


          Total 10-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 37.00


10-60-580  TRAVEL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 13.43


          Total 10-60-580  TRAVEL: 13.43


10-60-635  Souvenier Inventory


GENERAL FUND SIERRA SOUTHWEST COOP SV 90008041 02/23/2016 POST CARDS 360.25


          Total 10-60-635  Souvenier Inventory: 360.25
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Invoice Amount


10-61-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD  212252 03/02/2016 LEGAL SERVICES FEBRUARY 2016 5,326.00


          Total 10-61-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 5,326.00


10-61-580  TRAVEL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 8.20


          Total 10-61-580  TRAVEL: 8.20


10-65-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND PSOMAS 115194 02/23/2016 PRELIMINARY TRAFFIC ENGINEERING REP 2,025.00


GENERAL FUND PSOMAS 115195 02/23/2016 VIGNETO - MASTER PLAN - 2ND 1/1-2/4/16 4,769.25


          Total 10-65-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 6,794.25


10-65-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 333.57


          Total 10-65-410  UTILITIES: 333.57


10-65-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 030116 03/01/2016 MONTHLY SERVICE 155.31


          Total 10-65-415  TELEPHONE: 155.31


10-65-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 36.88


          Total 10-65-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 36.88


          Total GENERAL FUND: 72,211.60


TRANSIT FUND


14-20300  GREYHOUND PAYABLE


TRANSIT FUND GREYHOUND 031116 03/11/2016 TICKET SALES 669.52


          Total 14-20300  GREYHOUND PAYABLE: 669.52


14-40-415  TELEPHONE


TRANSIT FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9761029114 02/23/2016 VIDEO CARDS 78.04


          Total 14-40-415  TELEPHONE: 78.04


14-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


TRANSIT FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 1,111.11


          Total 14-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 1,111.11


14-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS


TRANSIT FUND CNG 2087 02/26/2016 #7004 - LUBE/OIL CHANGE, BRAKE PADS, TI 315.00


TRANSIT FUND CNG 2091 02/15/2016 #7003 - REPLACED FUSE RELAY 245.00


          Total 14-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS: 560.00


          Total TRANSIT FUND: 2,418.67
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STREET FUND


20-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


STREET FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  118573 01/13/2016 WEED CONTROL 807.00


STREET FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  118726 02/22/2016 WEED CONTROL 807.00


          Total 20-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 1,614.00


20-40-410  UTILITIES


STREET FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 7,276.15


          Total 20-40-410  UTILITIES: 7,276.15


20-40-640  MATERIALS & SUPPLIES


STREET FUND CNG 2082 03/07/2016 EQUIPMENT REPAIR 50.00


STREET FUND CNG 2089 02/24/2016 REPAIRS TO ROLLER 245.00


          Total 20-40-640  MATERIALS & SUPPLIES: 295.00


20-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


STREET FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 303.90


          Total 20-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 303.90


20-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS


STREET FUND CNG 2090 02/22/2016 #2400 - LUBE, COMPLETE SERVICE 280.00


STREET FUND CNG 2092 03/05/2016 #7002 - OIL, REPLACED TIRES 140.00


          Total 20-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS: 420.00


          Total STREET FUND: 9,909.05


GRANTS FUND


46-60-100  Union Pacific Grants


GRANTS FUND SIERRA SOUTHWEST COOP SV 90008071 02/29/2016 PLAQUE ENGRAVING - UNION PACIFIC GRA 88.78


          Total 46-60-100  Union Pacific Grants: 88.78


46-80-100  CDBG PARKS


GRANTS FUND HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS F085309 02/19/2016 PARTS - CDBG PARKS 6.27


GRANTS FUND HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS F136008 02/19/2016 PARTS - CDBG PARKS 189.45


GRANTS FUND TEXAS CANYON ROCK & SAND 020556 02/29/2016 CDBG BATHROOMS - ROCK 425.08


          Total 46-80-100  CDBG PARKS: 620.80


          Total GRANTS FUND: 709.58


GAS FUND


50-22900  METER DEPOSITS - GAS


GAS FUND CAROLE BARRETT 030716 03/07/2016 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 9.66


GAS FUND TRACY HOULIHAN 030716 03/07/2016 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 44.02


          Total 50-22900  METER DEPOSITS - GAS: 53.68


50-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GAS FUND ARIZONA BLUE STAKE INC 2016-AA0059 01/31/2016 ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 147.33
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          Total 50-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 147.33


50-40-351  BANK CHARGES


GAS FUND CHASE 2/16 02/29/2016 CREDIT CARD FEES 197.51


          Total 50-40-351  BANK CHARGES: 197.51


50-40-410  UTILITIES


GAS FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030416 03/04/2016 UTILITIES 160.26


          Total 50-40-410  UTILITIES: 160.26


50-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GAS FUND BORDER STATES ELECTRIC S 910717177 02/01/2016 FREIGHT FOR PARTS 19.87


GAS FUND BORDER STATES ELECTRIC S 910723686 02/02/2016 PARTS 121.07


          Total 50-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 140.94


50-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GAS FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 234.79


          Total 50-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 234.79


50-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


GAS FUND CNG 2081 02/16/2016 #130 - REPLACED BATTERY 52.50


GAS FUND CNG 2085 02/25/2016 #2500 - OIL CHANGE, LUBE 35.00


GAS FUND CNG 2088 03/09/2016 #2100 - REPAIR SHOCKS 11.67


          Total 50-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 99.17


50-40-702  CIP TELEMETERS


GAS FUND DANA KEPNER COMPANY INC 8138450-02 02/15/2016 METERS 2,486.30


          Total 50-40-702  CIP TELEMETERS: 2,486.30


          Total GAS FUND: 3,519.98


WATER FUND


51-22900  METER DEPOSITS - WATER


WATER FUND TRACY HOULIHAN 030716 03/07/2016 REFUND WATER DEPOSIT 50.00


          Total 51-22900  METER DEPOSITS - WATER: 50.00


51-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


WATER FUND ARIZONA BLUE STAKE INC 2016-AA0059 01/31/2016 ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 147.33


          Total 51-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 147.33


51-40-350  BANK CHARGES


WATER FUND CHASE 2/16 02/29/2016 CREDIT CARD FEES 197.51


          Total 51-40-350  BANK CHARGES: 197.51


51-40-410  UTILITIES


WATER FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030416 03/04/2016 UTILITIES 113.32


WATER FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 8,967.62
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          Total 51-40-410  UTILITIES: 9,080.94


51-40-660  FUEL & OIL


WATER FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 705.25


          Total 51-40-660  FUEL & OIL: 705.25


51-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


WATER FUND CNG 2081 02/16/2016 #130 - REPLACED BATTERY 52.50


WATER FUND CNG 2084 03/11/2016 #164 - OIL CHANGE, REPAIR LEAK 105.00


WATER FUND CNG 2085 02/25/2016 #2500 - OIL CHANGE, LUBE 35.00


WATER FUND CNG 2088 03/09/2016 #2100 - REPAIR SHOCKS 11.67


          Total 51-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 204.17


          Total WATER FUND: 10,385.20


WASTEWATER FUND


52-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


WASTEWATER FUND ARIZONA BLUE STAKE INC 2016-AA0059 01/31/2016 ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 147.33


          Total 52-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 147.33


52-40-301  CHEMICAL ANALYSES


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1602421 02/18/2016 TESTING 32.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1602530 02/22/2016 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1602640 02/23/2016 TESTING 32.00


          Total 52-40-301  CHEMICAL ANALYSES: 79.00


52-40-350  BANK CHARGES


WASTEWATER FUND CHASE 2/16 02/29/2016 CREDIT CARD FEES 197.50


          Total 52-40-350  BANK CHARGES: 197.50


52-40-410  UTILITIES


WASTEWATER FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 030416 03/04/2016 UTILITIES 113.32


WASTEWATER FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 6,573.78


          Total 52-40-410  UTILITIES: 6,687.10


52-40-415  TELEPHONE


WASTEWATER FUND CENTURYLINK 030116 03/01/2016 MONTHLY SERVICE 97.32


          Total 52-40-415  TELEPHONE: 97.32


52-40-440  RENTALS


WASTEWATER FUND EMPIRE SOUTHWEST, LLC EPRA0001419 02/26/2016 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2/17-2/19/16 414.00


          Total 52-40-440  RENTALS: 414.00


52-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


WASTEWATER FUND HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS F122137 02/19/2016 PARTS FOR WWTP 1,027.17


WASTEWATER FUND INDUSTRIAL METAL SUPPLY C 0962168 02/20/2016 PARTS 482.67
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          Total 52-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 1,509.84


52-40-660  FUEL & OIL


WASTEWATER FUND VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN 869208801609 02/24/2016 FUEL 184.31


          Total 52-40-660  FUEL & OIL: 184.31


52-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


WASTEWATER FUND CLEAR VIEW GLASS AND TINT WOA0012123 12/03/2015 REPLACE WINDSHIELD 228.10


WASTEWATER FUND CNG 2086 03/12/2016 INT'L SEMI TRUCK - OIL, STARTER 315.00


WASTEWATER FUND CNG 2088 03/09/2016 #2100 - REPAIR SHOCKS 11.66


          Total 52-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 554.76


          Total WASTEWATER FUND: 9,871.16


SANITATION FUND


53-40-350  BANK CHARGES


SANITATION FUND CHASE 2/16 02/29/2016 CREDIT CARD FEES 197.50


          Total 53-40-350  BANK CHARGES: 197.50


53-40-667  RESIDENTIAL SERVICE CONTRACT


SANITATION FUND SOUTHWEST DISPOSAL 1476743 02/29/2016 RESIDENTIAL / COMMERICAL PICK UP 17,023.71


          Total 53-40-667  RESIDENTIAL SERVICE CONTRACT: 17,023.71


53-40-668  COMMERCIAL SERVICE CONTRACT


SANITATION FUND SOUTHWEST DISPOSAL 1476743 02/29/2016 COMMERICAL PICK UP 14,108.90


          Total 53-40-668  COMMERCIAL SERVICE CONTRACT: 14,108.90


          Total SANITATION FUND: 31,330.11


SAN PEDRO GOLF COURSE


55-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700537610 03/02/2016 MATS 23.76


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  118628 02/06/2016 EXTERMINATING 60.00


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR DENNIS CRUMP WINDOW CLEA 2/16 02/29/2016 WINDOW CLEANING FEBRUARY 120.00


          Total 55-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 203.76


55-40-310  INVENTORY- PRO SHOP


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NIKE USA, INC 980549371 12/21/2015 INVENTORY 134.23


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NIKE USA, INC 980679630 12/23/2015 INVENTORY 568.96


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NIKE USA, INC 982028158 01/26/2016 INVENTORY 74.03


          Total 55-40-310  INVENTORY- PRO SHOP: 777.22


55-40-350  BANK CHARGES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERICAN EXPRESS 2/16A 02/29/2016 CREDIT CARD FEES 68.07


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ETS CORPORATION 2/16A 02/29/2016 CREDIT CARD FEES 968.53


          Total 55-40-350  BANK CHARGES: 1,036.60
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55-40-410  UTILITIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 1,494.29


          Total 55-40-410  UTILITIES: 1,494.29


55-40-415  TELEPHONE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CENTURYLINK 030116 03/01/2016 MONTHLY SERVICE 466.76


          Total 55-40-415  TELEPHONE: 466.76


55-50-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  118606 02/03/2016 EXTERMINATING 35.00


          Total 55-50-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 35.00


55-50-410  UTILITIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 1,949.86


          Total 55-50-410  UTILITIES: 1,949.86


55-50-604  CHEMICALS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CROP PRODUCTION SERVICES  28923708 02/12/2016 CHEMICALS 350.13


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SIMPLOT PARTNERS 209019986 02/02/2016 CHEMICALS 416.19


          Total 55-50-604  CHEMICALS: 766.32


55-60-310  FOOD COST


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 022616 02/26/2016 FOOD 280.53


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 63201410SO 02/10/2016 FOOD 283.74


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 202066A 03/01/2016 FOOD 597.14


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 284640 03/04/2016 BLOODY MARY MIX 43.70


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODS 5713847 03/03/2016 FOOD 1,168.65


          Total 55-60-310  FOOD COST: 2,373.76


55-60-315  BEER COSTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 284639 03/04/2016 BEER COSTS 733.55


          Total 55-60-315  BEER COSTS: 733.55


55-60-316  WINE COSTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR PIERCE WINES ARIZONA LLC 158 03/02/2016 WINE 57.00


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR RANCHO MARIA VINEYARDS 030116 03/01/2016 WINE 310.00


          Total 55-60-316  WINE COSTS: 367.00


55-60-350  BANK CHARGES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERICAN EXPRESS 2/16 02/29/2016 CREDIT CARD FEES 65.63


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ETS CORPORATION 2/16 02/29/2016 CREDIT CARD FEES 511.14


          Total 55-60-350  BANK CHARGES: 576.77


55-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR J & D STEAM CLEANING 165469 03/06/2016 STEAM CLEANING FAN, HOODS, FILTERS, D 275.00


          Total 55-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 275.00
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55-60-440  RENTALS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700537615 03/02/2016 LINENS 71.32


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MARLIN BUSINESS BANK 13934926 03/03/2016 DISHWASHER 98.12


          Total 55-60-440  RENTALS: 169.44


55-60-603  KITCHEN SUPPLIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 022616 02/26/2016 FOOD 302.17


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODS 5713848 03/03/2016 SUPPLIES 115.22


          Total 55-60-603  KITCHEN SUPPLIES: 417.39


          Total SAN PEDRO GOLF COURSE: 11,642.72


AIRPORT


56-40-410  UTILITIES


AIRPORT CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 031116 03/11/2016 UTILITIES 147.83


AIRPORT SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 030416 03/04/2016 POWER 1,029.79


          Total 56-40-410  UTILITIES: 1,177.62


56-40-415  TELEPHONE


AIRPORT CENTURYLINK 030116 03/01/2016 MONTHLY SERVICE 65.92


          Total 56-40-415  TELEPHONE: 65.92


56-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


AIRPORT BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  118622 02/03/2016 EXTERMINATING 35.00


          Total 56-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 35.00


          Total AIRPORT: 1,278.54


          Grand Totals:  153,276.61


Report Criteria:


Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.


Only paid invoices included.





		Consent 1a - CC - Minutes - 1-31-15 Worksession

		Consent 1a - Exhibit - 1-31-15 Retreat

		Consent 1b - CC - Minutes - 2-8-16 Regular Meeting

		Consent 1b - Exhibit 1 - 2-8-16 Regular Meeting

		CALL TO ORDER:

		EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  None

		CALL TO THE PUBLIC:

		Jim Thelander, La Mesa Drive, Benson, expressed concerns about the (GDP) General Development Plan and noted the current GDP, under the “Cost of Development Principles” calls for projected growth to pay for itself, adding Goal 1 reads that new developm...

		Mayor King then asked if Pastor Mike from the First Baptist Church was present to give the invocation.  Pastor Mike was not present.

		Don Buchanan, River Road, St. David, stated Mr. Thelander, who has been on the City’s Planning & Zoning Commission for 10 years, shared some material with him and it contained a statement about constructing and dedicating water infrastructure to the C...

		Joan Horn, La Cuesta, Benson, stated she and her husband were both vets and they were proud of that, adding some people have given their life for this country.  Ms. Horn then stated she doesn’t want the animal shelter to be a place where animals are j...

		Frederica Powell, Low Lane, J-6 Ranch, stated she is a proud citizen of the community and began the Smiling Dog rescue program at her ranch in Benson.  Ms. Powell stated before Animal Control Office Laurie Fivecoat was hired, the shelter was a shelter...

		Geir Hundal, Fairmont Street, Tucson, stated the definition of shelter is a place that provides food and shelter for those in need.  Mr. Hundal then stated the animal shelter had an 89% live release rate which included the animals that needed to be pu...

		Suzanne Van Skike, Empire Road, Mescal stated she was not happy about the changes at the animal shelter, adding she was a volunteer there for almost a year, but 2 weeks ago Ms. Fivecoat went out on medical leave for 2 weeks and Ms. Van Skike was told ...

		Angela Roberts, Pearl Street, Benson, Arizona, stated when she first moved to Benson in 2010, she was warned to make sure her dogs stayed in her yard and didn’t go to the shelter and to make sure she got to the shelter quickly if they did, because the...

		Tricia Gerrodette, Eagle Ridge Drive, Sierra Vista, stated she looked forward to learning as much about (RDs) Revitalization Districts as she did about (CFDs) Community Facilities Districts.  Ms. Gerrodette stated the Council spent many months learnin...

		Nancy Young Wright, Wilkenson Drive, Tucson, spoke about the animal shelter stating she was a member of the Humane Society and is promoting legislation that promotes good care and doesn’t single out any breeds.  Ms. Wright then spoke about the Lucky D...

		Marcie Velen, Calle Montuoso, Tucson, stated she was the co-founder of No Kill Pima County and she came to share lessons she has learned, adding most no kill facilities can save money.  Ms. Velen then stated the no kill model she is referring to consi...

		Lupe Diaz, Post Rd, Benson, stated he was the President of the Chamber of Commerce and was a Pastor, then stated he also agreed the animal shelter should be non-kill and they should do everything they can to help the animal population.  Mr. Diaz then ...

		Stephen Insalaco, Pinto Place, J6 Ranch, stated he had prepared an address regarding the animal shelter, but noted a lot has already been said so he would briefly suggest that the Council issue a directive to Staff to get together with stakeholders an...

		Barbara Nunn, La Cuesta Drive, Benson stated she moved to Benson 7 years ago, adding Mr. Teza didn’t know her.  Ms. Nunn then stated they bought a house across from someone who wanted to kill their dogs and Mr. Teza told Ms. Nunn he would watch the do...

		Dave Thompson, La Cuesta Drive, Benson, stated the Fire Chief did a great job on the grant for the new fire truck and the department deserves it, adding they work hard to protect Benson and now have a truck they know will make it to the fire.  Mr. Tho...

		CITY MANAGER REPORT:

		Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor

		ATTEST:

		Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk



		Consent 1c - CC - Minutes - 2-22-16 Regular Meeting

		Consent 1c - Exhibit 1 - 2-22-16 Regular Meeting

		CALL TO ORDER:

		EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  None

		CALL TO THE PUBLIC:

		Anna Lands, Cascabel Road, Benson read a letter from Elna Odard, Cascabel Road, Benson commenting on Debbie Kilpatrick’s note that was sent out from the San Pedro Chamber of Commerce.  The letter read that the Army Corps of Engineers has not been stud...

		Stephen Insalaco, Pinto Place, J6 Ranch, stated he understands the development project proposes an Italian theme and cultural overtone with landscaping, community amenities and consumption of local water resources to fit this design.  Mr. Insalaco sta...

		Tricia Gerrodette, Eagle Ridge Drive, Sierra Vista, stated there are 2 legislative bills that are getting some attention: SB 1268 and SB1400, adding she was not sure if Council is aware of those bills or of the articles and editorials that have been w...

		Christopher Early, Pomerene, asked if the City of Benson was on-track or not, adding that was determined by each resident’s and prospector’s opinion.  Mr. Early stated he felt the City is on-track in the way that it is being less nitpicky on things th...

		David Thompson, La Cuesta Drive, Benson stated he was speaking to each individual Councilmember and to Staff because it was personal, adding he is a citizen and resident of Benson; he earns his livelihood, spends his tax money, bought a home, buys gro...

		Alex Binford-Walsh, Cascabel Road, Benson, stated he totally agreed with the previous speaker’s point of view, adding he does live in Cascabel, but the residents there feel like Benson is their town as well.  Mr. Binford-Walsh stated they come to Bens...

		CITY MANAGER REPORT:

		Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor

		ATTEST:

		Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk



		Consent 1d - CC - Processed Invoices 160314

		Consent 1d - Exhibit 1 - Check Register 02-17-16 thru 03-04-16

		Consent 1d - Exhibit 2 - Payment Approval Report 02-17-16 thru 03-04-16

		Consent 1e - CC - Processed Invoices 160328

		Consent 1e - Exhibit 1 - Check Register 03-05-16 thru 03-20-16

		Consent 1e - Exhibit 2 - Payment Approval Report 03-05-16 thru 03-20-16






                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Discussion:  
 
Mr. Jim Usevitch from Colby and Powell, PLC, Certified Public Accountants, will present the City’s audited 
financial statements to Council and will be available to answer Council’s questions. 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Presentation only 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 2 
                                               
From: Dustin DeSpain, Finance Director 
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Presentation of Certified Audit Report for the City of Benson for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 


 
To the City Council  
City of Benson, Arizona 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Benson, Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Benson, Arizona, as of 
June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, for the year ended June 30, 2015, the City 
adopted new accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Nos. 
68 and 71.  Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
The City of Benson has not presented the Management’s Discussion and Analysis that 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America has determined is 
necessary to supplement, although not required to be part of, the basic financial statements. Such 
missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Budgetary Comparison Schedules on pages 56 through 58, Schedule of the City’s Proportionate 
Share of the Net Pension Liability – Cost-Sharing Pension Plans on page 60, Schedule of 
Changes in the City’s Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios – Agent Pension Plans on 
page 61 through 62, Schedule of City Pension Contributions on page 63, and Schedule of Agent 
OPEB Plans’ Funding Progress on page 65, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the
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information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 
4, 2016, on our consideration of the City of Benson, Arizona’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the City of Benson, Arizona’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Arizona Revised Statutes 
 
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City 
failed to use highway user revenue fund monies received by the City pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statutes Title 28, Chapter 18, Article 2 and any other dedicated state transportation 
revenues received by the City solely for the authorized transportation purposes, insofar as they 
relate to accounting matters.  However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining 
knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other 
matters may have come to our attention regarding the City’s noncompliance with the use of 
highway user revenue fund monies and other dedicated state transportation revenues, insofar as 
they relate to accounting matters. 
 


 
March 4, 2016 
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CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Statement of Net Position 


June 30, 2015 
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Primary Government
Governmental Business-type


Activities Activities Total
ASSETS


Cash and cash equivalents 713,172$       1,960,668$    2,673,840$    
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 22,485           59,707           82,192           
Accounts receivable - net -                 92,822           92,822           
Taxes receivable 40,791           -                 40,791           
Due from other governments 330,611         157,992         488,603         
Prepaid expenses 166,293         144,902         311,195         
Inventory -                 6,663             6,663             
Due from (to) other funds 2,345,965      (2,345,965)     -                 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 712,778         7,744,582      8,457,360      
Capital assets, being depreciated, net 5,301,085      18,372,262    23,673,347    


Total assets 9,633,180      26,193,633    35,826,813    


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 765,921         183,334         949,255         


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 283,673         202,941         486,614         
Accrued expenses 17,866           13,111           30,977           
Deferred revenue -                 9,826             9,826             
Settlement liability 182,693         -                 182,693         
Interest payable 88,894           -                 88,894           
Refundable deposits -                 59,707           59,707           
Noncurrent liabilities


Due within 1 year 359,885         114,452         474,337         
Due in more than 1 year 8,901,307      1,847,223      10,748,530    


Total liabilities 9,834,318      2,247,260      12,081,578    


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions 834,171         377,172         1,211,343      


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,575,832      25,933,964    27,509,796    
Restricted for:


Public safety 22,485           -                 22,485           
Unrestricted (deficit) (1,867,705)     (2,181,429)     (4,049,134)     


Total net position (269,388)$      23,752,535$  23,483,147$  







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Statement of Activities 


June 30, 2015 
 
 


See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Charges Operating
for Grants and


Expenses Services Contributions


Primary government:
Governmental activities


General government 1,550,363$   86,948$         15,832$          
Public safety 2,559,738     6,855             116,603          
Highways and streets 552,966        -                 361,220          
Public works 58,968          -                 3,780              
Culture and recreation 883,183        22,669           18,465            
T ransit 198,399        8,420             108,165          
Interest on long-term debt 186,971        -                 -                  


Total governmental activities 5,990,588     124,892         624,065          


Business-type activities
Gas 711,059        798,545         -                  
Water 710,621        700,872         -                  
Liquid waste 704,192        713,059         -                  
Solid waste 593,522        621,551         -                  
Golf course 1,046,954     790,132         -                  
Municipal Airport 304,573        11,553           -                  


Total business-type activities 4,070,921     3,635,712      -                  


Total primary government 10,061,509$ 3,760,604$    624,065$        


General revenue:
Taxes:


Sales Tax
Property tax
Franchise tax


State sales tax revenue sharing
Auto lieu tax revenue sharing
State revenue sharing
Interest income
Miscellaneous


Total general revenue and transfers
Change in net position


Net position, July 1, 2014, as restated
Net position, June 30, 2015


Functions / Programs


Program Revenue 
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Capital
Grants and Governmental Business-type


Contributions Activities Activities Total


-$               (1,447,583)$   -$               (1,447,583)$   
1,726             (2,434,554)     -                 (2,434,554)     


-                 (191,746)        -                 (191,746)        
-                 (55,188)          -                 (55,188)          


7,319             (834,730)        -                 (834,730)        
-                 (81,814)          -                 (81,814)          
-                 (186,971)        -                 (186,971)        


9,045             (5,232,586)     -                 (5,232,586)     


-                 -                 87,486           87,486           
-                 -                 (9,749)            (9,749)            
-                 -                 8,867             8,867             
-                 -                 28,029           28,029           
-                 -                 (256,822)        (256,822)        


157,992         -                 (135,028)        (135,028)        
157,992         -                 (277,217)        (277,217)        


167,037$       (5,232,586)     (277,217)        (5,509,803)     


2,914,136      -                 2,914,136      
225,368         -                 225,368         
152,475         -                 152,475         
460,695         -                 460,695         
226,502         -                 226,502         
617,992         -                 617,992         


3,019             -                 3,019             
72,148           -                 72,148           


4,672,335      -                 4,672,335      
(560,251)        (277,217)        (837,468)        
290,863         24,029,752    24,320,615    


(269,388)$      23,752,535$  23,483,147$  


Primary Government
Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Balance Sheet 


Governmental Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
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Capital Other Total
General HURF/LTAF Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds


ASSETS


Cash and cash equivalents 552,392$          -$                  -$                  160,780$          713,172$          
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted 22,485              -                    -                    -                    22,485              
Taxes receivable 40,791              -                    -                    -                    40,791              
Due from other governments 290,435            33,617              -                    6,559                330,611            
Prepaid expenses 93,840              72,453              -                    -                    166,293            
Due from other funds 2,974,704         -                    -                    -                    2,974,704         


Total assets 3,974,647$       106,070$          -$                  167,339$          4,248,056$       


LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 104,020$          15,448$            -$                  164,205$          283,673$          
Accrued expenses 15,787              1,507                -                    572                   17,866              
Settlement liability 150,000            -                    -                    -                    150,000            
Due to other funds -                    625,605            -                    3,134                628,739            


Total liabilities 269,807            642,560            -                    167,911            1,080,278         


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES


Unavailable revenue 30,720              -                    -                    -                    30,720              


FUND BALANCES


Nonspendable 3,068,544         72,453              -                    -                    3,140,997         
Restricted for:


Public safety 22,485              -                    -                    -                    22,485              
Unassigned 583,091            (608,943)           -                    (572)                  (26,424)             


Total fund balances 3,674,120         (536,490)           -                    (572)                  3,137,058         


Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances 3,974,647$       106,070$          -$                  167,339$          4,248,056$       







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 


Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2015 
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Fund balances-total governmental funds 3,137,058$  


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
Statement of Net Position are different because:


Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore, are
not reported in the funds. 6,013,863    


Some receivables are not available to pay for
current-period expenditures and therefore,
are unavailable in the funds. 30,720        


Long-term liabilities, such as net pension liabilities
and bonds payable are not due and payable in
the current period and, therefore, are not 
reported as a liability in the funds. (9,382,779)   


Deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions are applicable to future
reporting periods and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds. (68,250)       


Net position of governmental activities (269,388)$   







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 


Governmental Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 


 
 


See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Capital Other Total
General HURF/LTAF Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund


Revenue
Taxes 3,217,918$       -$                  72,646$            -$                  3,290,564$       
Intergovernmental 1,423,517         361,220            -                    129,303            1,914,040         
Other revenue 96,487              -                    -                    -                    96,487              
Charges for services 59,663              -                    -                    8,420                68,083              
Licenses and permits 49,480              -                    -                    -                    49,480              
Fines and forfeitures 7,250                -                    -                    -                    7,250                
Interest 3,019                -                    -                    -                    3,019                


Total revenue 4,857,334         361,220            72,646              137,723            5,428,923         
 


Expenditures  
Current  


Public safety 2,057,620         -                    -                    10,241              2,067,861         
General government 1,247,220         -                    250,000            4,000                1,501,220         
Culture and recreation 688,379            -                    -                    -                    688,379            
Highways and streets -                    331,054            34,676              -                    365,730            
Transit -                    -                    -                    158,053            158,053            
Public works 55,830              -                    -                    -                    55,830              


Debt service
Principal 303,828            -                    -                    -                    303,828            
Interest 187,318            -                    -                    -                    187,318            


Capital outlay 21,139              -                    12,250              7,470                40,859              
Total expenditures 4,561,334         331,054            296,926            179,764            5,369,078         


 
Excess (deficiency) of revenue  


over expenditures 296,000            30,166              (224,280)           (42,041)             59,845              
 


Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in (out) (740,881)           -                    532,533            208,348            -                    


Net change in fund balance (444,881)           30,166              308,253            166,307            59,845              


Fund balance, beginning of year 4,119,001         (566,656)           (308,253)           (166,879)           3,077,213         


Fund balance, end of year 3,674,120$       (536,490)$         -$                  (572)$                3,137,058$       







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 


and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 
Governmental Funds 


Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 


See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds 59,845$      


Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities are different because:


Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of 
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense.


Current year capital acquisitions 40,859        
Current year depreciation expense (727,609)     


(686,750)     


Revenue in the Statement of Activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenue
in the funds.


Property taxes 1,414          


Town pension contributions are reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds when made.  However, 
they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in
the Statement of Net Position because the reported net
pension liability is measured a year before the Town's
report date.  Pension expense, which is the change in
the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions,
is reported in the Statement of Activities.


Town pension contributions 337,790      
PSPRS health insurance transfer (122,300)     
Pension expense (440,901)     


(225,411)     


Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.


Debt principal repaid 304,175      


Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities
do not require the use of current financial resources
and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.


Increase in settlement liability (32,693)       
Decrease in compensated absences payable 19,169        


(13,524)       


Change in net position of governmental activities (560,251)$   







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Statement of Net Position 


Proprietary Funds 
June 30, 2015 


 


See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Gas Water Liquid
Fund Fund Waste Fund


ASSETS
Current assets


Cash and cash equivalents 1,685,495$   -$              -$              
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 44,004          15,703          -                
Accounts receivable - net 5,596            22,140          24,301          
Due from other governments -                -                -                
Prepaid expenses -                86,943          57,959          
Inventory -                -                -                


Total current assets 1,735,095     124,786        82,260          


Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net of accumulated 


depreciation, where applicable:
Land -                55,771          354,792        
Utilit ies systems, net 482,574        2,264,089     705,817        
Buildings, net -                -                5,204,219     
Equipment, net -                10,104          51,193          
Capital assets, net 482,574        2,329,964     6,316,021     


Total noncurrent assets 482,574        2,329,964     6,316,021     


Total assets 2,217,669     2,454,750     6,398,281     


DEFERRED O UTFLO WS O F RESO URCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 35,934          53,260          34,902          


LIABILITIES
Current liabilities


Accounts payable 44,634          20,097          16,220          
Deferred revenue -                -                -                
Accrued expenses 3,387            2,847            2,993            
Refundable deposits 44,004          15,703          -                
Due to other funds -                377,903        309,276        
Compensated absences, current 10,718          20,611          21,612          
Lease payable, current -                -                -                


Total current liabilities 102,743        437,161        350,101        


Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences 2,679            5,153            5,403            
Lease payable -                -                -                
Net pension liability 334,170        495,291        324,572        


Total noncurrent liabilities 336,849        500,444        329,975        


Total liabilities 439,592        937,605        680,076        


DEFERRED INFLO WS O F RESO URCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions 73,927          109,571        71,804          


NET PO SITIO N
Net investment in capital assets 482,574        2,329,964     6,316,021     
Unrestricted (deficit) 1,257,510     (869,130)       (634,718)       


Total net position 1,740,084$   1,460,834$   5,681,303$   


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds







 
 
 
 
 


See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
- 13 - 


Solid Golf Municipal
Waste Fund Course Fund Airport Fund Total


275,173$      -$              -$              1,960,668     
-                -                -                59,707          


17,301          23,484          -                92,822          
-                -                157,992        157,992        
-                -                -                144,902        
-                6,663            -                6,663            


292,474        30,147          157,992        2,422,754     


82,500          7,091,914     159,605        7,744,582     
-                308,000        8,263,440     12,023,920   
-                776,994        -                5,981,213     
-                289,519        16,313          367,129        


82,500          8,466,427     8,439,358     26,116,844   


82,500          8,466,427     8,439,358     26,116,844   


374,974        8,496,574     8,597,350     28,539,598   


3,485            55,753          -                183,334        


76,229          30,271          15,490          202,941        
-                9,826            -                9,826            
-                3,884            -                13,111          
-                -                -                59,707          
-                614,345        1,044,441     2,345,965     
-                6,164            -                59,105          
-                55,347          -                55,347          


76,229          719,837        1,059,931     2,746,002     


-                1,541            -                14,776          
-                127,533        -                127,533        


32,405          518,476        -                1,704,914     


32,405          647,550        -                1,847,223     


108,634        1,367,387     1,059,931     4,593,225     


7,169            114,701        -                377,172        


82,500          8,283,547     8,439,358     25,933,964   
180,156        (1,213,308)    (901,939)       (2,181,429)    


262,656$      7,070,239$   7,537,419$   23,752,535   


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds


 







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 


Proprietary Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
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Gas Water Liquid
Fund Fund Waste Fund


O perating revenue
Charges for services, net of bad debt 798,545$      700,872$      713,059$      
Sales -                -                -                


Total operating revenue 798,545        700,872        713,059        


O perating expenses
Personnel 242,194        355,202        233,502        
Insurance 43,944          8,836            26,390          
Professional services 7,115            4,174            23,110          
Utilit ies 4,108            120,288        79,744          
Repairs and maintenance 8,122            17,194          34,668          
Materials and supplies 30,666          30,995          32,656          
Cost of sales 322,509        -                -                
Other 12,150          12,738          14,674          
Depreciation 40,251          161,194        259,448        


Total operating expenses 711,059        710,621        704,192        


O perating income (loss) 87,486          (9,749)           8,867            


Nonoperating revenue (expenses)
Interest expense -                -                -                


Income (loss) before capital
grants and transfers 87,486          (9,749)           8,867            


Capital grants -                -                -                


Increase (decrease) 
in net position 87,486          (9,749)           8,867            


Total net position, beginning of year, as resta 1,652,598     1,470,583     5,672,436     


Total net position, end of year 1,740,084$   1,460,834$   5,681,303$   


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Solid Golf Municipal
Waste Fund Course Fund Airport Fund Total


621,551$      446,890$      11,553$        3,292,470$   
-                343,242        -                343,242        


621,551        790,132        11,553          3,635,712     


22,894          417,250        -                1,271,042     
-                7,021            19,062          105,253        


562,878        36,006          5,905            639,188        
-                79,372          13,035          296,547        
-                71,732          6,899            138,615        
-                86,381          -                180,698        
-                145,679        -                468,188        


7,750            26,944          -                74,256          
-                169,069        259,672        889,634        


593,522        1,039,454     304,573        4,063,421     


28,029          (249,322)       (293,020)       (427,709)       


-                (7,500)           -                (7,500)           


28,029          (256,822)       (293,020)       (435,209)       


-                -                157,992        157,992        


28,029          (256,822)       (135,028)       (277,217)       


234,627        7,327,061     7,672,447     24,029,752   


262,656$      7,070,239$   7,537,419$   23,752,535$ 


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Statement of Cash Flows 


Proprietary Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2015 
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Gas Water Liquid
Fund Fund Waste Fund


Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers 806,787$      713,346$      717,107$      
Payments to suppliers and providers


of goods and services (424,374)       (193,543)       (209,524)       
Payments to employees (241,468)       (355,676)       (244,721)       


Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 140,945        164,127        262,862        


Cash flows from noncapital
financing activities:


Received from other funds 1,548,296     -                -                
Paid to other funds -                (156,054)       (262,862)       


Net cash provided (used) by 
noncapital financing activities 1,548,296     (156,054)       (262,862)       


Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:


Principal paid on long-term debt -                -                -                
Purchase of capital assets -                (7,954)           -                
Interest paid -                -                -                


Net cash provided (used) by 
capital and related financing
activities -                (7,954)           -                


Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents 1,689,241     119               -                


Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2014 40,258          15,584          -                


Cash and cash equivalents,
June 30, 2015 1,729,499$   15,703$        -$              


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Solid Golf Municipal
Waste Fund Course Fund Airport Fund Total


626,525$      802,350$      11,553$        3,677,668$   


(538,846)       (537,057)       (40,678)         (1,944,022)    
(23,253)         (421,152)       -                (1,286,270)    


64,426          (155,859)       (29,125)         447,376        


210,747        208,382        202,582        2,170,007     
-                -                -                (418,916)       


210,747        208,382        202,582        1,751,091     


-                (45,023)         -                (45,023)         
-                -                (173,457)       (181,411)       
-                (7,500)           -                (7,500)           


-                (52,523)         (173,457)       (233,934)       


275,173        -                -                1,964,533     


-                -                -                55,842          


275,173$      -$              -$              2,020,375$   


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Gas Water Liquid
Fund Fund Waste Fund


Reconciliation of operating income 
(loss) to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:


Operating income (loss) 87,486$        (9,749)$         8,867$          
Adjustments to reconcile operating


income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:


Depreciation 40,251          161,194        259,448        
Bad debts 2,335            8,784            5,856            
Pension expense 15,255          22,610          14,817          
Employer pension contributions (18,951)         (28,088)         (18,407)         


(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable 2,161            3,571            (1,808)           
Prepaid expenses -                (3,060)           (2,040)           


Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 4,240            3,742            3,758            
Deferred revenue -                -                -                
Accrued expenses 3,387            2,847            2,993            
Refundable deposits 3,746            119               -                
Compensated absences payable 1,035            2,157            (10,622)         


Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 140,945$      164,127$      262,862$      


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds


The Municipal Airport Fund acquired $10,299 of equipment on account for the year ending 
June 30, 2015.


NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL FINANCING, AND NONCAPITAL FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES
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Solid Golf Municipal
Waste Fund Course Fund Airport Fund Total


28,029$        (249,322)$     (293,020)$     (427,709)$     


-                169,069        259,672        889,634        
5,414            -                -                22,389          
1,479            23,668          -                77,829          


(1,838)           (29,401)         -                (96,685)         


(440)              7,279            -                10,763          
-                -                -                (5,100)           


31,782          (83,922)         4,223            (36,177)         
-                4,939            -                4,939            
-                3,884            -                13,111          
-                -                -                3,865            
-                (2,053)           -                (9,483)           


64,426$        (155,859)$     (29,125)$       447,376$      


Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds
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Trust
Fund


ASSETS


Cash and cash equivalents 592,772$    
Accounts receivable 517


Total assets 593,289      


NET POSITION


Held in trust for investment trust participants 593,289$    
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Trust
Fund


Additions:
Contributions 18,000$      
Other income 8,833         
Interest and dividends 539


Total additions 27,372       


Deductions:
Pension payments 27,200


Change in net position 172            


Net position, July 1, 2014 593,117


Net position, June 30, 2015 593,289$    
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accompanying financial statements of the City of Benson, Arizona (City) have been 
prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles applicable to 
governmental units adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). A 
summary of the City’s more significant accounting policies follows. 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 
The City is a general purpose local government that is governed by a separately elected City 
Council. The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the City (the primary 
government) and its component units. 
 
Component units are legally separate entities for which the City is considered to be financially 
accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part 
of the City’s operations. Therefore, data from these units is combined with data of the primary 
government. Discretely presented component units, on the other hand, are reported in a separate 
column in the combined financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the 
City. The discretely presented component unit discussed below has a June 30 year-end. 
 


The City of Benson Municipal Property Corporation is a nonprofit corporation 
incorporated under the laws of the State of Arizona. The principal objective of the 
Corporation is to assist the City of Benson, Arizona, in acquiring, constructing, financing, 
operating, improving or modifying public facilities for the benefit of all City of Benson, 
Arizona, residents. The Corporation’s board of directors consists of seven members.  For 
the year ending June 30, 2015, there was no activity. 


 
B. Basis of Presentation 
 
The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial 
statements. The government-wide statements focus on the City as a whole, while the fund 
financial statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides valuable information that 
can be analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the 
usefulness of the information. 
 
Government-wide statements—provide information about the primary government (the City) and 
its component unit. The statements include a statement of net position and a statement of 
activities. These statements report the financial activities of the overall government, except for 
fiduciary activities. They also distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities 
of the City and between the City and its discretely presented component units. Governmental 
activities generally are financed through taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type 
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
A statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues 
for each function of the City’s governmental activities and segment of its business-type 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function 
and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The City does not allocate indirect 
expenses to programs or functions. Program revenues include: 
 


• charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 
• operating grants and contributions, and 
• capital grants and contributions. 


 
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including internally dedicated resources 
and all taxes, are reported as general revenues. 
 
Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements to minimize the double counting of internal activities. However, charges for 
interfund services provided and used are not eliminated if the prices approximate their external 
exchange values. 
 
Fund financial statements—provide information about the City’s funds. Separate statements are 
presented for the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund categories. The emphasis of fund 
financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate 
column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as 
nonmajor funds. Fiduciary funds are aggregated and reported by fund type. 
 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from transactions 
associated with the fund’s principal activity in which each party receives and gives up essentially 
equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from 
transactions in which the parties do not exchange equal values. Revenues generated by ancillary 
activities are also reported as nonoperating revenues. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The HURF/LTAF Fund accounts for specific revenue received from the State of Arizona 
Highway User Revenue Fund and from State of Arizona Local Transportation Assistance Fund 
which are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
The Capital Projects Fund accounts for resources to be used for acquiring or constructing major 
capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds. 
 
The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 
The Gas, Water, Liquid Waste, Solid Waste, Golf Course, and Municipal Airport account for 
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, in 
which the intent of the City Council is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges; or for which the City Council has decided that periodic 
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, or net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 
 
The City reports the following fund types: 
 
The Trust Fund accounts for pension funds for various police officers and firefighters.  The City 
acts as trustee for such funds and does not have title to the assets or liabilities accounted for in 
this fund. 
 
C. Basis of Accounting 
 
The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in 
the year for which they are levied. Grants and donations are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements the provider imposed have been met. 
 
Governmental funds in the fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, 
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues 
reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 60 days 
after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for 
principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, compensated absences, 
and landfill closure and post closure care costs, which are recognized as expenditures to the 
extent they are due and payable. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Issuances of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital lease 
agreements are reported as other financing sources. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
D. Cash and Investments 
 
For purposes of its statement of cash flows, the City considers only those highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 
 
Nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts are stated at cost.  Money market 
investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts with a remaining maturity of 
one year or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated 
at fair value.  
 
E. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 


 
Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable in the proprietary funds are estimated by the 
City. 
 
F. Property Tax Calendar 
 
Property taxes are levied on or before the third Monday in August and are payable in two equal 
installments. The first installment is due on the first day of October and becomes delinquent after 
the first business day of November. The second installment is due on the first day of March of 
the next year and becomes delinquent after the first business day of May. 
 
A lien assessed against real property assessed attaches on the first day of January preceding 
assessment and levy thereof. 
 
Property taxes levied on residential property for current operations and maintenance expenses are 
limited to a percentage of the primary full cash value of such property. In addition, taxes levied 
for current operations and maintenance expenses on all types of property are limited to a 
maximum percentage increase over the prior year’s levy adjusted for new construction and 
annexations. Property taxes levied to pay principle and interest on bonded indebtedness are 
unlimited. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
G.  Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are reported at actual cost. Donated assets are reported at estimated fair value at 
the time received.  
 
Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the 
capital asset accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets 
reported in the government-wide statements and proprietary funds are as follows: 
 


Capitalization Depreciation Estimated
Threshold Method Useful Life


Land 5,000$         N/A N/A
Construction in progress 5,000           N/A N/A
Buildings 5,000           Straight-line 30
Infrastructure 5,000           Straight-line 25-40
Equipment 5,000           Straight-line 3-20


 
H. Investment Income 
 
Investment income is composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in the fair value of 
applicable investments. 
 
I. Compensated Absences 
 
Compensated absences consist of vacation leave earned by employees based on services already 
rendered. 
 
Employees may accumulate vacation hours equal to 1.5 times their annual vacation hours earned.  
Accordingly, vacation benefits are accrued as a liability in the financial statements. 
 
Unused sick leave hours in excess of 960 accumulated at May 1 each year are paid to each 
eligible employee at 25% of the employee’s normal hourly rate of pay. 
 
J.  Fund Balance Reporting 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54 requires fund 
balances to be properly reported within one of the fund balance categories listed below: 
 


1. Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 
not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact such as 
fund balance associated with inventories, prepaids, long-term loans and notes receivable 
(unless the proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned), 


2. Restricted fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes 
stipulated by constitution provisions or enabling legislation, or external resource 
providers, 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 


3. Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes 
determined by a formal action of the City’s city council, 


4. Assigned fund balances are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes but do 
not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, and 


5. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the City’s governmental funds 
and includes all spendable amounts not contained in other classifications. 


 
The City’s policy for committed fund balances is through formal City resolutions passed through 
the elected city council.  The process of rescinding a committed fund balance requires the same 
process. 
 
The City’s policy for assigned fund balances is through motions passed by the elected city 
council.  Assigned fund balances do not require a formal resolution. 
 
When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted 
(committed, assigned, or unassigned) amounts are available, the City’s policy is to apply the 
expenditure first to restricted, and then to unrestricted in the following order of committed, 
assigned, and then unassigned.  
 
K. Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Principles 
 
In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.  The primary objective of this Statement is 
to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It 
also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial 
support for pensions that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a 
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial 
reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting 
assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency.  The 
provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
June 15, 2014.  The City implemented this standard during this fiscal period.  See the subsequent 
notes for further details. 
 
In November 2013, the GASB issued Statement 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made 
Subsequent to the Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.  The 
objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition 
provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.  The issue 
relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government 
employer or nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the 
measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension liability.  The provisions of this 
Statement are required to be applied simultaneously with the provisions of Statement 68.  The 
City implemented this standard during this fiscal period.  See the subsequent notes for further 
details. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  
 
L. Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the pension 
plans’ fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plans.  For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) authorize the City to invest public monies in the State 
Treasurer’s investment pool; U.S. Treasury obligations; specified state and local government 
bonds; and interest-earning investments such as savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and 
repurchase agreements in eligible depositories. The statutes require collateral for demand 
deposits, certificates of deposit, and repurchase agreements at 101 percent of all deposits not 
covered by federal depository insurance. 
 
Deposits – At June 30, 2015, the carrying amount of the City’s total nonpooled cash in bank was 
$3,131,410 and the bank balance was $3,125,875. Of the bank balance, $500,000 was covered by 
federal depository insurance and the remainder was collateralized by securities held by the 
financial institutions. 
 
Investments – At June 30, 2015, the investments consisted of the following: 
 


Reported Fair
Rating Amount Value


Investment in State Treasurer's investment pool
Primary Government Unrated 115,253$ 115,253$ 


Investment in State Treasurer's investment pool
Fiduciary Funds Unrated 67,863$   67,863$   


 
The State Board of Investment provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s pools, and the Local 
Government Investment Pool Advisory Committee provides consultation and advice to the 
Treasurer. The fair value of a participant’s position in the pool approximates the value of that 
participant’s pool shares. Those shares are not identified with specific investments and are not 
subject to custodial credit risk. All other investments were insured or registered in the City’s 
name, or were held by the City or its agent in the City’s name. 
 
Restricted cash –$59,707 is restricted for refundable customer deposits in the proprietary funds 
and $22,485 of RICO funds is restricted for public safety. 
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NOTE 3 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 
 
The following table summarizes that City’s receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible, for 
the proprietary funds as of June 30, 2015: 
 


Gas Water Liquid Solid Golf
Fund Fund Waste Fund Waste Fund Course Fund Total


Accounts recievable 10,596$        28,112$        26,368$        21,436$        23,484$        109,996$      
Less allowance (5,000)           (5,972)           (2,067)           (4,135)           -                (17,174)         


5,596$          22,140$        24,301$        17,301$        23,484$        92,822$        
Accounts recivable - 
net


 
 
NOTE 4 – DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 
 
Amounts due from other governments at June 30, 2015, included $10,257 in county-shared 
revenue from auto lieu taxes, $34,792 in state-shared revenue from sales taxes, $212,028 in state-
shared revenue from city sales taxes collected by the State, $33,358 in revenue from the State for 
public safety grants, $33,617 in state-shared revenue from highway user revenue fund (HURF) 
taxes, and $6,559 in state-shared revenue from Arizona Department of Transportation. 
 
 
NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows: 
 


Balance Balance
July 1, 2014 Increases Decreases June 30, 2015


Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Land 705,308$      -$              -$             705,308$       
Construction in progress -                7,470            -               7,470             


Total capital assets not
   being depreciated 705,308        7,470            -               712,778         


Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 4,762,750     -                -               4,762,750      
Equipment 3,601,063     33,389          -               3,634,452      
Infrastructure 4,770,219     -                -               4,770,219      


Total 13,134,032   33,389          -               13,167,421    


Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (2,521,391)    (227,319)       -               (2,748,710)     
Equipment (2,426,230)    (308,981)       -               (2,735,211)     
Infrastructure (2,191,106)    (191,309)       -               (2,382,415)     


Total (7,138,727)    (727,609)       -               (7,866,336)     


Total capital assets being depreciated, net 5,995,305     (694,220)       -               5,301,085      


Governmental activities capital assets, net 6,700,613$   (686,750)$     -$             6,013,863$    
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS – Continued  
 


Balance Balance
July 1, 2014 Increases Decreases June 30, 2015


Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Land 7,744,582$   -$              -$             7,744,582$    
Construction in progress -                165,723        -               165,723         


Total capital assets not
   being depreciated 7,744,582     165,723        -               7,910,305      


Capital assets being depreciated:
Utility systems 18,158,332   -                -               18,158,332    
Buildings 9,894,642     -                -               9,894,642      
Equipment 1,266,359     25,987          -               1,292,346      


Total 29,319,333   25,987          -               29,345,320    


Less accumulated depreciation for:
Utility systems (5,756,727)    (543,408)       -               (6,300,135)     
Buildings (3,659,550)    (253,879)       -               (3,913,429)     
Equipment (832,870)       (92,347)         -               (925,217)        


Total (10,249,147)  (889,634)       -               (11,138,781)   


Total capital assets being depreciated, net 19,070,186   (863,647)       -               18,206,539    


Business-type activities capital assets, net 26,814,768$ (697,924)$     -$             26,116,844$  
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS – Continued  
 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 
 


Governmental activities:
General government 32,430$     
Public safety 253,058     
Highways and streets 191,309     
Transit 42,449       
Culture and recreation 204,361     
Public works 4,002        


Total governmental activities depreciation expense 727,609$   


Business-type activities:
Gas 40,251$     
Water 161,194     
Liquid waste 259,448     
Golf Course 169,069     
Airport 259,672     


Total business-type activities depreciation expense 889,634$   
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
The following schedule details the City’s long-term liability and obligation activity for the year 
ended June 30, 2015. 
 


Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015 1 year


Governmental activities:
Compensated absences 176,178$     -$             19,169$       157,009$     125,607$     
Net pension liability 4,864,903    -               198,751       4,666,152    -               
Capital leases payable 67,385         -               67,385         -               -               
Bond payable-refunding 2,220,000    -               105,000       2,115,000    110,000       
Bonds payable 2,390,000    -               115,000       2,275,000    115,000       
Bond discount (36,053)        -               (2,403)          (33,650)        (2,403)          
Notes payable 98,124         -               16,443         81,681         11,681         
Governmental activities


long-term liabilities 9,780,537$  -$             519,345$     9,261,192$  359,885$     


Business-type activities:
Compensated absences 83,364$       -$             9,483$         73,881$       59,105$       
Net pension liability 2,028,744    -               323,830       1,704,914    -               
Capital leases payable 227,903       -               45,023         182,880       55,347         
Business-type activities


long-term liabilities 2,340,011$  -$             378,336$     1,961,675$  114,452$     


 
The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the City’s bonds and 
notes payable at June 30, 2015. 
 


Year
Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest


2016 11,681$       3,121$         222,597$     174,566$       234,278$     177,686$           
2017 10,000         2,700           227,597       167,666         237,597       170,366             
2018 10,000         2,300           232,597       160,028         242,597       162,328             
2019 10,000         1,900           242,597       150,228         252,597       152,128             
2020 10,000         1,500           252,597       140,666         262,597       142,166             


2021-25 30,000         2,100           1,422,981    531,682         1,452,981    533,782             
2026-30 -               -               1,755,384    175,216         1,755,384    175,216             


Total 81,681$       13,621$       4,356,350$  1,500,050$    4,438,031$  1,513,671$        


Governmental Activities


Notes Payable Bonds Payable Total
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – Continued  
 


Bonds Payable – The City’s bonded debt consists of a 2010 Excise Tax Revenue Bond issuance 
of $5,240,000. The Excise Tax Revenue Bond requires repayments of interest only due semi-
annually starting January 1, 2011, with annual principal payments starting on July 1, 2011. 
Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2015, were as follows: 
 


Original Maturity Interest Outstanding
Amount Ranges Rates Principal


Excise tax revenue bond 2,525,000$  2030 3.70% 2,275,000$  
Excise tax revenue refunding bond 2,715,000    2030 3.70% 2,115,000    


Total excise tax revenue bonds 5,240,000$  4,390,000    


Amortized bond discount (33,650)        


Revenue bonds, net 4,356,350$  


Description


Governmental Activities


 
Notes Payable – Notes payable consisted of the following: 
 


Original Maturity Interest Outstanding
Amount Ranges Rates Principal


Note payable -  Company 100,000$     2023 4.00% 80,000$       
Note payable -  Individual 60,000         2016 7.00% 1,681           


Total notes payable 160,000$     81,681$       


Governmental Activities


Description


 
Capital Leases Payable – The City has acquired equipment under the provisions of a long-term 
lease agreements classified as capital leases for accounting purposes because they provides for a 
bargain purchase option or a transfer of ownership by the end of the lease term. 
 
The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the City’s capital leases 
payable at June 30, 2015. 
 


Total
Minimum


Principal Interest Lease Pmts


55,347$         6,727$         62,074$             
53,226           4,072           57,298               
55,363           1,936           57,299               
18,944           156              19,100               


182,880$       12,891$       195,771$           


Business-type Activities
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – Continued  
 
The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 
 


Business-type
Activities


Equipment 259,642$         
Less: accumulated depreciation (49,456)           


Carrying value 210,186$         


 
 


NOTE 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City carries 
commercial insurance for all such risks of loss, including workers’ compensation and 
employees’ health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not 
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
 
NOTE 8 – RESTATEMENT OF BEGINNING NET POSITION 
 
Net position of the Gas Fund and the Business-type Activities was increased by $85,945 to adjust 
for golf course sales taxes expensed in the Gas Fund in prior periods.  Beginning sales tax 
payable of the Golf Course Fund and the Business-type Activities was decreased by $85,945. 
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NOTE 9 – CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 
 
Net position as of July 1, 2014, has been restated as follows for the implementation of GASB 
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as amended by GASB 
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date. 
 


Governmental 
Activities


Business-type 
Activities


Net position as previously 
reported at June 30, 2014 4,799,854$                      25,947,360$                    


Prior period adjustments-
implementation of GASB 68:


Net pension liability 
(measurement date as of 
June 30, 2013) (4,864,903)                      (2,028,744)                      
Deferred outflows-Town 
contributions made during 
fiscal year 2014 355,912                           111,136                           


Total prior period adjustment (4,508,991)                      (1,917,608)                      
Net position, as restated, July 
1, 2014 290,863$                         24,029,752$                    
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NOTE 9 – CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE – Continued 
 


Gas Fund Water Fund Liquid Waste Fund


Net position as previously 
reported at June 30, 2014 2,028,457$                      2,027,663$                      6,037,500$                      


Prior period adjustments-
implementation of GASB 68:


Net pension liability 
(measurement date as of 
June 30, 2013) (397,642)                         (589,366)                         (386,221)                         
Deferred outflows-Town 
contributions made during 
fiscal year 2014 21,783                             32,286                             21,157                             


Total prior period adjustment (375,859)                         (557,080)                         (365,064)                         
Net position, as restated, July 
1, 2014 1,652,598$                      1,470,583$                      5,672,436$                      


Solid Waste Fund Golf Course Fund


Net position as previously 
reported at June 30, 2014 271,075$                         7,910,218$                      


Prior period adjustments-
implementation of GASB 68:


Net pension liability 
(measurement date as of 
June 30, 2013) (38,560)                           (616,955)                         
Deferred outflows-Town 
contributions made during 
fiscal year 2014 2,112                               33,798                             


Total prior period adjustment (36,448)                           (583,157)                         
Net position, as restated, July 
1, 2014 234,627$                         7,327,061$                      
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
The City contributes to the pension plans described below.  The plans are component units of the 
State of Arizona.  
 
At June 30, 2015, the City reported the following aggregate amounts related to pensions for all 
plans to which it contributes: 
 
Statement of Net Position and 
Statement of Activities


Governmental 
Activities


Business-type 
Activities Total


Net pension liabilities 4,666,152$                      1,704,913$                      6,371,065$                      
Deferred outflows of 
resources 765,921                           183,333                           949,254                           
Deferred inflows of resources 834,171                           377,172                           1,211,343                        
Pension expense 440,901                           77,829                             518,730                           


The City reported $360,183 of pension expenditures in the governmental funds related to all 
pension plans to which it contributes. 
 
A.  Arizona State Retirement System 
 
Plan Description – City employees not covered by the other pension plans described below 
participate in the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS). The ASRS administers a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit health insurance premium benefit (OPEB) plan, and a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit long-term disability (OPEB) plan. The Arizona State Retirement 
System Board governs the ASRS according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, 
Articles 2 and 2.1. The ASRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes its 
financial statements and required supplementary information. The report is available on its Web 
site at www.azasrs.gov. 
 



http://www.azasrs.gov/�
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued 
 
Benefits Provided – The ASRS provides retirement, health insurance premium supplement, 
long-term disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefits terms. Retirement 
benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly compensation, and service credit as 
follows: 
 
ASRS


Before July 1, 2011 On or after July 1, 2011


Years of service and age 
required to receive benefit


Sum of years and age 
equals 80  30 years age 55


10 years age 62 25 years age 60
5 years age 50* 10 years age 62


any years age 65 5 years age 50*
any years age 65


Final average salary is based 
on 


Highest 36 months of 
last 120 months


Highest 60 months of 
last 120 months


Benefit percent per year of 
service


2.1% to 2.3% 2.1% to 2.3%


*With actuarially reduced benefits.


Retirement
Initial membership date:


 
Retirement benefits for members who joined the ASRS prior to September 13, 2013, are subject 
to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on excess investment earning.  Members with a 
membership date on or after September 13, 2013, are not eligible for cost-of-living adjustments.  
Survivor benefits are payable upon a member’s death.  For retired members, the survivor benefit 
is determined by the retirement benefit option chosen.  For all other members, the beneficiary is 
entitled to the member’s account balance that includes the member’s contributions and 
employer’s contributions, plus interest earned. 
 
Contributions – In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine active 
member and employer contribution requirements.  The combined active member and employer 
contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits employees earn during the year, 
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  For the year ended June 30, 
2015, active ASRS members were required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined 
rate of 11.6 percent (11.48 percent for retirement and 0.12 percent for long-term disability) of the 
members’ annual covered payroll, and the City was required by statute to contribute at the 
actuarially determined rate of 11.6 percent (10.89 percent for retirement, 0.59 percent for health 
insurance premium benefit, and 0.12 percent for long-term disability) of the active members’ 
annual covered payroll.  The City’s contributions to the pension plan for the year ended June 30, 
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
2015, were $248,052.  The City’s contributions for the current and two preceding years for 
OPEB, all of which were equal to the required contributions, were as follows: 
 


ASRS Health Benefit 
Supplement Fund


Long-term Disability 
Fund


Year ended June 30,
2015 13,679$                           2,736$                             
2014 15,140                             6,056                               
2013 15,676                             6,532                                


 
During fiscal year 2015, the City paid for ASRS pension and OPEB contributions as follows: 
52.87 percent from the General Fund, 4.95 percent from the HURF/LTAF Fund, 3.21 percent 
from the Transit Fund, 7.64 percent from the Gas Fund, 11.32 percent from the Water Fund, 7.42 
percent from the Liquid Waste Fund, 0.74 percent from the Solid Waste Fund, and 11.85 percent 
from the Golf Course Fund. 
 
Pension Liability – At June 30, 2015, the City reported a liability of $4,374,107 for its 
proportionate share of the ASRS’ net pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured 
as of June 30, 2014.  The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined using update procedures to roll forward the total pension liability from an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2013, to the measurement date of June 30, 2014.  The City’s proportion 
of the net pension liability was based on the City’s actual contributions to the plan relative to the 
total of all participating employers’ contributions for the year ended June 30, 2014.  The City’s 
proportion measured as of June 30, 2014, was .029562 percent, which was a decrease of .001747 
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2013. 
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources – For the year ended June 30, 
2015, the City recognized pension expense for ASRS of $440,901.  At June 30, 2015, the City 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources: 
 
ASRS Deferred Outflows of 


Resources
Deferred Inflows of 


Resources


Differences between expected 
and actual experience 222,305$                         -$                                
Net difference between 
projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments -                                  764,896                           
Changes in proportion and 
differences between Town 
contributions and 
proportionate share of 
contributions -                                  202,773                           
Town contributions 
subsequent to the 
measurement date 248,052                           -                                  


Total 470,357$                         967,669$                         


The $248,052 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ASRS pensions resulting 
from City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of 
the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016.  Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to ASRS pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 


Year ended June 30,
2016 (182,732)$                       
2017 (182,732)                         
2018 (188,676)                         
2019 (191,224)                         
2020 -                                  


Thereafter -                                  
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
Actuarial Assumptions – The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total 
pension liability are as follows: 
 
ASRS
Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2013
Actuarial roll forward date June 30, 2014
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Investment rate of return 8%
Projected salary increases 3 - 6.75%
Inflation 3%
Permanent benefit increase Included 
Mortality rates 1994 GAM Scale BB


Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013, valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2012. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on ASRS pension plan investments was determined to be 
8.79 percent using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates 
of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 
ASRS


Asset Class Target Allocation
Long-term Expected 
Real Rate of Return


Equity 63% 7.03%
Fixed income 25% 3.20%
Real estate 8% 4.50%


Commodities 4% 4.75%
Total 100%


Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the ASRS total pension liability was 8 
percent, which is less than the long-term expected rate of return of 8.79 percent.  The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating 
employers will be made based on the actuarially determined rates based on the ASRS Board’s 
funding policy, which establishes the contractually required rate under Arizona statute.  Based on 
those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued 
 
Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the ASRS Net Pension Liability to Changes 
in the Discount Rate – The following table presents the City’s proportionate share of the net 
pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 8 percent, as well as what the City’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1 percentage point lower (7 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (9 percent) than the 
current rate: 
 
ASRS


1%  Decrease Current Discount Rate 1%  Increase
(7% ) (8% ) (9% )


Town's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability 5,528,646$                      4,374,107$                      3,747,711$                      


Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued ASRS financial report. 
  
B.  Public Safety Personnel Retirement System 
 
Plan Descriptions – City police and fir employees participate in the Public Safety Personnel 
Retirement System (PSPRS).  The PSPRS administers an agent multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan and an agent multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance premium 
benefit (OPEB) plan (agent plans).  A seven-member board known as the Board of Trustees and 
the participating local boards govern the PSPRS according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, 
Chapter 5, Article 4. 
 
The PSPRS issue publicly available financial reports that include their financial statements and 
required supplementary information. The reports are available on the PSPRS Web site at 
www.psprs.com. 
 
Benefits Provided – The PSPRS provide retirement, health insurance premium supplement, 
disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefits terms. 
 



http://www.psprs.com/�
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
Retirement, disability, and survivor benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly 
compensation, and service credit as follows: 
 
PSPRS


Before January 1, 2012
On or after January 1, 


2012
Retirement and Disability


Years of service and age 
required to receive benefit 20 years any age 25 years and age 52.5


15 years age 62  
 


Final average salary is based on 
Highest 36 months of 


last 20 years
Highest 60 months of 


last 20 years


Benefit percent   
Normal Retirement 50% less 2.0% for each 


year of credited service 
less than 20 years OR 
plus 2.0% to 2.5% for 
each year of credited 


services over 20 years, 
not to exceed 80%


2.5% per year of credited 
service, not to exceed 


80%


Accidental Disability Retirement
 


Catastrophic Disability 
Retirement


Ordinary Disability Retirement


Survivor Benefit
Retired Members
Active Members 80% if accidental disability retirement benefit or 


100% of average monthly compensation if death was 
result of injuries received on the job


Initial membership date:


50% or normal retirement, whichever is greater


90% for the first 60 months then reduced to either 
62.5% or normal retirement, whichever is greater
Normal retirement calculated with actual years of 
credited service or 20 years of credited service, 


whichever is greater, multiplied by years of credited 
service (not to exceed 20 years) divided by 20


80% of retired member's pension benefit


Retirement and survivor benefits are subject to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on 
excess investment earning.  PSPRS also provides temporary disability benefits of 50 percent of 
the member’s compensation for up to 12 months. 
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms – At June 30, 2015, the following employees were 
covered by the agent pension plans’ benefit terms: 
 


PSPRS Police PSPRS Fire


Inactive employees or 
beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefits 4                                        -                                     
Inactive employees entitled to 
but not yet receiving benefits 2                                        -                                     
Active employees 13                                      1                                        
Total 19                                      1                                        


 
Contributions and Annual OPEB Cost – State statutes establish the pension contribution 
requirements for active PSPRS employees.  In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial 
valuations determine employer contribution requirements for PSPRS pension and health 
insurance premium benefits.  The combined active member and employer contribution rates are 
expected to finance the costs of benefits employees earn during the year, with an additional 
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  Contributions rates for the year ended June 
30, 2015, are indicated below.  Rates are a percentage of active members’ annual covered 
payroll. 
 


PSPRS Police PSPRS Fire


Active Members - Pension 11.05% 11.05%
Town


Pension 21.22% 20.73%
Health insurance premium 
benefit 1.27% 1.12%
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
For the agent plans, the City’s contributions to the pension plan and annual OPEB cost and 
contributions for the health insurance premium benefit for the year ended June 30, 2015, were: 
 


PSPRS Police PSPRS Fire


Contributions Made 174,082$                           12,341$                             


Health Insurance Premium 
Benefit
Annual OPEB cost 10,894                               1,482                                 
Contributions made 10,894                               1,482                                 


 
During fiscal year 2015, the City paid for 100 percent of PSPRS pension and OPEB 
contributions from the General Fund. 
 
Net Pension Liability (Asset) – At June 30, 2015, the City reported the following net pension 
liabilities: 
 
PSPRS


Net Pension Liability 
(Asset)


PSPRS Police 1,912,415$                        
PSPRS Fire 84,543                               


The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The 
total pension liabilities as of June 30, 2014, reflect the following changes of benefit terms and 
actuarial assumptions: 
 


•  In February 2014, the Arizona Supreme Court affirmed a Superior Court ruling that a 
2011 law that changed the mechanism for funding permanent benefit increases was 
unconstitutional. As a result, the plans changed benefit terms to reflect the prior 
mechanism for funding permanent benefit increases and revised actuarial assumptions to 
explicitly value future permanent benefit increases. 


 
•  The wage growth actuarial assumption was decreased from 4.5 percent to 4.0 percent.   
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
Pension Actuarial Assumptions – The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the 
total pension liabilities are as follows: 
 
PSPRS
Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2014
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Discount rate 7.85%
Projected salary increases 4.0%-80%
Inflation 4.0%
Permanent benefit increase Included 
Mortality rates RP-2000 mortality table 


(adjusted by 105% for 
both males and females)


Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015, valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2011. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on PSPRS pension plan investments was determined to be 
7.85 percent using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class.  The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real 
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 
PSPRS


Asset Class Target Allocation
Long-term Expected 
Real Rate of Return


Short term investments 2% 3.25%
Absolute return 4% 6.75%


Risk parity 4% 6.04%
Fixed Income 7% 4.75%
Real assets 8% 5.96%


GTAA 10% 5.73%
Private Equity 11% 9.50%


Real estate 11% 6.50%
Credit opportunities 13% 8.00%


Non-U.S. equity 14% 8.63%
U.S. equity 16% 7.60%


Total 100%
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
Pension Discount Rates – The following discount rates were used to measure the total pension 
liabilities: 
 


PSPRS Police PSPRS Fire


Discount rates 7.85% 7.85%
 


The projection of cash flows used to determine the PSPRS discount rates assumed that plan 
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer 
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the actuarially determined 
contribution rate and the member rate.  Based on those assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 
 
PSPRS - Police


Total Pension Liability 
(Asset) (a)


Plan Fiduciary Net 
Position (b)


Net Pension Liability 
(Asset) (a) - (b)


Balances at June 30, 2014 3,443,201$                        1,860,584$                        1,582,617$                      
Changes for the year


Service Cost 144,455                             -                                     144,455                           
Interest on the total pension 
liability 267,446                             -                                     267,446                           
Changes of benefit terms 75,099                               -                                     75,099                             


Differences between expected 
and actual experience in the 
measurement of the pension 
liability (145,164)                            -                                     (145,164)                         
Changes of assumptions or 
other inputs 327,183                             -                                     327,183                           
Contributions-employer -                                     173,370                             (173,370)                         
Contributions-employee -                                     82,762                               (82,762)                           
Net investment income -                                     240,572                             (240,572)                         
Benefit payments, including 
refunds of employee 
contributions (216,951)                            (216,951)                            -                                  
Administrative expense -                                     -                                     -                                  
Other changes -                                     (157,483)                            157,483                           


Net changes 452,068                             122,270                             329,798                           
Balances at June 30, 2015 3,895,269$                        1,982,854$                        1,912,415$                      


Increase (Decrease)


 







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Notes to Financial Statements 


June 30, 2015 
 


- 49 - 


NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
PSPRS - Fire


Total Pension Liability 
(Asset) (a)


Plan Fiduciary Net 
Position (b)


Net Pension Liability 
(Asset) (a) - (b)


Balances at June 30, 2014 463,920$                           357,814$                           106,106$                         
Changes for the year


Service Cost 13,510                               -                                     13,510                             
Interest on the total pension 
liability 36,948                               -                                     36,948                             
Changes of benefit terms (140)                                   -                                     (140)                                


Differences between expected 
and actual experience in the 
measurement of the pension 
liability (33,897)                              -                                     (33,897)                           
Changes of assumptions or 
other inputs 20,043                               -                                     20,043                             
Contributions-employer -                                     8,548                                 (8,548)                             
Contributions-employee -                                     7,093                                 (7,093)                             
Net investment income -                                     48,425                               (48,425)                           
Benefit payments, including 
refunds of employee 
contributions -                                     -                                     -                                  
Administrative expense -                                     -                                     -                                  
Other changes -                                     (6,039)                                6,039                               


Net changes 36,464                               58,027                               (21,563)                           
Balances at June 30, 2015 500,384$                           415,841$                           84,543$                           


Increase (Decrease)


Sensitivity of the City’s Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – The 
following table presents the City’s net pension liabilities calculated using the discount rates 
noted above, as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using 
a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 


1%  Decrease Current Discount Rate 1%  Increase


PSPRS Police
Rate 6.85% 7.85% 8.85%
Net pension liability 2,385,743$                        1,912,415$                        1,516,814$                      


PSPRS Fire
Rate 6.85% 7.85% 8.85%
Net pension liability 150,855$                           84,543$                             29,665$                           


Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued PSPRS financial reports. 
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
Pension Expense – For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized the following pension 
expense: 
 


Pension Expense


PSPRS Police 312,551$                           
PSPRS Fire 6,502                                 


Pension Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources – At June 30, 2015, the City reported 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 
 
PSPRS - Police Deferred Outflows of 


Resources
Deferred Inflows of 


Resources


Differences between expected 
and actual experience -$                                   123,812$                           
Changes of assumptions or 
other inputs 279,058                             -                                     
Net difference between 
projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments -                                     80,890                               
Town contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date


174,082                             -                                     


Total 453,140$                           204,702$                           


PSPRS - Fire Deferred Outflows of 
Resources


Deferred Inflows of 
Resources


Differences between expected 
and actual experience -$                                   22,689$                             
Changes of assumptions or 
other inputs 13,416                               -                                     
Net difference between 
projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments -                                     16,283                               
Town contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date


12,341                               -                                     


Total 25,757$                             38,972$                             
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 


PSPRS Police PSPRS Fire
Year ended June 30,


2016 6,550$                               (8,652)$                              
2017 6,550                                 (8,652)                                
2018 6,551                                 (4,182)                                
2019 6,551                                 (4,070)                                
2020 26,773                               -                                     


Thereafter 21,381                               -                                     


 
Agent Plan OPEB Actuarial Assumptions – The health insurance premium benefit 
contribution requirements for the year ended June 30, 2015, were established by the June 30, 
2013, actuarial valuations, and those actuarial valuations were based on the following actuarial 
methods and assumptions. 
 
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the reported amounts’ value and assumptions about the 
probability of events in the future.  Amounts determined regarding the plans’ funded status and 
the annual required contributions are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
to past expectations and new estimates are made.  The required schedule of funding progress for 
the health insurance premium benefit presented as required supplementary information provides 
multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of the plans’ assets are 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 
Projections of benefits are based on (1) the plans as understood by the City and plans’ members 
and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date, and (2) the pattern of sharing 
benefit costs between the City and plans’ members to that point.  Actuarial calculations reflect a 
long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.  The actuarial 
methods and assumptions used to establish the fiscal year 2015 contribution requirements are as 
follows: 
 
PSPRS - OPEB Contribution Requirements
Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2013
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percent closed for 


unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability, open 


for excess
Remaining amortization period 23 years for unfunded 


actuarial accrued 
liability, 20 years for 


excess
Asset valuation method 7-year smoothed market 


value; 20% corridor
Actuarial assumptions:  
Investment rate of return 7.85%
Projected salary increases 4.5%-8.5%
Wage growth 4.5%


Agent Plan OPEB Trend Information – Annual OPEB cost information for the health 
insurance premium benefit for the current and two preceding years: 
 


Year ended June 30, Annual OPEB Cost
Percentage of Annual 


Cost Contributed Net OPEB Obligation
PSPRS Police


2015 10,894$                             100% (51,736)$                         
2014 9,134                                 100% (21,283)                           
2013 9,842                                 100% 114,719                           


PSPRS Fire
2015 1,482$                               100% 9,746$                             
2014 1,303                                 100% 10,599                             
2013 1,342                                 100% 18,901                             


Agent Plan OPEB Funded Status – The health insurance premium benefit plans’ funded status 
as of the most recent valuation date, June 30, 2014, along with the actuarial assumptions and 
methods used in those valuations follow.   
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NOTE 10 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  
 


PSPRS Police PSPRS Fire
Actuarial value of assets (a) 153,769$                           9,010$                               
Actuarial accrued liability (b) 102,033$                           18,756$                             
Unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability (funding excess) (b) - (a) (51,736)$                            9,746$                               
Funded ratio (a)/(b) 150.71% 48.04%
Annual covered payroll (c) 661,590$                           63,262$                             
Unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability (funding excess) as a 
percentage of covered payroll 
(b) - (a) / (c) 0.00% 15.41%


The actuarial methods and assumptions for the most recent valuation date are as follows: 
 
PSPRS - OPEB Funded Status
Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2014
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percent closed for 


unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability, open 


for excess
Remaining amortization period 22 years for unfunded 


actuarial accrued 
liability, 20 years for 


excess
Asset valuation method 7-year smoothed market 


value; 20% corridor
Actuarial assumptions:  
Investment rate of return 7.85%
Projected salary increases 4%-8%
Wage growth 4%
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NOTE 11 – INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY 
 
Interfund receivables and payables—Interfund balances at June 30, 2015, were as follows: 
 


Payable from General Fund


HURF/LTAF Fund 625,605$         
Transit Fund (nonmajor) 3,134               
Water Fund 377,903           
Liquid Waste Fund 309,276           
Golf Course Fund 614,345           
Municipal Airport Fund 1,044,441        


2,974,704$      


Payable to


 
Interfund transfers—Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, were as follows: 
 


Transfer to General Fund


Capital Projects Fund 532,533$         
Transit Fund (nonmajor) 208,348           


740,881$         


Transfer from


 
The purpose of the interfund transfers shown above were to pay for capital expenditures and to 
fund current operations. 
 
 
NOTE 12 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
At June 30, 2015, the Transit Fund reported a deficit fund balance of $572. 
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Actual Variance with


Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenue


Taxes 3,205,000$       3,205,000$       3,217,918$       12,918$            
Intergovernmental 1,558,138         1,558,138         1,423,517         (134,621)           
Other revenue 551,600            551,600            96,487              (455,113)           
Charges for services 93,050              93,050              59,663              (33,387)             
Licenses and permits 89,600              89,600              49,480              (40,120)             
Fines and forfeitures 15,000              15,000              7,250                (7,750)               
Interest 5,000                5,000                3,019                (1,981)               


Total revenue 5,517,388         5,517,388         4,857,334         (660,054)           


Expenditures
Current


Public safety 2,261,594         2,261,594         2,057,620         203,974            
General government 2,276,313         2,276,313         1,247,220         1,029,093         
Culture and recreation 777,839            777,839            688,379            89,460              
Public works 94,357              94,357              55,830              38,527              


Debt service
Principal 303,828            303,828            303,828            -                    
Interest 187,318            187,318            187,318            -                    


Capital outlay 21,139              21,139              21,139              -                    
Total expenditures 5,922,388         5,922,388         4,561,334         1,361,054         


Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (405,000)           (405,000)           296,000            701,000            


Other financing sources (uses)
Sale of capital assets 5,000                5,000                -                    (5,000)               
Transfers in (out) (400,538)           (400,538)           (740,881)           (340,343)           


Total other financing
sources (uses) (395,538)           (395,538)           (740,881)           (345,343)           


Net changes in fund balance (800,538)           (800,538)           (444,881)           355,657            


Fund balance, July 1, 2014 4,119,001         4,119,001         4,119,001         -                    


Fund balance, June 30, 2015 3,318,463         3,318,463$       3,674,120$       355,657$          


Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget


Revenue
Intergovernmental 359,893$          359,893$          361,220$          1,327$              


Expenditures
Current


Highways and streets 359,893            359,893            331,054            28,839              


Net changes in fund balance -                    -                    30,166              30,166              


Fund balance, July 1, 2014 (566,656)           (566,656)           (566,656)           -                    


Fund balance, June 30, 2015 (566,656)           (566,656)$         (536,490)$         30,166$            


Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget


Revenue
Taxes 200,000$          200,000$          72,646$            (127,354)$         
Intergovernmental 50,000              50,000              -                    (50,000)             


Total revenue 250,000            250,000            72,646              (177,354)           


Expenditures
Current


General government 1,262,674         1,262,674         250,000            1,012,674         
Highways and streets 34,676              34,676              34,676              -                    


Capital outlay 12,250              12,250              12,250              -                    
Total expenditures 1,309,600         1,309,600         296,926            1,012,674         


Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (1,059,600)        (1,059,600)        (224,280)           835,320            


Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds from issuance of debt 500,000            500,000            -                    (500,000)           
Transfers in (out) 559,600            559,600            532,533            (27,067)             


Total other financing
sources (uses) 1,059,600         1,059,600         532,533            (527,067)           


Net changes in fund balance -                    -                    308,253            808,253            


Fund balance, July 1, 2014 (308,253)           (308,253)           (308,253)           -                    


Fund balance, June 30, 2015 (308,253)           (308,253)$         -$                  308,253$          


Budgeted Amounts
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NOTE 1 – BUDGETING AND BUDGETARY CONTROL 
 
Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) require the City to prepare and adopt a balanced budget 
annually for each governmental fund. The City Council must approve such operating budgets on 
or before the third Monday in July to allow sufficient time for the legal announcements and 
hearings required for the adoption of the property tax levy on the third Monday in August. 
A.R.S. prohibit expenditures or liabilities in excess of the amounts budgeted. 
 
Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the department level. In certain instances, 
transfers of appropriations between departments or from the contingency account to a department 
may be made upon the City Councils’ approval. 
 
NOTE 2 – BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The City’s budget is prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 
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Arizona State Retirement System


2015
(2014)


Town's proportion of the net pension liability 0.029562% Information
Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability 4,374,107$    not available
Town's covered-employee payroll 2,664,766$    
Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll


164.15%


Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability


69.49%


Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)


2014 
through 


2006
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PSPRS - Police


2015
(2014)


Total pension liability Information
Service cost 144,455$       not available
Interest on the total pension liability 267,446         
Changes of benefit terms 75,099           
Differences between expected and actual experience 
in the measurement of the pension liability


(145,164)        


Changes of assumptions or other inputs 327,183         
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 
contributions (216,951)        


Net change in total pension liability 452,068         
Total pension liability - beginning 3,443,201      
Total pension liability - ending (a) 3,895,269$    


Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 173,370$       
Contributions - employee 82,762           
Net investment income 240,572         
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 
contributions (216,951)        
Administrative expense -                 
Other changes (157,483)        


Net change in plan fiduciary net position 122,270         
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 1,860,584      
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 1,982,854$    


Town's net pension liability (asset) - ending (a) - (b) 1,912,415$    


Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 50.90%


Covered-employee payroll 784,309$       


Town's net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 243.83%


Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)


2014 
through 


2006







CITY OF BENSON, ARIZONA 
Required Supplementary Information 


Schedule of Changes in the City’s  
Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios 


Agent Pension Plans 
June 30, 2015 


 
 


See accompanying notes to pension plan schedules. 
- 62 - 


PSPRS - Fire


2015
(2014)


Total pension liability Information
Service cost 13,510$         not available
Interest on the total pension liability 36,948           
Changes of benefit terms (140)               
Differences between expected and actual experience 
in the measurement of the pension liability


(33,897)          


Changes of assumptions or other inputs 20,043           
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 
contributions -                 


Net change in total pension liability 36,464           
Total pension liability - beginning 463,920         
Total pension liability - ending (a) 500,384$       


Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 8,548$           
Contributions - employee 7,093             
Net investment income 48,425           
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 
contributions -                 
Administrative expense -                 
Other changes (6,039)            


Net change in plan fiduciary net position 58,027           
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 357,814         
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 415,841$       


Town's net pension liability (asset) - ending (a) - (b) 84,543$         


Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 83.10%


Covered-employee payroll 68,532$         


Town's net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 123.36%


2014 
through 


2006


Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
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Arizona State Retirement System


2015 2014


Statutorily required contribution 248,052$       285,130$       Information
Town's contributions in relation to the statutorily 
required contribution (248,052)        (285,130)        


not available


Town's contribution deficiency (excess) -$               -$               
Town's covered-employee payroll 2,279,890$    2,664,766$    
Town's contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 10.88% 10.70%


PSPRS - Police


2015 2014


Actuarially determined contribution 174,082$       173,370$       Information
Town's contributions in relation to the actuarially 
determined contribution (174,082)        (173,370)        


not available


Town's contribution deficiency (excess) -$               -$               
Town's covered-employee payroll 761,019$       784,309$       
Town's contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 22.87% 22.10%


PSPRS - Fire


2015 2014


Actuarially determined contribution 13,823$         8,548$           Information
Town's contributions in relation to the actuarially 
determined contribution (13,823)          (8,548)            


not available


Town's contribution deficiency (excess) -$               -$               
Town's covered-employee payroll 63,261$         68,532$         
Town's contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 21.85% 12.47%


2013 
through 


2006


Reporting Fiscal Year
2013 


through 
2006


Reporting Fiscal Year
2013 


through 
2006


Reporting Fiscal Year
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NOTE 1 – ACTUARIALLY DETERMINED CONTRIBUTION RATES 
 
Actuarial determined contribution rates for PSPRS are calculated as of June 30 two years prior to 
the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are made.  The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used to establish the contribution requirements are as follows: 
 
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period 
as of the 2013 actuarial 
valuation
Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:  


Investment rate of return


Projected salary increases


Wage growth


Retirement age


Mortality


Entry age normal
Level percent closed for unfunded actuarial accrued liability, open for excess


23 years for unfunded actuarial accrued liability, 20 years for excess
7-year smoothed market value; 20% corridor


In 2013 actuarial valuation, the investment rate of return was decreased from 
8.0% to 7.85%
In 2013 actuarial valuation, projected salary increases were decreased from 
5.0% - 9.0% to 4.5% - 8.5%
In 2013 actuarial valuation, wage growth was decreased from 5.0% to 4.5%


Experience-based table of rates that is specific to the type of eligibility 
condition.  Last updated for the 2012 valuation pursuant to an experience 
study of the period July 1, 2006 - June 30, 2011.
RP-2000 mortality table (adjusted by 105% for both males and females)
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Pension-Police
Unfunded


Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Unfunded AAL Annual Percentage of


Actuarial Plan Accrued Liability Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (Excess) Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) ([a-b]/c)


6/30/2015 2,132,788$ 4,079,682$  1,946,894$ 52.3      % 661,590$ 294.3          %
6/30/2014 2,010,735   3,895,269    1,884,534   51.6      784,311   240.3          
6/30/2013 2,080,926   3,443,201    1,362,275   60.4      785,494   173.4          


Pension-Fire
Unfunded


Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Unfunded AAL Annual Percentage of


Actuarial Plan Accrued Liability Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (Excess) Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) ([a-b]/c)


6/30/2015 451,898$    477,522$     25,624$      94.6      % 63,262$   40.5            %
6/30/2014 421,688      500,384       78,696        84.3      68,532     114.8          
6/30/2013 400,117      463,920       63,803        86.2      68,531     93.1            


Health Insurance-Police
Unfunded


Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Unfunded AAL Annual Percentage of


Actuarial Plan Accrued Liability Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (Excess) Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) ([a-b]/c)


6/30/2015 153,769$    102,033$     (51,736)$    150.7    % 661,590$ -              %
6/30/2014 140,167      118,884       (21,283)      117.9    784,311   (2.7)             
6/30/2013 -             114,719       114,719      -       785,494   14.6            
1/0/1900


Health Insurance-Fire
Unfunded


Actuarial Liability as
Value of Actuarial Unfunded AAL Annual Percentage of


Actuarial Plan Accrued Liability Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (Excess) Payroll Payroll


Date (a) (b) (b-a) (c) ([a-b]/c)


6/30/2015 9,010$        18,756$       9,746$        48.0      % 63,262$   15.4            %
6/30/2014 8,188          18,787         10,599        43.6      68,532     15.5            
6/30/2013 -             18,901         18,901        -       68,531     27.6            


Ratio
(a/b)


(a/b)


Funded


Funded
Ratio


(a/b)


(a/b)


Funded
Ratio


Funded
Ratio
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NOTE 1 – FACTORS THAT AFFECT THE IDENTIFICATION OF TRENDS 
 
Beginning in fiscal year 2014, PSPRS established separate funds for pension benefits and health 
insurance premium benefits.  Previously, the plan recorded both pension and health insurance 
premium contributions in the same Pension Fund.  During fiscal year 2014, the plan transferred 
prior-year health insurance premium benefit contributions that exceeded benefit payments from 
the plan’s Pension Fund to the new Health Insurance Fund. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 


COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 


ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
To the City Council  
City of Benson, Arizona 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Benson, Arizona, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City of Benson, Arizona’s basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated March 4, 2016. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of 
Benson, Arizona’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Benson, Arizona’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Benson, Arizona’s internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  However, as described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and responses, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.   
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  We consider the deficiency described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses to be a material weakness.. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Benson, Arizona’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 
 
City of Benson, Arizona’s Response to Finding 
 
The City of Benson, Arizona’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses.  The City of Benson, Arizona’s response was 
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 


 
March 4, 2016 
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Financial Statement Findings 
 
Audit finding and response is as follows: 
 
Item: 01-2015 
 
Subject: Account reconciliations 
 
Condition:  During our audit, it was found that there were no procedures being followed to 
periodically reconcile all balance sheet accounts to supporting documentation.  As a result, we 
noted that the sales tax payable account in the Golf Course Fund was materially misstated due to 
errors from a prior period.  Had there been procedures for the reconciling of all material balance 
sheet accounts to supporting documentation, the error could have been detected and corrected 
prior to the audit. 
 
Recommendation:  We recommend that management implement procedures for the periodic 
reconciliation of all material balance sheet accounts to supporting documentation. 
 
 











 
 
March 4, 2016 
 
 
Honorable Members of 
the Benson City Council 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Benson, 
Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015.  Professional standards require that we 
provide information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards as well as certain information related to the planned scope and 
timing of our audit.  We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated October 
13, 2015.  Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit. 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The 
significant accounting policies used by the City of Benson are described in Note 1 to the 
financial statements.  No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing 
policies was not changed during the fiscal year.  We noted no transactions entered into by the 
governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the 
proper period.   
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, 
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to 
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations  
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are shown in attached 
management representation letter. 







 


Management Consultations with Other Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Audit Adjustments 
 
Attached is a list of adjustments that were brought to the attention of management as a result of 
audit procedures. 
 
Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
There were no uncorrected misstatements, other than those that we believe were trivial to the 
financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues  
 
Included in our audit report issued in accordance with Government Auditing Standards is the 
Schedule of Findings and Responses.  Please consult the report issued as well as the schedule for 
further details. 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of City Council and management and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to provide our services to the City of Benson and please contact 
us if you have any questions or comments regarding this letter. 
 


 
 
Attachments 
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Discussion:  
 
At the Council meeting on February 8, 2016, Council considered Resolution 7-2016 approving the Safe Harbor 
Agreement between the Arizona Game and Fish Department and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the 
City.  This agreement would allow the introduction of an endangered fish species in the pond on Hole 9 at the 
San Pedro Golf Course.   
 
During the process of preparing the lake for the introduction of these fish, there will be a chance to improve the 
lake surrounds, bringing the water feature up-to-date with current golf course designs.  The lake will be cleaned 
out and railroad tie edging will be installed on the fairway side, improving the looks and maintenance 
requirements of the area.  The green side area that has been sinking will also be corrected, greatly improving 
the maintenance and playability of the hole. 
 
Council discussion included the term of the agreement and if it would be an issue should the City ever sell the 
golf course, the 30-day notification to the Game and Fish before any activity that would result in loss of the fish 
and reporting requirements.  Council then agreed it would be beneficial to have a more detailed presentation 
from the Game and Fish Department to make sure Council had all the information and knew what the 
responsibilities and ramifications of the agreement are; tabling the item until a presentation could be scheduled.    
 
After the Council meeting, I spoke to representatives from the Game and Fish Department, who will be in 
attendance and will give a presentation with more information on the Safe Harbor Agreement.  These 
representatives as well as representatives of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service will be available to answer 
questions the Council has.   
 
 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approval of Resolution 7-2016 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 3 
                                               
From: Joe DelVecchio PGA, Director of Golf Operations 
 San Pedro Golf Course 
 
 
 


 


Subject: 
 
Presentation by the Arizona Game and Fish Department with discussion and possible action regarding 
Resolution 7-2016 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, Arizona, approving the Safe Harbor 
Agreement for Topminnows and Pupfish in Arizona between the Arizona Game and Fish Department and the 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the City of Benson  
  
 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting        March 28th, 2016 
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RESOLUTION 7-2016 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BENSON, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE SAFE HARBOR AGREEMENT FOR TOPMINNOWS 
AND PUPFISH IN ARIZONA BETWEEN THE ARIZONA GAME AND FISH 
DEPARTMENT AND THE U.S. WILDLIFE SERVICE AND THE CITY OF BENSON 
 
  WHEREAS, the Gila Topminnow and Desert Pupfish are two of 36 species that 
historically inhabited Arizona’s waters prior to European-American settlement; and 
 
  WHEREAS, historically, topminnow were the most abundant fish species in the entire 
Gila River basin, occupying river systems from western New Mexico to southern and western 
Arizona, while Desert pupfish, not as common and widespread, occurred in portions of the lower 
Gila River basin, including the Salt, San Pedro, and Santa Cruz rivers as well as occurring along 
much of the lower Colorado River, from the Colorado River delta in the Gulf of California to 
current day Needles, California; and 
 
  WHEREAS, habitat loss and degradation resulted in the topminnow and pupfish 
populations rapidly decreasing despite their once broad distribution; with these fish currently 
inhabiting a fraction of their historic range.  By the early 1900s, pupfish no longer existed in the 
wild in Arizona (with the exception of Quitoboquito), and Gila topminnow were reduced to only 
14 locations; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the rapidly declining topminnow populations, and the likelihood of 
complete extinction, the Gila topminnow was federally listed as endangered in 1967 and two 
decades later, the desert pupfish was federally listed as endangered in 1986.  Designating these 
species as endangered provided funding and defined actions or tools to be used for both 
topminnow and pupfish recovery. A recovery plan was drafted and accepted for each species; 
and 
 
  WHEREAS, using recommendations from the species' recovery plans, the Arizona Game 
and Fish Department and its partners are taking steps to increase populations of these species in 
hopes of removing them from the Endangered Species list in the future.  Partner organizations 
include the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service; U.S. Forest Service; Bureau of Land Management; 
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation; The Nature Conservancy; Native American tribes; state, county, 
and city agencies; private landowners, leasees and permittees; universities; non-governmental 
organizations; and, volunteers. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Benson as follows: 
  


1. The “Safe Harbor Agreement for Topminnows and Pupfish in Arizona” attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted. 


 
2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the above-titled Agreement  on 


behalf of the City of Benson. 
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3. City Staff are directed to take such necessary and reasonable actions to put into 


effect the terms and conditions of the above-titled Agreement.  
 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BENSON, ARIZONA, this 28th day of March, 2016. 
 
 


 
____________________________________ 


                                                                                    TONEY D. KING SR., Mayor       
 
 
ATTEST:            APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________    ____________________________________ 
VICKI L. VIVIAN, CMC, City Clerk         MESCH, CLARK & ROTHSCHILD 
              By GARY J. COHEN 
                  City’s Attorney 
 







Prepared By: 
Arizona Game and Fish Department 


2221 West Greenway Road 
Phoenix, Arizona 85023-4399 


December 3, 2007 







CIVIL RIGHTS AND DIVERSiTY COMPLIANCE 


The Arizona Game and Fish Department prohibits discrimination on the basis ofrace, color, sex, 
national origin, age, or disability in its programs and activities. If anyone believes they have been 
discriminated against in. any of the Department's programs or activities, including its 
employment practices, the individual may file a complaint alleging discrimination directly with 
the Department's Deputy Director at: 


Arizona Game and Fish Department 
Office of the Deputy Director, DOHQ 


2221 West Greenway Road 
Phoenix, Arizona 85023-4399 


(602) 789-3290 


or 


The Office for Diversity and Civil Rights 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 


4040 North Fairfax Drive, Suite 130 
Arlington, Virginia 22203 


AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE 


The Arizona Game and Fish Department complies with all provisions of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. If you require this document in an alternative format, please contact the 
Department's Deputy Director as listed above or by calling TTY at (800) 367-89390 







RECOMMENDED CITATION 


Arizona Game and Fish Department 2007 Safe Harbor Agreement for topminnows and pupfish 
In Arizona Arizona Game and Fish Department, Phoenix, Arizona 


COVER ILLUSTRATIONS 


Marco Mazzoni 


, 


PRojEcTFUNDING 


Funding for this project was provided by the Arizona Game and Fish Department's Heritage Fund, 
voluntary contributions to Anzonas Nongame Wildlife Checkoff hunting and fishing license 
revenues, State Wildlife Grants, and Section 6 of the Endangered Species Act 
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1.0 INMODUCT IONM 


This Safe Harbor Agreement (Agreement) between  the U.S. Department of the Interior 
Fish and Wildlife Service (Service or USFWS) and the Arizona Game and Fish 
Department (Deparftnent) has been developed under the Service's Safe Harbor 
Agreement final regulations (USFWSINMFS 1999a) and final policy (USFWS/NMFS 
1999b). This Agreement implements the intent of the Service and the Department to 
follow the procedural and substantive requirements of Section iO(aXI)(A) of the 
Endangered Species Act (ESA) of 1973,as amended. 


This Agreement covers the historical ranges of Gila topminnow (Poecifiopsis 
occidentaL(s), Yaqui topminnow (Poecifiopsis sonoriensis), desert pupfish (Cyprinodon 
macularius), and Quitobaquito pupfish (Cyprinodon eremus) on non-federal lands in 
Arizona (Appendix 4. In Arizona, Gila topminnow's historical range is the Gila River 
basin, below about 5200 feet in elevation (Minckley 1999). Yaqui topminnow is 
restricted to the Yaqui River drainage in southeastern Arizona (USFWS 1994). The 
historical range in Arizona for desert pupfish is the Gila River basin, below 5000 feet in 
elevation, including the "Qua, Santa Cruz, San Pedro, and Salt Rivers; and the lower 
Colorado River. . .downstream from the vicinity of Needles" (USFWS 1993:2). The other 
extant species of pupfish native to Arizona, Quitobaquito pupfish, occurs in Quitobaquito 
Spring in the Rio Sonoyta drainage. 


Under this Agreement, the Department will issue Certificates of Inclusion to non-Federal 
property owners (Cooperators) who voluntarily agree to carry out conservation efforts for 
the benefit of topminnow and pupfish. In return for voluntary conservation commitments, 
the Agreement will extend assurances to the Cooperator allowing future alteration or 
modification of the enrolled property back to its original baseline condition. Without this 
cooperative Federal and non-Federal effort, the enrolled lands would not likely be used 
by these species in the foreseeable future. 


When signed, this Agreement will serve as a basis for the Service to issue a permit under 
ESA Section 10(a)(1)(A) for the take of covered, listed species associated with the 
potential future return of the enrolled lands to baseline condition. The permit will 
authorize take of individuals of the species that are reestablished to the enrolled lands or 
have increased in numbers or distribution on those lands as a result of voluntary 
conservation activities. The Service and the Department anticipate that the maximum 
level of take authorized under this Agreement and permit will never be realized. Permit 
issuance will not preclude the need to abide by all other Federal, State, and local laws and 
regulations that mayapply. 


2.0 BACKGROUND 


Although once common throughout most of the Gila River basin (below 5200 feet in 
elevation), the Gila topminnow and desert pupfish now naturally occur in only a fraction 
of their historical range (USFWS 1993, USFWS in prep.). Both topminnows and pupfish 
are Federally listed under the ESA as endangered throughout their ranges in the United 
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States (USFWS 1967 and USFWS 1996 respectively). The topminnow 1iIng included 
both the Gila and Yaqui topminnow and the desert pupfish listing included. both the 
desert &d Quito-ba-q.-pito pupfish. Hab. itac loss and alteration and the introduction of 
nonnative fishes have contributed..  •• to declines in natural populations of these four species 
(Wcedman and Young 1997). The location of natural and reestablished populations of 
topmImiow and pupfish, along with life history information, can be found in their 
respective recovery plans (PSFWS 1993, USFWS 1994; Weedman 1999) 


2.1 Purpose and need for action 


This Agreement is a mechanism to promote the establishment or maintenance of 
suitable habitat in to which topminnow and pupfish populations may be 
established. Past efforts by the Department, Service, Bureau of Land 
Management, and U.S. Forest Service to reestablish Gila topminnow and desert 
puplish populations met with varying degrees of success, possibly due to poor site 
selection (Weedman and Young 1997). 


One factor limiting topminnow and pupfish recovery is availability of suitable 
habitat. Permanent water sources, free of nonnative predators and within the 
species' historical ranges, are necessary for successful establishment of 
topminnow and pupfish populations. Task 2 in the Desert Pupfish Recovery Plan 
states that "efforts should be made to reestablish pupfish into a diversity of habitat 
types reflective of those occupied historically" (USFWS 1993).Criteria necessary 
for recovery of Qua topminnow, as listed in the draft revised Gila Topminnow 
Recovery Plan (Weedman 1999), include reestablishment in suitable habitats 
following geographic and otherguidelines. 


A need also exists to provide public health and safety via mosquito control. Every 
summer, natural and artificial water sources in southern and central Arizona act as 
breeding grounds for mosquitos, which are vectors for transmission of 
encephalitis and other diseases. Although nonnative mosquitofish (Gambusla 
affinis) have traditionally been stocked into these habitats for mosquito control, 
the Gila topminnow is as effective for mosquito 


Icontrol as mosquitofish (Childs 
2001 ; 2006). Desert pupfish have also demonstrated effectiveness in mosquito 
control (Walters and Legner 1980). Establishing topminnow and pupfish 
populations in these types of habitats would serve to protect public health while 
assisting in the recovery programs for these endangered fishes. 
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22 linportai ofnonedeai lands,  


Recovery plans..  for toprninnows and pupfisb list their reestablishment into suitable 
habitats within their historical ranges as recovery objectives or tags (USFWS 
19931. USFWS 1994 ; USEWS In prep.). Maintenance of refuge populations in 
natural, serninatural, or artificial habitats would aid in recovery efforts. The use 
ofnonFederal lands for reestablishment efforts Will provide: 


1. Additional suitable aquatic habitats that have previously been largely 
unavailable for reestablishment oftopminnow and pupflsh populations; 


2. Opportunities to increase public awareness of conservation needs for 
native fishes,, 


3. Opportunities to use native fish for mosquito control while reducing or 
eliminating use of the nonnative mosquitofish; and 


4 Opportunities to develop new partnerships among Federal, State, and non 
Federal property owners and improve conservation efforts for threatened 
and endangered species. 


Under the Permit, partici pating Cooperators enrolled with the Department under 
this Agreement will receive a Certificate of Inclusion (Appendix 2). The 
Certificate of Inclusion will include: 


1. A map of the property and the portion of the property to be enrolled; 


2. Baseline condition of the property as agreed upon by all parties, including 
a thorough habitat analysis of the enrolled property conducted by the 
Department, or other qualified parties approved by the Department; and 


3. The specific responsibilities of the Cooperator, the Department, and the 
Service. 


This Agreement is a voluntary partnership among the Service, the Department, 
and non-Federal property owners receiving Certificates of Inclusion under the 
Permit. It is expected that each party is committed to this Agreement and intends 
to implement it. 


3.0 SPECIES AND HABITATS TO BE COVERED IN THIS AGREEMENT 


The scope of this Agreement covers all non-Federal lands in the State of Arizona within 
the historical ranges of the topminnows and pupfish, excluding Native American lands 
(Appendix I). Properties enrolled in this Agreement will be examined by the Department 
or other qualified individuals to determine habitat suitability. The Department will verify 
habitat suitability, approve sites, document baseline conditions, and determine 
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populations to be used as a &wrce for stocking at appmved sites in consultation with the 
SewIce as identified in each species recovery ,  plan(USFWS 1993, 1994; Weedman 
1999).  


3.1 Spsjes covered by the Agreement 


This Agreement covers Gila topminnow, Yaqui topminnow, desert pupfish, and 
Quitobaquito pupfish. 


3.2 Habitats covered by the Agreement 


Topminnows and pupflsh have historically occupied a variety of habitat types 
(Weedman and Young 1997). In general, suitable habitat consists of relatively 
shallow (40 inches in depth), s1owmoving water along stream or river margins, 
ponds, cienegas, and springs (USFWS 1993, 1994; Weedman 1999). The species 
are associated with aquatic or streamside vegetation, algal mats, and organic 
debris; they are also adapted to environmental extremes (water salinity and 
temperature, flooding, etc.) (USFWS 1993, 1994; Weedman 1999). 


This Agreement covers all habitats occurring on non-Federal land within the 
historical ranges of topmirinow and pupfish in Arizona including, but not limited 
to: 


. Natural habitats such as springs, marshes, and streams; 


. Artificial habitats such as water treatment facilities, artificial wetlands, 
golf course ponds, and residential water features. 


Although the upper elevational range oftopminnows and pupfish is considered to 
be generally below 5200 feet (USFWS 1993, Minckley 1999), the Service will 
evaluate and (if appropriate) use potential sites that exist above that elevation on a 
case-by-case basis. 


If fish have the potential to naturally spread to adjacent landowners' properties, 
the sites will not be used, unless potentially affected adjacent landowners have 
been given the opportunity to voluntarily participate by signing a Certificate of 
Inclusion. The potential for fish to spread will be determined using the following 
criteria: 


• The water to be stocked is not hydrologically connected to other waters; or 
• If the water to be stocked were to be breached by flooding, any fish being 


moved or moving from the site would not reach suitable habitat. 


How the site to be enrolled meets these criteria will be documented in Section 53 
of each Certificate of Inclusion. Ensuring that sites meet these criteria will 
eliminate potential conflicts with adjacent landowners that do not wish to 
participate in this voluntary Agreement. In certain cases, coordination and 
compliance with Federal land management agencies may also be necessary if fish 
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have the.  potential to natally disperse from habitats covered under this 
Agreement onto Federal lands. 


The property,  owners who participate in this Agreement 	Include, 	but are not 
limited to: 


. Private citizens 


. Non-governmental organizations; 


. State, county, and local vector control agencies; 


. State, city, or county land and water management divisions; 


. State, county, and municipal parks; 


. Private corporations; and 


. The Arizona Game and Fish Commission (as signatory to this Agreement, 
the Department will enroll aquatic sites on Wildlife Areas or other 
Arizona Game and Fish Commission properties on a case-by-case basis 
under separate Certificates of Inclusion). 


4..0 OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES 


In addition to the following stipulations, all parties will work cooperatively on other 
issues as necessary to further the purposes of this Agreement. Moreover, nothing in this 
Agreement shall limit the ability of Federal and State conservation authorities to perform 
their lawful duties and conduct investigations as authorized by statute and by court 
guidance and direction. The following are the obligations of the Service, the Department, 
and Cooperators. 


4.1U.S.Fish an4j1dflfe Servi U. 	 ce - Arizona Ecological Services Office shall; 


1. Provide technical assistance and provide information on Federal funding 
programs. 


2. Assume no jurisdiction over the premises by the Agreement. The Service 
assumes no liability for damage except that resulting from its own 
negligence on the properties covered under this Agreement as authorized 
by the Federal Tort Claims Act (28 USC 2671-80). 


3. Assume no liability to restore the property to its prior condition upon 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. 


4. Issue an Enhancement of Survival Permit to the Department under ESA 
Section 10(a)(1)(A), authorizing incidental take of the covered species as 
a result of lawful activities within the enrolled property upon execution of 
the Agreement and satisfaction of all other applicable legal requirements. 
The term of the permit will be 50 years, after which time the permit may 
be renewed if agreed upon by all parties. 
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5; Provide topminnows and pupfish (or coordinate for appropriate genetic 
stock to be JFOVidd via another agent, such  as,  the Department).  . 


6 Ensure the Department is implementing the terms ofth ea: Agreement. 


7W Assist the Department with compliance monitoring and biological 
mothtoring, as necessary, contingent on availability of funds. 


4.2 Arizona Game and Fish Department shall: 


I. Coordinate with non-Federal property owners to determine site suitability. 


2. Provide technical advice and assistance with obtaining necessary State 
permits that may be required to fulfill the terms of this Agreement. 


3. Coordinate with the Service to determine the appropriate source of fish to 
be stocked at each property, and conduct stocking or augmentation. 


4. Coordinate with Cooperators and the Service to determine a schedule for 
monitoring and reporting on compliance, as identified in Section 9 of this Owe 
Agreement. 


5. Conduct compliance monitoring  on Cooperators' properties as identified 
in Section 9 of this Agreement, contingent on availability of funds. 


6. Conduct biological monitoring as deemed necessary by each party, or as 
funds remain available to the Department to conduct monitoring. 


7. Notify the Service before any planned action that will result in complete 
loss of a population. The Department agrees to notify the Service within 
five days of receipt of notice from the Cooperator of any such planned 
action. 


4.3 The Service and Department mutually agree that Cooperators shall: 


1. Retain all rights to control trespass and access, and retain all 
responsibility for taxes, assessments, and damage claims pertaining to 
ownership or management of the property. 


2. Guarantee ownership of the land and warrant that there are no outstanding 
rights that interfere with this Agreement. 


3. Agree to notify the Department of planned or pending ownership changes 
at least 60 days in advance. A change of ownership shall not change the 
terms of this Agreement, which shall remain in effect on the described 







Saf'ó Fktrbor Agreement for Tominnows and Pupfish in Arizona 	 12 


property for the duration of the period specified if the new landowner 
agrees. 


4. Notify the Department 30 days in advance of any planned activity that 
may result in complete loss of the population as defined in Section 8.1 on 
the enrolled lands, and provide the Department the opportunity to capture 
and relocate individuals, if warranted. 


5. Notify the Department 15 days in advance of any planned activity that 
may result in take of the species (but would not result in complete loss of 
the population) as defined in Section 8.1 on the enrolled lands, and 
provide the Department or its authorized representative the opportunity to 
capture and relocate individuals, if warranted. 


6. Allow the Department or its authorized representative, access to the 
project site, upon reasonable notification by the Department, for agreed 
upon wildlife habitat development and management purposes, to inspect 
work completed, to perform biological monitoring, and to augment the 
population if necessary, pursuant to Section 3 of the Certificate of 
Inclusion. All Department employees will be in uniform and all 
Department representatives will have proper identification as government 
employees, agents, or assignees. 


7. Allow the Service (its members, agents, or assignees) access to the project 
site, upon reasonable notification by the Service, to perform compliance 
monitoring, as necessary. At least one Service representative will be in 
uniform, and all will have proper identification as government employees, 
agents, or assignees. 


8. Prevent or otherwise minimize and control the introduction of nonnative 
competitors or predators or potential disease vectors into enrolled 
properties via the following measures: (i) commitment by Cooperators to 
not knowingly engage in releases of nonnative species into habitats on 
participating properties; (ii) commitment by Cooperators to report any 
observed occurrences of such species in native fish habitat on 
participating properties to the Department; (iii) commitment by 
Cooperators to permit access to their land by appropriate personnel 
necessary to implement control programs (subject to reasonable advance 
notice and approval); and (iv) where appropriate, and subject to their 
concurrence, agreement by Cooperators to conduct control measures 
when requested by the Department (e.g. temporarily drying out stock 
tanks thatsupport such species). Any such control measures, however, 
must be compatible with assurances provided to the Cooperator in the 
Agreement. 
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9 Agree to not transport any topminnews or pupfish from the stocked 
keation to  any other location. 


io Assume responsibility  for securing any other permits or autonzalions as 
needed to carry out this Agreement 


11.Coordinate with the Department to conduct annual population monitoring 
and reporting as identified in SectIon 9 of this Agreement. 


12.consider notifying adjacent landowners of the certificate of Inclusion 
holder's participation in this Agreement for conservation of endangered 
fishes. 


5.0 BASELINE CONDITION DETERMINATION 


For a Cooperator to participate in this Agreement, the baseline condition of the property 
to be enrolled must be determined. Under the Service's Safe Harbor Agreement policy 
(USFWS/NMFS 1999b), baseline conditions are defined as "population estimates and 
distribution and/or habitat characteristics and determined area of the enrolled property 
that sustain seasonal or permanent use by the covered species at the time the Safe Harbor 
Agreement is executed between the Services and the property owner Before enrolling a 
potential participant, AGFD shall determine what species analyzed in the Biological 
Opinion are potentially present on a participant's property and may be impacted by 
Agreement activities. If suitable habitats for these species are not present, surveys (as 
described in 2.117v. below) are not required. Determinations on which species to survey 
for will be established for each site. These determinations and surveys results will be 
documented in each Certificate of Inclusion. 


Properties requiring surveys will be surveyed by the Department or other qualified 
individuals to determine baseline conditions before issuance of a Certificate of Inclusion 
(Appendix 2). Baseline conditions will be determined and agreed to in writing by the 
Department and Cooperator, with concurrence from the Service. Baseline conditions may 
include habitat characteristics or species presence. Since topminnow and pupfish most 
likely do not currently occur on the lands to be covered in this Agreement, it is likely that 
baseline conditions on most properties covered under this Agreement will be zero. 


Cooperator(s) may agree to an elevated baseline condition when appropriate and agreed 
upon if topminnows or pupfish do not already occur on that property. The Department, 
with Service concurrence, must determine if an elevated baseline condition at any 
particular site supports the goals of the Agreement and furthers the recovery of either or 
both species. Properties where an elevated baseline condition might be most appropriate 
are those that have natural or semi-natural aquatic habitats and where development of the 
property is not expected to occur in the foreseeable future. An elevated baseline condition 
indicates that the population will still exist when taken back to baseline conditions (with a 
baseline of zero, thepopulation is eliminated when taken back to baseline conditions). 
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6..ONET.Co-N--&E- -R,vA- TIQN BENEFIT AND CONTRIIUIION TO RcOVERY 


The items listed below are specific tasks in the recovery plans intended to lead to 
recovery of these, four species 


I


(USFWS 1993 USFWS 1994; Wóedrnan 199 The way 
in WhiCh populations established under the Agreement count Coward recovery, will be 
determined by the respective recovery plan. 


Implementation of this Agreement will provide a net conservation benefit for 
topminnows and pupfish in the following ways: 


1. Provide refuge populations as insurance against catastrophic loss of natural 
populations and as sources for future reestablishment efforts; 


2. Safe Harbor populations may count towards downlisting and delisting criteria as 
specified in the recovery plans; 


3. Reduce the need to stock mosquitofish, which have contributed to the decline of 
topminnows and are a continuing threat; and 


4. Provide convenient sites for public education and information related to 
endangered species recovery, conservation of limited resources, and native 
aquatic ecology. 


Net conservation benefit will be obtained through the increase in total numbers of 
existing populations oftopminnows and pupfisb. Additionally, use oftopminnows in lieu 
of mosquitofish will decrease the spread of nonnative mosquitofish. Through the 
Agreement and implementation of elevated baseline conditions (likely to be considered 
for already existing suitable and secure habitats, it is anticipated that these populations 
will exist for longer periods of time, and may count toward downlisting and delisting 
criteria. A net conservation benefit is expected, whether or not landowners agree on an 
elevated baseline condition. 


7.0 DURATION 


7.1 Agreement Duration 


This Agreement and its associated Section lOa)(l)A) permit are in effect for a 
duration of 50 years following  pennitsignature! At the end of the permit term, 
properties covered under this Agreement may be taken back to baseline 
conditions (see Section 6.0) before the permit expires to avoid accruing additional 
take liability under the ESA. However, the permit and Agreement may be 
extended beyond the specified terms through amendment, upon agreement by all 
parties. 


a If the species covered by this Agreement and its associated Section 10(a)(1)(A) permit are delisted 
federally, this Agreement and the Permit shall be terminated within 90 days by written notice from the 
Service to the Department, and within 90 days of receiving such notice the Department shall terminate by 
written notice to each Cooperator all Certificates of Inclusion pertaining to this Agreement. 
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If the Agreement (ain-4 the Depattment Section 1OaX1XA)  permit expkes 
without renewal: 


1. A new agency or orgamzatmn could apply for the Section 1O(aXl)) 
permit and issue Certificates ofinclusion to Cooperators; or 


2. Cooperators could apply to receive their own Section 10(á)(1)(Ã) penn.t 
or 


I Existing populations could be removed and relocated by the Department 
and the Service; or 


4 Populations could be taken back to baseline conditions if the Department 
and the Service decide not to remove individuals. 


7.2 RegedConservation Period 


Each Certificate of Inclusion issued by the Department to a Cooperator must 
specify the time period during which the conservation measures identified in the 
Agreement will be maintained or implemented. This is termed the "required 
conservation period" and shall be agreed to by the Department and Cooperator. 


The conservation period agreed to within individual Certificates of Inclusion will 
depend on several circumstances including whether or not the landowner has any 
future land use plans, whether or not conservation measures under the Agreement 
have included a material benefit to the landowner, and the landowner's comfort 
level. A minimum 10-year commitment is preferred under this Agreement, but 
longer periods are allowable and are encouraged. Any conservation period in 
excess of 10 years must have the consent of the Cooperator, and must be 
specified within the Cooperator's Certificate of Inclusion (Appendix 2). 


In certain situations, a I 0-year or longer commitment may not be practicable, and 
shorter commitments will be granted on a case-by-case basis. Such instances 
would include artificial habitats that are anticipated to be relatively temporary and 
require ongoing management to maintain. 


The conservation commitments required under this Agreement include: 


1. The Cooperator will grant permission to the Department to establish new 
populations oftopminnows and/or pupfish on their lands at suitable sites; 


2. The Cooperator will grant permission to the Department and Service to 
conduct biological and compliance monitoring as identified in Section 9 
of this Agreement; 
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3. The, COOpXG will comiete any,  habitit improvement pwjects or 
actions agreed upon in the Agreement; 


4 The Cooperator will implement the Take Mini'rn ization Measures 
described in Section 8.4; and 


5. The Cooperator Will provide, appropriate notification as described in 
Section 9.2 through 94. 


The required conservation period is considered the minimum to which a 
landowner must agree to obtain the program's regulatory assurances. However, 
the Department anticipates that some Cooperators will continue to implement 
most or all the Agreement's conservation commitments even after the required 
conservation period has been satisfied. This is because the Agreement's 
conservation program is specifically designed to be compatible with current or 
future land uses. Thus, in most cases Cooperators are expected to have little 
incentive or need to discontinue their commitments. 


The Cooperator may request termination of their Certificate of Inclusion at any 
time for circumstances beyond their control, upon written notification to the 
Department. The Department then has up to 60 days to salvage topmiimows and 
pupfish, if deemed necessary, in consultation with the Service. The Cooperator 
remains authorized for incidental take during the 60-day time period. At the end 
of the 60 days, the Certificate of inclusion is terminated via written notification to 
the Cooperator and the Service. 


Additionally, the Cooperator may terminate their Certificate of Inclusion for any 
other reason, upon written notification to the Department. However, such 
termination shall extinguish the Cooperator's authority to incidentally take 
topminnows or pupfish under the Enhancement of Survival Permit. 


8.0 TAKE 


Safe Harbor Agreements are written in anticipation of future incidental take of listed 
species. As defined in the ESA, the term "take" means to harass, harm, pursue, hunt, 
shoot, wound, kill, trap, capture, or collect, or attempt to engage in any such conduct. 
Section 9 of the ESA and Federal regulations prohibit take of Federally-listed fish and 
wildlife species without special exemption. Any incidental take oftopminnows or pupfish 
that occurs as a r*esult of a landowner's identified activities on properties covered under 
this Agreement would be authorized by the "Enhancement of Survival Permit" issued by 
the Service to the Department following Section 10(a)(1)(A) of the ESA. Incidental take 
is defined in 50 CFR 402.02 as "take of listed fish and wildlife species that results from, 
but is not the purpose of, carrying out any otherwise lawful activity conducted by a 
Federal agency or applicant." However, measures will be implemented to reduce levels of 
take. In addition, Cooperators must notify the Department 30 days before any action that 
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- 	may resuft iii incidental take of tFe entire population (see Section &4). Examples of 
management actions t1t may resu.. It in take are listed in Section &i bc1w. 


Si Methods of Take 


The following activities are among those that may result in take: 


. Aquatic site maintenance; 


. Actions to remove nonnative aquatic species; 
S Monitoring of topminnow and pupfish populations as agreed upon in 


Section 9 of this Agreement; and 
S Any normal day-to-day land use and management activity as agreed to by 


the Department and the Cooperator. 


In addition to the activities listed above, extenuating factors beyond the 
landowner's control could result in loss of topminnows and pupfish. Examples of 
extenuating factors include, but are not limited to: 


S Invasion and predation by native or nonnative species; 
S Desiccation as a result of drought or flooding; 
. Water quality fluctuations resulting from natural causes or outside 


sources; and 
S Immediate responses to emergencies. 


8.2 Extentqf Take 


The first two bulleted activities in Section 8.1 above could result in complete take 
of topminnows and pupfish from lands covered in this Agreement. The six 
remaining bulleted activities above are not expected to result in complete take of a 
population. Isolated individuals could be subject to take during these routine 
activities; however, it should be noted that none of the activities are expected to 
result in complete take due to measures to minimize and mitigate any negative 
impacts as identified in Section 84. 


The possibility of invasion by nonnative aquatic species does exist and could 
result in partial or complete loss of a population. Loss to birds or other wildlife is 
more difficult to ascertain; however, predation and loss as observed in nature, can 
be expected to occur and is not the responsibility of the Cooperator. 


8.3 impacts Likely to Occur as a Result of Take 


Topminnows or pupfish stocked onto properties under this Agreement will 
originate from captive refuge populations or from wild sites where the 
populations are large enough to maintain viable populations after removal of 
reestablishment cohorts. Therefore, while the loss of individuals, or even entire 
populations of topminnows and pupfish is possible under this Agreement, no 
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negative i MIT pa..ets te natural er othe..r existing reestablish:. popuIatkrns In the wild 
are expected. . 


If elevated baseline conditions are agreed upon for particular properies, it is 
expected that these may count toward downlisting and delisting crIteria and 
should exist for an extended time. However, if a population fails, rstab!ishrnent 
may be necessary, depending  on the cause(s) of the loss (see ,, Section 102). 


8.4 Measures to Monitor. MmnimIze, and Mitigate Negative Ima..s 


Management actions such as major earthwork, removal of nonnative aquatic 
species, pesticide application, and other management activities expected to result 
in take, will be scheduled in advance, and notification, at least 30 days before the 
activities, will be provided to the Department. Responses to emergencies (Section 
801.16 above) are not subject to the 30-day advance notice. This will allow the 
Department the opportunity to relocate fish temporarily if deemed necessary by 
the Department in consultation with the Service. If activities require long-term 
removal offish, arrangements can be made to house them at alternative locations. 


If nonnative aquatic species that would negate the desired conservation benefits 
occur in any habitat covered under this Agreement, they should be removed 
before topminnows or pupfish are released. However, on a caseby.case basis, 
topminnows and pupfish may be compatible with certain nonnative species. 
Therefore, if the habitat is deemed appropriate for the overall benefit. of 
topminnows and pupfish, it may be used for purposes of this Agreement despite 
the presence of nonnative species. 


Any loss of the reestablished populations may require supplemental stockings of 
topminnows and/Or pupfish. The Department will consult with the Service and 
criteria in the species' recovery plans to determine the appropriate source 
population for initial and supplemental stockings. 


9,-0 REPORTING AND MONITORING 


This Agreement provides for two types of monitoring as required by Federal regulation 
(TJSFWS/NMFS 1999a) and Service policy (USFWS/NMFS. 1999b): (1) compliance 
monitoring to ensure that all commitments in the Agreement are being met, and (2) 
biological monitoring to ensure that the biological goals of the Agreement are being met 
and to determine the effectiveness of its conservation program. 


9.1 Compliance Monitoring 


The Department or its authorized representatives (eg. qualified biologists 
designated by the Department that have experience with the species, including 
biologists with other agencies, Non-governmental Organizations (NG0s, 
universities or civilian) will ascertain compliance as necessary. Specific 
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requ-nements of cmpliance monitorlug are a maximum f four visits per year 
(anda minimum ofone visit. per two years) to each site subject Co this Agreemein 
to verilr that all required conservattOn  commitments are being properly 
implemented. Before any ,  visit, Department monitoring personnel simil give notice 
to the Cooperator of not less than 14 days before, the visit and shall arrange the 
visit so it is compatible with the iandown&s schedule and needs. This monitoring 
requirement shall commence from the efIctIve date of the Certificate of inclusion 
for each affected Cooperator 


In. addition, the Service is responsible for monitoring the Department's 
compliance with the ESA Section 10(a)(1)(A) Permit. This may include audits of 
relevant Department files at least once each two years. 


9.2 Biological Mothtczj 


The Department and the Cooperator are jointly responsible for coordinating 
efforts to ensure that monitoring and reporting related to implementation of the 
Agreement and fulfillment of its provisions are arranged. Biological monitoring 
by the Department of populations established under this Agreement will be 
covered by the Department's ESA Section lO(a)(l)(A) Permit and ESA Section 6 
work plans. The biological monitoring will address the status and distribution of 
topminnow and pupfish populations established under this Agreement. The 


- biological monitoring may also address issues that require adjustment to the 
Agreement's conservation program through the Adaptive Management provisions 
described in Section 10 of this Agreement. Specific biological monitoring 
requirements of the Department or its authorized representatives (e.g. qualified 
biologists designated by the Department that have experience with the species, 
including biologists with other agencies, NGOs, universities or civilian) are as 
follows: 


1. For any aquatic site on participating urban, suburban, and rural lands to which 
1 


topminnows or pupfish have been stocked: one monitoring visit one year after 
stocking and at least once every two years thereafter. For aquatic sites on 
seminatural, natural and wild sites,to which topminnows or pupfish have been 
stocked: one monitoring visit conducted six months after the stocking, one 
visit one year after stocking, and monitoring must be done at least once every 
two years thereafter. The monitoring schedule shall remain in effect unless the 
Department and the Cooperator determine that another schedule is 
appropriate, such as for smaller sites (< 1600 ft2). 


12. Information to be collected during site visits described in paragraph (I) above 
shall consist of the following: 


a. Type of site (stream, pond, wetland, etc.); 
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b. General description of the site and its condition inchiding wafer 
quality (water temperature pH, onthwtIvily, and dissolved oxygen); 


C9* Presence or absence,. and. distribution of top 	s rninnow and puplish and 
at least approximate num: bers of adults and juveniles; 


d. Presence or absence, and distribution of nonnative aquatic species; 


e. Color photos (35mm slides or digital photos) of the habitat taken at 
fixed points; 


f. Land management activities that may result in take, if any; 


g. A general threat assessment and recommendations for how to alleviate 
the threats; and, 


h. Any other pertinent information. 


93 RegpongLbilily,for Monitoring 


Compliance monitoring for this Agreement and its associated permit will be 
funded and carried out by the Service or its authorized representative. Compliance 
monitoring of Cooperators will be funded and carried out by the Department or its 
authorized representative, contingent on availability of funds. 


Biological monitoring under this Agreement will be funded and carried out by the 
Department or its authorized representative, in a manner unique for each covered 
property as agreed upon by the Department and each Cooperator, with 
concurrence from the Service, and contingent on availability of funds. The 
primary obligations of Cooperators with respect to biological monitoring will be 
to grant access to their properties by authorized personnel conducting the 
monitoring, subject to reasonable advance notification. In addition, Department 
personnel or authorized representatives of the Department that conduct biological 
monitoring must be able to distinguish between topminnow and mosquitofish. 
The Department is ultimately responsible for ensuring that biological monitoring 
is done for each enrolled property. 


9.4 Annual Re  ortg 


1. Cooperator Reporting Responsibility 


Each Cooperator will submit an annual report to the Department by January 30 
that provides the information required in subsection (2 a, c, d and f) of Section 9.2 
of this Agreement. If the first year of the Agreement is a partial year of six 
months or less, activities implemented in that year may be reported in the 


. following year's report. 
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2. Departm'ent Reporting Respoibffity 


riFe Dejmrtinent, as the permIttee under this Agreement,, shall submit one copy of  
a cumulative report describing biological monitoring activities wide..  r the 
Agreement for the preceding year to each of the Service's Arizona Ecological 
Services Office and Albuquerque Regional. Office. The Department's annual 
report will be due by March 15 of each year throughout the term of the permit 
The first report is due March 15, 2008. Information required in the Department's 
annual report is as follows: 


a. A summary of the cumulative total of Cooperators enrolled in the 
Agreement at the time of preparation oldie report; 


1. The cumulative total of topminnow and pupfish populations being 
managed under this Agreement, including a description of the status of the 
populations and their associated habitats; 


C. The status of each population within the covered area at the time of the 
report with respect to the Agreement's biological and recovery goals; 


d. Any Cooperators that enrolled under the Agreement in the preceding year, 
including copies of any related Certificates of Inclusion; 


e. Any topminnow and pupfish management activities that were 
implemented in the preceding year, including population establishments or 
habitat improvement 


I


projects, and original source of topminnow and 
pupfish stocked under this Agreement; 


f. Funding sources that were used in the preceding year for activities 
associated with this Agreement; 


g. Any incidental take of topminnows or pupfish known or suspected to have 
occurred within the covered area in the preceding year and an explanation 
of the reasons for the take; 


h. Results of biological and compliance monitoring activities conducted in 
the preceding year, with supplemental information on biological or 
habitat-related problems that need to be addressed; and 


i. Any other pertinent information regarding the status of the Agreement's 
conservation progiam or implementation of the program. 
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,The Department agrees to meet annually, or more frequy if nessary 	andagreed 
upon, with the Service. to review , progress in irnpiexnentIng .  this Agreement and to review 
needs for adaptive management due to changing circumstances. Any major change in 
land use or natural changes in the watershed that affect the coveredspecies or their 
habitats should be reported by the Department in writing to the designated Service 
representative, or by that representative or other Cooperators in writing to the Department 
as soon as possible. 


Amendments to the Section IO(a)(I)(A) permit must be evaluated by all parties based on 
the effects that proposed amendments would have on the habitat, Individual species, and 
permitted actions. The Service must be 1


. consulted on all proposed amendments. 
Concurrence through consensus Will be sought among parties before implementation of 
any amended action. It is understood that unforeseen circumstances will not require the 
Department or Cooperators to provide additional habitats and mitigation above that 
designated in this Agreement, nor provide additional compensations above that provided 
for in this Agreement, without consent of the Department 


10.1 Adapjive Management 


Adaptive management allows a conservation program to be adjusted from time to time to 
take into account new information and to ensure that the program is as effective as 
possible. The Agreement must adapt to specific management opportunities and needs as 
they arise. The Agreement therefore includes an Adaptive Management program to 
ensure flexibility and that the most up-to-date information is used. 


The need to adopt Adaptive Management modifications to the Agreement may result 
from various sources, including but not limited to: 


1. New scientific information concerning the biology, population dynamics, or status 
Of topminnows or pupfish; 


2. New scientific information concerning the effects of biotic or abiotic factors on 
topminnows or pupfish; 


3. Information derived from the Agreement's monitoring program; 


4. Management needs or recommendations described under any updated Recovery 
Plans for topminnows and pupfish; and 


5. New information pertaining to management or status of lands covered by this 
Agreement including Certificates of Inclusion thereto. 


Two types of Adaptive Management modifications within the covered area can be 
implemented under this Agreement, depending on their scope and the process for 
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- 	mncorpora•  ting thm These are tamed. (I) rnjor rcvisions to the Agre.ernent and (2) 
ongoing rn:aragement adJUStflIfltS. 


A major revision is defined as one triggered by the availabifit Of SUbSt1flUII flCW 


scientific införmation typically from a source not related to the Agreement, concerning 
any biological assumptkm or criterion upon which the conservation program is base$, 
and which would require modification of any, of the Agreement's specific biological 
criteria or conservation measures. Major revisions would likely require that the Section 
I0(á)(1)(A) pennit be amended to reflect any required new standards or management 
activities. This, in turn, would require mutual agreement between the Department and 
Service (the Agreement's signatories) and written formalization of the amendment 
following the Service's amendment procedures. 


Ongoing management adjustments are defined based on the Agreement's monitoring 
program, and concern any situation within the covered area that requires a management 
response, and which is within the scope of the existing Agreement. Examples of 
circumstances requiring ongoing management adjustments would be the identification of 
specific problems at specific topminnow or pupfish sites within the covered area (e.g. 
colonization by nonnatives, drought, or extirpation of a population); or the identification 
of specific management opportunities or needs that would benefit the conservation 
program. The Department and Cooperators will typically address ongoing management 
adjustments collaboratively. Under the Agreement, Sections 8 (Take) and 10.2 (Changed 
Circumstances) describe conditions that could require ongoing management adjustments, 
as well as the standards that will be considered in determining the appropriate adjustment 
or response. 


10.2 Changed Circumstances 


Changed circumstances are defined by Federal regulation (50 CFR 173) as "changes in 
circumstances affecting a species or geographic area covered by a conservation plan or 
agreement that can reasonably be anticipated by plan or agreement developers and the 
Service and that can be planned 10?'. Changed circumstances identify events that can 
reasonably be anticipated to occur and are planned for. 


In the event of a changed circumstance, the Department and Cooperator(s) will respond 
cooperatively as follows: 


1. The cause of the circumstance will be determined, if possible; 


2. An appropriate response will be determined. If a problem can be identified, 
the decision whether or not to correct the problem will be made based on the 
following factors: 


a. The technical and logistical feasibility of correcting the problem, and 
the likelihood of long term success; 
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b. The biologicaI imporanee of the population to the it conservation 
benefit of the species; and 


C. Funding availability to undertake correive action. 


The Department and Service anticipate that three types of Changed Circumstances could 
occur within the covered area over,  the life 'of the Agreement: 


I . Drought: Droughts are a periodic phenomenon in the arid environments of 
Arizona and almost certain to occur over the life of the Agreement, During 
drought, the Department and Cooperators will monitor topmInnow and 
pupfish population sites and habitat conditions in the covered area according 
to the needs of the situation and will implement corrective measures on a 
case-by-case basis. Responses to actual or potential drought conditions may 
include, as necessary and appropriate: 


a. Improvements in water reliability at selected sites through water 
hauling, well-drilling, deepening, or other means; 


b. Salvage and relocation of topminnows and pupfish from desiccated 
sites to other sites or temporary holding facilities; 


C. Reestablishment of extirpated populations when conditions allow; and 


d. Other measures as appropriate and agreed upon. 


2. Invasion byjxmnative organismsthat may pose a threat to the population: 
Colonization or inadvertent introduction of nonnative fish, bullfrogs, crayfish, 
or other predators into topminnow and pupfish habitat is also a possibility 
over the life of the Agreement. Bullfrogs and crayfish are of special concern, 
because they can migrate substantial distances over land under the right 
conditions and are present throughout the State. Responses to colonization of 
habitats by nonnative species within the covered area will be addressed by the 
Department and Cooperators on a case-by-case basis and may include: 


a. Removal of existing nonnatives from new sites (and areas adjacent to 
new sites, when possible) before stocking oftopminnows and pupfish; 


b. Periodic control and removal of nonnatives using available and 
appropriate means; 


C. Redefinition of an elevated baseline condition, if necessary and agreed 
upon by the Department, Service, and Cooperator(s); 
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d. Adjustrn..  eat of the Ageement's .nseivation program to incorporate. 
new ientfic mnfrmation concerning nonnative migitIon, popidatkni 
dynamics.. ; and 


C. Other measures as appropriate and aged upoa 


3. Failure oftopminnow and ppfish ppuIations: it is expected that Copminnow 
and pupfish populations within the covered area Will, from time to time, fail as 
a result of one or more of the above factors or other fctors if and when 
previously extant topminnow ,  or pupfish populations disappear or are in 
immediate peril (as determined by the Agreement's monitoring program), the 
Department and Cooperators will respond cooperatively as follows: 


a. The cause of failure Will be determined, if possible. The cause will 
likely be an adverse condition such as drought or invasion by 
nonnative predators and will usually have been identified in advance, 
with an attempt made to correct it. 


b. An appropriate response will be determined. If a problem can be 
identified, a decision whether or not to reestablish the topminnow and 
pupfish population will be made based on the following factors: 


i. The technical and logistical feasibility of correcting the 
problem, and the likelihood of long term success; 


ii. The biological importance of the population to the net 
conservation benefit of the species (Section 6 of this 
Agreement); 


iii. The willingness of the Cooperator to reestablish the population; 
and 


IV. Funding availability to undertake corrective action and 
reestablish a new population. 


Generally, the responsibility for monitoring, evaluating, and correcting changed 
circumstances will not lie with the Cooperator. Exceptions to this would include changed 
circumstances that are specific to a landowner's property (e.g. the berm of a tank fails 
causing the water level to drop) and associated corrective measures that are clearly 
identifiable and within the normal scope of management activities (e.g. repairing the 
berm to maintain the ideal water level). A Cooperator may undertake such measures with 
appropriate notification to the Department. Otherwise, the responsibility for 
implementing responses to changed circumstances deemed necessary by the Department 
will lie with the Department. 
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103 Aeudrnents to the Permi 


The Department's Section 10(a)(I)(A) permit may be amended following all applicable 
legal requirements in force at the time of the amendment,, including, but not limited to, 
the ESA, National Environmental Policy Act,. and Service permit regulations, (currently 
these are codified in 50 CFR, Parts 13 and 17) Mendment of the permit. would require, 
at a minimum: (1) a written explanation of why the amendment is needed an 
explanation of what, if any, effects the amendment would have on topmInnows and 
pupfish; and (3) a Federal Register notice of the proposed amendrnent and a public 
comment period. 


10.4 Permit/Certificate Revocation 


The Service may suspend or revoke the Department's Section 10(a)(1)(A) permit for 
cause following currently applicable Federal regulation (50 CFR Parts 13 and 17), or any 
laws and regulations in force at the time of such suspension or revocation. 


A Cooperator's Certificate of Inclusion may be suspended or revoked by the Department, 
but only if: (1) the landowner has failed to satisfy a specific conservation commitment or 
commitments for which they are responsible; (2) the Department has made reasonable, 
good-faith efforts to cooperatively work with the landowner to correct the deficiency; (3) 
the deficiency remains uncorrected, even after the Department's good-faith efforts; and 
(4) written notice has been provided to the affected landowner alerting the landowner of 
the pending suspension or revocation a minimum of 30 days before the effective date of 
the suspension or termination. 


I I .0 ADDITIONAL MEASURES 


1. For matters applicable to this Agreement, the Service Point of Contact (POC) is 
the person whose name appears on the signature block below. No change to this 
Agreement shall be binding upon the Service or the Department unless and until 
in writing and signed b 	parties. 


2. Following Section 22, Title 41, United States Code, it is further mutually agreed 
that no member of or delegate to Congress or resident [Federal] commissioner, 
after their election or appointment, and either before or after they have qualified 
and during their continuance in office, shall be admitted to any share or part of 
this Agreement, or to any benefit to arise thereupon; but this provision shall not 
be construed to extend to this Agreement if made with a corporation for its 
general benefit.2  


3. This Agreement may be modified at any time by mutual written consent of all the 
parties as identified in Section 10.3 of this Agreement. 


2-i; Additional Measure 2, "resident commissioner" refers to Federal appointees and shall not be construed 
to include members of the Arizona Game and Fish Commission. 







Sak }Iatbcr Agreement fr,  Thpminnows and: : Pupfish in Arizona 	 27 


4. Te Service ot: the 	 may cancel this Agreeiuent without penalty or 
fUrther obligation pursuant to A-- R,  § 38-511 


5 The Service and the Department agree to engage in any alternative dispute 
resolution procedures auThorized by their respective statutes, regilatIons, and 
court ruies 1  Including: but not limited to S U-.S.C. § 575 and A.R.S. § 12-1518. 


& The Arizona Game and Fish Commission (Commission) has authority to execute 
this Agreement pursuant to AJLS. § 17-231(B)(7). The Commission has 
statewide responsibility ,  for wildlife and habitat management in Arizona, and the 
Arizona Game and Fish Department acts under the authority of the Commission. 


7. All documents pertinent to this Agreement shall be retained by the Department 
and made available to the Service, if requested, for review and/or audit purposes 
for a period of five (5) years after completion of this Agreement. Pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 35214, all books, accounts, reports, files, electronic data, and other 
records relating to this Agreement shall be subject at all reasonable times to 
inspection and audit by the State of Arizona for five (5) years after completion of 
this Agreement. 
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12.0-z' SIGNMTORMS- 


M-- /, n-- , 	/:OF  THE PARTIES HETO have executed this Safe HarbF 
Ageernent to be in. effect as of the date last sIgted below. 


APPLICANT, Arizona Game and Fish Department  


-7 : 	 Date217 
Duane L. Shroufe, Director 
Arizona Game and Fish Departrneiit 
Phoenix., Arizona 


BY 	L Rm. -  - Date 2/ /s 
WiChristopherT. Jones, Deputy Regional Director 


Region 2, United States Fish and Wildlife Service 
Albuquerque, New Mexico 


Document SIIA AGFD Topmlnnow and Pupfish.20060126DRAFTdoc 
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Appendli 1. FIgurc ofthe geograk covcag ofthi Agreenient All noiFdrai lands 
(with the exception of Native Mnriean reservations) withIn this area. axe eligible  under 
this Agreement 


t: 	Geographic Area covered under this Agreement 


Streams and Rivers 
- 	


Lakes 
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Appendix 2. Sak Harbo. r Agreement Lan&wiwr Certificate ofinchiskni Template 


Certificate of Inclusion 
In, The Safe Harbor Agreerne 


For Gila topminnow (Poec 	OCCthe'fltahS), Yaqui topminnow (Pmci 	is 
sonorlensis), desert pupflsh (Cyprinodon macuiarIus), and Quitobaquito pupfish 


(Qprinod6n. eremus) between the Arizona Game and Fish Department and U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service 


This certifies that the participating landowner (Cooperator), who owns or administers 
property described in the attached Cooperative Agreement, is included within the scope 
of Permit No. [insert no.], issued by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service) on 
[insert date] to the Arizona Game and Fish Department (Department) under the authority 
of Section 10(a)(1)(A) of the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended, 16 U.S.C. 
15389(a)(1)(A). Such Permit authorizes certain activities by Cooperators as part of  Safe 
Harbor Agreement to establish populations of endangered topminnow and pupfish. 
Following that Permit and this Certificate, the holder of this Certificate is authorized to 
engage in any otherwise lawful activity on the above described property that may result 
in the incidental taking of the topminnow and pupfish, as appropriate, subject to the terms 
and conditions of such Permit and the Cooperative Agreement entered into pursuant 
thereto by the Arizona Game and Fish Department and [insert Cooperator's name] on 
tinsert date]. By signing this Certificate of inclusion, the Cooperator agrees to carry out 
all assigned conservation measures as described in the Agreement and in the attached 
Cooperative Agreement for a period of [insert number of years Certificate is in effecti 
years. 


Director 	 Date 
Arizona Game and Fish Department 


Cooperator [insert name] 
	


Date 


Concurrence, U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service 
	


Date 
Field Supervisor, Arizona Field Office, Phoenix 







Safó Harbor: Agreement for Tninnows and Pupfih in Arizona 	 33 


WflNESSFTh 


WHLAS, the Gila topminno Yaqi topniinnow, desert pupfish,, and Q-tfiWbaquito_ ---- 
pupfisli are listed as endangered sp. ecies under the Federal Endangered Species Act of 
1973,. as amended (Act); and, 


WHEREAS, the Service and Department have entered into the Safe Harbor Agreement 
following the authorities of Section IO(aXI)(A) of the Act and associated Service, policy 
and Federal regulation to establish a conservation program for topmmnnows and pupfish 
in Arizona and to provide for regulatory assurances to non-Federal landowners who own 
lands in Arizona and who enter into the Safe Harbor Agreement with the Serice and 
Department and, 


WHEREAS, the Service and Department are signatories to the Safe Harbor Agreement, 
while individual non-Federal landowners within Arizona may participate in the Safe 
Harbor Agreement's conservation program and receive its regulatory assurances through 
this Certificate of Inclusion issued by the Department to the participating landowner; and, 


WHEREAS, the Safe Harbor Agreement contemplates that cooperation by agencies and 
organizations in addition to the signatories and participating landowners will be 
necessary and desirable in ensuring comprehensive implementation of the Safe Harbor 
Agreement and long,-term conservation oftopminnows and pupfish in Arizona; and, 


WHEREAS, other organizations or Federal or State agencies who are not signatories to 
the Safe Harbor Agreement may, nevertheless, have certain regulatory or land 
management authorities or responsibilities in Arizona, or may themselves be engaged in 
topminnow and pupfish conservation efforts within the State; and, 


WHEREAS, such other agencies and organizations (including, but not limited, to the 
Arizona State Land Department; Arizona County and Municipal governments, and The 
Nature Conservancy) may elect or desire to become Cooperators in the Safe Harbor 
Agreement's conservation program; 


NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Agreement mutually agree and understand as 
follows: 


19 	kv-.01
ved Partiç This Certificate of Inclusion, between the Arizona Game and 


Fish Department (Department) and [insert name of Cooperator], is intended to 
promote good land stewardship by assisting the Cooperator in carrying out actions 
to establish topminnow and/or pupfish populations on land owned by the 
Cooperator. 


2, 	Enrolled Prooery. Cooperator owns property at [insert street and city address 
and/or legal description] in [insert county name] County, Arizona, that 
contains habitat suitable for topminnows and/or pupfish as defmed in the Safe 
Harbor Agreement (SHA) between the Department and the Service. The 
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Department will enroll this pro pty 	r the SHA as shown on the attathed 
property map. Other species (listedand- non-list ed) ofwiidiifó may also occur on 
the property but will not be covered for incidental take under the terms of the 
Department' Enhan. cement ofSurvivai Penn  it 


3. 	Access to EnroIie4 Propertv. The Cooperator agrees to allow the Department or 
Its representatives, reasonable access to their property for the purposes of (a) 
assessing the habitat value of their property, (b) stocking topminnows, pupfish, or 
both, (ç)  ascertaining that the habitats are suitable and are being maintained in the 
manner required by the SHA, and (d) monitoring the toprninnow or pupfish 
populations as required by the SHA. 


Additionally, the Cooperator agrees to allow the Service reasonable access for the 
purposes of (a) conducting compliance monitoring and (b) conducting biological 
monitoring in cooperation with the Department. 


The Department, Service, and the Cooperator will coordinate a schedule to 
conduct visits to the property at times that avoid inconvenience to the Cooperator 
or disruption of the Cooperator's use of the property. The Department or Service 
shall give the Cooperator at least 14 days advance notice of its desire to enter the 
property for any of the above purposes, and the Cooperator shall not unreasonably 
withhold permission for such entry. 


40 	Liability. The Cooperator assumes no liability for injury to any employee or 
representative of the Department or Service in the course of any visit to the 
property under this paragraph, except insofar as such injury is the result of the 
Cooperator's negligence. The Department or Service or their representatives shall 
not be liable for any damage to the property of the Cooperator arising from any 
visit to the property pursuant to this paragraph, except insofar as such damage is 
the result of the Department's or Service's negligence. 


50 	11astlineCondition Determination, Based upon the site survey conducted on the 
Cooperator's property on (insert month/day/year), the following has been 
determined: 


A. PhYsiocal description of propert. [Description should include (a) the 
mailing address or legal description of the property to be enrolled; (b) a 
thorough habitat analysis including photos; and, 	any other relevant 
information]. 


B. Mao of Property. (Attach on separate sheet a map of the entire property 
with the enrolled portions clearly outlined and marked as habitat to be 
stocked with topminnows and/or pupfish. 
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C. 	Baseline Codith n Determination (DSfl • tIOfl Will inc. hide the results 
aft baseline condition surveys, as well as th. final baseline condition 
determination as agreed upon in writing by all parties). 


6. 	Termsgld- .cdit$!. Ths Cooperative Agreement is subject to the following 
additional terms and conditions: 


A. Cooperator Responsibility. The Cooperator agrees•  to all Terms and 
Conditions as identified in Section 4.3 of the Safe Harbor.Agreement The 
Cooperator agrees to notify the Department before taking the property 
back to baseline conditions or other land management actions that could 
result in take of the species. 


B. LenEth of the Cooperative Agreement. This Cooperative Agreement 
will be valid from the date of the last signature on this Certificate of 
Inclusion until at least [insert date as agreed upon by all parties), but 
may not exceed [insert the Department's Permit expiration date, 
unless the Permit is extended. 


Co 	Restrictions on Takinew Property Back to Bgsdlinç Condition: 


L 	Tve of Take. Topminnow and pupfish may not be "taken" except 
as defined in Section 8 of the Safe Harbor Agreement. 


ii. 	Permit Duration. This Certificate of Inclusion may be extended if 
the Department's Permit is renewed and that renewal allows for 
such extension. 


D. 	Notification, The Cooperator agrees to notify the Arizona Game and Fish 
Department not less than 30 days before any activity that will take the 
property back to baseline conditions, except as noted under Section 8 for 
emergency responses. The Cooperator also agrees to allow the Department 
or Service to access the property to rescue any topminnow or pupfish 
individuals, if possible and appropriate, before taking the property back to 
baseline conditions. 


E. 	&ORgineReguireinents. The Cooperator understands that to fulfill the 
responsibilities of the SHA, the Department must report all monitoring 
activities conducted under the SHA to the Service. 


F. 	Early _Termination. The Cooperator may request termination of their 
Certificate of Inclusion at any time for circumstances beyond their control, 
upon written notification to the Department. The Department then has up 
to 60 days to salvage topminnow and pupfish, if deemed necessary, in 
consultation with the Service. At the end of the 60day timeperiod, the 
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Certificate of 
-C1 	


's  is terminated via written notification to the 
Cooperator and the Service.  


Additionally, the Cooperator may terminate their Certificate of hiciusion 
for any other reason, upon written notification to the Department. 
However, such terrni ation shall extinguish the Cooperat.o?s authority, to 
incidentally take topminnows or pupfish under the Enhancement of 
Survival Section 1O(aXI)(A)  Fennit. 


G. 	Transfer of Property. The Cooperator will notify the Department not less 
than 60 days before selling or transferring the enrolledproperty to another 
entity, to provide the Department the opportunity to secure the successor's 
agreement to continue the identified Safe Harbor activities. 


EL 	Unforeseen Circumstances. If before the expiration of the Permit to be issued to 
the Department, the Department should cease to exist or cease to be able to continue to 
administer the Safe Harbor program, and no other entity satisfactory to the Service is 
willing to assume the Department's responsibilities as administrator of the program, the 
Department will relinquish its Permit to the Service. In that event, the Service shall 
convert the Certificates of Inclusion that have been previously issued by the Department 
to participating landowners into freestanding permits that authorize the same actions by 
the participating landowners as had been authorized by the Certificates of Inclusion, 
provided the participating landowners agree to fulfill the management activities for their 
property, as well as the administrative, monitoring, and reporting requirements, for the 
enrolled property, as outlined in this Certificate of Inclusion and the Safe Harbor 
Agreement. 







Safe, HarborAeenat Lbwnr Cleffifimte of du 
' 	 . 	 I 


Ceirti&zite uflndUsn 
In The Safe Háboir Aenei1t 


Fi Gila tqpnnuiaw (Poew -liq2aft otidhs),, Yaqin kçimw 
swancxa,ft) &setn1sh (CpmIoi nthn'nà),. and QuiWba"ito pfish 


(C,ypion erw) between the Anmna Gan and Fish Ipaffinemt and U S Fish and 
Wildlife Semce 


This cethfies that the paiticipating landowner (CdaOeratDrJ who owns r admimsters 
propeirty descñbed m the attached Coopeiahve Agireenient is mcluded within the scope 
of Pemut No T&083636-0. issued by the U S Fish and Wildlife Service (Semite) on 
March IZ 2008 to the Arizona Game and Fish Department (Department) under the 
anthonty of Section 10(aXIXA) of the, Endangered Species Act of I 973,, as amended,, 16 
U S C 15389(aX1XA) Such Permit authorizes certain activities by Cooperators as part 
of a Safe Harbor Agreement to establish populations of endangered topminnow and 
piipfisk Follownig that Permit and this Certificate the holder of this Certificate is 
authorized to engage m any otherwise lawful activity on the above described propert y  
that may, result in the incidental taking  of the topnunnow and puplish, as appropriate, 
subject to the terms and conditions of such Permit and the Cooperative 
entered mtopursuant thereto by the Arizona Game and Fish Department and [Insert 
Cooperator's name] on date of last signature By : 	this Certificate of Juclusion, 


- the Cooperator agrees to can out all assigned conservation measures as described m the 
Agreement and m the attached Cooperative Agreement for a period of [Insert number of 
years Certificate Is In effect years 


WNESSETR 


WHEREAS, the Gila topimnnow, Yaqui topmimiow, desert pupfish, and QWtobaquito 
pupflsh are listed as endangered species wider the Federal Endangered Species Act of 
1973, as amended (Act); and, 


WHEREAS, the Service and Department have entered into the Safe Haibor Agreement 
following the authorities of Section 10(a)(1)(A) Of the Act and associated Serrice policy 
and Federal regulation to establish a conservation program for toprninnows and pupfish 
m Arizona and to provide for tegulatory assurances to non-Federal landowners who own 
lands in Arizona and who enter into the Safe Harboi Agreement with the Service and 
Department, and, 


WHEREAS, the Service and Department ate signatories to the Safe Harbor Agreement, 
while individual nonFederaI landowners within Arizona may participate in the Safe 
Harbor Agreement's conservation program and receive its iegiilatory assurances through 
this Certificate of Inclusion issued by the Department to the participating landowner; and, 







WV BM  EAS. such other agencies 	orpmzanons (includin&  but not limilect to the 
vArizona tState. Land I 
I'tiiij__ . 	elect or desire to become Cooperators M .  the SafeHador 


I[!flR 	Ic :ii he parfies to this ,Ag~ 	 -Ift -y  agree 


24 	Enrolled Property. Cooperator owns property at [insert street and city address 
and/or legal description] in [insert. county name] County. Aiizona, that 
contains  habitat suitable for toprninnows and/or pupfish as defined in the Safe 
Harbor Agreement (SIFIA) between the Department and the Service. The 
Department will enroll this property under the SI-IA, as showii on the attached 
property map. Other species (listed and non-listed) of wildlife may also occur on 
the property, but will not be covered for incidental  take under the terms of the 
Department's Enhancement of Survival Permit. 


3. 	Access to Enrolled Property. The Cooperator agrees to allow the Department or 
its representatives, reasonable access to their property for the purposes of (a) 
assessing the habitat value of their property, 	stocking topmiunows, pupfish, or 
both, 	ascertaining that the habitats are suitable and are being maintained in the 
maimer required by the SHA, and 	monitoring the topminnow or pupfish 
populations as required by the SHA. 


Additionally, the Cooperator agrees to allow the Service reasonable access for the 
purposes of (a) conducting compliance monitoring and (b) conducting biological 
monitoring  in cooperation with the Department. 


The Department, Service, and the Cooperator will coordinate a schedule to 
conduct visits to the property at times that avoid inconvenience  to the Cooperator 







C. 	Baseline Condition Determlnatloll (Description will include the results 
of the baseline condition surveys, I as well as the final baseline condition 
detennmatiou as agreed upon m writing by all parties) 


60 	Terms and Conditions. This Cooperative Agreement is subject to the following 
additional terms and conditions 


A. 	Cooperator ResionstbHlty. The Cooperator agrees 'to all Terms and 
Conditions, as identified m Section 4.3 of the Safe Harbor Agreement The 
Cooperator agrees to notify the Department before taking the property 
back to baseline conditions or other land management actions that could 
result in take ofthe species 


BeLength of the CooDetative Agreement ,., This Cooperative Agreement 
will be valid fiom the date of the last signatme on this Certificate of 
Inclusion until at least [Insert date as agreed upon by all patties], but 
may not exceed March 3 1, 2058, unless the Permit is extended 







ft NotificatiolL The Coopeiratoragrees to noW the Anza Game and Fish 
Depmrtnient not less than 30 days before any aelivity that will ta&e the 
property back to bseIme coiidilions except as noted under. Section 8 for 
emergency responses The ,Cooperator also agrees to aflowr the Department 
or Service  to access the property to rescue any topminnow,  or puplish 
individuals., if possible, and appropnate. before.taking the property back to 
baseline conditions,  


F 	Rep2rt1n Re..aV' hV.Ment& The Cooperator understands that to fulfill the 
responsibilities of the SHA the Department must report  all monitoring, 
activities conducted nuder the SILk to the Service 


F. 	Early. Térmlnaflon. The Cooperator may request termination of their 
Certificate of Inclusion at any tune for circumstances beyond their controL 
upon written notification to the Department The Department then has up 
to 60 days to salvage topmmuow and puplisk if deemed ne-cessaryT., in 
consultation with the Service At the end of the 60-day time penod, the 
Certificate of Inclusion is terminated via wntteu notification to the 
Cooperator and the, Service 


Additionally, the Cooperator may terminate their Certificate of Inclusion 
for any other reason, upon written notification to the Department 
However, such termination shall extinguish the Cooperator's authority to 
incidentally take topnumiows or pupfish undet the Enhancement of 
Survival Section lO(a)(l)(A) Permit 


G 	Transfet of Pt onertv The Cooperator will notify the Department not less 
than 60 days before selling or transferring the enrolled property to another 
entity, to provide the Department the opportunity to scenic the successor's 
agreement to continue the identified Safe Harbor activities 


H Unforeseen ,  Clicumstances It before the expiration of the Permit to be 
issued to the Department, the Department should cease to exist or cease to be 
able to continue to administer the Safe Harbor program, and no other entity 
satisfactory to the Service is willing to assume the Department's 
responsibilities as administrator of the program, the Department will 
relin.  quish its Permit to the Service In that event, the Service shall convert the 







Larry Voyles Director, 
Anzona Ganie and Fish Department 


Cooperator [insert name] 


Concunence, Steve Spangle, U S Fish & Wildlife 
Service Field Supervisor, Arizona Field Office, 
Phoenix  


---- 	
U \Nongame Bianch\Native Fish Piogiam\Topt'up SHA\SHA Cert ofinclusion\SHA COI 2008 template doe 
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For breeding, including egg and tadpole
development, Houston toads require still or
slow-flowing bodies of water, such as this
shallow pond. 


Photo Credit: Paige Najvar/USFWS


SHA Enrollment Process


1. To participate in the SHA program,
landowners having a listed
species or its habitat on their
property are invited to contact the
appropriate regional office of the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.
See the inside back cover of the
Bulletin for contact information.


2. If an SHA is feasible, the
landowner and the Service work
together to compile information
about the land, including a map,
the current management, and the
management needs of the
species and/or habitat.


3. The landowner and the Service
determine the baseline condition of the property for the species -- the number
and location of individuals, a habitat assessment, or a combination of the two.


4. The landowner and the Service identify voluntary actions that would provide a
net conservation benefit for the species. They also determine the duration of
the SHA, allowing enough time to achieve the desired benefit.


5. The landowner and Service develop a draft SHA that specifies management
actions that will provide a net conservation benefit to the species. The draft
plan should describe the current and anticipated management of the property
(farming, ranching, timber management, etc.) It should also address the


You Are Here: ES Home » News » Endangered Species Bulletins » Fall 2010 » SHA Enrollment Process


Conserving the Nature of America


Habitat Conservation
Plans (HCPs)


Safe Harbor Agreements
»


Candidate Conservation
Agreements »


Candidate Conservation
Agreements with
Assurances »


Conservation Banking


Enrollment Process


Recovery Credits and
Tax Deductions


Conservation Plans
Database


Information, Planning
and Consultation System
(IPaC)


Recovery Online Activity
Reporting System
(ROAR)


Endangered Species Program



http://www.fws.gov/endangered/index.html

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/SHA_process.html#

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/SHA_process.html#

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/SHA_process.html#

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/SHA_process.html#

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/SHA_process.html#

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/SHA_process.html#

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/SHA_process.html#

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/SHA_process.html#

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/SHA_process.html#

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/SHA_process.html#

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/SHA_process.html#

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin.html

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/what-we-do/hcp-overview.html

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/landowners/safe-harbor-agreements.html

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/what-we-do/cca.html

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/what-we-do/cca.html#ccaa

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/landowners/conservation-banking.html

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/banks_process.html

http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/recovery-credits.html

http://ecos.fws.gov/conserv_plans/public.jsp

http://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/faqs.jsp

https://ecos.fws.gov/roar/pub/ConfigureRecActionReport.do?path=ROAR%20Custom%20Queries.Public%20Actions%20AdHoc

http://www.fws.gov/

http://www.fws.gov/





2/3/16, 1:35 PMEndangered Species Program: SHA Enrollment Process


Page 2 of 2http://www.fws.gov/endangered/news/bulletin-fall2010/SHA_process.html


monitoring needed to determine if the prescribed management actually
benefits the species and/or its habitat.


6. The Service identifies any anticipated incidental take of listed species that
might result from the management planned under the SHA, including any
"incidental take" of a listed species that could be expected if the landowner
chooses to return the property to its baseline condition when the agreement
ends. 


7. The landowner submits the completed SHA and an application for an
"enhancement of survival permit" to the Service.


8. The Service then publishes an announcement in the Federal Register that it
has received an application for an "enhancement of survival permit." A 30-day
public comment period follows.


9. During the public comment period, the Service conducts internal reviews
related to issuance of the requested permit.


10. Following a response to any public comments, and after incorporating any
appropriate changes, the Service and the landowner approve and sign the
final SHA. Assuming all criteria have been met, the Service then issues the
enhancement of survival permit. 


11. The landowner begins any new conservation actions and/or continues with
existing practices identified in the SHA, and reports annually to the Service on
the plan's progress.
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SAFE HARBOR AGREEMENTS 


Ross Timmons  
Arizona Game and Fish Department, 


Phoenix, AZ 


Doug Duncan  
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Tucson, AZ;  







What are they? 
• Voluntary agreements under the ESA: 


• nonfederal landowners 
• authorizes future take of listed species 
 


• Create an incentive to voluntarily conserve listed species 
 
• Provide assurances - no further ESA restrictions  
 
• Landowner can “take back” habitats or populations (return 


to baseline) in the future 
 
• net conservation benefit for the species 


 







• Regulatory certainty 
• Help recover listed species 
• Mosquito control 
• Access to technical assistance 
• Can still manage their property pretty 


much as they want 


How do landowners 
(cooperators) benefit? 







Monitoring 
Biological and Compliance 


• Compliance:  to ensure that all 
commitments in the Agreement and 
Certificate are being met 


• Biological:  to ensure that the biological 
goals of the Agreement are being met 
and to help determine the effectiveness 
of its conservation program 







Topminnow – Pupfish 
Safe Harbor Agreement 







 
 


GILA TOPMINNOW (Poeciliopsis occidentalis) 
 


YAQUI TOPMINNOW (P. sonoriensis) 
 


DESERT PUPFISH (Cyprinodon macularius) 
 


RIO SONOYTA PUPFISH (C. eremus) 















Cooperator Obligations: 
 Maintain site ownership, etc. 
 
 


 Notify AGFD of ownership changes, planned activities that may 
result in take of fish 
 
 


 Allow AGFD/USFWS access to the site for monitoring 
 
 


 Report on, prevent, minimize, & control the introduction 
 of non-native competitors or predators, or disease 
 vectors at the site 
 







AGFD Obligations: 
 Coordinate with Cooperators to determine site suitability 
 & baseline condition 


 


 Provide technical advice & assistance 
 Coordinate with USFWS on appropriate source of fish to use, & 
stocking fish 
 


 Coordinate with Cooperators & USFWS on the  monitoring & 
reporting schedule (all site visits will  have reasonable advanced 
notification) 
 


 Conduct biological & compliance monitoring 
 


 Notify USFWS when a planned activity will result in the 
 complete loss of a site’s population 







Monitoring Needs: 


Biological Monitoring 
 1 month post-stocking visit 
 6 months post-stocking visit 
 1 year post-stocking visit 
 Thereafter, at least one visit every 3 years 
 
For smaller sites (<1600 sq ft in area), AGFD & the Cooperator can 
adjust the monitoring schedule as appropriate, with at least one 


visit every 3 years 


Compliance Monitoring 
 At least one visit every 2 years, but no more than 4 
visits per year 







Cooperators may request to terminate their 
Certificate of Inclusion at any time for 


circumstances beyond their control, upon 
written notification to AGFD 


--- 
AGFD has up to 60 days to salvage fish, in 


consultation with USFWS. Incidental take is still 
covered during this 60-day period. 







Moving Forward 
• 5 sites in the pipeline 


• continue focus on larger sites 


• replicating certain lineages 


• more natural sites 


• monitor existing sites 


• identify new sites 


• implement citizen science (web) 


• vector control 


• reduce ASU refuges 







“Managing Today for Wildlife Tomorrow” 
 


www.azgfd.gov 























Maricopa County Parks & Recreation 


Nursery Tank 


Pemberton Pond 


McDowell Mountain 
Regional Park 


Also… 


White Tank Mtn Regional Park & Usery Mtn Regional Park 
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